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BY THE

INAM COMMISSION,

CONNECTED WITH

THE RESUMPTION OF THE VILLAGES KUBLAPOOR, WOTEEMUROO, AND
KENCHUNHUTTEE, AND TWENTY PIECES OF LAND IN NINE VIL-
LAGES OF THE PADSHAPOOR TALOOKA, IN THE BELGAUM COL-
LECTORATE, HELD BY THE LATE ANAJEE NURSEW DESHPANDEY
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RECAPITULATION OF PROCEEDINGS, 1
&c. §e.

1. Tae Offcers of the Inam Co¥nmission reported to Government, in a letter No. 4,
dated 20d September 1843, that while statemends regarding inams in certain talookas
of the Dharwar Collectorate were being -prepared, they were .employing their time in
making inquiries as to the validity of the titles by which_ villages situated in other
districts were held asinam. Io the same letter they stated that they were confining their 2
inquiries to those villao'e_s regarding the tenure of which they had strong ground for
gntertammv susplclon

2. This proceeding was approved of by Government, in the Chief Secretary 8 letter
No. 3035, dated 16th September 1843,

3. On the 4th September 1843 Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankuley, or
Ankulgee, in the Padshapoor Talooka of the Belgaum Collectorate, having been called
on by the Commission to state the nature of his titlg to the three villages of the said

1. Mouza Kublapoor. talooka (formerly included in the principal Collectorate of

2. Muzzra Kenchunhuttee,a Dharwar) which are named in the maro‘ina gave ina “ Ky-

3.1113['2‘3;:"“;&2‘:::“1:‘;‘.‘“’ ﬂ.ee.ut, or detailed statement regardifig”their alleged acqui- 3

sition, and continuanee as inam.

4. Before proceeding with any further inquiries in the Padshapoor Talooka, the
present Inam Commissiouer considered it necessary to obtain jnstructions as to how far
the former proceedings of Government and its officers shoul& be regarded as fettering,
or otherwise aﬂectmg the propesed inquiry regarding nine ullages and certain lands in
that talooka, comprising the three villages above mentioned, as claimed by Anajee
Nursew, who had meanwhile deceased.

5. With this object, the Inam Commissioner addressed to the Chief Secretary to
Goveroment a letter No. 251, dated 18th June 1846, as fullows :—

“Str,—1 have the honor to bring to the notice of Government the following facts : — 4

“2. Intheyeara. n. 1820a° Dehjliara,’ or lList of all the villages in the Dharwar
Soobha, was drawn up by the Principal Collector of that district, and sent to the Com-
missioper in the Deccan, to be teated by a comparison with the Paishwa’s accounts at
Poona.

“3. In A.p. 1821 [on the 21st February] the Commissivner forwarded to the
Principal Collector of Dharwar a memorandum of points connected with the dehjhara
in question, which appeared to require explanation ; and I shall now detail the purport
of such parts of this memorandum as refer to certain villages, &c. in the Padshapoor
Talooka, regarding which I am about to submita question (stated in the 18th para- 5
graph) for the decision of Government.

“4. In the Dharwar dehjhara two hamlets, viz. Muzzra Chilbhawee and Muzzra
Kuaveenhuttee, had been entered as the jooree inams of Lingo
Dewurow Deshpandey ; the Commissioner, being unable to
find io the Paishwa’s duftur any mention of such_ villages,
required information as to whether they belonged to any other district, or to Padshapoor;

1. Chilbhawee.
2. Kunveenhuttee,
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RECAPITULATION OF PROCEEDINGS, 1
&e. &e.

1. TaE Officers of the Inam Cotnmissiop reported to Government, in a letter No. 4,
dated 2nd September 1843, that while statemenis regarding inams in certain talookas
of the Dharwar Collectorate were being -prepared, they were employing their time in
making inquiries as to the validity of the titles by which villages situated in other
districts were held asinam. Io the same letter they stated that thev were confining their 2
inquiries to those villages regarding the tenure of which they had strong ground for
gntertammtr susprclon .

2. This proceeding was approved of by Government, in the Chief Secretary s letter
No. 3035, dated 16th September 1843,

3. On the 4th September 1843 Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankuley, or
Aukulgee, in the Padshapoor Talooka of the Belgaum Collectorate, having been called
on by the Commission to state the nature of his title to the three villages of the said

1. Mouza Kublapoor. talooka (formerly included in the principal Collectorate of

2. Muzzra Kenchunhuttee,a D)harwar) which are named in the margin, gave ina Ky-

N hﬁﬂg‘ll‘;‘:‘fvﬁ::gui‘;?d“' feeut,” or detailed statement regardifir‘their alleged acqui- 3

sition, and continuanee as inam.

4. Before proceeding with any further inquiries in the Padshapoor Talooka, the
present Inam Commissioner considered it necessary £o obtain instructions as to how far
the former proceedings of Goveroment and its officers shou!cl he regarded as fettering,
or otherwise aﬂ'ectmg the proposed inquiry regarding nine u.llages and certain lands in
that talooka, comprising the three villages above mentxoned_ as claimed Ly Anajee
Nursew, who had meanwhile deceased.

5. With this object, the Inam Commissioner addressed to the Chief Secretary to
Government a letter No. 251, dated 18th June 1846, as follows :—

“ S1r,—I have the hunor to bring to the notice of Government the followmo' facts : — 4

«9, In the year 4. . 1820 a ‘ Dehjhara,’ or list of all the vﬂlg__ges in the Dharwar
Soobha, was drawn up by the Principal Collector of that district, aud sent to the Com-
missioper in the Deccan, to be tested by a comparison with the Paishwa’s accounts at
Poona. '

«“3. In a.p. 1821 [on the 21st Febraary] the Commissivner forwarded to the
Principal Collector of Dharwar a memorandum of points connected with the dehjhara
in question, which appeared to require explanation ; and I shall now detail the purport
of such parts of this memorandum as refer to certain villages, &c. in the Padshapoor
Talooka, regarding which I am about to submita question (stated in the 18th para- 5
graph) for the decision of Government.

«g. In the Dharwar dehjhara two hamlets, viz. Mazzra Chilbhawee and Muzzra

, ' ' Kuaveenhuttee, liad been entered as the jooree inams of Lingo

;: gﬂ:&iﬂe\f&ee. Dewurow Deshpandey ; the Commissioner, being unable to
find in the Paishwa’s duftur any mention of such villages,

required information as to whether they belonged to any other district, or to Padshapoor;
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of what villages they were the hamlets ; from what period they had been held by the
Deshpandey, and under whose grant; what was their kumal, or their actual rental ; and

what the amount of jooree paid for them.
6 «5. Inthe dehjhara three villages, viz. Mouza Ranjunkuttee, Mouza Gootee, and
Mouza Goojunhall, were entered as the jooree inams of

3- gaﬂiuﬂkuﬂee- Russool Desaee ; one, viz. Mouza Gorulkoondurgee, as that
5. ng-tflﬁhau_ - of Balkrishn Dewurow ; and two, viz. Mouza Kublapoor and
g- g‘“b';lkmﬂdufgee- Mouza Woteemuroo, as those of Anajee Nursew. DBut, as all
5. Woteemaureo. these appeared entered in the Paishwa’s duftur as ¢ Khalsat’

villages, the Commissioner requlred to know from what
period, and under whose graat, they had been held as jooree inams.

“ 6. There was also one hamlet, Muzzra® Keni(hmhuttee, eatered in the Dharwar list
as khalsat, nnder the head of ¢ Resumptions from Gurudapa
Naik’; and'as there was no meution of any such hamlet in
7 the Paishwa’s accounts, ¢he’ Commlssxoner in his nemorandum inquired what its history

might be.

«7. The Principal Collector of Dharwar drew up a * Yad ’in reply to the Commis-
sioner’s memorandum of a.p. 1821, mentioned in the 3rd paragraph, which yad is
without date, but appears to have been sent with a letter dated 11th April, and is endorsed
as received at the Commissioner’s cutcherry on the 16th April 1823. The following
is the purport of the explanation given by the Principal Collector regarding the nine
villages meationed in the last three paragraphs : —

¢ ¢ Muzzra Chilbhawee, of Kuryat Koondurgee, was originally a hamlet com-
prised in the village of Roostumpoor, but was granted
by the Beenewala to Lingo Dewurow, Deshpandey.of
Padshapoor, i in Fuslee 1212, [a. p. 1802-03), since whlch period it has been held by
him. Having been obtained previous to a. p. 1803, it should be continued as an
hereditary jooree ivam : such is the arrangement* of Fuslee 1228 [a. p. 1818-19].

‘¢ Muzzra Kunveenhuttee also belonged to Roostumpoor, and was granted on

: fixed quit-rent by Anundrow Ramchunder Sursoobhedar

% Kuuveeohuttes. to the same Deshpandey in Fuslee 1218 [a. p. 1808-09],

sinee which period it has been continued. This muzzra, having been acquired

since A. . 1803, should be continued during the life of the said Deshpandey, at

9  half its kuma] rental, and made khalsat at his death ; so it was settled in Fuslee

1298 [a. p. 1818-19]. |

¢ ¢ Mouza Ranjuunkuttee, of Summut Ankulgee, was graated by the Beenewala,

3. Reniuak at a jooree tax of Rs. 50, to Russool Desaee, in Fuslee 1214

+ Renjuskuttee. [a. ». 1804-05), and has been since continued. Itshould

remain with him till his death, and be then resumed by Government. Such is
Mr. Chaplin’s arrangement, made in Fuslee 1828 [4. p. 1818-19].

¢ ¢ Mouza Gootee, of Summut Ankulgee, was granted by the Beenewala to Rus-
sool Desaee, in Fuslee 1210[a. p. 1800-01].  As the latter
obtained it previous to . p. 1803, it should be continued
10 as his hereditary jooree inam : such is the rule of Fuslee 1828 [a. ». 1818-19].
*¢ Monza Goojunhall was granted by the Beenewala in Fuslee 1212 [a. b.
1802-03), and has been since continued to the same
Desaee. It should be treated as Mouza Gootee.
“ ¢ Mouza Gorulkoondurgee was granted to Balkrishn Dewurow Deshpandey
by the Beenewala, in Fuslee 1214 [a. p. 1804-05], and
has since continued as a jooree inam. As it was obtained
later than a. ». 1803, it should be continued at half its kumal rental till the

9. Kenchunhuttee.

8 1. Chilbhawee.

4. Gootee.

5. Goojunhall,

6. Gorulkoondurgee.

* ¢ Allusion is here made to Mr. Elphinstone’s Inam Rules of o, », 1818,”
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death of the said Deshpandey, according to the arrangement of Fuslee 1298
[a. . 1818-19], and then resumed by the Sirkar. 11
“ ¢ Mouza Kublapoor was granted to Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat

. Ankulgee, by .the Becnewala, in Fuslee 1214 [a. p.

7- Kublapoor. 1804-05], from which period to the present it has been
" continued.

“¢t Mouza Woteemuroo was'granted to the same Deshpandey by Purseram

Khuenderow, in Fuslee 1221 [a. p. 1811-12], from which

8. Wotcemuroo. period to the present it has been continued.

“ ¢ General Munro issued an order that all the wuttuns* of the said Anajee
Nursew Deshpandey should be gautinued for the future, as they had continued
up to the iutroduction of klhe‘_ﬁmy s Government.

“¢ Muzzra Kenchunhuttee is a hamlet of Mouza Nundee. It was granted 12
by the Beenewala’ in Fuslee 1210 [a. p. 1800-01] to
Goorudapu Naik, who executed arinam puttr, transferring

it to the Padshapoor Deshpandey, Anajee Nursew, in Fuslee 1218 [a. p. 1808-09]
and it has since continued with the latter. This muzzra was entered in the

- dehjhara under the head of “Juptee” [resumed], but il‘. should be entered among
the “Jooree” villages.

“ ¢ General Munro gave a letter that as many of Anajee Nursew’s wuttuns
[including this hamletT] as had been continued up to the introduction of the
Company’s Government, should be continued as of old, and the hamlet in ques- 13
tion is thus continued.

“8. On the [0th August a. p. 1824 the Commissioner in the Deccan replied to the
Principal Cullector’s yad above mentioned in a letter, from which the following are

9. Kenchunhuttee.

extracts :—

“¢ The title by which certain inam and other alienated villages in the Sou-
thern Mahratta Country [are held] appearing, on a comparison of the accounts
received from your cutcherry with the Poona duftur, to be of a doubtful nature, a
memorandum on the subject was forwarded to you -about three years ago.}
Your explanation,§ subsequently received, having now unde:‘crone an examination,
the result of which differs materially from the acconnts furthcomma’ in this 14
office, I have now the honor to point out to you those diffcrences in detail :—

 « Papsuaroor Tarooka,
“ ¢ List of Villages keld in this Talooka by Zumeendars, with the Holders’, N ames.

“¢1l. By Lingo Dewurow and Lingo Appajee, Deshpandeys of -Summut
Koondurgee :—

Muzzra Chilbhawee ...ccovviveviiiiiiiiiaiiiieen.e, resasseans . 1

Kunveenhuttee ................ fhisisissarsessacansaonn R | 0
“<2. By Russool Khan Desaee, in Summut Ankulgee:—

Mouza Gootee.. ...cvveriveneuneniansnsonss fesesheansansaaneen 1

Goojunhall .. ..uvviienririrrrneiencrirereataraarasanceanannnns 1

Ranjunkuttee ........cc.cvvvennns. Ceeaeens e aetsacerateeaaans 1 5

“¢3. By Ramajee Bhurmajee and Balkrishn Deo Row, Deshpandeys of
Kuryat Ankulgee :—
Mouza Gorulkoondurgee ......... creeneaas tesrrrana s freesnsanaas 1

* * Woteemuroo was nof a wuttun of the Deshpandey, but a new inam.

+ ** But his wuttuns did not include this hamlet ; and it is not mentioned in General Munro’s letter. ”
1 “ This refers to the memorandum referred to in the 3rd paragraph.”

§ “ Namely the yad quoted in the 7th paragraph.”
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[ 4 ]
« 14, By Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Ankulgee:—

Muzzra Kenchunhuttee R T P |

MOﬁZaKﬂblapOOY.....-a ------------------- «-n v-w L R R ] 1

Mouza Woleemuroo, . ....c.veaes v deames Ceecereanrensasersa P |
_—3

Total of Mouzas and Muyzzras .... 9

¢ ¢ The explanatory statements show that the Mamlutdars granted the above
enumerated villages at different periods between the Fuslee years 1210 and 1221,
and the Zumeendars have also given in 4 memorandum, stating these villages
to have been granted to them. But on yeferring to the duftur, the propriety of
continuing those lands and villages to the holders appears very questionable. Fur-
ther inquiry should therefore be made, and copies of the Mamlutdars’ sunnuds,
&c. ought to be taken, and forwarded to this office, with any further intelligence
procurable.’ . .

“9. The Commission obtained the extract given in the last paragraph from the
Commissioner’s register of outward letters. The original appears to have been lost at
Kittoor, during the disastrous occurrences of November 1824.

% 10. The draft of a Mahratta memoraudum on the same points, evidently prepared
about the same time, though not bearing any date, has been found in the Commissioner’s

‘duftur. It contains comments on the Principal Collector’s yad of explanations, men-

17

18

19

tioned in paragraph 7, but by whom drawn up does not appear. The purport of this
yad is as follows : —

“¢ It is said in the statements sent from the soobha {of Dharwar] that villages
and lands were granted to the Desaees, Deshpandeys, &c. of Purgunna Padsha-
poor, between Fuslee 1210 (Soorsun Ehude Meiatain) [4.p. 1800-01] and Fuslee
1221 (Soorsun Eesunee Ashur) [a.p. 1811-12], The entries of these have been
looked for in the duftur, and the following reasons for disagreeing [with the
Principal Coliector] are evident.

‘It is stated in the [Principal Collector’s] answer to the {Commissioner’s]
objections that—

¢ ¢ <« Muzzra Chilbhawee, of Kuryat Koondurgee, was originally included

in Mouza Roostumpoor, In Fuslee 1212 [a. 0. 1802-03] the Beenewaula

granted it in inam to Lingo Dewurow and Lingo Apajee, Deshpandeys of

Summut Koondurgee, and it has been continued from that time to the

present. This hamlet, having been obtained previous to a. p, 1803, should

be continued hereditarily as a jooree inam. So it was settled in Fuslee
1228 [4. p. 1818-19].

“ ¢ % Mozzra Kunveenhuttee was also included in Roostumpoor, and was
given by Anundrow Ramchunder Surscobhedar at a fixed quit-rent in
Fuslee 1218 [a. p. 1808-09], from which period to the present it has been
continued. This muzzra having been acquired since A. p. 1803, should be
continued at half its rentul till the present incumbent’s death, when it
should be entered as khalsat. Such is the arrangement of Fuslee 1228
[4. D. 1818-19]. *

“ ¢ Such is the purport of the answer to the [Commissioner’s] objections. As
to what is stated in the kyfeeuts sent in, it cannot be tested by the duftur, as
there are no accounts of the years in question. There are, however, accounts of
Fuslee 1222 [a. p. 1812-13] in the duftur, in which Mouza Roostumpoor is entered
asa khalsat villuge, as formerly, And in Fuslee 1223 [, p. 1813-14], an azmas
of the mahals and villages of the Carnatic was given to Trimbukjee Dengle, in
which the revenues of Purgunna Padshapuor are entered at the same amount as
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they were in Fuslee 1190 [a. p. 1780-81], and there is no deduction made on
account of these muzeras, or of the' land granted in the years in question, but
the whole amount is-brought to account.

#¢It is stated [in the Principal Collector’s explanation] regarding Russool
Khan Desaee’s holdings, that

20

¢« Mouza Gootee, of Summut Ankulgee, was granted by the Beenewala

in Fuslee 1210 {a. p. 1800-01], and has since continued. As it was ob-
tained before a. p. 1803, it should, acording to the rules of Fuslee 1228
{a. . 1818-19], be continued hereditarily as a jooree inam.

« <% Mouza Ranjunkuttee, of Summut Anknlgee, was granted by the
same anthotity, at a fixgd jooree tax of Rs. 50, in Soorsun Khumus Meia-
tain (Fuslee 1214y [4. . 1804-05], and has since continued. It should,
therefure, according to the arrangement made by Mr. Chaplin in Fuslee
1228 {a. ». 1818-19), be continued at half its kumal rental during the life
of the holder, and afterwards resumed by the Sirkar.”

* ¢ Such is the explanation written [by the Principal Collector]; but the Bee-
newala has given a written statement that in the years in question he had no
jurisdiction ; wherefore it does not appear that either these villages, or any land
which he may have granted during those years, should be continued to the Zu-
meendars,

“ ¢ The expianatory yad [from Dharwar] states, also, that

1% Mouza Goojunhall was-granted as surv inam by the Beenewala,
during Soorsun Sulas Meiatain (Fuslee 1212) [a. . 1802-03], as a reward
for [ Russool Khan’s] exertions during the rebellions, and has since been con-
tinued as a jooree inam. As it was obtained previous to a. p. 1803, it
should, according to what was fixed in Fuslee 1228 {4. p. 1818-19]}, be con-
tinued heredltauly as a jooree inam.’

«“ < But there are no accounts in the duftur to show that the mahal was in the
above year under the Beenewala’s management, so that the village should be
continued {only] after an examination of the title deeds at the soobha [of Dhar-
war].

¢ [t is said in the reply [of the-Principal Collector], that

« « « Mouza Gorulkoondurgee was given by the Beenewala to Ramajee
Bhurmajee and Balkrishn Dewurow, Deshpandeys of Kuryat Aukulgee, in
Fuslee 1214 [a. p. 1804-05], and that it has since then been continued at a
jooree tax, As it was obtained later than a. p. 1803, it should be con-
tinued for life, at half its kumal rental, according to the arrangement of
Fuslee 1228 [a. p. 1818:19], and afterwards resumed by the Sirkar.”

‘¢ But the Beenewala has written that in the above year he had no jurisdic-
tion ; wherefore it does not appear that either this village, or any land he may
ha‘e granted in the same year, should be continued to the said Zumeendars.

“<It is stated in the [Principal Collector’s] yad, regarding the holdings of
Anajee Nursew, Desphandey of Kuryat Ankulgee, and in his kyfeeut, that:

4 ¢« Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, a hamlet of Mouza Nundee, was granted
as inam by the Beenewala in Fuslee 1210 [a. p. 1800-01], to Goorudaps,
Naik of Chikuldinee; who, in Fuslee 1218 [A. »., 1808-09], executed an
.inam puttr transferring it to Anajee Row Nursew, with whom it has since
continued. ‘ .

te¢« Mouza Kublapoor was granted by the Beenewala, for services per-
formed for the State, to Anajee Nursew, in Fuslee 1214 [a. p. 1804-05},
and has since been held by him.”

21
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« < But, considering that the Beenewala has stated that he had no jurisdiction
in the above years, it does not seem fit that either these villages, or any lands
he may have granted during that period, shonld be continued to the Zumeendar
in questlon.

“ ¢ The yad also states, that

“s¢5 Mouza Woteemuroo was granted as inam [to the same Deshpandey]
during the management of Purseram Khunderow Sursoobhedar, for ser-
vices done at Poona in Fuslee 1221 [a. 0. 1811-12]. This inam, not having
been enjoyed for ten years, should be resumed, assuch was the arrange-
ment made for all the Zumeendars of the purgunna. But General [Munro]
gave a writing to continue uninterruptedly to the said [Anajee Nursew] as
many of his wuttuns as had been 2onttnued up to the introduction of the
present Government., Wherefore Mr. Chaplin issued & takeed to the Mam-

‘lutdar of Padshapoor, on the 17th July 1819, to contlnue uninterruptedly

to the said Deshpandey his new villages and inam lands, without troubling
him ; and according to this they are coutinued.”

- +¢< But-there are no accounts in the duftur to show whether or not the mahal

was under the ‘jurisdiction of the said [Purseram Khunderow] during the year
in question. Wherefore [the village] is to be continued [only] after an investi-

27  “1L

gation being made as to the title deeds at the soobha [of Dharwar].’
The Co_mmisaion has also found at Poona the registry of a Mahratta duftur

yad on the same subject, which is endorsed as ¢ given in’ [probably by the Commission-
er’s Dufturdar] on the 19th August 1824, ¢ for transmission to Dharwar,’ though it does
not appear to have been despatched by the Commissioner until the 22nd of the game
month.* The purport.of as much of this yad as relates to the villages of the Padshapoor
Zumeendars is as followst :—

w« List of Villages in Talooka Padshapoor returned as with the Zumeendars of that

Purgunna.

“¢With Lingo Dewurow and Lingo Apajee, Deshpandeys of Summut

Koondurgee :—

Muzzra Chilbhawee’................. e trerteceentcrenerenaenans 1
Muzzra Kunveenhuttee .......... mrred e betreareeeaans 1

) —_ 2

28 “ ¢ With Russool Khan, Desace :—

Mouza Gootee of Summut Ankdlgee ..... Ceeier e Cetenneere 1
Mouza Goojunhall .. ..... rnaeesaa PP |
Mouza Ran_]unkuttee ............... Ceveasretrenss Cereraane aas 1

— 3

“¢ With Ramajee Bhurmajee and Balkrishn Dewurow, Deshpandeys of
Kuryat Apkulgee:—

Mouza Goru!koondurgee Ceraesauiben it atarareaaraea 1
—1
“ ¢ With Anajee Nursew, Desbpandey of Kuryat Aukulgee :— :
Muzzra Kenchunhuttee ..................... teenteciesacararans 1
Mouza Kublapoor .............. Seeaeiean ereeaiaaean, R |
Mouza Woteemuroo ................... cerees P |
| — 3

Total Villages and Hamlets.... 9

*The original has been since found in the Belgaum duftur, dated 22nd August 1824, and agreeing with

this registry.

t “This is only a repetition of the objections made in the English -letter of the 10th August 1824, quoted in
the 8th paragraph.”
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* ¢ The [ Principal Collector’s] answer of objections, and the Zumeendars’ state~
ments, show that the above villages, and other lands, were given to the latter By.
Mamlutdars, &c. between Fuslees 1210 and 1221 [a. p. 1800-01 and 1811-12]; 29
but on examining the duftur, there appear to be objections to continue the vil-
lages und lands in question; wherefore the copies of the whole of the sunnuds
whxch were issued by the Mamlutdars, &e., for the grant of the above vxlIages and
lands should be sent to the Commissioner’s cutcherry.

«“12. In reply to the last-mentioned yad, the Principal Collector of Dharwar wrote
the following letier to the Commissioner, on the 4th April 1826 :—

« ¢ Sir,—I have the honor to transmit a Mahratta yad from the Dafterdars of
this district, together with 18 copies of the original sunnuds and documents,
being the authority under whicfi the Zumeendars of the Padshapoot Talooka hold 30
theu‘ villages as mam, and called for in a Mahratta yad of the 22ad August 1824,
reeeived from your office. The English letter which gave cover to it 1s said to
have been lost in the disturbance at “Kittoor.

“ The accompaniments of this letter were a dufter yad and 18 copies ¢ of title deeds

*13. The purport of the duftur yad was as follows :(—
“¢A yad dated Poona, 22nd August a. p. 1824, was received at Dharwar

regarding investigations to be made about Zumeendars’ wllaoes This yad orders,
thut as there appear, from the entries in the Poona duftur, tq be objections to the
continuance of several villages held by Zumeendars, &ec., in" the Padshapoor 31
Mabhal, copies of any sunnuds relating to them may be sent in : copies of the
following documents are accordingly sent :—

« s Regarding Lingo Dewurow and Lingo Apajee, Deshpandeys & Summut Koondurgee.
“¢], A sunnud of Shideshwur Muheeputrow Beenewala, dated 9th
Jummadil- Akhir, in Soorsun Sulas Meiatain and Alf [a..p. 1802-03],
addressed to the Naiks and Patels of the said suromut .[Padshapoor]

containing an entry about Muzzra Chilbhawee. ... ..vvuenvrnenn.. 1
“:2, A sunnud of Anundrew Ramchunder, Sursoobha Prant barnatlc,
dated 27th Suwal, in Soorsun Teesa Meiatain and Ahf{a . 1808- 09], 32
addressed to Dewurow Roodr Deshpandey, about Muzzra Kunveen-
huttee ....cciviiiiiiiiiinirseranerannes Advsreesesanernanas 1 5

“ ¢ Regarding Russool Desaee.
“¢3, A sunnud of Shideshwur Muheeputrow -Beenewala, dated 10th
Tilkad, in Soorsun ‘Ehude Meiatain and Alif[a. p. 1800-01], addressed
to the Desaee, about Mouza Gootee ... «e.vivvnenenn. v 1
“¢4, A gunnud of Shideshwur Muheeputrow Beenewala, dated 29th
Saban, in Soorsun Khumus Meiatain and Alif [a. p. 1804-05,] addressed

to the Mokuddums of the village about Mouza Goojunhall, the copy 33
of a copy, for ihe original sunnud is mortgaged with some one, and
has not been produced ............ Chiteresrsisnr e an e P |

— 2

“ ¢ They say there is no sunnud about Mouza Ranj‘unkuttee.

“ ¢ Regarding Mouza Gorulkoondurgee, held by Ramajee Bhurmajee and Balkrishn
Dewurow, Deshpandeys of Kuryat Ankulgee,
«¢5, A sunnud of Vittul Krishn Beenewala, dated 27th Jummadil-Ak-
bir, in Soorsun Teesa Subaeen Meia agd Alif [a. . 1778-79] addressed

to the Deshpandey ....... .ottt 1.
“¢G. A sunnud of Shideshwur Muheeputrow, dated 16th Jummadil-
Awul, in Scorsun Khumus Meiatain Alif [a. ». 1804-05], addressed to 34

the Deshpandey ............... b veeeassasaeranes cerreraes 1
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#<7. - A surnud of Ramchunder Anandrow, Sursoobha Prant Carnatic,

dated Ramzan, in Soorsun Ashur Meiatsin ‘and- AlLf [a. p. 1809-10}
addressed to the Deshpandey ............. P cers

1
— 3

‘ Regardmy the Villages of Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankulgee.

“ ¢« About Muozzra Kenchunhuttee three docuntents, viz :(—

“¢8, A sunnud of Shideshwor Muheeputrow Beenewala, dated 9th Zil-
kad, in Soorsun Ehude Meiatain and Alif [a. p. 1800-01}, granting the
said village as inam to Goorudapa, Naik of Chikuldinee ...........

“‘9, A deed of the above Goorudapa Naik, dated 15th Mohurrum, in
Soorsun Teesa Meiatain and Alif [a. D. 1808}, transferring the said

muzzra in inam to Anajee Nursew Deshpandey.............o..L..
“+10. A takeed of Mr. Chaplin, the copy of which Is,_taken from the
Hoozoor Register ...... N eeeaaaes

“¢ About Mouza Kublapoor five documents, viz:—

“¢1L and 12. Two sunnuds of the Beenewala Shideshwur Muheeput-
row, dated in Soorsun Khumus Meiatain and Alif [a. n. 1804-05], one
addressed to Nurso Anajee, and one to the Deshmookhs and Deshpan-
deys of the said kuryat.......... ool

“13 and 14. Two sunnuds of Keshorow Balkrishn, Sursooblia of Prant.
Carnatic, dated 5th Suwal, in Soorsun Sheet Meiatain and Alif [4. ».
1805-067, one addressed to Nurso Anajee, and oné to the Mokuddums of
thevillage. (. oot i i i e e

“c18. A takeed addressed by Mr. Chaplm to the Padshapoor Mamlut-
dar, desiring the continuance to the said Deshpandey of Mouza Kub-
lapoor, Mouza Woteemuroo, and lands, the copy of which is taken from
the Hodzoor Register ........ ... ...ial... cetiseesermenann

“ ¢ About Mouza Woteemuroo two documents, viz : —

“¢16. A sunnud of the Beenewala Shideshwur Muheeputrow, dated in

Rubbee-ool-Awul, in Soorsun Khumus Meiatain and Alil [a.
1804-05), addressed to Nurso Anajee Deshpandey..:......cv..u....

“¢17. A sunnud of Ram Row Pandoorung, Soobhedar of Purgunna
Padshapoor, ‘dated 17th Zilkad, in Soorsun Eesune Ashur Meiatain
and Alif [4. . 1811-12), addressed to the village officers .............

“ ‘There is also an entry of this village in Mr. Chaplin’s takeed about
Kublapoor, above described.

“¢18. General Munro's sunnud, with a separate English writing, ad-
dressed to Anajee Row Deshpandey, about all bis wuttuns ......... .

1

— 11

““ ¢It was in consequence of this sunoud of General Muuro, that Mr. Chaplin,
when the new [inams of Auajee Nursew] were resumed according to more recent
rules, gave an order for their uninterrupted continuauce, according to which they

are still continued. The above are despatched 31st March a. p. 1826. *

“¢14, The following are translations of the 18 docnments eaumerated in the last
quoted yad :— ‘

“ 1st—Copy of a Lelter dated 9tk Jumadil- Akhir, Soorsun Sulas Meiatain and

Alif (. p, 1802-03), from Shideshwur M uheeputrow, to the Naz&s and Patels

of Kuryat Koondurgee, Purgqunna Padshapoor.
‘¢ During the rule of the [Paishwa’s] Sirkar in the above Purgunns, the

Kur-

veerkur Raja took the. tanna [of. Koondurgee], and subjugated the whole praat.
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Upon this Dewurow Roodr, Deshpandey of the above kuryat, in the year Meia- -
tain [a. p. 1799-1800] brought the troops of the Sirkar, and, after great personal 39
exertion, re-established the authority of the [Paishwa] Sirkar, upon which the
Sirkar was graciously pleased to confer on him a palkee as a mark of honour,
and, for its snpport, inams of lands in several villages. Afterwards, on the above
purgunna being ravaged by depredators, and the rule of the Sirkar discontinued,
the Deshpandey went and resided elsewhere. But on the purgunna being again
occupied by the Sirkar, the Deshpandey was recalled, when he has come and’
petitioned for the continvance of the inams formerly granted to him for his * Pal-
kee Surinjam.” Whereupon, taking into consideration his services to the Sirkar, 40
I have continued to him the following lands in surinjam :—

T el Hoons,
“¢In Kusba Koondurgee, § c¢higur, at 9+# hoons per chigur. ... it
In Mouza Aloof, 4 chigur, at 13+ B gy eee. 61
, Goomchenmurdee, § chigur, at 282 s sene i
»» Singehullee, 1ana of a chigur, at 5943 , 5 wese BN
»» Benchinmurdee, 3 chigur, at 103 » s, ends 2%
»» Guddahoolee, 2 anas of a chigur, at 13:3 ,, R P
» Mawnoor, 24 chigurs, at 7 " 53 enee  17%
»  Hutteealloor,  chigur, at 114 . - T 1 3
» Roostumpoor, & chigur, at 20 Sy s se.. 10
In Muzzra Chilbhawee, 17 koorees, at 1+% ,» kooree.... 19+%
" » a jooree of 1 kooree, at 1+, S B 41
In Mouza Bhugranhall, % chigur, at 755« = ,, chigur.... 1%
»  Benbagee, 4 chigur, at 74% ’ 5 eees BT
2+ 'r:

“ ¢ In all 6 chigurs and 18 koomrees of land, valued at hoons 92 .., are
given to the Deshpandey as * Palkee Inam,” and this Tletter is written that you
may continue them as above, hereditarily, to the Deshpandey : a new sunnud is

not to be required every year. Observe this.

“ 20d.—Copy of a Sunnud dated 27th Shuwal, in Soorsun Teesa Meiatain and
AlLif [a. p. 1809-09), issued by Anundrow Ramchunder, Sursoobhedar of the
Carnatic Prant, o Dewurow Roodr, Deshpandey of Kuryat Koondurgee, in 42
the Purgunna of Padshapoor.

“ ¢ In consequence of the ravages and depredations committed by the troops of
the Rajmuadul, &e. Muzzra Kunvehuttee, of Mouza Roostumpoor, was deserted by
the Inamdars and ryuts. [Its bastions also had been dilapidated and fullen down.
Ou my telling you from the Sirkar to restore the village, you represented that
Muzzra Kunvebuttee was situated on the boundary of the Hookeree Talooka, and
vuless the bastivn was repaired, and 5 or 10 Peeadas kept in it, and the place
made capable of resistance, the ryuts could not be protected ; but that, if it were
given to you on lease, it should be restored, the revenue fixed, and the Sirkar’s 43
dues paid, according to agreement. Wherefore, considering, that unless protected,
the village would be annihilated by the ravages of depredators, and the inroads
of the Rajmundul, and also considering, that during the ravages of depredators,
and the disputes of the Pindarees, you zealously performed your Jduty, and pro-
tected the tanna of the Sirkar, Ihave, in gratitude, agreed to grant to you the
above muzzra, including jooree Inamdars, but excepting Hukdars, on permanent
lease, at Rs. 85. You are therefore, according to your agreement, to restore the
village, protect the tanna, and fix its revenue. Paying the sbove amount

* «There are several errors in the calculation of threse items.”
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44 annually, and enjoying the village, you and your heirs are to remain comfortable.
No remission for calamities, &c. will be granted, as i3 the custom of the country,
and no oppression used, or increased puttee, &c. will be demanded. Observe this.’

“ 3rd.—Copy of a Sunnud dated 10th Zilkad, in Soorsun Ehude Meiatain and
ALf {a. p. 1800-01), issued by Shideshwur Muheeputrow to Sheikh Meera,
wulud Sheikh Hoosen, Desace of Turyf Lukmeshwur, Kuryat Ankle,* Pur-
gunna Padshapoor.

“ ¢ You represented at Kusba Belgaum that you had for a long time performed

service, and requested thata new inam might therefore be couferred on you;

45 wherefore, taking into consideration the usefuluess of your services, Mouza Gouotee,

in Turuf Yedulgood, Kuryat Ankle, of the above purgunna, is given to you in

inam, and this sunnud is given as title to enjoyment. The above village, including

all babs and perquisites, present and former puttees, but with the exception of

Hukdars’ and Inamdarg, is given to you and your heirs hereditarily, and you

are to perform the Sirkar’s duty with honesty. Enjoy the village, and remain
comfortable. Observe this.’

“ 4th.— Copy of a Takeed, dated 29th Saban, in Soorsun Khumus Meiatain and
Alif [a. p. 1804-05), from Shideshwur Mukheeputrow, to the Mokuddums of
Mouza Goojunkall, Turuf Lukneshwur, Kuryat Ankle, Purgunna Padsha-

poor,

46 “ ¢ Mouza Goojunball is made doomalla from the present year to the wife of
Sheikh Meera Desaee, as formerly: you are therefore to allow to her without
obstruction the management of the said village. Observe this.’

“5th.— Copy of a Sunnud dated 27th Jummadil-Akkir, Soorsun Teesa Subaeen
Meia.and Alf {a. p. 1778-79); issued by Vittul Krishn to Keshow Nursew,
Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankle, Purgunna Padshapoor. -

“ ¢ In times of tumult and confusion you engaged Seebundees, and kept the
tannas of the Sirkar; and, as you are of great service in the affairs of the Sirkar, {
have in gratitude let to you in farm the village of Gorulkoondurgee, Kuryat Ankle,

47 in the above purgunna, with the exception of Inamdars’ and Hukdars’, but includ-
ing all other rights and perquisites, for an annual sum of Rs..150. You are
accordingly to pay the above amount annually to the Sirkar, Populate the
village ; and you and your heirs manage it hereditarily. Perform the duty of

the Sirkar, and remain comfortable. Former puttees and babs are remitted.
Observe this.’

“6gth.— Cop_r{ of a Letter dated 16th Jummadil- Awul, Soorsun Khumus Meiatain
and Alif [a.pn. 1804-05), Jrom Shideshwur Muheeputrow to the Naik and
Patelt of Mouza Gorulkoonduryee, Kuryat Ankle, Purgunna Padshapoor.

48 “¢The above village was continued on farm to an anocestor of Balkrishn
Dewjee Deshpandey, for an annual sum, Rs. 150. Subsequently the village was
taken by the Sirkar, wherefore the Deshpandey came and represented [the eir-
cumstances], upon consideration of which, and as his services are of use to the
Sirkar, Rs. 130 out of the sum of Rs. 150 are remitted, and the village is given
in inam on contract for the sum of Rs. 20, and he is to manage it accordingly.

* < This name occurs both in its present form and as Ankulgee,”
4 * In the yad quoted in the 13th paragraph, a letter of this date, addressed to the Deshpandey, is said to
have been sent to Poona. It has not been found. But even if the yad be not in error, which is likely, the

letter to the Deshpandey must have been to the same effect as that to the village officers here quoled, which has
been found in the Belgaum duftur,”
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You are not to wait for another letter. A copy of thisis to be taken, and the
‘original given as title to enjoyment. Observe this.’

“ 7th.—Copy rgf a Sunnud dated 10th Ramzan, Soorsun Ashur Meiatain and Alif 49
{a. p. 1799-1800], issved by Ramchunder Anundrow, Sursoobhedar. Prant
Carnatic, to Balkrishn Dewjee, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankle, Purgunna Pad-
shapoor.

“ ¢ The village of Gorulkoondurgee, in the above Kuryat, was formerly given
to you by the Beenewala on contract for Rs. 20, Narrainrow Annajee Comavis-
dar has requested that the amount of Rs. 20 may beremitted, and- the village
continued as inam, as you had been of much use in the Sirkar's affairs. Upon
which, understanding that you are of use to the Sirkar, and being favourable
towards you, the sum of Rs. 20is remitted, and the village given in inam to you 50
and your heirs héreditarily, excluswe of Inamdars’, but including all rights and
perquisites. Enjoy it, and remain comfortable, Observe this.’

“ 8th.—Copy of a Sunnud daled 9th Zilkad, Soorsun Ehude Meiatain dnd ALf
[A. ». 1800-01), issued by Shideshwur Muheeputrow fo Goorudapa - Naik
wulud Fukeer Naik, of Muzzra Chikuldinee, Mouza Shahabundur, Kuryat
Koondurgee, Purgunna Padshapoor.

“ +You came and represented that you would remain uader the orders of the
Sirkar, and be always ready to perform your duty with honesty and sincerity ;
and requested that, out of compassion, Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, of Mouza Nun-
dee, Kuryat Ankle, may be given in inam to you : upon which, believing that 31
you will be serviceable and obedient to the Sirkar, the above village, excepting
Inamdars’ and Hukdars’, is given to you as an hereditary jooree inam, at a tax
of Rs. 5. Accordingly, pay the above sum, anunually, performing the Sirkar’s
duty with honesty and sincerity. Enjoy it, and remain comfortable. Observe
this.

“ 9th.-— Copy of an Inam Pultr, dated 15th Mohkurrum, Soorsun Teesa Meiatain
and Alif (. p. 1808-09], executed by Goorudapa Naik bin Fukcer Naik, Naik
of Chikuldinee, Sur Naik of Purgunna Padshapoor, in favour of Nursingrow
Dada, Deshpandey.

“<In every matter relating to my wuttun you have been of much service to 52
me with the Sirkar, procuring my advantage in all things. In acknowledgment
of this I have given to you, as an hereditary inafn, Muzzra Kenchunhauttee, in
Kuryat Ankle, of the above purgunna. You are accordingly to enjoy it. No
objection on any pretence will be made to its continuance, and my heirs will
also continue it.’

“ 10th.—Chpy of an Order No. 4, dated 3rd September,* addressed to the Mam-
lutdar of Padshapoor, taken from the Principal Collector’s Register of Orders.

“ ¢ Your report No. 15 has been received, and the written deposition has been
_ tead. These were sent by you in consequence of the order issued when AnaJee 53

Nursew Deshpandey made known at the Hoozoor that he obtained the village of
Kenchunhuttee in inam from Chikuldinee Goorudapa Naik, to whom it was
granted by the Beenewala, and that when, according to orders, the Chikul-
dineekur’s holdings were placed under attachment, his village of Kenchunhuttee
was seized along wnth them, although it had continued with him [the Deshpandey]
for ten or twelve years as inam. On consideration, it is directed that the above
village, granted by the Beenewala to the Chikuldineewala, and by him made

* « Of what year is not mentioned.”
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over with the original sunnud to Anajee Nursew Deshpandey, with whom it has
continued uninterruptedly for ten or eleven years, shall be restored to the Desh-

_pandey’s authority. The collections made from the village while under attach-

ment should also be paid to him. No objections are to be made un this account.
Observe this.’ .

lltll.;Copy of a Sunnud dated 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, Soorsun Khumus
Meiatain and ALf [a.. p. 1804-05], issued by Shideshwur Mukeeputrow to
Nurso Anajee, Deshpandey Kuryat Ankle, Purgunna Padshapoor.

“¢You requested that Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmuunhuttee Khoord, and
Boodrook, situated in the above kuryat, might be conferred on you ia inam;
upon which, being favourable to you,-I have given to you the mouza, with its
muzzra, in inam. You are to pay yearly'h nuzzur of Rs. 40, enjoy the manage-
ment hereditarily, and remain comfortable. Besides the above, no exaction will
be made ; and all puttees, &c. will be every year remitted. The village is granted
to you, with its water, trees, and stones. .Observe this.’

12th.—Copy of a Letter dated 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, Seorsun Khumus Meiatain
and Alif [A. p. 1804-05], from Shideshwur Muheeputrow to the Deshmookhs
and Deshpandeys of Kuryat Ankle, Purgunna Padshapoor.

* ‘In acknowledgment that Nurso Anajee, Deshpandey of the above kuryat,
is of service to the Sirkar, Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee, and Mouza
Woteemuroo oorf Kublapoor, with their muzzras, besides other inam lands in
the above kuryat, have been granted to the Deshpandey, for which a separate
sunuud has been given to him. On receipt of this takeed yon are to make over
the management -of the villages, and their muzzras, and the other inam lands,
and suffer them to be enjoyed according to the sunnud. You are to take a
copy of this, and deliver the original letter to the Deshpandey, as title to
enjoyment. Observe this.’

“ 13th.—Copy of a Sunnud, dated 5th Shuwal Soorsun Seet Meiatain and Alif
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[A. p. 1805-06], issued by Keshowrow Balkrishn, Sursoobhedar Prant Carnatic,
to Nurso Anajee, Deshpandey Kuryat Ankle, Purgunna Padshapoor.

“ ‘You represented that in the year Khumus Meiatain [4. ». 1804-05), the
Beencwala gave you Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee ata jooree tax of
Rs. 40, as also new lands in several villages, as inam, but that, on account of the
disturbances consequent on the departure of the Sursoobha’s troops in the same
year, no suntud was issued by the Sursoobhedar for their enjoyment. Wherefore
this sunnud is issued, remitting the jooree of Rs. 40 ; and the above village, with
all water, grass, trees, and stones, as well as any new inam lands and villages
that may lave been given, is granted to you and your heirs hereditarily. Enjoy
the same, and remain comfortable. Observe this. What more need be written 7’

14th.—Copy of @ Takeed dated 5th Shuwal, Soorsun Seet Meiatain ond
ALf [a. ». 1805-08), issued by Keshowrow Balkrishn, Sursoobhedar Prant
Carnatic, to the Mokuddums of Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee.

“*The above village was in the year Khumus Meiatain [4. p, 1804-05],
granted by the Beenewala to Nurso Anajee Deshpaudey, at a jooree tax of Rs. 40,
and a sunnud for the same was also given ; but owing to the troops of the Sur-
soobha going away in the same year, a dispute arose, and the Deshpandey has
now asked fora sunnud from the Sursoobhedar, as a necessary title to enjoyment.
Wherefore this sunnud is issued, remitting the jooree of Rs. 40. You are accord-
ingly to make over the whole management of the village to the Deshpandey,
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Nurso Anajee. A copy of this takeed is to be faken, and the original made over
to the Deshpandey, as title to enjoyment. Observe this.’ ‘

15th.— Copy of the Registry of a Taheed No.9, dated 17th July, Fuslee 1229
[a. p. 1819-20), issued by the Principal Collector, to the address of the Mam-
lutdar of Purgunna Padshapoor

« ¢ ] jssued orders to increase the jooree on the new villages and inam lands
held by Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankulgee, and to place Kublapoor 60
oorf Woteemuroo under attachment. The . Deshpandey 8 brother Nilkuntrow
has since come to the Hoozoor, und produced a snunad of the General [Munro],
&c.  Wherefore, on consideration, it is ordered, that although, according to the
present rules, the orders for increasing the jooree aund attachment of one village
are valid, still, as the Genera} $ias honuured the Deshpandey with the gift of a
sunnud, you are to couunue his holdings according to it. The amount of jooree
levied from his new inam villages and lands beyond what they used to pay is
therefore remitted ; there is no need to importune him for paymeut, and the village
of Kublapour, which was placed under attachment, is to be restored to lnm 61
You are to suffer the ahove new villages, with his inam lands, to continue unin-
terruptedly with the said Deshpaundey, hom thie present year, without further
objection. Observe this.’

16th.— Copy of a Sunnud dated 3rd Rubbee-anl—Arbul, Soorsun Khumus Meia-
tain and ALf [a. p. 1804-05), issued by Shideshwur Muheeputrow to Nurso
Anajee, Deshpandey Kuryat Aukle, Purgunna Padshapoor.

“*ln acknowledgment that you have been of great service to the Sirkar,
Mouza Wuteemurou is conferred on you as a jooree inam, ata tax of Rs. 15, and
this sunnud is given accordingly. You are, therefore, to pay the above sum 62
of Rs. 15, and, enjoying the whole village hereditarily, remain comfortable.
Observe this.

17th.—Copy of @ Takeed, dated 17th Zilkad, Soorsun Esune Ashur Meiatain
and Alif [a. D.-1811-12], issued by Ramrow Panrdoorung, Soobhedar of Pur-
gunna Padshapbor, to the Mokuddums of Mouza Woteemuroo, Kuryat Ankle.

“¢The above village was held as a leased inam by . Narsingrow Anajee
Deshpatdey, for Rs. 15. This sunnud is now issued. remitting the whole
of the ahove amount. You are therefore to continue the village accordingly.
Observe this.

18th. — Copy of @ Sunnud dated 25th May a. . 1818, issued by General Thomas 63
Munro tv Anajeerow, Deshpandey of Purgunna Padshapoor.

“*You came to the Hoozoor, aud represented. that the wuttuns belonging to
the office of Deshpandey of Purgunna Padshapoor have cuntinued with you
from the beginning; but that, now that the rule of the Company has commenced,
it is pecessary to issue.an order to the Padshapoor Mamlutdar for [their] unin-
terrupted continuance, Wherefore, on eousideration that when the Company
took the fort of Belgaum yon afford-d much assistance, and that you have also 64
brouglit a statement from the Padshapoor Mamlutdar to the effect that the two
inam villages Muouza Bhurmunhuttee and Mouza Kublapoar, of Kuryat Ankulgee,
with felds, gardens, &c. have uninterruptedly eountinned with you as wmtuns"’
from of old [mamool passon), I therefore issne this sunnud, [by which] you are
to enjoy the aboveuamed wurtun, inam villages, &e., and to remain satisfied. As

¥ * But they had not so continued, and had nothing to do with the Deshpandey’s wuttons.”
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it has continued from of old [mamool pasoon] 50’ mll it contmue without inter-
ruption, and without any vexation given to you.’

¢ Here follows the date, &c. and siguature of Sir Thomas Munro.

“ Below this document the following lines are written io English :—

“ ¢ The Inamdar having been very useful during the siege of Belgaum, I have
directed his villages of Burramhutty and Kuablapoor, with the separute lands, to
be continued by the Company’s Amildars in the same manner as under the
Peshwa’s Government. '

(Signed) «*¢T. Muwro.
“ 15, No answer was returned to the Principal Collector’s letter quoted in the 12th

paragraph until November 1826, and in the meanwhile the Comumissioner, who would
probably have come to a final decision on 1hé ‘questions which formed the subject of the

- correspoudence quoted in this letter, had appdrenﬂy left his office in Poona, for, ou the
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records of the Principal Collector of Dharwar, is found the following letter :—

No. 313 or 1826.

¢ ¢ S1n,—I have the instructions of the Hongrahle the Governor to acknow-
ledge the receipt of your letter to the address of the late Commissioner, dated
the 4th of April last,* giving cover to certain documentst relative to the alienated
villages and lands in the Padshapoor Talooka, und in reply to forward the en-
closed Mahratta paper, drawn up by the Government Dufturdar.

¢ <] have, &e.
(Signed) “*¢J, Wanben,
“ ¢ Sul-Secretary to Government.
“ ¢ Camp at Salpee, 16th November 1826

- “16. The following is a translation of the * Mahratta paper drawn up by the Govern-

ment Dufturdar,” which accompanied Mr, Warden’s letter :—
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“*A memorandum having been written,t desiring that as on examination
of the entries in the duftur, &e. regarding the villages and lands held by the
Zemindars of the Padshapoor Talooka, there appeared objections to their continu-

" ance, copies of all the sunnuds issued by the Mamlutdars and others who had
granted the said villages and Jands should Le sent to the Commissioner's cutcher-
Ty, coples of certain sunnuds were accordingly sent on the 3ist March§ a. p.
1826, These are not entered in the duftur. But rules were established in Fus-
lee 1228 [A. p. 1818:19], according to which [the villagss, &e.] are to be continued
&c. as below set forth :—

“ ¢ Lingo Dewurow and Lingo Appajee Deshpandeys.—It is stated in the ky-
feeut of these persons taken in Fuslee 1232 [a. p. 1822-23], that the Beenewala
gave them 7 chigurs and 82 anas of land in Fuslee 1212 [4. p. 1802-03], but
on looking at tiie copy of the sunuud, it now appears that only 6 chigurs and 3
anas are entered in it. This quantity is to he continued according to the rules
of Fuslee 1223 [4. p. 1818-19]. and as to the remuining 1 chigur 53 anas, and
any other land held [by the above Deshpandevs], these have probably been
continued after examination of sunnuds, wherefore eopies of such sunnuils should
be sent; and should there not be any sanund, then an explanation should be sent
of the grounds on which they are continued.

* ¢ Namely, the letter quoted above in the 12th paragraph.”

" 4 * Namely, the daftur yad quoted in the 13th, and the I8 copies quoted in the 14th, paragraphs.”
" 1 “ Namely the Commissioner’s memorandum, quoted in the I1th paragraph.”

§ * The date of the Mahratta duftur yad quoted in paragraph 13 ia given, instead of that of the Eoglish

letter quoted in paragraph 12, with which it was forwarded.” -
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<« ¢ Russool Khan Desaee.—Out of the villages and lands to be continued to this
person there is a sunnud of the. Beenewala, dated in Fuslee 1210 {a. p. 1800-01},
regarding Mouza Gootee, - wherefore it is to be continued according to the rules.
Regarding Mouza Gonjunhall, it is stated in the former kyfeeut that it was grant-
ed in surv inam in Fuslee 1212 [a. p. 1802-03), but in the takeed puttr of Fuslee
. 1214 [a. . 1804-05), addressed by the Beenewala to the Mokuddums of the
village, which has now been sedt; itis ordered that- as the said village was made 70
doomalla as before from the current year to the wife of Sheik Meera Desaee, they
[the Mokuddums] were to act in subjection to her, and yield to her the umul
of the village without objection. Now the statement in the kyfeeut formerly
sent is to the effect that the village was given as inam in Fuslee 1212 [a. b,
1802-03]. An explanation should, therefore, be sent, as to the grounds on which
that statement was made, and gg o the connection between the wife [of Sheikh
Meera] and the abovementioned Russvol Khan. It is stated. in the present yad
[viz. that of the 31st March 1826], that they say there is no sunnud regarding 71
the village of Rajunkuttee, and theve are other lands for which no eopies of
sunnuds have beeu forwarded. If there are sunnuds, copies should be forwarded ;
if not, an explanation should be sent of the grounds on which the said’ village
. and lands are coatinued.

“ ¢ Ramajee Bhurmajee and Balkrishn Dewurow.—Out of the villages and lands
to be continued to these persons three sunnuds about Mouza Gorulkoondurgee
were sent.  One of these is a sunnud of Fuslee 1188 [a. p. 1778-79), but there are
in the duftur accounts of the Beenewala’s manag’ement, dated in Fuslee 1204
[a. p. 1794-95], in which this village is entered as a Government khalsat one. 72
There is also a sunnud of the Beenewala, dated in Fuslee 1214 [a. ». 1804-03],
in which it is said that the village is to be held hereditarily for an annual pay-
ment of Rs, 20, and a sunoud pf Ramchunder Anundrow, Sursoubhedar, dated
in Fuslee.1219 [a. p. 1809-10}, in which the said Rs. 20 are remitted ; but as
this person never was appointed Sursoobhedar, the sunnud is not valid. For
these reasons the Rs. 20 should not be remitted ; and, moreover, according to
the rules of Fuslee 1228 [a. p. 1818-19), half the kumal assessment shou.d be
Jevied during [the incumbent’s] life, and the case dispused of afterwards accord-
ing to the rules. As to the 4} chigurs of land, should there be a sunnud for it, 73
a copy should be forwarded, and a statement of the nature of its enjoyent seat
in : should there not be one, an explanation should be sent as to the grounds on
which it is continued.

“ ¢ Anajee Nursew Deshpandey holds villages and lands. With respect to
these there is a sunnud of the Beenewala, dated in Fuslee 1214 [a. p. 1804-05],
in which it is said that Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee, with its muzzras
{bamlets], was to be lhield as hereditary inam for an anunual nuzzur of Rs. 40;
and alsv a sunnud of Keshowrow Balkrishn, dated iv Fuslee 1215 [a. ». 1805-06], 74
in which it is said that the above nuzzur of Rs. 40 is remitted, and that tie
inam is to be hereditary.

“ ¢ Regarding Wutteemundgoo * corf Knblapoor, the Beenewala issued a
sunpud in Fuslee 1214 {A. p. 1804-05] grauting this village as an hereditary
inam, at a jooree tax of Rs. 15, and in Fuslee 1221 [a. p. 1811-12] Ram Row
Pandvorung Soobhedar remitted this tax of Rs. 15, So it is written.

“ ¢ Besides the above, the Beenewala, in Fuslee 1214 [a. p. 1804-05], granted
surv inam und gootga lands, amounting to 2 chigurs 15 anas, and in Fuslee
1218 [a. n. 1808-09] Anundrow the Sursoobhedar granted as surv ivam 75

* ¢ Error for Woteemuroo.”
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3 chigurs and 1 ana more, amounting in all to 6 chlgurs No copy of any
sunnud for this amount has been recewed

“ ¢ At the time when Generul Munro took the fort of Belgaum, the Inamdar
afforded him great assistance, wherefore he [the General] gave him a Mahratta
and English sunnud, dated 25th May a. p. 1818, ordering that the above viilages
and lands ghould be continued uninterruptedly, ae they had heen continued by
the Paishwa’s Sirkar up to the introduction of the Company’s Government.
According to the rules made in Fuslee 1228 [a. p. 1818-19], an increased jooreé
should have been impused, and the holdings in question continued for life only
at half assessment ; but Mr. Chaplin,* on seeing the shovementioned sunnud,
issued an order dated 171h July Fuslee 1229 [a, p, 1819-20], that the iucreased
jouree imposed on the Inamdar’s new villages and lands should be remiited, there
being no need to trouble him on this acéount, and that the village called Kubla-
poor, which had been resumed, should also be restored to him, and the whole of
the above villages and lands should be continued uninterruptedly and without
obstruction to the Deshpandey. Wherefore it appears that the rules of Fuslee
1228 [a. p. 1818-19] are not applicable to the case in point; but that the
villages and lunds should be continued at their first jooree, in the same mannér
as the Deshpuandey’s original wuttnns, according to the counditions of the Beene-
wala’s and Sursoobhedar’s sunnuds. The sunnuds and letters in question
having been issued as above since the introduction of the present Government,
there is no vceasion 10 send copies of the sunnuds for the inam lands.

“¢As for the village Kenchunhuttee, it was granted in Fuslee 1211[a. p.
1801-02] hy the Beenewala to Gourudapa Naik Chikuldinee, ar a fixed jooree tax
of Rs. 5, with a sunnud declaring ir hereditary, and transferred in perpetuity to the
Deshpandey in Fuslee 1218 [a. p. 1808-09), by the suid Naik, who executed an
inam puttr to that effi ct, and also gave up the Beenewala’s deed in his fuvour. Af-
terwards the Sirkar, having become displeased with the Naik, resumed the whole of
his villages, wattuns, &c., and among these the village in questiun was entered as
resumed, until Mr, Chaplin, having considered the above sunnud, and the enjoy-
ment of the village, gave an order 10 the Mamlutdar, dated 3rd September, for
its release and ¢ontinnance to the Deshpandey, so that it appears that this village
is to be continued to the Deshpaudey according to the rules.

“ ¢ On asking tl e Beenewala’s Carkoon, Bulwuntrow Chintamun, to produce
bis wywat accounts, in order to examine the evtries respecting such of the ahove
villages as were giveu by the Beenewala, he gave a written statement, on the
13:h July a. . 1824, that in the year Ehude Meiatain [o. p. 1800-01}, the mahal
was given from the Sirkar to Dowlut Row Sindey, avd in Khumus Meiatain
[a. . 1204.05] to Keshowrow Lagoo, and that he [the Carkuoon] had no accounts
for other years; and on looking at the copies of the sunnuds which had beea
brought from the soobha [of Dharwar], it appeared that the Beenewala had in
both the abovementioned years given sunnuds, granting villages and lands in
inam. Wherefore a letter was written to Shideshwur Muheeputrow Beenewals,
requiring him to explain how he had given sunnuds granting inams as above, at
a time when he had no jurixdiction in the mahal. His reply was that the per-
sons in question bad been very useful to the Sirkar, wherefore he had given them
sunnuds granting inams in the years Ebude Meiatain and Khumus Meiatain
[a. p. 1800-01 and 1804-05]; that what his Carkoon Bulwuntrow Chintamun
had written should not be believed, as it was all written in ignorance, as he was
an inhabitant of Poona, and "not at all acquainted with the management of the
mahal. That in the year Ehude Meiatain [a. p. 1800-01] a sunnud had been

* « Mr, Chaplin was.not then Commissioner, hut Principal Collector.”



[ 12 1

written for, giving the mahal to Sindey, which never took effect, for that in
Esune Meiatain-[a. p. 1801-02] another sunnad had been issned again confirm-
ing him [the Beenewala), and that the management of the mahal had remained
in his hands from the first until the year Khumus Meiatain [a. ». 1804-05],in the
month of Magh, in which year he delivered it over to the Sursosbha. This reply, 82
dated 26th July A. ». 1826, is written by the hand of Shideshwur Muheeputrow,
Beenewala himself, and as persoirs acquainted with the circemstances state that,
the Carkoon is an inhabitant of Poona, and that the Beenewala himself used to
reside at his mahal, it appears that the sunnuds of both of the sbove, years were

- written by him while he held the Mamlut; therefore, as if is. written how the
above villages and. lands are to be continued, &e¢. according to. this it is,to;hedqns.,
Dated 16th November a. p. 1826, at Kopurd, in the Sattara, lllaqug.’

“17. My object in detailing, at sudﬁ".]_en’gth, the whole of the correspondence which g3
bas taken place between thé¢ local authorities at Dharwar on, the one part and the
Comuwissioner or Gavernmeat ea the other, regarding the villages hgld, as inam by the
Padshapoor Zumeendars, is- to place Government, ss fyr as, possihle, in, possession of,
every circumstance which may affect its decision on the guestion 1 have now the
honour to submit.

“18. This question is whether or mot ¢ the Mahratta paper [quoted in paragraph 1§}
drawn up by the Goverement. Dufturdar,” which accompanied Mr. Warden’s, letter
{quoted in paragraph 15) of 16th November 1826, is to be regarded in thg light of g
Government. decision, or as anythivg more. than the were seport of a, Native officer on
" questions.still’ta be decided.

*19.  In the former case id would only be a loss of time were the Inam Commission 84
again to moot points considered as once finally sst. at rest by the ozder of a competeny
authority ; but in the latter, } am of opinion, that F cun demonstrate, that the merits of the
claimant’s titles to some of the villages in question have never been stafed to the Comn
missioner or Government so amply as to have enabled either 1o have come to a3 fair
decision on them.

*“20. The “Mahratta paper’ is without seal, sigaature, or other mark of authentica-.
tion ; and my own opinion is that it can only be lovked upon as a simple report ¢f the
Government Duftardar, still open to discussion, and that there s nothing to show that 85
Government had adopted any of its elauses as a final decision, nor that anything mere
was intended by Mr. Warden's letter than to vefer the questions it treats of for the
further consideration and report of the Principal Collecton.

“2], I consider that it is necessary to send the original paper* for the i mspeotmn of
Government, and beg that it may be returned with a declswn on the guestion now sub-
mitted as soon as coavenient, that I may know what eourse ‘to adopt in iuvestigating
the titles by which the alleged inam villages in Padshapoor are claimed.

- “I have, &c.”

6. The decision of Government on the guestion above submitted was intimated in 86
the Chicf Secretary’s letter to the Inam Commissioner, No. 3446, dated 26th September
1846, as follows :—

“ Sir,—I am directed by the Hanorable the Governor in Council to acknowledge the
receipt of your letter, dated the 18th June last, No. 251, submifting fur the orders of
Government the particulars connected with certain villages held in inam in the Padsha«
poor Talooka of the Belgaum Collectoate, and soliciting instructiong whether the
Mahratta paper having reference ta the said icams, drawn up by the Government
Duftardar in 1826, is to be regarded in the light of a Gogernment dcci-jun, oras any-
thing more than the mere report of a Nativé officer on questions still to be decided. 87

* «The paper contains 10 bunds, each signed ¢W. Hano’ ¥
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49, In reply, I am desired to inform you, that-on a consideration of all the eircum-
stances detailed in your communication, His Honor in Council fully agrees with you
in the opinion expressed in paragraph 20 of your letter, that the paper in question can
culy be looked upon as a report of the Government Dufturdar, drawn up for inform-

~ ation on the points to which it relates, and that there is nothing to show that Govern-
ment had adopted any of its clauses as a final decision, or that anything more wasintended
by Mr. Warden’s letter than to refer the questions it treats of for the further considera-
tion of the Principal Collector.

88 «3, The Honorable the Governor in Council, however, does not consider that there
would be any objection to your availing yourself of that document as a clue to the dis-
covery of facts and records substantiating the rights of the claimants, for which purpose
it is herewith returned.

’ “ I have, &e.”

7. Meanwhile, in consequence of Anajee Nursew’s death, the Collector of Belgaum,
in a Canarese memorandum, dated 18th May 1844, required the opinion of the Inam
Commissioner as to the course which should be followed regarding the continuance or
otherwise of the villages held by the deceased Deshpandey.

8. The Inam Commissioner, in a Mahratta memorandum No. 835, dated 9th
89 October 1846, suggested that as in reply to a reference made in June (viz. that
described above in paragraph 5), Government had decided (on the 26th September) that
the tenure of the inam villages was to be inquired into aud reported om, it would be
well if the Collector would, pending the Inam Commissioner’s Report, and the final
decision of Government thereon, make over the management of the villxges held by
Anajee Nursew to his heir, but with an understanding on the part of the laster that this
was to be only a temporary measure, and not any recognition of any right on his part
against Govermmnent, whose final orders would take effect without regard to such inter-
mediate arrangement. In a sobsequent Mahratta yad, No. 16, duted 10th September
1847, the Acting Collector informed the Inam Commissioner that his advice on this
90 point had been followed, and that the villages had been made over for the present to
Konher Row Anaje¢ in October 1846, with a warning that he was to mauage them
only pending a decision as to his right to succeed to them as Inamdar.

9. After consideration of the deceased Anajee Nursew’s title, as affected by the de-
cision of Government on the general question explained above in paragraphs 4 and 5,
and the evidence forthcoming from the State records obtained from Poona, the Inam
Commissioner, on the 3rd of February 1847, submitted to Government a Report to the
following effect :—

“ Report of the Commission appointed to investigate Titles to Inams, §c. on the Claim
of Konher ftow bin Angjee bin Nursew, to succeed his father, lately deceased,
in the possession, as Jooree Inam, of Mouza Kublapoor, Mouza Woteemuroo,

91 and Muzzra Kenchunhuttce, Villuges of the Padshapoor Talooka of the Belgaum
Collectorate.

“1. The Cuollector of Belganm wrote, in a. p. 1844, to the Inam Commission, stating
that Anajee Nursew, the holder of the abovenamed villages, had died ; and requesting
any informaﬁ:m the Commission might be alle to afford, to show whether or not the
villages should be continved to his son.

“2. By the time the Commission had commenced its arrangéments for investigating
the history of the villages in question, with a view to submit the information necessary
to enable Government to decide on the nature of their tenure, its labours had been, by

92 order of the Honorable Coult of Directors, restricted to the Talookas of Nuwulgoond
and Hooblee; and nothing was done in the matter of the abovementioned reference
from the Collector of Belgaum.
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“3. When the jurisdiction of the Inam. Commission was again’extended to the-
whole of the Southern Mahratta Country, this case was resumed, and a preliminary
reference made to Government in the Commission’s letter No. 251, dated 18th June last,
regarding the force of a document connected with the alienation of several villages of
Padshapoor, including those now under report. Government's reply to this reference
has now been received, and the Commission. will in the following paragraphs report its
reasons for considering that Konher Rolr Anajee has no just c]arm to succeed to Kubla- 93
poor, Woteemuroo, or Kenchunhuttee, which ought to belong to Government.

“4, Inthe meanwhile the Commission has, in reply to the Collector of Belgaum,
suggested that he should, pending the final decision of Government, permit these
villages to be held by Konher Row Anajee, on the express undersianding that this is
merely a lemporary arrangement, not to be lovked on in any way as an acknowledgment
of his [Konher Row’s] title, and that it is to have effect only wuntil Govemment can
decide what is to become of the villages.

*§. The Commission, in stating to Government its proceedings in investigating
the history of the villages under report, will commence by recording the purport of the 94
statement made by Anajee Nursew [since deceased] regarding his title, when examined
by the Inam Commission, in a. p. 1843 ; asit is on Government’s recoguition or rejec-
tion of that title that the claim of his son Konher Row Anajee to succeed to the pro--
perty will depend.

“6. [Eramination of Anajee Nursew, made at Dharwar, on the 4tk of September
1843; before H., E. Goldsmid, Esq., and Rao Bukadeor Moro Trimbuk, Mem-
bers of the Inam Commission.

“ Question I.—What is your name; what were the names of your father and grand-
father; and what are your caste, occupation, and age ?

« Answer I.—My name is Auajee; the name of my father was Nursew, and that of 95
my grandfather Anajee; I am-by caste a Deshusth Brahman, of the Smarth sect; my
occupation is that of a Mootusuddee [writer und accountaut]; and I am in the sixty-
second year of my age.

 Question II,—-Where were you born, where is the place of your original wuttun;
and where do you now reside ?

 Answer II.—1 was born in Belgaum ; the place of my original family wuttun is
Kuryat Ankle {or Ankulgee] in Purgunna Padshapoor; my present residence is in
Mouza Sooleebhawee, a villauge in Chintamun Row Saheb Putwurdhun’s district of 96
Shahpoor.

« Question III.—What villages do yru hold in Kuryat Ankle [or Ankulgee]; and
are they surv inam, jooree ivam, or what ?

“ Answer I1I.—1 hold in Knryat Auvkle the three following villages, viz :—A4,
Mouza Kubllapoor, otherwise Blnrmuauhuttee ; B, Monza Woteemuroo, otherwise Kumu-
lapoor; C, Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, a hamlet of the village of Nuudee. These three
villages are held by e as jooree inam,

« Question IV.—By whom, and at what period, were these villages granted as inam ?

« Answer /1V.—The villages [Aand B] Kublapuor oorf Bhiwrmunhutiee and Wotee- 97
muroo ovrf Kumulapoor, were granted iu inam by Shideshwur Muheeputrow Beeune-
wala in Fuslee 1214 (a. p. 1804-05); the third village, [C] Keuchunhuttee, was granted
by Goorudapa, Naik of Chikuldinee, in Soursun Teesa Ashur Meiatain and Alif (a. D.
1808-09).

* Question V,.—By whom were the villages acquired, and on what account; and
does the service, &c. for which they were granted still exist or not ?
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© % Angwer W.—A and B, Kublapoor ocorf Bhurmunhuttee, and Woteemuroo oorf

98 Kumulapoor, were acquired by my father Nurso Anajee, who died twenty years ago.

They were granted to him because he was of use to Shideshwur Muheeputrow the Bee-
newala. C, Muzzra Kenchuuhattee, the hamlet of Mouza Nundee, was granted to me,
miyself, in return for services performed by me for Goorudapa Naik of Chikuldinee.
No service is now performed or due by me for any of the villages.

“ Question V.I.—Enumerate the family of the grantee, and of yourself.

* Answer VI.—My father had three sons: thé eldest myself; the second, Nilkunt-

99 row ; and the third Ramchunder Punt. [ havetwosons. My second brother, Nilkunt-

100

101

row, died, leaving two sons ; and Ramchunder Punt has five sons.

% Question VII.—Have the inams been continued without interruption since their
grant, or have they ever been resumed ? Shonld. they have been so resumed, state what
was the reason of this; in what year the resumption tock place, aud how and when
it was removed. State, also, with whom the inams have continued since their release,
and the reason of this, ‘

“ Answer VII.—Mouza Woteemuroo oorf Kumulapeor and Muzzra Kenchunhattee
were taken possession of by Goverument about a. p. 1819-20, under some rules pre-
scribed by Mr. Chaplin about a. ». 1818-19, for the settlement of Inamdars’ claims.
But afterwards, when this same gentleman had seen the sunnud given by Muaro
Saheb, he released the attached villages, which have since then continued in my pos-
session without interruption, The remaining village, Kublapoor corf Bhurmunhuttee,
has been uninterruptedly continued from the first,

“ Question VIII.—Was any jooree, eksalee, or other Government tax originally due
for the inams in question; and what is now levied? Should any alteration have ocourred
in this respect, for what reason, and in what year did it take place ?

“ Answer VIII.—The inam villages are annually taxed as follows :—
A, Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee .. ................ Rs. 45 1 0
B, Woteemuroo oorf Kuwmulapoor.......... teereanena 8168 3
C, Kenchunhuttee, the hamlet of Nundee.......cc0uen. 13 2 ©

Total....Rs. 67 2 3

This has been the amount of tax levied annually since a. p. 1818-19. Before that I
used not to pay any tax; butoccasionally, that is to say two or three times, the Sursoo-
bhedars made levies from me. I cannot recollect the amount of their levies, but it may
have been about the sum I have mentioned above. The years in which the levies were
‘made were about a. p. 1815-16, 1816-17, and 1817-18.

102 * Question IX.—Are the inams you now hold the same which were first granted, or

has any change or exchange taken place; and what proof is there of this?

% Answer IX.—The three villages I now hold are the same which were originally
granted as inam : my only proof of this is my continued enjoyment of them.

“ Question X,—-Present any documentary evidence you may possess of the truth of
the statements now made by you ; and, if you have any other statement to offer in ar-
gument, do so. Should you wish to offer the parol evidence of witnesses, give a memo-

103 randum, stating the names, occupations, and abodes of your proposed witnesses ; and

say whether you yourself will produce the witnesses, or whether you require assistance
iz doing so ?

“ 4nswer X.—In proof of my statements I now produce 15 sunnuds, and other
documents, with prepared copies thereof; and request that the copies may be examined
and retained, the 15 originals being returned to me. I have no other matter to
represent.
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“ Questions XTI, and XII-—The 1ith and 12th questions relate io the minor i inams,
and valuation of the villages.

* Question XIII, —You have stated that the village C, Kenchunhuttee, a hanilet of' 104
Nundee, was given to you by Goorudapa Naik of Chikuldinee : but how did this
person himself become possessed of it ? And when Goorudapa Naik gave you the village,

did he do so with the consent of the Paishwa's Government ?

« Answer XIII.—Goorudapa Naik acquired the hamlet in question in A. . 1800 01,
by the grant of Shideshwur Row Beenewala. His transfer of it to me was made with
the knowledge of the Soobhiedar of Padshapoor

w Questton XIV.—You say that the gift of the village to you was made with the
knowledge of the Soobhedar of Padshapoor : have you any documentary pmuf of this 7 105
, with me. :

* Question XV.—You state that you may have the required evidence: is it in your
own possession, or in whose ?

“ Answer XV.—-I do not recnilect.

“ Question XVI.—Do any of the villages under inquiry belong to your wuttun as
Deshpandey or not ?

« Answer XVI.—All of the three villages were granted on account of services per-
formed ; and none of them belong to the Deshpandey $ wuttun.

“ Question XVII.—Have you any other emoluments, as included in your Deshpan- 106
dey’s wuttun ?

. “ Answer XVII—1I have chowrat lands, and other emoluments, appertaining to my
Deshpandey’s wuttun.

* Question XVIII.—The three villages under inquiry have-been entered in the
“accounts of Belgaum, &c. as belonging to the Deshpandey’s wuttun : have you ever
made any representation to Government regarding this ?
«“ Answer- XVIII.—All the management was in the hands of my brother. I cannot
tell whether or not he made any representation to the Sirkar, and I cannot recvllect
whether or not I ever made any representation myself on the subject. The above state- 107
ment is tree, and I have nothing further to represent.

“ (Signed by Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey, &c., anthenticated by Mr. Goldsmid and
Moro Trimbuk, Members of Commission.)

“7. 'The Commission has next to record the purport of each of the 15 docu-
ments produced as evidence of his title by Anajee Nursew, as stated in Answer X. above
quoted. These are as follows :—

« 1st.—A sunnud dated 3rd Rubee-ool-Awul, in Scorsun Khumus Meiatain and Alif
[4. p. 1804-05], purporting to be issued by Shideshwur Mu-
heeputrow to Nurso Anajee, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankle, 108
Purgunna Padshapoor, to the following effect :—

“ ¢ You have requested that Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee Khoord,
and Boodrook, situated in Kuryat Ankle, may be granted to you as inam ;
wherefore, being favourably disposed towards you, 1 have given to you the mouza
with its muzzra in inam. You and your descendants for ever are to enjoy it in
consideration of the payment of a yearly nuzzar of Rs. 40; and you may
remain comfortable, Besides the above, no exaction will be made, and all puttees,
&e. will be every year remitted. The village is granted to you, with its water,
trees, stones, &c. Observe this.

“ 2nd.—A sunnud dated on the same day, the 3rd of Rubbee-ool-Awul, in Soorsun 109
Khumus Meiatain and Alif [a. p. 1804-05], purporting to be
issued by the same Shideshwur Muheeputrow, to tle same
Nurso Anajee, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankle, to the following effect :—

o

Relates to the Village A.

~

Relates to the Village B.
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“¢In acknowledgment that you have been of great service to the Sirkar,
Mouza Woteemuroo is conferred on you as a jooree inam, at an annual tax of
Rs. 15; and this sunnud is given accordingly. You are, therefore, to pay the
above annual sum of Rs. 15, and you and your descendants are to remain com-
fortable, enjoying the whole village. -Observe this.”

110 “3rd.—A letter dated on the same day, the 3rd of Rubbee-ool-Awul, in Soorsun Khu-

. mus Meiatain and Alif {a. p. 1804-05], purporting to be ad-

fielatesto the villages 4 aad B. dressed by the same Shideshwur Muheeputrow to the Desh-
mookhs and Deshpandeys of Kuryat Ankle, to the following effect : —

¢ <In acknowledgment that Nurso Anajee, Deshpandey of the above kuryat,
has been of service to the Sirkar, Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee and
Mouza Woteemuroo oorf Kumulapoor, with their muzzras, besides other inam
lands in the above kuryat, have been granted to the Deshpandey, for which sepa- -
rate sunnuds have been given to him. On receiptof this takeed you are to

111 make over the management of the villages, with their muzzras, and suffer them
to be enjoyed according to the sunnuds. You are to take a copy of this letter,
and deliver the original to the Deshpandey, asa title for hisenjoyment. Observe
this.’

“4th.—A letter dated 5th of Shuwal, in Soorsun Seet. Meiatain and Alif [a. D.

. 1805-06), purporting to be addressed by Keshowrow Bal-

Relates to the Village A. krishn, Suprso};bhedgr of the Carnatic,yto Nurso Anajee,
Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankle, to the followmg effect :—

“ ¢ You have represented that in the year Khumas Melatam [a. D. 1804-05],
the Beenewala gave you Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee at a jooree tax
of Rs. 40, besides new inams of lands in several villages ; but that on account
of the disturbances consequent on the departure of the troops of the Sursoobha
in the same year, no sunnud was issued by the Sursocobhedar for their enjoy-
ment ; wherefore this sunnud is issued, remitting the jooree of Rs. 40, and the
above village, with all its water, wood, stones, &c., and all new inam lands and
villages, which may have been given, are granted to you and your heirs for ever,
to enjoy the same, and remain comfortable, ’

“ 5th.—A takeed dated 17th of Zilkad, in Soorsun Fesune Ashur Meiatain and Alif
[o. D. 1811-12], purporting to be addressed by Ram Row
Pandoorung, Soobhedar of Purgunna Padshapoor, to the
113 Mokuddums of Mouza Woteemuroo, as follows :—

“ *The above village was held as a leased inam by Nursingrow Anajee Desh-
pandey, at a fixed rent of Rs. 15. This sunnud is now issued, remitting the
whole of the above amount. You are therefore to continue the village accord-
ingly. Observe this.’

“6th.—A sunnud dated 9th Zilkad, in Soorsun Ehude Meiatain and Alif [a. b.
1800-01), purporting to be issued by Shideshwur Muhee-
putrow to Gooradapa Naik wulud Fukeer Naik, of Muzzra

Chikuldinee, Mouza Shahabunder, Kuryat Koondurgee, Purgunna Padshapoor, to the
following effect : — -

““You have come and represented that you will remain under the orders of

114 the Sirkar, and be always ready to perform your duty with honesty and sincerity ;

and you have requested that out of compass:on Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, of
Mouza Nundee, in Kuryat Ankle, may be given to you as inam; wherefore,
believing that you will be serviceable and obedient to the Sirkar, the s.ud village,
excepting Inamdars and Hukdars, is given to you as an hereditary jooree inam,
at a fixed annual tax of Rs. 5. You are accordingly to pay this sum annually,
performing service for the Sirkar with honesty and sincerity. Enjoy the village,
and remain comfortable. Observe this.’

112

Relates to the Village B.

Relates to the Village C.
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« 7¢h.—A letter dated on the 10th of Zilkad, in Soorsun Teesa Meiatain and Alif 115
i [a. p. 1808-09], purporting to be- addressed by Goorudapa .
Relates to the Village C. Naik of Chikuldinee to the Mokuddums of Mazzra Kenchun-
hattee, of Mouza Nundee, in Kuryat Ankle, to the following effect :—

«¢ Anajee Punt Ana Deshpandey hus taken great pains [khutput] on my
behalf with the Sursoobha, apd has procured me the grant of villages, &e.;
wherefore 1 have given him your ‘village in inam. You are, therefore,- to
acknowledge Ana Deshpandey’s:iaht to give the collections according to his
orders, and to abide in subjection to lnm as long as the sun and moon endure

Observe this.”
“8¢kh.—An order dated 16th of April a. p. 1818, purporting to be addressed by Gene- 116
Relates to the Deshpandey’'s Tal Thomas Munro to Shreencewas Row, Mamlutdar of
‘utfun Inams, andnotto R0y Pydshapoor, Belgaum, &e., to the following effect, as far as

f the three Villages under | . . .
:epf,,:. ree YHRE it regards Anajee Nursew’s holdings : —

“¢You are to continue uninterruptedly to Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey, ac-
cording to ancient usage, his wuttun, inams, &c., in the Padshapoor Talooka, in
the same manner as they have been held by him from of old until last year.’

«“9¢k.—A letter dated the 25th of May A. p. 1818, purporting to have been written
Relstes to the Villiges A at Merij by General T. Muurg,to Anajee Row, Deshpandey
aud B. of Purgunna Padshapoor, to the following effect :— 117

“ ¢ You came to the Hoozoor, and represented that the wuttuns belonging to
the office of Deshpandey of Purgnnna Padshapoor have continued with you from
the Leginning ; but that, now that the rule of the Company has cornmenced, it
is necessary to issue an order to the Padshapoor Mamlutdar for [their] uninter-
rupted continuance. Wherefore, in consideration that when the Company took
the fort of Belgaum you afforded much assistance, and that you have also brought
a statement {Foot Note (1.)] from the Padshapoor Mamlutdar, to the effect that 118
the two inam villages, Mouza Bhurmunhuttee, and Mouza Kumulapoor, of Kuar-
yat Ankle, with fields, gardens, &c. have been unioterruptedly held by you as
wuttuns from of old [mamool pasoon], I therefore issue this sunnud, [by which]
you are to enjoy the abovenamed wuttun, inam villages, &ec., and to remain
satisfied. In the same manner as it has coutinued from of old up tg the intro-
duction: of the present Government, so will it continue without iuterruption,
and without any vexation being given to you by the Company Sirkar.’

“ Below this document the following lines are written in English :—

“ ¢ The Inamdar having been very useful during the siege of Belgaum, I
have directed his villages of Burramhutty and Kublapoor, with the separate 119
lands, to be continued by the Company’s Amildars, in the same manner as

.under the Paishwa’s Government.
(Signed) *¢T. Muxro.
“ 10th.—An order dated - 18th December . 0. 1818, purporting te be addressed by
Refers to the Villages A, B, the Principal Collector of Dharwar to the Mamlutdar of
and C. Talovka Padshapoor, to the following effect :-—

“¢ Anajee Nursew, Deshpaudey of Kuryat Ankle, holds as inam in your
talooka the villages Bhurmunhuttee and Kumulapoor, besides chowrat fields,
gardens, &c. Hls brother Nilkunt Nursew has represented at the Hoozoor that
you have interfered with him, and are troubling him to go to you with his- title 120
deeds. He has produced here his sunnuds, with detailed yads of his' inam
villages and lands, which have been examined. General Munro formerly issued

(1.) “This statement must have been a false one. Anajee Punt himseif hes admitted that none of the
villages under report have anything to do with his wuttun ; and this is proved by the title deeds he produces.”
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a takeed and sunnud for the uninterrupted continuance [of Anajee Nursew’s
holdings], so that there can be no excuse for giving trouble; yet you have
opposed his collections. There is no occasion for you to interfere with his inam
villages and lands, &e.; they are to be continued without opposition, and you
will release the collections you may have hindered him from receiving. You ure
to receive from him ounly the jooree tax due to Guvernment, sccording to fixed
custom. Besides the above, the Chikuldineekur and Russouvl Desaee have given
the said [Anajee Nursew] inams out of their own inams, and the said [Nilkunt
Nursew] complains that yon have iuterfered with them also. There is no occasion
for you to interfere with what the Inamdars have pleased to continue to him.
Observe this.’

“ 11th.—An order No, 9, dated 17th July a. p. 1819, purporting to be issued by
Refers to the Villages A the Priocipal Collector of Dharwar to the Mamlutdar of
and B. Talooka Padshapoor, to the following eflect :—

“ ¢ T issued orders [Foot Note (11.)] to increase the jooree on the new villages
and inam lands held by Anajce Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankle, and to
place Woteemurvo oorf Kumulapoor under attachment. The Deshpandey’s
brother Nilkuntrow has since come to the Hoozoor, and produced a sunnud of
the General [Munro], &c. Wherefore, on consideration, it is ordered that
although, according to the present rules, the orders fur increasing the jooree, and
for attaching one villige are correct, still, as the General has honoured the Desh-
pandey with the grant of a sunnud, [Foot Note (11.)] you are to continue his
holdings according to it. The amount of jooree levied from his new inam
villages and lands, beyond what they used to pay, is therefore remitted : there is
no need o importune him for payment; and the village of Kumulapoor [or
Woteemuroo], which was placed under attachment, is to be restored to him. You
are to suffer the above new villages, with his inam lands, to continue uninter-
ruptedly with the said Deshpandey, from the present year, without further ohjec-
tion. Observe this.’

“ 12th.—An order dated 3rd September 1819, purporting to be addressed by the
Principal Collector of Dharwar to. the Mamlutdar of Pad-
sliapoor, as follows : — '

‘¢ Your report No. 15 has been received, and the written deposition has been
read. These were sent by you in consequence of the order issued when Anajee
Nursew Deshpandey -made known at the Houzoor that he obtained the village
of Kenchunhauttee in inam from Goorudapa Naik, of Chikuldinee, to whom it
was granted by the Beenewala ; and that when, according to orders, the Chikul-
dineekur's heldings were resumed, the village of Kenchunhuttee was seized
along with them, although it had continued with him [Anajee Nursew] for ten

. or twelve years as inam. On consideration, it is directed that the above village,
granted by the Beenewala to the Chikuldineekur, and by him made over with
the original sunnud to Anajee Nursew Deshpandey, with whom it Las continued
uninterraptedly. for ten or eleven years, shall be restored to the Deshpandey’s
authority. The collections made from the village while uwuder attachment
should alse be paid to him. No objections are to be made on this account.
Observe this.’

“ 18th—An order dated 4th June a. p. 1821, purporting to be addressed by the
Principal Collector of Dharwar to the Mamlutdar of Talooka Padshapoor, to the
following effect : —

Refers to the Village C.

(r5.) “ The order here altuded to is explained at parageaph 12.”
(111.) * But the *sunnod’ here alluded to was given under the impression that the villages alluded to were
part of the Deshpandey’s wuttun, and was not an ebsolute, but a conditicnal or provisional one.”
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“’¢ The Deshpandeys of Summut Ankle have had Rs. 53.6-6 more than their
jooree as paid lust year permanently added to their jooree tax; and the shure 126
of this additivnal sum which has been imposed on Anujee Nursew Deshpandey
amounts to Rs. 25-9-3. But in consequence of Mr. Chaplin having issued a
sunnud, iz conformity with which no additional jouree was to be levied, I now
send this order to inform you that it is unnecessary to trouble Anajee Nursew
for the Rs. 25-9-3 which fall to his share of payment : you are to deduct this
sum in your accounts, as it is remitted.

* ¢ Mr. Chaplin issued an order {No. 17] regarding this matter on the 9th July
1819, [Foot Note (1v.)] by which you are to abide.’

“ 14th.—A document signed by Mr. Chaplm on the 20d of June a. p. 1826, of which 127
the following is the purport :—

- ¢ ¢ Memorandum about Anajee Nursew, Deskpandey of Cusba [Fbot Note (v.)]
Ankle, in Purgunna Padskapoor.

“ ¢ This person has made a petition, setting forth that he holds in the.above
purgunna old and new inams of villages, chowrat lands, and gardens with lauds,
granted to him by Russool Desaee, and by the Chikuldineckur. He states that
these were coutinued till the close of the Paishwa's Government, and that when
General Munro besieged Belgaum, he [the petitioner] performed great service 128
for the Sirkar, and the General was kindly pleased to give him a sunnud in his
own handwriting, ordering that his holdings should be continued to him without
interruption, and they were accordingly thus .continued at their regular jooree
tax. The petitioner goes on to state that afterwards, when Mr. Chaplin became
Principal Collector, and the Mamlutdar was troubling him [petitioner] to appear
with his title deeds, the Principal Collector. issued au order to the Mumlutdar,
forbidding himn to give any trouble about the title deeds, which would be
examined at the Hoozoor ; and that when the title deeds were examined, an
order was issued to the Mamlutdar to continue his [ petitioner’s] inams without
iuterruption. That afterwards, however, some rules were established, according 129
to which it was setiled that he was to have only a life tenure; that one of his
villages was to be resumed, and that his jooree tax was to be raised. That he
therefore went to the Hoozoor, and showed the sunnud’ given to him by the
General, on examination of which an order was issued to the Mamlutdar, stating
that the resumption which was made under the rules was correct, as was also
the increase of the jooree tax, but that as the General had honoured him [the
petitioner] by giving him a sunnud, his villages, new inams, &c. were to be
continued for the future withous opposition, That according to this order, his 130
villages have been continued, and the increase of jooree remitted; but that the
orders alluded to have remained with the Mamlutdars, aud that he [petitioner]
has no document about the matter in his possession. That the unature ofa
wuttun is to eadure; and that he therefore hupes I will be so - kind as to give
bim a writing under my own haund, conformable with the orders already issued
to the Mamlutdars, so that no objection may arise to the continuance of his
[ petitioner’s} property:

»

% ¢ Wherefore, according to the copies of the takeeds issued to the above-
mentioned Mamlutdars, which have been sent from Dharwar by the Collector, 131
I certify them to have been as follows :— '

(w ) * Allusion is here made to the 11th ducument. quated sbove, but the numher and date have been by
error transposed.”

(v.) « < Cusba’ by error for * Kuryat.'*
a*
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« ¢« | —Copy of a Takeed sent to the Padshapoor Mamlutdar.’ "

«¢ Hete is inserted a copy of the ducument, wbich is the 12th one translated in this
7th paragraph.

« w9 Copy of a Takeed sent to the Padshapoor Mamlutdar.’

“ Hére is inserted a copy of the document, which is the 1Ith one translated in this
7th paragraph.

< 4 The above have been written and given to the said [Anajee Nursew]. They
agree with the [copies] written and sent {from the Dharwar Svobha at his request.
“ *(True copies)
(Signed) * * W. Caapriv.
<« ¢ Bombay, 2nd June 1826.

% 15th.—A document which is headed as ¢ A Copy of such paragraphs in the Yad
“sent to Dharwar from the Duftur of the Commissioner’s Cutcherry, on the 16th of
November a. p. 1826, as relate to Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Purgunna Padsha-

The purport of this document is as follows :—
“ ¢ Anajee Nursew Deshpandey holds villages and lands, With respect to these—
% ¢ There is a sunnud of the Beenewala, dated in Fuslee 1214 [a. p. 1804-05],
in which it is said that Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee, with its muz-
zras [hamlets], was to be held as hereditary inam for an annual nuzzur of
Rs. 40; and also a sunnud of Keshowrow Balkrishn, dated in Fuslee 1215 [a. p.

1805-06}, in which it is said that the above nuzzur of Rs. 40 is remitted, and that
the inam is to be hereditary.

# ¢ Regarding Wutteemundgoo [Foot Note (v1.)] oorf Kublapoor, the Beene-
wala issued a sunaud in Fuslee 1214 [a. p. 1804-05], granting this village as an
hereditary inam, at a jooree tax of Rs. 15; and in Fuslee 1221 (4. ». 1811-12]
Ram Row Pandoorung Soobhedar remitted this tax of Rs. 15. So it is written-

* ¢ Besides the above, the Beenewala in Fuslee 1214 [a. . 1804-05], granted
surv inam and gootga lands, amounting to 2 chigurs 15 anas, and in Fuslee
1218 [a. p. 1808-09] Anundrow, the Surscobhedar, granted as surv inam 3 chi-
gurs and 1 ana more, amounting in all to 6 chigurs. No copy of any sunnud
for this amount has been received.

* ¢ At the time when General Munro took the fort of Belgaum, the Inamdar
afforded him great assistance ; wherefore he [the General] gave him a Mahratta
and English suunud, dated 25th May a. p. 1818, ordering that the above villages

. and lands should be continued uninterruptedly, as they bad been continued by

the Paishwa’s Sirkar up to the introduction of the Company’s Government.
According to the rules mude in Fuslee 1228 [4. p. 1818-19], an increased jooree
should have been imposed, and the holdings in question continued for life only,
at half assessment; but Mr. Chaplin, {Foot Note (vi.)] on seeing the above
mentioned sunoud, issued ag order, dated 17th July, Fuslee 1229 [a. p. 1819-20],

‘that the increased jooree imposed on the Inamdar’s new villages and lands

should be remitted, there being no need to trouble Lim on this account; and
that the village called Kublapoor, which had been resuwed, should also be
restored to him, and the whole of the above villages and lands should be con-
tinued uninterruptedly and without obstruction to the Deshpandey. Wherefore
it appears that the rules of Fuslee 1228 [. . 1818-19] are not applicable to the
case in pomt but that the villages and lands should be continued at their first
jooree, in the same manner as the Deshpandey’s original wuttuns, according to

{v1.) ** Watteemondgoo,” a clerical error for * Woteemuroco.” *
(vir) “Mr. Chaplin was not at this period Commissioner, but Principal Collector of Dharwar.”_
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the conditions of the Beneewala’s and Sursocbliedar’s sunnud, The sunnuds and
letters in question having been issued as above since the introduction ' of the
present Government, there is no occasion to send copies of the sunnuds for the
inam lands, - :

“ ¢ As for the village Kenchunhuttee, it was granted in Fuslee 1211 [a. ».
1801-02}, hy the Beneewala, to gourudapa Naik Chikuldinee, at a fixed jooree
tax of Rs. 5, with a sunnud decfaring it hereditary, and transferred in perpetuity

to the Deshpandey in Fuslee 1218 [a. p. 1808-09], by the said Naik, who 137

executed an inam puttr to that effect, and also gave up the Beenewaln’s deed in
his favour. Afterwards, the Sirkar, having become displeased with the Naik,
resumed the whole of his villages, wuttuns, &c., and among these the village in
question was entered as resumed,. until Mr. Chaplin, having considered the
above sunnud, and the enjoyment of the village, gave an order to the Mamlut-
dar, dated 3rd September, for its release and continuance to the Deshpandey;
so that it appears that this village is to be continned to the Deshpandey accord-
ing to the rules.’

“ 8. The Commission, in reporting the grounds of the unfavourable opinion.which 138

it has premised in the 3rd paragraph, regarding the claim of Konher Row Anajee, will
tuke up separately the two principal questions to which the nature of the evidence above
recorded gives rise :— :

% First.—Has the title of Avajee Nursew to the three villages under report been so
far recognized by competent authority, under the present Government, that his
son [the claimant] has a right to succeed to them, in like manner, as hereditary
jooree inam ?

This question is of course irrespective of that of the validity or otherwise of the erigi-
nat title of claimant’s family, which it would scarcely be necessary to touch upon, if a

sufficient and conclusive recoguition of claimant’s title as Inamdar under the present 139
g p

Government could be proved.

“ Second.—Should there have been no recognition or declaration made by the present
Government, or any competent anthority under it, by which Government is bound
to coutinue the villages under report as inam, are the circumstances under which
they were originally obtained by, and subsequently countinued to, the holder’s
family, such as to justily their coutinvance 7

“9, Of the fifteen documents produced by Auajee Nursew with Answer X., all but

the first seven bear dates later than the introduction of the present Government; but

the 14th is merely the recital of a petition made by Anajee Nursew to Mr. Chaplin, 140

and of that geutleman's reply, which amounts ouly to the certificate of two copies,
namely copies of the 11th and 12th documents previously recorded by the Commis-
sion ; and the 8th document refers only to the Deshpandey’s wuttun inams, which,
according to Anajee Nursew’s own showing [in XVL. and following answers of his
examination abéve recorded], do not include any of the villages under report. Thus the
claimant’s ‘evidence of recognition by the present Government is reduced to the 9th,
10th, 11th, 12th, 13th, and-15th papers described in paragraph 7—in all six documents,
the force of which is to be considered.

« 10. Sir T. Munro’s letter of the 25th May a. p. 1818, recorded as the 9th- docu- 141

ment in paragraph 7, refers only to the villages A and B, Kublapoor oorf Bhurmun-
huttee and Woteemuroo oorf Kumulapoor, and recites that it was in consequence of
Anajee Nursew having brought a statement from the Padshapoor Mamlutdar that these
two villages belonged to the Deshpandey’s ancient wuttun, that their continvance was
authorised ; and that continuance, it is provided, was to be in the same manner as under
the Paishwa’s Government, and as from of old’ Now before the Commission
Anajee Nursew [in XVI, and following answers] hus admitted that nooe of the three
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142 villages under report ever belonged to his wuttun, the estates of which are distinct ; and
in proof of this he has produced documents which show that none of them had been
held by his family for even so much as 14 years before the date of Sir Thomas
Munro’s letter, which was therefore evidently written under the erroneous impression
caused by the Mamlutdar’s deceptive statemcut, which it recites. Deceived by this,
Sir Thomas, in his letter, authorises the continuance to Anajee Nursew of his ¢ wuttun
inam’' villages Bhurmunhuttee and Kumulapoor, ¢as they had been uninturruptedly
continued from of old under the Paishwa’s Government.” It has already been shown
that these villages never were ¢wuttun’ inams, und that they were not continued from

143 ¢ of old,” having been acquired less than 14 years before the introduction of the present
Government; and it will hereafter be shown that their continuance for even that period
was never authorised by the Paishwa. [Foot Note (viir.)] So that Government cannot
loock upon this letter of Sir T. Munro as a-recognition of the present claimaunt’s title,
without going further than Sir Thomas himself intended, even while under the decgp-
tion practiced upon him, This letter, moreover, nowhere alludes to the villages as
hereditary property, unless as wuttuns, which they are not.

“11. In the 10th document in paragraph 7 is an order of the Principal Collector of
Dharwar, dated 18th December a. ». 1818, forbidding in general terms any interference
144 with Anajee Nursew’s holdings, including the villages A and B, Bhurmunhuttee and
Kumulapoor, and quoting, as the authority for so dving, the order of Sir T. Munro,
already considered. And, in addition to this, the Principal Collector, without quoting
any authority, orders the release of the inams granted to Anajee Nursew by the Chikul-,
dineekur, &e., thus virtually giving up to him the village C, Kenchunhuttee, which had
been resumed by the Sirkar, with the whole of Goorudapa Naik’s inams, and regarding

the restoration of which Sir T. Munro had not made any arrangement.

12, The Belgaum records show that afterwards, on the 27th Muy a. b, 1819, the
Principal Collector decided, under the general Inam Rules, issued by the Commissioner
145in the same year, that Anajee Nursew was to be obliged to pay during his life an in-
creased jooree tax equal to half the kumal assessment of his new inam village A, of
Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee, which was to be continued to him during his life on
these terras, and at his death resumed as khalsat ; and thas the other, B, Woteemuroo,
was to be at once resumed. The third now claimed, viz. C, Muzzra Kenchunhuttee,
had already been resumed, and was not yet restored to Anajee Nursew. But the 11th
document in paragraph 7 is an order from the Priocipal Collector, modifying his pre-
vious one of the 27th May, just alluded to, so far as it related to Anajee Nursew’s hold-
146 ings, in remitting the jooree imposed on A, Kublapour, and rescinding the directions
which had been given for at once resuming B, Woteemuroo; Sir Thomas Muure's
letter, already described, Leing quoted as authority for so doing.

“13. The 12th document recorded in paragraph 7 refers only to the village C, Ken-
chunhuttee, which had been resumed with the rest of Goorudapa Naik's isams, but was
now made over to Anajee Nursew by the Principal Collector, on the receipt from the
Mamlutdar of a report and deposition stating that Gooradapa Naik had previously
agsigned it to Anajee Punt. No authority is quoted by the Principal Collector for
issuing this order.

147 “14. The 13th of the claimant’s dacuments quoted in paragraph 7 is merely a takeed,
directing the' Mamlutdar to abide by the orders already issued, in the 11th document of
paragraph 7, the number and date of which have been trauspused by error in this
13th one.

“15. The force of the 14th document is, as premised in paragraph 9, nothing more
in the claimant’s favour than that of a certificate of copies of the 11th and 12th orders,

(vrn.j 'This is explained below, in paragraph 30,
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above described. But it seems to show that its writer, Mr. Chaplin, who--was at its
date, in June 1826, on the puint of returning to Earope, after giving up the office of
Commissioner in the Deccan, &e., was not inclined to support Avajee Nursew’s preten-
sions as Inamdar, The prayer of the latter, in the petition which is recited by Mr.
Chaplin in the 14th decument, is that he [Mr. Chaplin] ¢ will be so kind as to give the 148
petitioner a writing under his own hand conformable with the ourders already issued to
the Mamlutdars, so that no objection mdy arise to the continuance of his [petitioner’s)
property.’ But, instead of expressing an opinier in conformity with this request, Mr.
Chaplin merely certifies copies of two orders which be had addressed, when Prineipal
Collector of Dbarwar, to the Padshapoor Mamlutder, and which, as will now be shown,
were nol in accordance with the opinion he [Mr, Chaplin] formed when ke became Com-
missioner. .

“16. To explain this, it will be necessary to refer to circumstances which vecurred
at a period subsequent to the issue by Mr. Chaplin, as Principal Collector, of his order of 149
the 3rd September 1819, which is the 12th document described in paragraph 7. Shortly
after that date he was appointed Commissioner, in Mr. Elphinstone’s place, and was
succeeded in the office of Principal Collector by Mr. Thackeray. That officer, in a. ».
1820, drew up and forwarded to the Commissioner, to be tested by a comparison with
the Paishwa’s accounts at Poona, a debjhara, or detailed list of villages in the Dharwar
Soobha; and in this list the villages A and B, Kublapoor corf Bhurmunhuttee and
Woteemuroo oorf Kumulapoor, were entered as the jooree inam of Anajee Nursew, and
that C, viz. Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, as a khalsat village, under the head of * Resump- 150
tions from Goorudapa Naik.”

“17. In A. p. 1821 Mr. Chaplin forwarded to the Principal Collector of Dharwar a
memorandem of points connected with the dehjhara in question, which appeared to him
to require explanation, and this memorandum observed, regarding the villages under
report, that—

“ ¢ Mouza Kublapoor and Mouza Woteemuroo were entered in the dehjhara
as the jooree inam villages of Anajee Nursew. But as they uppeared from the
Paishwa’s accounts to be khalsat villages, an explanation should be sent as to
whose authority had made them jooree inams, und from what period they had
been held as such.

‘¢ That Muzzra Kenchunhuttee was entered in the dehjhara as a khalsat 151
village resumed from Goorudapa Naik, buat the Paishwa’s accounts contained
no mention of any such village ; wherefore its history was required.’

-¢¢18. On the 11th of April 1823 the Principal Collector sent a yad in reply to Mr.
Chaplin’s memoraadum of objections ; and his explananons regarding the villages
under report were as follows :—

“ + Mouza Kublapoor was granted to Anajee, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankle,
by the Beenewala, in Fuslee 1214 [a. . 1804-05], from which period to the pre-
sent it has been continued.

« « Mouza Woteemuroo was granted to the same Deshpandey by Purseram 152
Khuonderow, in Fuslee 1221 [a. p. 1811-12], from which period it has been till
now continued. _

% ¢ General Munro issued an order that all the wuttuns of the said Anajee Nur.
sew Deshpandey should be continued for the future as they had been continued
up to the introduction of the Company’s Government.

« ¢« Muzzra Kenchunhuttee is a hamlet of Mouza Nundee. It was granted by
the Beenewala in Fuslee 1210 [a. p. 1800-01] to Goorudapa Naik, who executed
an inam puttr transferring it to the Padshapoor Deshpandey, Anajee Nursew, in
Fuslee 1218 [a. p. 1808-09], and it has since continued with the latter. This 153
muzzra was entered in the dehjhara as “ resumed,” but it should be entered

among the jooree villages.
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s ¢ General Munro gave a letter that as many of Anajee Nursew’s wuttuns,

" including this hamlet, {Foot Note (1x.)] as had been continued up to the intro-

duction of the Company’s Government, should be continued as of old ; and the
hamlet in question is accordingly continued.’

“19. Mr. Chaplin, however, does not appear to have been satisfied with the above
explanations ; for, on the 10th August a. p. 1824, he replied to the Principal Col-
lector’s yad above guoted, in a letter from which the following are extracts :—

154 4 ¢ The title by which certain inam and other alienated villages in the Soath-
ern Mabratta Country are held appearing, on a comparison of the accounts
received from your cutcherry with the Poona duftur, to be of a doubtful nature, a
memorandum on the subject was forwarded to you about three years ago. Your
explanation, subsequently [received], having now undergone an examination, the
result of which differs materially ffom the accounts forthcoming in this office, I
have now the honour to point out to you those differences in detail :—

“ < PspsaaAPOOR TALOOEKA.

155 -« List of Villages held in this Talooka by Zumeendars, with the Holders' Names.’

“ Here follow lists of six villages held by three Zumeendars.
“<4, By Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Ankulgee :—

Muzzra Kenchunhuttee ............cc0vevneien. vo 1
Mouza Kublapoor .............. Cessosvensirnuan 1
Mouza Woteermnuroo ....... Ceereeaaies A |

« ¢ The explanatory statements show that the Mamlutdars granted the above
enumerated villages at different periods between the Fuslee years 1210 and 1221,
and the Zumeendars have also given in a kyfeeut, stating that the villages were
granted to them. But on referring to the duftur, the propriety of continuing
156 those lands and villages appears very questionable. Further inquiry should
therefore be made, copies of the Mamlutdars’ sunnuds &ec. ought to be taken and
forwarded to this office, with any further intelligence procurable.’

“20. The draft of a Mahratta memorandum on the same points, evidently prepared
about the same time, though not bearing any date, has been found in the Commis-
sioner’s duftur. It contains comments on the Principal Collector’s yad of explanations
mentioned in paragraph 18, but by whom drawn up does not appear. The purport of
this yad, so far as it relates to the three villages under report, is as follows :—

157 “ ¢It is said in the statement sent from the soobha [of Dharwar] that the vil-
lages and lands were granted to the Desaees, Deshpandeys, &c. of Purgunna
Padshapoor, between Fuslee 1210 (Soorsun Ehude Meiatain) {a. p. 1800-01]
and Fuslee 1221 (Soorsun Esune Ashur Meiatain) [a. p. I811-12]; the entries of
these have been looked for in the duftur, and the following reasons for dis-
agreeing are apparent.’

“ Here occur observations regarding several villages not connected with the present
investigation, and then the following :—

¢ ¢ It is stated in the [Principal Collector’s] yad, regarding the holdings of
Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankle, that—
“ ¢ Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, a hamlet of Mouza Nundee, was granted

158 as inam by the Beenewala in Fuslee 1210 [a. p. 1800-01], to Goorudapa

Naik of Chikuldinee, who in Fuslee 1218 [4. ». 1808-09] execated an

inam puttr transferring it to Anajee Row Nursew, with whom it has since
continued.

(1x.) **General Munro's order does not allude to this hamlet.”
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“ ¢« Mouza Kublapoor was granted by the Beenewala, for services per-
formed for the State, to Anajee Nursew, in Fuslee 1214 [a. ». 1804-05),
and has since been held by him.”

* ¢ But, considering that the Beenewala has stated that he had no jurisdiction
in the above years, it does not seem proper that either these villages, or any lands
he may have granted during tha} permd should be contmued to the Zumeendar
in question. 159

“ ¢ The yad also states that—

* ¢« Mouza Woteemuroo was granted as inam [to the same Deshpandey]
during the management of Purseram Khunderow Sursoobhedar, for services
done at Poona in Fuslee 1221 [4. p. 1811-12]. This inam, not having
been enjoyed for ten years, should be resumed, as such was the arrangement
made for all the Zumeendars of the purgunna. But General [Munro]
gave a writing to continue uninterruptedly to the said [Anajee Nursew] as
‘many of his wuttuns as had been continued up to the introduction of the
present Government. Wherefore Mr. Chaplin issued a takeed to the
Mamlutdar of Padshapoor on the 17th of July 1819, to continne uninterrupt- 160
edly to the said Deshpandey his new villages and inam lands, without
troubling him, and, according to this, they are continued.”

¢« ¢ But there are no accounts in the duftur to show whether or not the mahal
was under the jurisdiction of the said {Purseram Khunderow] during the year
in question ; wherefore [the village] is to be continued [only] after an investiga-
tion being made as to the title deeds at the soobha [of Dharwar].’

“21, The Commission has also found, among the Commissivner’s records brought
from Poona, the office copy of a Mahratta duftur yad on the same subject, which is
endorsed as ¢ given in' [probably by the Commissioner’s Dufturdar] on the 19th August 161
1824, ¢ for transmission to Dharwar,” though it does not appear to have been forwarded
thither by the Commissioner until the 22nd of the same month.* The purport of so
much of this yad as relates to the three villages under report is as follows :—

¢ With Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankle :—

Muzzra Kenchunhuttee ...........o oLl evee 1

Mouza Kublapoor........cooieniiiianaiaiit, 1

Mouza Woteemurco ......... carerenasaan eeeaan 1
— 3

¢ ¢ The [Principal Collector’s] answer of objections and the Zumeendar’s state~
ments show that the above villages and other lands were given to the Zumeen-
dars by Mamlutdars, &c. between Fuslees 1210 and 1221 [a. n. 1800-01 and 162
1811-12]; but on examining the duftur, there appear to be objections to continue
the villages and lands in question ; wherefore copies of the whole of the sunnuds
which were issued by the Mamlutdars, &e. for the grant of the above villages
and lands should be sent to the Commissioner’s cutcherry.’

“ 92 In reply to the last mentioned yad, the Principal Collector of Dharwar wrote
the following letter to the Commissioner, on the 4th April 1826 :—

¢ Sir,—1 have the honor to transmit a Mahratta yad from the Dufturdar of this
distriet, together with 18 copies of the original sunnuds and documents, being
the authority under which the Zumeendars of the Padshapoor Talooka held their 163
villages as inam, and called for in a Mahratta yad of the 22nd Augusl: 1824, re-
cewed from your office : the Eunglish letter which gave cover to it is said to have
been lost in the disturbance at Kutoor

* The original haa since been found at Belgaum, and is dated 22nd August 1824,
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“93, The dccompanimeénts of this letter were a duftur yad and 18 copies of tiile
deeds. The dufiur yad is nothing more than a farisht, or list of the 18 papers it
accompanied, and of those papers eleven referred to Anajee Nursew’s three villages under
report, namely copies of the 6th, 12th, lst, 3rd, 41h, 11th, 2nd, 5th, aod 9th docoments
quoted in paragraph 7 of this report, besides two others, which have not been produced

164 by Anajee Nursew before the Commissiou, viz:—

¢ 13t.—Copy of an inam puttr dated 15th Mohurrum, in Soorsun Teesa Meiatain and
Alif 4. p. 1808-09], purporting to be executed by Goorudapa Naik bin Fukeer Naik,
Naik of Chikuldinee, Sur Naik of Purgunna Padshapoor, in favour of Nursingrow
Dada Desh pandey, as follows :—
¢ In every matter relating to my wuttun you have been of much service to
me with the Sirkar, procuring my advantage in all things. In acknowledgment
of this I have given to you, as an bereditary inam, Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, in
Kuryat Ankle, of the above Purgunna. You are accordingly to enjoyit. No
165 objection pn any pretence will be made to its continuance ; and my beirs will also
continue it.’
¢ 2nd.—Copy of a takeed dated 5th Shuwal, in Soorsun Seet Meijatain and Alif {a. p.
1805.-06], purporting to be issued by Keshowrow Balkrishn, Sursoobhedar of Prant
Carnatic, to the Mokuddums of Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttee, as follows :—

“ ¢ The above village was in the year Khumus Meiatain [a. p. 1804-05]
ganted by the Beenewala to Nurso Anajee Deshpandey, at a jooree tax of Rs. 40,
and @ sunnud for the same was also given; but, owing to the traops of the
Sursoobha going away in the same year, a dispute arose, and the Deshpandey
has now asked for a sunnud from the Sursoobbedar, as a necessary title for
166 -enjoyment ; wherefore this sunnud is issued, remitting the jooree of Rs. 40,
You are accordingly to make over the entire management of the village to
Nurso Anajee Deshpandey. A copy of this takeed is to be taken, and the original
given to the Deshpandey as title to enjoyment. Observe this.’

“24. No answer was returned to the Principal Collector’s letter quoted in the 22nd
paragraph, as accompanying the documents last mentioned, until November 1826 ; and
in the mean time the Commissioner, who would probably have come to some final
decision on the claims to which he had been cbjecting during the preceding five years,
bad apparently left his office ; for on the records of the Principal Collector of Dharwar

167 is found the following letter :— '

“ ¢ No. 313 or 1826.

“ ¢Sin,—1I bave the instructions of the Honorable the Governor to acknow-
ledge the receipt of your letter to the address of the late Commissioner, dated
dth April last, giving cover to certain documents relative to the alienated
villages and lands in the Padshapoor Talooka, abd in reply to forward the
enclosed Mahratta paper, drawn up by the Government Dufturdar.

¢ ¢] have the honor to be, Sir,
“ ¢ Your most obedierrt humble Servant,

(Signed) “ ‘JouNn WaRpEN,

¢ ¢ Sub-Secretary to Government.
“ ¢ Camp at Salpe, 16th November 1826.’

168 “25. This brings the Commission back to the series of documents produced by
Anajee Nursew, the 15th of which, quoted in paragraph 7, is an extract from the ¢ Mah-
ratta paper’ which accompanied Mr., Warden’s letter quoted in paragraph 24. The whole
of this paper has been translated, and the entire correspondemce which led to its
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preparation has been fully described in the Commissioner's letter to Government No. 251,
~dated 18th June 1846; and Government, after .examining the original, has intimated
ita decision, in Mr. Pringle’s letter No. 3446, dated 26th September 1846, that the
¢ Mahratta paper’ in question was not intended as a Government deci$ion, and canuot
be looked upon as anything more than ‘ the mere report of a Native officer on questions

still to be decided.’

“26. But it is not inevitably nécessary, that because Government has not yet

' adopted the report of its Dufturdar, and decided in conformity with the opinion set forth
in it, that report cannot deserve to be finally adopted as a decision. The Commission
will, therefore, proceed to the question as to whether or not it is really of such an
equitable nature that Government may now assent to it. The whole of the Dufturdar’s
argument for the continuance of Anajee Nursew’s three villages now under report is
based on the assumption that Mr. Chaplin, as Prineipal Collector, ordered their con-
tinuance, in conformity with the sunnud or letter written by Sir Thomas Munro on the
25th May 1818, But it has been shown at paragraphs 19, 20, and 15, that M.
Chaplin himself, when Commissioner, was by no means prepared to confirm the orders
he had issued, when Principal Collector, for excepting Anajee Nursew's case from the
operation vf the general Inam Rules, and, in fact, never did so. Aud as for Sir T.
Munro’s order [the 9th document - quoted in paragraph 7], it, as noticed in paragraph
10, does not allude at all to the village C, Muzzra Kenchunhuitee, and only sanctions
the continuance of the other two, A and B, on the understanding that they were ancient
wuttun inams, and that they were to be continued iu the same manner as they had been
from of old under the Paishwa’s Government. Now, as neither Kublapoor nor Wotee-
~muroo ever belonged to Anajee Nursew’s wuttun; as they had not been held on any
tenure from of old ; and as they were not continued at all with the consent of the Paish-
wa's Goverument, [Foot Note (x.)] there is nothing iz Sir Thomas Munro’s letter which
will bear out the Dufturdar’s opinion, that any of the three villages under report have
been ‘recognised as inam b) competent authorvity. The Commlssmn, therefure, thinks
that this opiuion should be rejected, and that the question of the claimant’s title must
depend on any right he may be able to substantiate independent of the pretended recog-
nition of his title by competent aulhonty under the preseat Government, none such
having ever been made.

# 27. Thus the Commission has eoncluded, that the first of the questions stated in the
8th paragraph must be decided against the claimant; and this renders necessary a con-
sideration of the second of those questions, viz. what title the claimant may have, inde-
pendent of the recognition of the present Government ?

“28. Aunjee Punt, in Answer IV. of liis examination, recorded in the 1st para-
graph, asserts that the villages A and B, Kublapour and Woteemuroo, were granted to
his father in a. p. 1804-05, by the Beenewala, and C, Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, in a. p.
1808-09, to himself, by Goorudapa Naik, to whom he states in another place it had
originally been granted by the same Beenewala. But the Beenewala never had any right
to make such granis, and, at the date of hissannud granting C, Mozzra Kenchunhuttee,
to Goorudapa Naik, the Mamlut of Padshapoor did not belong to him, but to Dowlut
Row Sciudia, who had been appointed Comavisdar about two months before ; [Foot Note
(x1.)} and his sunnuds for the grant of A and B are dated several mouths subsequent
to the issue of orders by the Paishwa for his [the Beenewala’s] final removal from the

(x.) “That fhe villages * were not continued at all with the consent of the Paishwa’s Government’ is in thig

169

170

171

172

part of the Commission’s Report only an assertion, but proof of the assertion will be found below, at the 30th

paragraph.”’

(x1.) * The registry in the Hoozeor Rozkheerd, in the Poona - duftur, shows that the Prishwa's suunud,
transferring the menagement of the Padshapoor Purgunna from the Beenewala to Dowlut Row Scindia, was
issued on the the 15th of Ramzan, in Soorsun Ebhude Meiatain and Alif [a. ». 1800-01], whereas the Beene-
wala’s sunnud to Goorudapa Naik [the 6th document described in pamgraph 71 was not issued-till the 9th of
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superintendence of Padshapoor. If he had been Comavisdar of the purgununa when he
174 granted the villages, his dving so would have been an unauthorised act. How much

more 30 when it was done at a time when he had no right to interfere with the manage-
ment of the district to which they belong.

«“ 29, But even an unauthorised grant may become valid if subsequently recngnised
by competent authority. It remains, therefore, to be discovered, if any such recognition
ever occurred in the case of any of the villages under report.

“ 30. Ogn referring for this purpose to the Paishwa’s daftar, the Commission finds
that there are no reeords of Purgunna Padshapoor forthcoming for the period interven-
ing between A. p. 1796-97 and 1805-06. But there are accounts [Fuot Note {(xi1.)] of

175 a. . 1805-06, 1811-12, 1812-13, 1815 14, 1814-15, and 1815-16, which show thatthe
whole of the three villages under report were lovked upon by the Paishwa as khalsat,
up to the close of his Government, and that all the revenue realizable from them was
received by the Sirkar. This is conclusive evidence that the invalidity of Lhe grants
by which the villages were alienated to Nurso Auajee and Goorudapa- Naik was never
‘pbviated by the cunﬁrmatlon or even the simple recognition, of any competent authority ;

and it is, therefore, necessary to decide the second, as well as the first, questlon propoeed
" 176 in the 8th paragraph, against the claimant’s title,

“31. For the above reasons, the Commission is of opinion that Anajee Nursew ought
not to have been treated by the local authorities as if exempted from the operation of the
Inan Rules of . p. 1818, and that, at all events, the villages under report should not
remain any longer alienated, as they have been improperly from the first; by an extension
to the cldlmant of the indulgence  allowed, apparently Dy error; to his futher An‘l_]ee
Nursew ; but thinks that Konher Row's claim to’inherit- them should be rejected, and
that they shoold remain for the future in the bands-of Gouvernment as khalsat villages.

177 “32. The Commission is unable to afford any satisfactory information to Govern-
ment regarding tlie value of the villages now reported on. Anajee Nursew, their last
holder, has in his kyfeeut valued them as fullows : —

A, Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuitee.... Rs. 90 gross income.
B, Woteemuroo oorf Kumulapoor.... 920 -
C, Muzzra Kenchunhuttee . ......... 35 '

Bat this valuation is not to be'depended on, being apparently much underrated, thongh
there are no accounts worthy of dependence by which it can be tested.

(Signed) “W. Hanr,

_ “ Commissioner for Investigaiing Claims to Inams, &e.
“ Belgaum, 3rd February 1847.”

10. On the 26th May 1847 the Chief Secretary, in a letter, No. 1900, informed
the Inam Commissioner that the Honorable the Governor in Council had beea led to
doubt the expediency of the Inam Commissioner submitting his proceedings in each

Ziikad following. The same registry shows that the Beenewala, who had been restored to the Mamlut in a. D.
1801-02, was finally removed from it by an order of the Paishwa, issued on the 15th of Rubbee-col-Awnul, in
-Soorsun Arba Meiatain and Alif [a. p. 1803-04], about a year before he issued the first three sunouds quoted

in paragraph7. At their date, the Beenewala was holding the fort of Belgaum, but he had no right to
exercise authority in the Padshapoor Purgunna.”

(x11.) “*The accounts here referred to are as follows : —The azmas of the mahals, footgaoms, deshguts, and
forts in the Carnatic, *Nisbut Anundrow Ramchunder, in Soorsun Seet Meiatain and Alif [a. ». 1803-06];
azmas of Cusha Belgaum, and other villages, Nisbut Trimbukjee Dengle, in Soorsun Esene Ashur Meiatain aod
Alif [a. D. 1811-12] ; a similar azmas for Scorsun Sulas Ashur Meiatain and Alif [4. p. 1812-13] ; a yad of
the mahals, footgaoms, deshguts, forts, &e. in the Carnatic, under Trimbukjee Dengle, in the same year [4. .
1812-13] ; the azmas, and a loose account of the same mahals, &c. &c. for Soorsun Arba Ashur Meiatain and
Alif {a. p. 1813-14]; 2 yad of the mahals, sursoobha, &e. of the Carnatic, under Trimbukjee Dengle, in Soorsun

._Khumus Ashur Meiatain and ALf [A. . 1814-15]; the azmas of the mahals, footgaoms, &c. of the Carnatic,
in Soorsun Seet Ashur Meiatain and ANf [a. p. 1815-16].”
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individual case, not only because so doing imposed upon Government a degree of detail 178
which could not be satisfactorily disposed of with due regard to the general business
coming before it, but further, because it committed Government to a confirmation of
the views of the adjudicating authority, without having before it the objections of the
parties who might consider themselves aggrieved by them.-

11. *For these reasons,” continues she Chief Secrétary, in the 3rd paragraph of his
letter No. 1900 of 1847, * the Governor in Council considers it would be a much more
satisfactory course for your [the Inam Commissioner’s] decisions to come before Guvern-
ment only in the form of an appeal, and this in none but the more important cases investi-
gated by you. He s, therefore, pleased to resolve, that you shall furaish a copy of
your decision in every case to the party whom it affects; that an appeal shall be open to. 179
the Revenue Commissioner of the Southern Division, if preferred within three months
from the recetpt of the decision by the party; that the Revenue Commissioner’s award
shall be final in’ the ‘cuse of nams not exceeding 150] fifiy rupees in annual value ; and
that a further appeal shall lie to Government onlv in the case of those of higher value,
and if preferred within three months from the receipt of the Revenue CommlssmnerS'
dec:smn : -

12, With this letter were returned all the Reports submitted by the Inam Commis-
sioner, which:had not been yet decided by Guvernment; and among these was the
Report descmbed above in the 9th paraoraph : ' 180

13. _Meanwhlle,_ on the 25th M_ay_ 1847, the Inam Commissioner, having called on
Konher Row Auajee to-state the grounds of his claim to succeed his father in other
alleged minor inams iu the same talooka, commenced to receive his kyf'eeut or statement
of t.:tle regarding these, amounting to 20 fields or holdings, in nine vxllaﬂes This
kyfeeut was completed on the 10th, of June' 1847. .

14. On the 19th July 1847 a reference, No. 2697, in Mahratta. was made to the
Dufturdar of Dharwar, regarding the tenure, &e. of the lands in question, as entered 1n
the village accounts of the present Government. :

15. The Dufturdar replied on the 31st August 1847, jn a Mahratta yad, No. 30, th__a];
as three of the villages in which the lands in question were sitvated bad not been under 181
‘Government management, being then held as inam, he could give no information
regarding the fields therein held; but sabmitted a tabular statement, affording the
requisite information regarding the lands in the remaining six villages. From this
statement it appeared, that in five of the six villages the lands had, up to the preceding
year, been entered as the life holdings of Anajee Nursew, now deceased ; and in the
sixth {Mouza Kunburgee], under varying heads [Ovlgeedar and Sambhaweet), in Anajee
Nursew’s name, until his death in A. p. 1844-45, and since then in the name of his sun
Konher Row Anajee, under [as stated on the village account] verbal instructivns from
the 20d Assistant Collector of Belgaum,

18. As some. of these lunds had Leen obtained under titles similar to those by which 182
Anajee Nursew held the three villages to which the Report described in paragraph 9
relates, the Inam Commissioner considered that it would be well to consider and decide
as nearly as possible together, under the instructions conveyed in the Government letter
Ng. 1900 of 1847, the claims made by Anajee Nursew’s heir to the whole; and he found
himself in a condition to do this by the commencement of November 1847.

17. The Inam Commissioner’s decision [No. 6 of 1847], dated 3rd November, regard-
ing Mouza Kublapour, Mouza Woteemuroo, and Muzzra Keachunhuttee, drawn up
in Mahratta from the facts recorded in the English Report describ¢d in paragraph 9,
was to the following effect :—
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« Translation of Decree of the Inam Commission, §c. No. 6 qf 1847, in the
Belgaum Collectorate.

183 ¢ Mouza Kublapoor, Mouza Woteemuroo, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, in the Pad-
shapoor Talooka, being entered in the present Government’s accouats as the jooree inam
villages of Anajee Nursew, his kyfeeut {statement] and proofs in support of his title to
the said three villages were received by the Inam Commissioner; but during the inves-
tigation into that title Anajee Nursew died ; on which the Collector of Belgaum wrote
to the Inam Commissioner, wishing to know whether the villages in question were
to be continued or attached. Ia reply, the Collector was informed, that pending the
‘Inam Commissioner’s Report [en the tenure of the three villages] to Government, and its
final orders thereon, he was to continue the said Anajee Nursew's villages to his heir,

184 who was, however, at the same time to be informed, that the arrangement would neither
increase nor diminish his title in the least; that whatever orders Government might be
pleased. to issue would be carried into effect ; and that the arrangement suggested would
ensure the Government orders being carried into effect without any let or hinderance.
From that day until the present time the said three villages have been held temporarily
in deposit [amanut] by the deceased Anajee Nursew's son, Konher Row Anajee. The
Inam Commissioner having subsequently completed the investigation into the tenure
by which the said three villages were held, submitted to CGovernment a report, dated
3rd February 1847, and which has now been returned, in order that the Inam Commis-

185 sioner might pass a decision on the claim. The following decision is thereflore

recorded :— ‘
. “Mouza Kublapoor, Mouza Woteemuroo, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, in Talooka
Padshapoor, of the Belgaum Collectorate, were enjoyed on jooree inam tepure by
Anajee Nursew, who formerly, during the Inam Commissioner’s investigation, gave in
a kyfeeut or statement of the history of the villages, togetherwith docnmentary evidence
in support thereof. On a consideration of these, it appeared to the Inamn Commissioner,
that after the death of Anajre Nursew, the villages held by him ought not to be eonti-
nued in perpetuity to his heirs as hereditary inam ; and as Anajee Nursew is now dead,
it is hereby decreed that the three villages, Mouza Kublapoor, Mouza Woteemuroo, and
Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, shall be resnmed, and treated as Government khalsat villages.

(Signed) *“W. Harr, .
“ Commissioner.”

18. The result of the Jnam Commissioner’s inquiries regarding the twenty miner
inams in- nine villages was recorded in the form of an Ellﬂllsh report, aud a Mahratta
decision, No 8 of 1847, dated 10th November.

19. The report was as follows :—



187 Tabular Statement of the Lands held in Talooka Padshapoor by the late Anajee Nursew as Private Inams, to which his Son, Konher Row Anajee, asserts
his right to succeed ; showing the circumstances of the several alleged Inams, and the Titles by which they are claimed ; and referring to the Inam

o1l

Commissioner’s Memorandum of Decision in eack case.

to the Form prescribed by the Inam Commission. The last Column is filled in by the Inam Commissioner.

The first eleven Columns of this Table are drawn up by the Claimant himself, according
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Name of Vil-
Jage, Purgunna,
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See Memorandum
VIiI.

See Memorandum

See Memorandum

See Memorandum
XI.

[A. ». 1805-06], by Kesho-
row Balkrishn, Sursoobhe-
dar Praot Carnatic, to
3 Nurso Anajee, the grand-
father of the present holder.
1 chigur. 104 120 0 9 ... 30 0 0 90 0

Mcuza Soolud-|Fourteen anas of aThis land was granted during|At the close of the/There is one Sun 110 120 30 0 0‘ 90 0

hall, Mahal| chigurofKhoosh-| the Paishwa’s rule, in Sun| late Government, pud and a Ta- ,
Ankulgee, Ta-| kee land, as Ek-| Khumua Meiatain {a. ».| this land washeld] keed for thi
locka Padsha-| galee Gootgal 1804-05), by Shideshwur| by Nurso Anajee| land. ,
poor. Inam. Mubeeputrow, Beenewala,| Deshpandey, the
to the grapdfather of the| grandfather of]
present holder. the present hold-
er.
Mounza Mudwsll,|Half a chigur of]This land was granted during|At the close of the[There is the copy| 72 75 . 18 12 of 56 0
Mahal Ankul-| Khooshkee land,| the Paishwa's rule, in| late Government,| of one Sunnud| :
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adeghapoor. [A- p. 1806-07], by Aound-| by Nurso Anajee
row Ramchunder, Sur! Deshpandey, the
soobhedar Prant Carnatic,| grandfather of]
to the grandfather of the| the present hold-
present holder. er, .

Mouza Arbha-|Half a chigur of{This land was granted during|At the close of theThe Sunnud red 19 20 50 0 15 0
vee oorf Dha-l Khooshkee land,| the Paishwa’s rule, in Sun| late Government,| lating to the| ,
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Talooka Pad- Balkrishn, Sursoobhedar| Nurse  Ansjee] geerhall[No.2]
shapoor. ! Prant Carnatie, to the] Deshpandey, the| relates to this

grandfather of the present] grandfather of| land also.
holder. the present hold-
er. +
|

Mouza Kunbur-|Irrigated land, va-This land was granted by|At the close ofThere is a copy] 84 120 20 0 9 100 0
gee, Sammaut] lued at 48 hoons,| Chintamuurow Saheb Put- Chintamunrow| of the Sunnud
Dhamne, Ta-| as Surv Inam,| wurdhun, during hisautho Saheb’s authori-| for thisland.
lcoka Padsha-] each hoon being| rity, in Sun Teesa Ashur|{ ty, this land wag
poor. equal to | rupeel (1228 Fuslee) [A. .| held by Anajee

and 12 anas. 1818-19], to Anajee Nur- Nuresew, the fa-
sew, ' the father of the| therofthe present
present holder. holder.
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chigurof Khoosh-| the Paishwa’s rule, in Sun linquishing thef ; Xiv,
keeland, as Goot-| Esune Meistain {a. D. Gootga on th :
go Inam. 1801-02], by Shideshwur- above land re ;
Mubeputrow, Beenewals, lates to thi : !
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D.—Half a chigur

Sce Memorandum
XVI.
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of  Khooshkeo| the Paishwa's rule, but in rate  Sunnud
land, as Eksalee] what year not known, b for this land,
Inam. the sbovementioned Shi- There is evi:
deshwur Muhecputrow, to denee about it
the present holder's grand- in the doen-
father, Nurso Anajac. ment  above
mentioned.
1} chigur, 126 5 0Of 145 0 . 36 4 010812 0
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as ISkaalee Inam, .
C.—38ix anas of o/This land was granted during Ditto. ....|The Sunoud re] 48 12 0] 50 0 12 8 o 37 8 ¢
chigur of Iand, mlnl the Paigshwa's rule, in Sun Inting to the
t Eksnlec knam, of] Sect Meiatainand Alif[a. p. half chigur of
which 3 anas are} 1805.06], by Keshowrow land in No. 2
Khooshkes, and| Balkeishn, Sursoobha Prant relates to thisr
J onas Bagneet, | Carnatic, to the present Jand:
holder’s grandfather, Nurso o
Annjee, S
191 D.—One ana of o] Ditto ditto. ...... Ditto. ....(There are no] 8 2 0 7% 0 112 o 54 0
chigurof Khoosh- Sunnuds, &e.
kee land, as Ek- for this land.
salee Inam.
[5 anns of a chigur. 105 10 0 117 00 30 ¢ Of 2112 0O 65 4 0
| 901 5 9| 972 0 30 0 0/ 235 8 0716 8 0

See Memorandum
XVII.

See Memorandum
| XVIIL
|

See Memorandum
- XIX.

See Memorandum
XX,

“ Belgnum, 10th November 1847.”

(Signed) “W. HART,
* Inam Commissioner.

I¥
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“Total amount of Profit, ....ccvvieerieerernenneen Rs. 716 8 0

“ Deduct amount payable to Government as Eksalee and Jooree :—
“ Mahal Eksalee, payable at the Padshapoor Mahalkurree’s

Cutcherry :—
“ On account of lands in Cusba Ankulgee.Rs. 63 14 6
Mouza Aktungeerhall ......... . 32 8 0
» Sooludhall ,.... resnnun 34 5 6
» Arbhavee .............. 5 7 3
» Mulbhapoor ............ 15 0 0O
»s DBoodeehall ............ 32 10 9
183 14 0O
“ Village Jooree payable:—
“ On account of Gootga lands in Cusba
Ankulgee ............v.oLl.. Rs. 6 1 6
Mouza Mudwul.............. I5 9 6
“ On account of land in the Inam
Village Goojunhall Eksalee. .Rs, 31 4 0
Gootga Ipam .......... 10 0 0O
—4] 4 O
—_— 62 15 0
246 13 0
‘ Balance remaining Nett Profit.................... Rs. 46911 O
% Add Income derived from other sources, as stated in
the 12th answer of Kyfeeut marked =, viz :—
“ From the Company’s Districts .......... Rs. 7,113 5 6
From other Districts .... .... ceene 10,799 14 9 ]
17,913 4 3
 Total Income....Rs. 18,382 15 3.

* (True translation, &ec.)
(Signed) «W. Harr,
“ Inam Commissioner.”

‘“ Memoranda by the Inam Commissioner regarding Konher Row Anajee’s
Claims to the alleged Inams enumerated in the preceding Table.

¢ MemoranpuM 1.

“ On Claim A of No. 1, ioaquarter of a Chigur of Land in Cusba Ankulgee.

-1, The claimant produces as a title deed, a document, purporting to be a sunnud
issued by Shideshwur Muheeputrow, on the 15th of Jumad-ool-Akhir, in Soorsun Esune
Meiatain and Alif [. p. 1801-02], granting a quarter of a chigur of land in Yedulgood,
a Tnijgzra of Cusba Ankule [or Ankulgee], to Nurso Anajee Deshpandey, as hereditary
inam,

“2.. Recordsin the Paishwa’s duftur show that Shideshwur Muheeput, whe had
been Mamlutdar of Purgunna Padshapoor, &c. was removed from his office by a sunnud-
from the Paishwa dated 15th Ramzan, in Soorsun Ehude Meiatain and Alf [a. p.
1800-01], by which the Comavis of Padshapoor, &ec. was transferred to Dowlut Row
Scindia for the support of troops; and that the purgunna was again transferred from
Scindia to the former Comavisdar, Shideshwur Muheeput, on the 27th of Rujul, in
Soorsun Esune Meiatain and ‘Alif [a. p. 1801-02]. But the sunnud described in para-
graph 1 is dated during the iutermediate petiod, when Shideshwur Muheeput had no
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right to interfere in any way with the management of Purgunna Padshapoor. He
could have had ro authority to issue such a sunnud even when he was Comavisdar of

the mahal; and much lessata time whea he was displaced by the Paishwa's express
orders from its management.

“3, Moreover, the accounts of the Poona Hoozoor [of later date than that of the
alleged grant of the land A)], which have been fouud in the Paishwa’s duftur, prove that
the lands in Purgunna Padshapoor,'for the revenues of which the manager of the

mahal was held answerable, included as khalsat the whole of the alleged inam under
consideration, until at least as late as a. b, 1815-16.

*“4. This land is entered in the latest accounts [of the present Government] as
one of Anajee Nursew’s * Taghaet’ [vr * for life’] holdings.

“ 8. The claimant, Konher Row Anajee, besides the specific sunnud quoted in para-
graph 1, puts forward, to strengthen his title to succeed to this and the other alleged

195

inams, regarding which his kyfeeut of the 25th May, closed on the 22nd June 1847, 196

~has been made, the 8th and fullowing documents quoted in the 7th paragraph of the
- Inam Commissioner’s Report of the 3rd February 1847, adopted for his decision of the
3rd November 1847, in the case of the villages Kablapoor, Woteemuroo, and Kenchun-
huttee. The Inam Commissioner’s reasons for his opinion that the correspondence
contained in these documents makes no recognition of Anajee Nursew’s title to any but
his wuttun inaws, are ,explained in the 8th to the 27th paragraphs of the above cited
report, and also [as part of a general question] in the Inam Commissioner’s letter to
Goverument, No. 251, dated 18th June 1846, with the opinion expressed, in which the

Honorable the Governor in Council has intimated his concurrence in the Chief Secre- 197

tary’s letter No. 3446, dated 26th September 1846.

“6. There can be no doubt that the land A, in Muzzra Yedulgood of Cusba An-

kulgee, was improperly held by Aanajee Nursew, and that his son’s present claim to
succeed to it ought to be rejected.” °

“ Memoranoonm 1L
* On Claim B of No. 1, 1o seven Anas of a Chigur of Land in Cusba Ankulgee.

“ 1. The claimant produces, as his title deed for this land, a document, purporting
" to be a sunnud issued by Shideshwur Muheeputrow, on the 3rd of Rubbee-ool-Awul, in
Soorsun Khumus Meiatain and Alif [a. p. 1804-05), granting to Nurso Arajee Desh-
pandey, as hereditary inam in perfect free-hold, the fullowing lands, viz :—

* As parasol inam :— '

In Cusba Aukule [or Aukulgee].......... 7 anas of a chigur.
Iu Mouza Boodeehall........... S, 4 , »

l l L1 7 3%
“ Also as chowree inam ;-

" In'Mouza Aktungeerhall....... Cereiasan 4 anas of a chigur.

Total parasol and chowree inam.......... 15 ,, . »

“2. The Pouna records show that Shideshwur Muheeputrow was finally removed
from the management of Purgunna Padshapoor, by a sunnud issued by the Paishwa on
-the 15th of Rubbee-oul-Awul, in Svorsun Arba Meiatain and Alif [a. D. 1303-04], very
nearly a year before the date of the sannud described in paragraph 1, the grant recited
in which, if it ever took place at all, which there is much reason to doubt, was wholly
unauthorised.

“3. The whole of the matter recorded from the 3rd to the 5th paragraph of

Memorandum 1. [revardmo- Claim A of No. 1] is applicable to the claim B under
consideration.
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“4, 'The Inamm Commissioner is therefore of upinion, that Konher Row’s claim to
succeed his father in the alleged inam B should be rejected.”

¢« Memoranpum IlI.

“ On Claim C of No.1, to three Anas of a Chigur of Land as Gootga [at a fixed
Quit-rent) Inam, in Cusba Ankulgee.

1. The claimant produces, as his title deed for this land, 2 document, purporting to
be a takeed dddressed by Dhondo Ramchunder, Sovbhedar of Purgunna Padshapoor,
to the Mokuddums of Cusba Ankule, [or Ankulgee,] on the 16th of Zilhej, in Soorsun
Suman Meiatain and Alif [a. p. 1807-08], desiring them, in conformity, it is said, with
a verbal order from the Sursoobhedar, to make over to Nurso Anajee Deshpandey a
pew ingm of Rs. 60 rental, a sunnud for which was to be issued on receipt of their reply.

s 2 The whole transaction to which this document relates was clearly unauthor-
ised, and the whole of the matter recorded from the 3rd to the 5th paragraph of Memo-
randam L {on Claim A of No. 1] is equally applicable to the claim under cousideration.
The Inam Commissioner is therefore of opinion, that Konher Row’s claim to succeed his
father in this alleged inam should be rejected.”

“ Memoranpum IV,

“ On Claim D of No. 1, to three Anasof a Chigur of Land in Cusba Ankulgee.

“ 1. The claimant produces, as his title deed for this land, a doeument, purporting to
be a takeed addressed by Dhondo Ramchunder, Soobhedar of Purginna Padshapoor, to
the Mokuddums of Ankule, [or Ankulgee, ] on the 2nd of Mohnrrum in Scorsun Suman
Meiatain and Alif{a. p. 1807-08], ordering them to make over three anas of land in the
cusha to Nurso Anajee Deshpandey, to be held by him for a fixed gootga, or annual
quit-rent, of Rs, 74.

“2, Nothing is said in this takeed of the term for which the land to which it relates
was to be held, nor is it alluded to as inam. The whale of the matter recorded from the
3rd to the 5th paragraph of Memorandum I. [on Claim A of No. 1]is equally applicable
to the claim under consideration. The Inam Commissioner is therefore of opinion, that
Konher Row’s claim to succeed his father in this alleged inam should be rejected.”

“ MemoraNDUM V.
“On Claim A of No. 2, to four Anas of a Chiyur of Land in Mouza Aktungeerhall.

# 1. The claimant produces, as his title deed for this land, a document, purporting tobe
a sunnud issited by Shideshwur Muheeputrow, on the 3rd of Rubbee-ool-Awul, in Svorsun
Khumus Meiatain aiid Alif [a. b. 1804-05)], granting to Nurso Anajee Deshpandey,
as hereditary surv inam, a quarter of a chigur of land in Mouza Aktungeerhall, for
the expense of a torch or lantern,

“2. The remarks made regarding a similar sunnud of the same date as this, in the
2nd paragraph of Memorandum 1l. {on Claim B of No. 1] apply equally to this one.

“3. The whole transaction to which this document relates was clearly unauthorised,
and the whole of the matter recorded from the 3vd to the 5th paragraph of Memoran-
dum I [on Ciaim A of No. 1] is equally applicable to the claim under counsideration.
The Inam Commissioner is therefore of opinion, that Konher Row’s claim to succeed his
father in this alleged inam should be rejected.”

“Memoranpum VI.
“ On Claim B of No. 2, to four Anas of a Chigur of Land in Mouza Ahtungeerhall.

“ 1. The claimant puts forward, as his title deed for this land, the document described
in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Memoraudum II. -
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« 2 The whole transaction to which this documeat relates was clearly unauthorised,
and the whole of the matter recorded from the 3rd to the 5th paragraph of Memorandan
I.[on Claim A of No. 1) is equally applicable to the claim under consideration. The
Inam (ommissioner is therefure of opinion, that Konher Row's claim to succeed his
father in this alleged inam should be rejected.”

“ Memoranpun VII.

“ On Claim C of No. 2, to half a Chigur of Land in Mouza Aktungeerhall.

“1. The claimant produces, as his title deed for this land, a docnment, purporting to
to be a sunnud issued by Keshowrow Balkrishn, Sursoobha of Prant Carnatic, on the
5th of Shuwal, in Soorsun Seet Meiatain and Alif [s.p. 1805.06], granting to Nurso
Anajee the following new inams, viz :—

In Mouza Mulapoor. ....... 10 anas of a chigur.

» Aktungeerhall.... 8 . ”
” Boodechall....... 6 . 2 »
» Arbhavee........ 8 , " »

In all two chigurs of land, as hereditary inam.

«2. All of the grants to which this sunnud relates were clearly unauthorised, and
the whole matter recorded from the 3rd to the &th paragraph of Memorandam I {on
Claim A of No. 1]is equally applicable to the claim under consideration. The Inam
Commissioner is therefore of opinion, that Konher Row’s claim to succeed his father
in this alleged inam should be rejected.” |

_ “ Memoranoum VIIIL
“ On the Claim in No. 3, to fourteen Anas of @ Chigur of Land in Mouza Sooludhall.

“]. The claimant produces, as his title deeds for this land, two documents: one of
these purports to be 2 sunnud issued by Shideshwur Muaheeputrow, on the 3rd of Rubbee-
ool-Awul, in Scorsun Khumus Meiatain and Alif [a. ». 1804-05], granting to Nurso
Anajee Deshpandey, as hereditary gootga inam, at a fixed annual quit-rent, fourteen
anas of a chigur of land in Mouza Sooludhall.

“2, The remarks made regarding a similar sunnud, of the same date as this, in the
2nd paragraph of Memorandum II. [un Claim B of No. 1], apply equally to this one.

“ 3. The other document regarding this Jand produced by the claimant purports to
bea tukeed addressed by Dhondo Ramchunder, Soobhedar of Purgunna Padshapoer, to
the Mokuddums of Sooludhall, in Soorsun Suman Meiatain and Alif [a. p. 1807-08],
ordering them to remit the guit-rent puid by Nurso Anajee for his gootga inam in their
village, and to continue it to himn hereditarily as surv inam.

“4, The transactions to which both of the documents put forward in this claim
relate were clearly unauthorised ; and the whole of the matter recorded from the 3rd to
the 5th paragraph of Memorandum L. [on Claim A of No. 1] is equally applicable to
the claim under consideration. The Inam Cuwmissioner is therefore of opiuion, that
Konler Row's claim to succeed his father in this alleged inam should be rejected.”

« Memoranpum 1X.

“ On the Cluim in No. 4, to half a Chigur of Land in Mouza Mudwall.

“1. The claimant produces, as his title deed for this land, a document, purporting to
he a takeed issued iu A, p. 1806-07, by Anundrow Ramchunder, Sursoobha of Prant Carna-
tic, to the village officers of Mouza Mudwall, ordering them to make over, and continue
in perpetuity, to Nurso Anajee Deshpandey, as goutga inam, at a fized quit-rent, half
a chigur of land in their village.

13
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“ g, The whole transaction to which this document relates was clearly unanthorised,
and the whole of the matter recorded from the 3rd to the 5th paranmph of Memoran-
dum L. {on Claim A of No:1]is equallv appllcable to the claim under cousideration.
Phe Inam Commissioner is therefore of opinion, that Konher Row's claim tu succeed
his father in this alleged inam should be rejected.”

« Mesmoranpun X.
“ On the Claim in No. 5,to kalf a Chigur of Land in Mounza Arbhavee.

1, The claimant puts forward, as his title deed for this land, the document des-
cribed in the 1st paragraph of Memorandum VIII,

210 2. All of the grants to which this sunnud relates were clearly unauthorised, and
the whole matter recorded from the 3rd to the Sth paragraph of Memorandum L. [on
Claim A of No. 1] is equally applxcable to the claim under consideration. The Inam
Commissioner is therefore of opinion, that Konher Row’s claim to succeed bLis father in
this alleged inam should be rejected.”

« Memoranoum XL
On the Claim in No. 6, to forty-eight Hoons worth of Land in Mouza Kunburgee.

“ 1. The claimant produces, as his title deed for this land, a document, purporting to

be the copy of a sunnud or letter addressed on the Ist of Saban, in Soorsun Teesa Ashur

211 Meiatain and Alif [4. p. 1818-19], by Chintamun Row Pandoorung, to Ana'}ee Nursew
Deshpandey, granting him the following lands as hereditary inam, v1z -

Three pieces of land in Mouza Kunburgee, rental .............Rs. 96
One piece of land in Mouza Altugey, rental.................. 20

Total, . Rs. 116
“ 9, Supposing the above document to be a genuine copy, the land in Kunburges,
which was granted by Chintamun Row in a. p. 1818-19, when that village formed part
of his surinjam, ovght to have been taken possession of on the part of the Company’s
Government when Kunburgee was resumed in a. n. 1820-21,
“3. At all events, now that Anajee Nursew is dead, his son’s claim to inherit such
a grant must be rejected.”

212 “ Memoranvum XIL 7
“ On the Claim in No. 7, to ten Anas of a Chigur of Land in Mouza Mulapoor.

“1. The cluimant puts forward, as his title deed to this alleged inam, the document
described in the 1st paragraph of Memorandum VI1I.

“2, The whole of the grants to which this sunnud relates were clearly unauthorised;

“83. There are no accounts of Mouza Mulapoor during the piesent Government
forthcoming, asthe village itself has been held as inam or in farm; but, with this ex-
ception, the whole matter recorded from the 3rd to the 5th paragraph of Memorandum
I. fon Claim A of No. 1] is equally applicable to the claim under consideration.

213 The Inam Commissioner is therefore of opinion, that Konher Row’s elaim to succeed his
father in this alleged inam should be rejected.”

“ Memoranpum XIIL
“ On Claim 4 in No. 8, to four Anas of a Chigur of Land in Mouza Goryunﬁall

“1, The claimant produces, as his title deed to this alleged inam, one document,
purporting to be a sunnud issued by Shideshwur Muheeputrow, on the 10th of Baban,
in Soorsun Esune Meiatain and Alif [4. p. 1801-02], granting to Nurso Anajee Desh-
pandey the following lands of Mouza Goojunhall, as inam ie perpetuity, viz :~— :
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“ A quarter of a chigur then held as gootga inam, at a quit-rent of Rs. 10, now made

sury inam.

“ A quarter of a chigur, rental Rs. 23, now granted as gootga inam, at a quit-rent of 214

Rs. 10, L ' ‘

“ Ialf a chigur of land as surv inam, adjoining another half chigur, which had been

granted as inam by a separate sungud,

“ In all three-quarters of a chigur of land as survinam, and one-quarter of a chigur

as gootga ipam.

2, At the date of this sunnud Shideshwur Muheeputrow was Comavisdar of Pur-
gunna Padshapoor, acting directly under the Paishwa, but he had no authority from him
to alienate Government revénue in perpetuity.

“3. The claimaut asserts that this land A was acquired as gootga inam previous to
the establishmeut of the Paishwa’s authority ; but there are numerous accounts of Pur-
gunna Padshapoor daring the greater part of the Paishwa’s occupation of it from a. p. 215
1758-59 till 1815-16, containing lists of the inams held and authorised, none of which
make any allowance on account of the alleged inam A, either as gootga inam, in which
condition it is said to have existed till A. . 1801-02, or as surv inam, which the claim-
ant asserts it has since then continued. On the contrary, the Paishwa's accounts show,
that up to the close of his-Government [at any rate as late as 4. p. 1815-16] the lands in
Purgunna Padshapoor, for the revenues of which the manager of the mahal was held
answerable, included as khalsat the alleged inam A under consideration.

*“4, There are no records forthcoming relating to Goojunhall during the present
Government, in consequence of an abuse, by which the whole village has been improper- 216
ly Leld as inam, and no accounts furnished. '

“5. Itis clear, however, from what has been stated, that Anajee Nursew had no
right to the quarter of a chigur of land A, either as gootga or as surv inam, and there-
fore the claim of his son to inherit it must be rejected.”

“ MeEmoranpum XIV.

“On Claim B of No. 8, to four Anas of a Chigur of Land as Gootga Inam, in
Mouza Goojunhall.

“1. The claimant puts forward, as his title deed for this alleged inam, the document
described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Memorandum XII1.

“2. Asin the case of the other alleged inams, the result of the investigation of
whose history has been above recorded, the accounts of the Puona Houzoor prove that 217
the lands in Purgumia Padshapoor, for the revenues of which the Paishwa held the
managers of thiat mahal answerable, included as khalsat the whole of the alleged inam
under consideration, even as late as A, p, 1815-16.

“3. As Anajee Nursew, therefore, could have had no right to this land, his son’s
claim to inherit it must be rejected.”

- “ MemoranpuM XV,

“ On Claim C of No. 8, to half a Chigur of Land in Mouza Goojunkall,

“ 1. The claimant puts forward, as his title deed for this alleged inam, the docu-
ment described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Memorandum XIIL

“ 2. The purport of the evidence afforded by the Puishwa’s records regarding this 218
alleged inam is exactly the same as what is mentioned in paragraph 2 of Memorandum
XIV. regarding the holding B in Goojunhall.

“3. As Anajee Nursew, therefore, could have had no right to this land, his son’s
claim to inherit it must be rejected.”
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“Mesoranpum XVIL

On Claim D of No. 8, to half a Chigur of Land in Mouza Gogjunhall.

“1. The claimant does not produce any title deed for this alleged inam, but refers

- for evidence fo the document described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Memorandum XIII,,

stating that this half chigur is the same as that which is incidentally mentioned in that
sunnud.

219 «2, The purport of the evidence afforded by the Paishwa’s records regarding this
alleged inam is exactly the same as what is mentioned in paragraph 2 of Memorandum
XI1V. regarding the holding B in Goojunhall.

“3. As Anajee Nursew, therefore, could have had no right to this land, his son’s
claim to inherit it must be rejected.”

“ Memoranoun XVII,

“ On Claim A of No. 9, o four Anas of a Chigur of Land in Mouza Boodeekall.

“1. The claimant puts forward, as his title deed for this alleged inam, the document
described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Memorandum II.

220 «2. The Dufturdar reports that he is unable t6 find any accounts of the present
Government relating to Mouza Boodeehall; but, with this exception, the whole of the
matter recorded from paragraph 3 to paragraph 5 of Memorandum I. is applicable to
the claim under consideration.

“3. The Inam Commissioner is therefore of opinion, that Konher Row’s claim to
succeed his father in this alleged inam must be rejected.”

““ Memoranpun XVIII

* On Claim B of No. 9, to four Anas of a Chigur of Land in Mouza Boodeehall.

“1. The claimant produces, as his title deed for tliis alleged inam, one document,

purporting to be a sunnud issaed by Shideshwur Muheeputrow, on the 3rd of Rubbee-

221 ool-Awul, in Soorsun Khumus Meiatain and Alif {s. p. 1804-05], granting to Nurso
Anajee, as hereditary inam, four anas of a chigur of land in Mouza Boodeehall.

“2. The Inam Commissioner’s remarks on a similar sunnud, in paragraph 2 of
Memorandum Il., apply equally to this one.

*“3. The Dufturdar reports that he is unable to find any accounts of the present
Government relating to Mouza Boodeehall ; bot, with this exception, the whole of the
matter recorded from paragraph 3 to paragraph 5 of Memorandum 1. is applicable to
the claim under consideration.

“4, The Inam Commissioner is therefore of opinion, that Konher Row’s claim to
succeed his father in this alleged inam must be rejected.”

222 “ Memoranoum XIX.
“On Cleim Cof No. 9, to six Anas of a Chigur of Land in Mouza Boodechall.

“I1. The claimant puts forward, as his title deed for this alleged inam, the dvcument
described in paragraph 1 of Memorandum VIL

“2. All the grunts to which his sunnud relates were clearly unauthorised; and the
whole of the matter re¢orded in paragraphs 3 and 3 of Memorandum I. apply to the
alleged inam under consideration.

“3. The Inam Commissioneir is therefore of opinion, that Konher Row’s claim to
succeed his father in this alleged inam must be rejected.”
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“ Meworanoum XX.
“ On Clatm D of No. 9, to one Ana of a Chigur of Land in Mouza Boodechall. 223

*“I. The claimant has no evidence of any kind as to his title to this land.

“2. The whole of the matter recorded in paragraphs 3 and 5 of Memorandum I.
are applicable to this alleged inam.

“3. The Inam Commissioner is thérefore of opinion, that Konher Row’s claim_ to
succeed his father in this alleged inam must be rejected.”

“ GENERAL SUMMARY.

“1. From the fact that all of the above lands, regarding which there is any mention
in the accounts of the present Government, are entered in them as life-holdings of
Anajee Nursew, it is evident that it was intended that the Commissioner’s Rules of a. p.
1819 should take effect at Anajee Nursew’s death, and this they would have done with- 224
out question, had it not been for the doubt which arose as to whether it bad not been
decided by competent authority that Anajee Nursew’s alleged inams, however invalid,
were to be continued.

“2. This question is disposed of by the Inam Commissioner in his Report of the
3rd February 1847, which he has adopted for his Decree No. 6 of 1847 [Belgaum List),
in the case of Konher Row Anajee’s claim to succeed his father iu the three villages
Kublapoor, Woteemuroo, and Kenchunhuttee ; and having been set forth more at large.
in the Inam Commissioner’s letter to Goverament No. 251, dated 18th June 1846, the
Honorable the Governor in Council has declared, in the Chief Secretary’s letter 225
No. 3446, dated 26th September 1846, that up to the last no recognition of the claims
of Anajee Nursew, &c. &ec. to their newly acquired inams was intended.

* 3. This being the case, it is certain, that whether Mr. Elphinstone’s Inam Rules
of A. b, 1819, or the Government Rules of 1842, are followed, the whole of the holdings
enumerated in the annexed tabular statement of Konher Row Anajee’s claims ought to
have been resumed at the death of Anajee Nursew; and as Konher Row can have no
just title to succeed to them, his claim to do so is rejected, and the Inam Commissjoner
decides that the lands in question shall henceforward be treated as khalsat.

(Sigued) * W. Harr,
. “ Inam Commissioner.
“ Belgaum, 10th November 1847.”

20. The Mahratta decision passed with reference to the above Report was to the 226
following effect :—

“ Translation of the Decree of the Inam Commission, §c., No. 8 of 1847, in the
Belgaum Collectorate.

“ Innine villages of the Padshapoor Talooka, in the Belgaum Collectorate, Anajee
Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Anukle, held lands as persenal inam, i. e. inams exclusive
of his wuttun. Anajee Nursew having died, his son Konher Row oorf Bappoo Saheb bin
Anajee Punt Deshpandey now claims the landsin question, as belonging to him by
right of inheritance. The lands thus claimed are detailed below :—

“1. In Cusba Ankulgee, Mahal Ankuigee, 4 anas of a chigur of land as eksalee
inam, of which 3 anas are khooshkee [dry erop], and one ana bagaeet [garden] 227
land.

“7 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop] land as eksalee inam; 3 anas of a
chigur of bagaeet [garden] land as gootga inam ; 3 anas of a chigur of
khooshkee [dry erop] land as eksalee inam ;—in all one chigur and one ana
of a chigur.

14*
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«“ 9. TIn Mouza Aktungeerhall, Mahal Ankulgee, 4 anas of a chigur of khooshkee
‘{dry crop] land as eksalee inam; 4 anas of a chigur of khooshkee {dry crop]
laud as eksalee inam; 8 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop) land as
eksalee inam ;—in all one chigur of land.

* 3. In Mouza Sooludhall, Mahal Ankulgee, fourteen anas of a chigur of khooshkee
[dry crop] land as gootga eksalee inam.
“4. InMouza Mudwall, Mahal Ankulgee, half a chigur of khooshkee {dry crop] land
~ as gootga inam.
“5. In Mouza Arbhavee oorf Dawulhuttee, Mahal Ankulgee, half a chigur of
khooshkee [dry crop] land as eksalee inam.

“6. In Monza Kunburgee, Summut Dhamnee, turree [irrigated] land, valued at
forty-eight hoons, as surv inam, the value of each hoon in Company’s currency
being Rs. 1-12-0.

“7. In Mouza Mulhapoor, Mahal Ankulgee, ten anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry
crop] land as eksalee inam,

“8. In Mouza Goojunhall, Mahal Ankulgee, 4 anas of a chigur of old gootga inam,
now held as surv inam, of which two anas are khooshkee [dry crop] land, and
- two anas bagaeet [garden] land; 4 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop]
land as gootga inam; 8 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry drop] land
as eksalee inam ; 8 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop] land as eksalee

inam ;—in all one and a half chigur of land."

“9. In Mouza Boodeehall, Talooka Gud, Illaka Koorundwur, 4 anas of a chigur
of khooshkee [dry crop] land as eksalee inam; 4 anas of a chigur of khooshkee
[dry crop] land as eksalee inam ; 6 anas of a chigur of land as eksalee inam,
of which three anas are khooshkee [dry crop] land, and three anas bagaeet
[garden] land ; 1 ana of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop] land as eksalee
inam ;—in all fifteen anas of a chigur of land.

“In all twenty pieces of land, in nine villages, the inheritance of which as inam is
claimed.

“ Regarding the above mentioned lands, Konlier Row Anajee gave to the Inam Com-
mission a kyfeeut or statement, marked x, and a tabular statement, marked w, which
will be found recorded in the duftur, also, in support of the assertions therein made,
twelve documents, copies of which are recorded along with the kyfeeut or statement.

“ Besides the above twelve documents, which were given in, as stated in the latter
part of the thirteenth clause [answer] of the kyfeeut referred to in the last paragraph,
15 other documents were given on a former occasion, and to seven of them Konher Row
Anajee now appeals as proof to strengthen his title. Copies of these 15 documents are
recorded, with the kyfeeut or statement which was written by Konher Row’s father Ana-
jee Punt, regarding the three villages Monza Kublapoor, Mouza Woteemuroo, and
Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, and, as thelr purport is recorded in the Inam Commissioner’s
report on those villages, it is not considered necessary to record them afresh in this case.

“ After an examination of the district and other accounts of the Paishwa's Government,
and those of the present Government, and afier a full consideration of the assertions
made, and documentary evidence produced, by Konher Row Anajee, as well -as
the evidence formerly adduced by Anajee Punt ; bearing in mind also the facts set forth

232 in the Inam Commissioner’s letter to Government No. 251, dated 18th June 1846, and

the sentiments of Government, declared in its letter in reply, No. 3446, dated. 26th
September 1846, the Inam Commissioner places on record separate English memoranda
of this day’s date, regarding the alleged inaws enumerated above, and records the
following decision :—
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“In the nine villages above mentioned, twenty pieces of land were enJoyed by Anajee
Nursew, who is now dead. His heir gave in a kyfeeut, and adduced in - proof certain
documents, which, however, do not afford any just grounds for the continuance of the
gaid Jands as inam. Moreover, it appears to thé Inam Commissioner, from an examina-
tion of the Government accounts, and other papers in the daftur, that the said lands 233
should Le khalsat. And it is accordingly hereby decreed, that all the holdings in the
nine villages as enumerated above shill be resumed, and henceforward treated as
Government khalsat.

(Signed) “W. Harn,
“ Commissioner.”

21. In order to give effect to the decisions described above in paragraphs 17 and 20,
the following two letters were written by the Inam Commissioner to the Acting Collector
of Belgaum —

1st.— Letter No. 434, dqted 3rd November 1847.

“ Sin,—1 have the honour to inform you, that under authority of the general directions
contained in the Government letter No. 1900, dated 26th May 1847, I have decided that
the three villages Mouza Kublapoor, Mouza Woteemurco, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, 234
in the Padshapoor Talocka, held as jooree inam by the late Anajee Nursew Deshpandey,
are to be taken possession of on the part of Government as khalsat,
“] have, &e.
(Signed) *“W. Harr,

* Inam Commissioner.”

2nd.—ZLetter No. 437, dated 11th November 1847.

“ S1r,—I have the honour to forward a list {in Mahratta] of certain lands claimed as
Cusba Ankulgee. inam in nine villages of Talooka Padshapoor, by the heir of

Mouza Aktungeerhall, the late Anajee Punt, Deshpandey of Ankulgee, whose claim
:: g;::}i‘fi‘u‘f“‘ ' I have considered it necessary to reject; and to inform you,
»  Arblavee, that under the general instructions contained in the Govern-
” ﬁ:ﬁ?;;:::: ment letter No, 1900, dated 26th May 1847, I have decided 235
»  Goojunhail. that the whole of the lands in question shall be taken pos-
»  Boodechall. session of on the part of Government.

“] have, &ec.
(Signed) *“ W. Harr,

“ Inam Commissionrr.”

22. The Acting Collector took possession of the villages and inams to-which these
letters related, and they have since been managed by the Honorable Company’s officers.

23. On the 20th November 1847, the Secretary to Government addressed the
following letter, No. 4835, to the Inam Commissioner, with reference to the Chief
Secretary’s letter described above in paragraphs 10 and 11 :—

“ Sir,—With reference to Mr. Chief Secretary Pringle’s letter to your address, 236
No. 1900, dated the 26th May last, communicating instructions for your guidance in the
disposal of inam claims, 1 am directed to inform you, that as it has been ruled that the
Government alone can legally resume or confirm rent-free tenures, or declare on what
terms they are to be continued to the claimants, the Honorable the Governor in Council
is pleased to modify the instructions conveyed in the 3rd paragraph of that letter, in so
far as to direct that all cases of inam claims coming before you for adjudication must in
future be submitted to Government, with your opinion and report thereon, through the
Revenue Commissioner Southern Division, when a distinet order will be passed on each,
and commuanicated to the Collector of the district to which the claim may belong. 237
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«2. I am accordingly desired to request that you wiil have the goodness to forward,
through the above channet, all cases of this nature that you may have intermediately
disposed of in conformity with the orders of the 26th May last.

“ I have, &e.”

24. With a letter, No. 450, dated 9th December 1847, the Inam Commissioner,
under the above instructions, submitted to the Revenue Commissioner, for the final
orders of Government, several reports, including those from which the above described
decisions, Nos. 6 and 8, were framed. These reports were, it will be recullected, dated
respectively 3rd February and 10th November 1847.

238 25. The former of these was forwarded to Government for approval, with a memo-
randum from the Revenue Commissioner Southern Division, No. 424, dated 3rd
February. 1848,

26. Some doubts having occurred to the Reverue Commissioner respecting one of
the cases involved in the 8th decision, passed on the 10th November 1847, and afterwards |
reported for the orders of Government, as stated above in paragraph 24, he reterned it

for the explanation of the Inam Commissioner, with the following endorsement, No. 524,
dated 10th February 1848 :—

“The Inam Commissioner is requested, with reference to paragraph 2 of the within
Memorandum XI1., to state under what circumstances or conditions the village Kunbur-
gee was resumed in a. p. 1820-21, as therein mentioned.”

27. The Inam Commissioner, having made some requisite inquiries, returned the
239 following reply, No. 487, dated 25th February 1848 :—

“ The Inam Commissioner has the honour to annex, for the information of the Revenue’
Commissioner, copies of the following four letters :—

“1st.—No. 480, dated 16th February 1848, from the Inam Commissioner to the
Acting Political Agent Southern Mahratta Country.

« 9nd.—No. 63 of 1848, dated 21st idem, from the Acting Political Agent, in reply
to the above.

“3rd.—No. 72, dated 30th November 1844, from the Inam Commissioner to the
Secretary to Government, requesting instructions on three questions as to inams
held out of Chintamun Row’s former surinjam [of which Kunburgee was a part),
the first of which comprehends that now at issue.

240 ¢ 4th.—No. 21, dated 2nd January 1845, from the Secretary to Government, in reply
to the last.”

28. The following are copies of the four accom paniments of the last described Memo-
randum No. 487, numbered to correspond with it:—

(No. 1.) - “ LerTer No. 480.
“ From W. Harr, Esq.,

Inam Commissioner,
*“To J. D. Invenanrry, Esq.,
Acting Political Agent, S. M. C.
*Smr,—1I have the honour to request, that in order to enable me to answer a reference
from the Revenue Commissioner, you will be so good as to inform me ‘under what

241 circumstances or conditions’ the village Kunburgee, in the Padshapoor Talooka, was
resumed from Chintamun Row Pandoorung Putwurdhun, in a. p. 1820-21.

“1 have, &e.”
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(No. 2.). “ No. 63 or 1848,

“From J. D. Inverammy, 'Es'q “
Acting Political Agent, Southern Mahratta Country,
“To W. Haxr, Esq.,

Inam Commissioner.
“ Dated 21st February 1848.
“ PoLiticAL DEepARTMENT.

“8ir,—I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter No. 480, dated the
16th instant, in which you request information in regard to the circumstances or con-
ditions under which the village of Kunburgee, in the Padshapoor Talooka, was resumed 242
from Chintamun Rao Pandoorung Putwurdhun, in a. ». 1820-21.

“2. Inreply, I beg to state that the village in question formed part of the territory
ceded by the Sanglee Chief, in lieu of the services of his quota of horse, and was, with
vther v:llages and districts, resumed to make good the sum of Rs. 1,35,000, wluch was
the equivalens for the Chief’s contingent of 450 horse.

. “I have, &e.”
(No. 3.)
' “ Commrrree No. 72.
“To E, H. Townsenn, Esq.,

Secretary to Government, Bombay.

¢ Str,~=] have the honour to solicit the instructions of Government upon the following 243
points connected with the investigation now proceeding into claims to inams in the ‘
Seuthern Mahratta Country,

“2, In the year a. p. 1756, certain districts, which belonged to the ancient territories
of the Nawaub of Savanoor, were ceded by that Chieftain to the Paishwa, and, having
been held as khalsat mahals of the Poona Government for several years, were in A, D.
1764 assigned in {ouj surinjum to Govind Hurree Putwurdhun. From that time until
Hyder Allee’s invasion they were continued on the same tenure to several members of the
same powerful family, and though, of course,not actually held during Hyder and Tippoo’s
accupation of the country, were nevertheless entered in the accounts of the Puona Go- 244
vernment as properly belonging to the Putwurdhun’s sutinjam, being merely deducted
from its value on account of their non-enjoyment. In a. p. 1790 these districts were
recovered from Tippoo, and held as khalsat under the Poona (Government, uuntil 1793,
when they were again given back as surinjam to Chintamunrow Pandoorung Putwur-
dhun, the grandson of Govind Hurree, above mentioned, and continued mth him unti}
two years after the East India Company obtained this country from the PdlSth, when,
in a. p, 1819, several of the mahals in question were resumed by Government in con~
sideration of the Surinjamdar being excused from keepmo' up certain troops he had 245
been bound to furnish for his surinjam,

*“3. The surinjam held by Govind Hurree and his family was granted by the
Paishwa at a certain assessment or gross valuation, from which deductious were made
ou account of the expenses of managing the districts, of inams and money allowances
for the support of Dewusthans, Mutts, and individuals, and of other charges which
the Pooua Govemmeut authorised to be paid by the Surinjamdar; the remainder, after
these deductions were made, being set down as the gett value of the surinjam.

4. The alienations autborised and specified in the Paishwa’s accounts are not enly
those of whole villages and large sums of money, but cumprise. many inams of only a 246
few beegas of land, and wurshasuyos of only two or three rupees.
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“Of the accounts or jabitas in which these authorised alienations are specified by the
Paishwa’s Government, there are a good many forthcoming of various years during the
administration of each of the members of the Putwurdhun family who have held the
surinjam, besides separate lists of the alienations, apparently submitted by the Surin-.
jamdars to be authorised by the Sirkar, and deducted in its valuation of the surinjam.
But, in addition to the inams entered in any of the above records, a great many others
{not so included] are now held and claimed in those mahals of the surinjam which have
been resumed by Government, and the investigation of them will be greatly facili-
tated if Government will decide several general questions which have arisen in examin-
ing claims made to inams in the districts to which allusion is made.

“6. The questions which have hitherto presented themselves are the following :-—

“ First.—In cases where the Surinjamdar has alienated land in inam, and the aliena-
tion may not have been recognised in any way by the Sirkar, is the grant to
be considered as expiring with the resumption of the surinjam, or as binding on
Government thereafter ?

# Second.—In case an inam is claimed on the title of a grant made by the Savanoor
Nuwaub, or other sovereign authority, previous to the district having been
assigned in fouj surinjam, and the claimant asserts that his family was permitted
to continue holding it under the Surinjamdar; and supposing such asseriion to
be proved true; while it appears at the same time that the Sirkar never recog-
nised the inam by admitting it into the tynat jabitas [or lists of the income and
authorised alienations of revenue] of the surinjam, should the actual restoration
and continuance of such inam by the Surinjamdar, without the sanction or
recognition of the Sirkar, be looked on as restoring the whole force of the
original grant, or should the Sirkar’s non-recognition of it at the time of grant-
ing the surinjam or afterwards be regarded as a resumption, and any subsequent
restoration and continvance by the Surinjamdar cousidered to be only of the
force of a new grant made by the latter of his own auathority ?

¢ Third.—In cases where it is seen that an inam was never recognised in the tynat
jabitas of the surinjam, while the claimant asserts it to have been granted or
continued by the Surinjamdar, that is where actual possession, obtained by the
act or connivance of the inferior authority, is asserted, in order to combat the
proof afforded by the records of the non-recognition by the superior autherity,
is this non-recognition to be regarded as sufficiently strong primd facie evidence
against the fact of the.asserted actual enjoyment to render it necessary that such
asserted enjoyment must be distinctly proved, or is it still necessary that the
investigating officer must believe the claimant’s assertion true, because he may
have no means of specifically proving it to be false ?

“7. There is nothing to be found in the records which would show that the first of
the above three questions would have been decided, as a watter of right, in favour of
the claimants to inams granted by the Surinjumdars: had the resumption of the surin-
jam taken place during the late Government, some of them would probably have been
continued, for there are among the records lists of inams granted by Surinjamdars, and
other inferior authorities, which have been subsequently confirmed by sunnuds of the
Sirkar; still the very fact of such confirmation being considered necessary militates
against the belief that the Surinjamdars’ grant could create a good title, to do which the
act of the Sirkar or its authorised officers seems to have been always necessary.

“8. Asto the second question, there is some doubt connected with it. It is possible,
that in valuing each purgunna of the surinjam at the time of its assignment, the valua-
tion may have been made after deducting some inams then existing, which would for
this reason not appear in the tynat jabitas, though actually permitted. There is nothing
to be found on record to show that this was the case, or, if sv, what inams were so



deducted ; but it is probable, that if any were, the ¢ Gaom Nisbut’ inams, or those held as
provision for the village servants, and religious establishments, would have been the only 252
ones thus treated. The presumption that they may have been so should, perhaps, be
allowed to tell in favour of claimants to such inams, so far as to enable the investigating
officer to dispense with the whole amount of ploof that might be considered necessary
in other cases; but the asserted enJoyment of any inams not entered in the jabitas, which
may be claimed by individuals foreign'td the village establishments, should only be cre-
dited on positive evidence.

“9. The last question should, I conceive, be decided so 23 to throw the burthen of
removing the presumption to be formed, from the absence of all mention of an inam in
the Hoozoor accounts or jabitas, on the claimant; of course, however, with the under- 253
standing that every aid is to be afforded to him, and every effort made in searching for
district and other accounts which may afford the proof required. Should, however, the
claimant fail in pomtmg out, and the investigating officer be unable to find, any proof
of the actual possession asserted by the former, the non-recognition of the inam in the
jabitas will be very strong evidence of its actual non-existence at the time for which
they were drawn up. :

“10. I take the liberty of begging that you will be so kind as to obtain the decision
of Government on the above three points as soon as may be convenient, as the reports
now under preparation on the inams of new Hooblee cannot be got ready for reference 254
to Government before this is done.

¢ I have, &e.
(Signed) “W. Harn,

“ Member of Commission for investigating Claims to Inams, &e.

for the Commission.
* Dharwar, 30th November 1844.”

(No. 4.) “ No. 21 or 1845.

“ TerriToriaL DEPARTMENT,

REVENUE.
“To W. Harr, Esq.,

# Member of the Commission for investigating Claims to Inams, &e.
in.the Southern Mahratta Country.

“Sir,—I am directed by the, Honorable the Governor in Council to acknowledge the
receipt of your letter No. 72, dated the 30th November last, submitting, for the decision
of Government, three questions connected with the investigation now being carried on
by your Commission. 255
~ « 2, In reply, the Governor in Council ‘desires me to inform you, that you have in
your 7th, 8th, and 9th paragraphs, taken the proper view of the mode in which these
questions should be disposed of, and directs me to authorise you to act on them accord-
ingly. Still the Commission should not, I am desired to inform you, fail to show, in
each case, every consideration to the claim which the Rules of 1842 may entitle it to,
and at the same time to extend all liberality where fraud or concealment may not be

apparent. _
PP “ [ have, &ec.

(Signed) “ E. H. Towwnsewnb,

. “ Secretary to Government.
“ Bombay Castle, 2nd January 1845.”

29, The Revenue Commissioner submitted the Inam Commissioner's Report of the
10th November 1847, and subsequent correspondence regarding it, described above in 256
paragraphs 26 to 28, for the approval of Goverunient, but there is no record in this
office to show on what date this was done.
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30. With respect to the report submitied with the Revenue Commissioner’s Memo.
randure No. 424, of the 3rd February 1848, as stated above in paragraph 25, the
following letter, No. 1624, dated 21st March 1848, was addressed to the Revenue
Cotimissioner, by the Secretary to Government :—

“Srr,~—I have been directed to acknowledge the receipt of your Memorandum No.

424, dated the 3rd ultimo, forwarding a report by the Inam Commissivner on the

claim of Konher Row bin Aunajee bin Nursew to succeed his father in the possessivn us

257 jooree inam of Mouza Kublapoor, Mvuza Woteemuroo, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee,
villages of the Padshapoor Talooka, of the Belgaum Collectorate.

“2, In reply, I have Leen desired to state that itis fully evidenced by the facts
adduced by the Inam Commissioner, that these villages are properly ¢ khalsat’; but as
Anajee Nursew has died since giving in his statement and proofs, and the villages are
now held by the deceased’s son, Konher Row, the Honorable the Governor in Council is
of opinion, that before disposing of the case, Mr. Hart should request the present occu-
pant to state whether he has anything to urge in support of his claim, in addition to
what was advanced by his late father, and that he should also be requested by Mr. Hart

258 to explain how he meets the objections set forth in the foregoing report against his claim.

“3. Copy of this letter will be sent direct to Mr. Hart, for his information and
guidance. ) '

“1 have, &e.”

31. A copy of this letter was forwarded * for information and gunidance” to the
Inam Commissioner, with the Government Secretary’s Endorsement No. 1625, of the
same date, 2]1st March 1848.

32. On the 7ith April 1848, in obedience to the ahove instructions, the Inoam Com-
missioner addressed to Konher Row Anajee a letter, requesting him to enuble the
Inam Commissioner to fulfil the instructions of Government, which letter will be found
more fully described below in paragraph 42,

259 33. This letter was forwarded along with another of the same date, regarding some
exchanged villages to which this Recapitulation does not relate, but no reply was for
some time received to either. On the 23rd April 1847, the Inam Commissioner
received from Konher Row a letter, which contained no acknowledgment of the receipt
of the two of the 7th idem, above mentioned, but enclosed three letters addressed to the
Honorable the Governor in. Council. On receipt of this communication, the Inam
Commissioner addressed to Government a letter, No, 549, dated 29th April 1848, from
which the following are extracts of the matter in it which related to the subject of this
Recapitulation : —

PR On the same day [7th April 1848] [ communicated to him [Konher Row

260 Anajee] in another letter, the purport of the instructions contained in the Government
letter No. 1624 of 1848, a copy of which was sent me with Mr. Goldsmid's Endorse-
ment No. 1625, dated 21st March 1848.

*“5. DBoth of my letters of the 7th April were forwarded through the Acting Politi-
cal Agent Southern Mahratta Country to Konher Row, at Sunglee, and ou the 23rd of
this month I received a letter from him, not acknowledging the receipt of either of them,
nor in any way alluding to their purport, but enclosing to me three papers, witha
simple request that I would forward them to Government. This letter from Konher
Row to me is dated '16th, but bears the Belgaum post-mark of the 22nd instant.

261 «6. The unusual course thus pursued of making me the medium of his commu-
nications with (iovernment, and the discrepaucy of dates, &c. noticed above, make me
‘snspect that Konher Row may be intrigueing in some manuer to embarrass me-in ful-
filling the orders of Government.with respect to his appeals against my decisions in bis
case; and I have therefure come to the conclusion, thatthe most straightforward and.
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safest course for me to pursue is to transmit the papers sent to me by him to you, and
to refrain from offering any remarks upon them, unless I may be directed to do so.

«“7. 1have this day again written to Konher Row, informing him of the course I
have pursued, and requesting him to lose no more time in bringing forward the evidence
&c. which Government has permitied him to offer, and I now request the instructions 262
of Government as to what course I am-to follow if he still neglects to do so.

“8. Ia relation to the subject of Konher Row’s claims, I beg to call your attention
to the fact, that though the Honorable the Governor in Council has assumed [in para-
graph 2 of Mr. Goldsmid’s letter No. 1624 of 1848] that the villages of Kublapoor,
Woteemuroo, and Kenchunhuttee, are now ¢ held by Anajeee Nursew’s son Konher
Row,’ they were not made over to him as inam, but merely in deposit, and with a clear
understanding that this was only a temporary arrangement, uwntil his right to them
should be determined by Government, after a consideration of his father’s statement. 263
The Inam Commissioner’s suggestion to this effect is noticed in paragraph 4 of his
Report of the 3rd February 1847, and that this suggestion was acted upon by the Col-
lector, appears from that officer’s yad to the Inam Commissioner, No. 16, dated 10th
September following. '

84. The three letters from Konher Row to the Governor in Council which accom-
panied the above letter were dated -16th April 1848, One of them was a general
Temonstrance against the [alleged] illegality of sammary proceedings on the part of
Government, and the constitution of the Inam Commission, and proposing to settle the
question of his title to the several lands aud villages attached by an amicable suit in the
Adawlut. This letter applied also more particularly to three villages not affected by 264
the proceedings which form the subject of the present Recapitulation. The second of
Konher Row’s letters forwarded as above referred especially to the villages of Kubla-
poor, Woteemuroo, and Kenchunhuttee. The purport of this will be found recorded
below in paragraph 43. The third of Konher Row’s appeals to Government related
especially to the separate minor holdings in nine villages, and its purport will be found
recorded below in paragraph 45.

35. In submitting these documents, the Inam Commissioner did so for the reasons
explained in his letter No. 549, without remark upon the nature of the arguments con-
tained in them.

36. On the 6th June 1848, a letter, No. 3267, was addressed by the Secretary to
Government to the Acting Political Agent and Collector of Belgaum, relating to Konher
Row’s claim to the villages and lands which form the subject of this Recapitulation, and 265
also to some others not referred to by it. The following are extracts of so much of this
letter as refers to the villages and lands under consideration :—

“I have been directed by the Right Honorable the Governor in Council to transmit

. for your information copies of the documents noted in the

From Konher Row Anajee, . - . .
dated 4th December 1847,  Wargin, and to request you will have the goodness to inform

From ditto, dated 16th Konher Row Anajee that a decision relative to the six [6]
AEF: ’ﬁ,ts'ne,me Commis. °chigurs’ of ¢ inam’ land referred to in one of Lis letters, bear-
siover 8. D., No. 1624, dated jng date 16th April last, will be passed, after a careful consi-
21;,3,‘?&: r:gelsflns;m Commis. deration of the evidence which he may have adduced in sup-
sioner, No. 549, dated 29th port of his claim before the Inam Commissioner, and that 266
April 1848. obtainable from other sources.

“4. As regards the villages of Kublapoor aud Woteemuroo, and Muzzra of Ken-
chunhuttee, you are requested to refer the claimant to the instructions conveved in the
Government letter of 21st March last, No. 1624, comnmunicated to him by the Inam
Commissioner on the 7th April following, and inform him, that unless he thioks fit to.
avail himself of the opportunity afforded him by these instructions, within cue month
of the receipt of this letter at Belgaum, Government will act on the ample evidence

16
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already placed before them, and direct that these two villages and muzzra be also
entered in the accounts and treated as khalsat.”

267 37. A copy of the foregoing letter was forwarded to the Inam Commissioner, for
information and guidance, with reference to his letter No. 549, dated 29th April 1848, by
Government Memorandum No. 3268, dated the same day, 6th June 1848.

38. Pending the consideration by Government of the elaim to the minor holdings in
nine villages, the Secretary to Government addressed to the Inam Commissioaer a letter,
No. 3325, dated 7th June 1848, its accompaniment being a copy of the third of Konher
Row’s appeals, alluded to above in paragraph 34, and [as stated in paragraph 35] sub-
mitted without discussion with the Inam Commissioner’s letter No. 549.

39. The following is a copy of the Government letter No. 3325, mentioned in
paragraph 38 :—

268 “ Sir,—With reference to the 1st paragraph of my letter to the Acting Political Agent
in the Southern Mahratta Country, No. 3267, of the 6th instant, a copy of which was
forwarded to you by endorsement on the same date, and to your report of the™10th
November last [submitted through the Revenue Commissioner], on the claim of Konher
Row Anajee to some inam lands, amounting to about six chigurs, I have been directed
to transmit to you the annexed copies of a petition from the claimant, dated the 16th
April last, and of its accompaniments [the originals of which accompamed your com-
mumcatwn No. 549, of the 29th April], and to state that His Lordship in Council,
before proceeding to consider the claim, requests to be favoured with -your opinion on

269 any evidence or arguments that may be adduced in these papers, independently of what
has been furnished in your report of the 10th November.

I have, &e.”

40. The accompaniment of this letter will be found fully described below [in para-
graph 45}, where mention is made of its return to Government with the Inam Com-
missioner’s observations on it.

41. The proceedings of the Inam Commissioner, which took place after his receipt
of the Government orders of the 21st March 1848, described above in paragraphs
30 and 31, are recorded in paragraphs 32 to 35. The following Report, No. 589,
regarding those and subsequent proceedings, was submitted by the Inam-Commissioner
to Government on the 23rd June 1848 :—

270  “Sm,—On the 2Ist March last Mr., Secretary Goldsmid did me the honour of for-
warding for my instruction, with an endorsement, No. 1625 of 1848, a copy of his letter
to the Revenue Commissioner of the same date, No. 1624, and I now beg to report for
the consideration of Government the result of the proceedings adopted by me in
consequence :—

“2. The instructions of Goverrment were—

“ First, that I should request the present occupant to state whether he has anythiog
to urge in support of his claim [to the villages Kublapoor, Woteemuroo, and
Kenchunhuttee,] in addition to what was advanced by his late father.

“ Second, that he should also be requested to explain how he meets the objections
271 set forth against his claim in the Inam Commissioner’s report of the 3rd Febru-
ary 1847,

“3. With regard to the first of these points, I have already, in paragraph 8 of my
letter No. 549, dated 29th April 1848, solicited your attention to the fact that Konher
Row Anajee is not, properly spesking, the ‘occupant’ of the villages in question,—that
is, they have not been made over to him as inam; but he has been allowed, since his fa-
ther’s death, to hold them merely in deposit, pending the decision of Government on his
father’s title. This consideration, however, has not influenced my proceedings in
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folfilling the instructions of Government, which have been carried into effect as they
would have been if Konher Row had been installed in possession of the villages as 272
Inamdar.

%4, It was my intention to ha\e required Konher Row’s rephes in person, but at his
request, I have, to avoid delay, agreed to receive them by letter, and translations of the
correspondence which has taken place bgtween us respecting them are herewith submitted.

“5. In fulfilment of the first of the instructions recited in paragraph 2, I have sent
to Konher Row a copy of all the statements made by his father, and invited him to add
to them anything he might deem necessary; but he has declined making any addmon,
and assents to all that hls father stated.

“ 6. In fulfilment of the second of the instructions, I have forwarded to Konher Row 273
two questions, which completely, though briefly, comprehend the objections put forward
in my original report against his father’s title; and in forwarding for the consideration
of Government his replies, I have added such observations [in the shape of notes] as
seemed necessary. It will be seen that Konher Row has not produced any fresh evidence,
and that he has not put forward any argument which has not been met by the facts
already in possession of Government.

“7. Ihave also the honour to forward a copy of Konher Row’s letter to Govetnment
of the 3rd February and 16th April 1848, cited by bim in paragraph [6] of his letter to
me, dated 15th Jummad-ool-Akhir, which is No. 2 of the documents now submitted ; and
this I have foterlined with notes, pointing out some misstatements, and affording such 274
explanations as I have thought may be useful. The original of this copy was one of
those forwarded to you with my letter No. 549, dated 29th April 1848.

«] have, &c.”

42. The first of the two accompaniments of the last described letter consisted of
travslations of four letis which had passed between the Inam Commissioner and
Kouher Row, between the 7th April and 4th June 1848, viz :—

Ist.—~The Inam Commissioner’s letter of 7th April.

2nd.—Konher Row’s reply, dated 19th May, with Inam Commissioner’s notes.
3rd.—The Inam Commissioner’s letter dated 24th May.

4th.—Konher Row’s reply, dated 4th June.

- These are here transcribed at length :— 275

“No. 1.

¢ Substance of a Letter from the Inam Commissioner to Konher Row Anajee,
dated 7th April 1848.

“ After compliments, On the 3rd November 1843 your father, the Iate Anajee Punt,
wrote a statement ® of his title to the three villages Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmun- -
huttee, Mouza Woteemuroo oorf Kumulapoor, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, and as, after
a consideration of this statement, and the Government accounts, it appeared necessary to
resume the villages, I came to the decision of doing so, and reported it to Government.
But Government, without confirming my decision, has endorsed an order to me,f
desiring me to receive your reply about your claim. Wherefore, I shall require you to 276
answer before me the following questions; and, at the same time, should any doubts
arise from the answers you may give, I shall require any necessary explanations of them.
The questions are now sent, in order that you may have leisure to prepare replies to
them ; but of course your answer to the first cannot be furnished until you are present :
still it is now included, that you may know what it will be; and there is no reason why
you should not prepare your answers to the remaining two questions.

* ¢ Recorded in the Inam Commissioner’s Report dated 3rd February 1847, paragraph 6.”
+ “Eodorsement No. 1625, dated 21st March 1848, forwarding copy of a letter to the Revenue
Commissioner.”
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¢ QUESTIONS.

“ 1st.—The kyfeeut made by your father being shown'to you, you are requested to -
state if you have any additional matter to represent, and if so, to state what it is.

277  *2nd.—The persons who granted the three villages in inam had no authority to do so;
‘—the Paishwa’s Sirkar never recognised their grant, and they were never entered
as inam in the Hoozoor accounts : how then can you found any title on the fact
that the persons referred to granted the villages ?

“ 3rd.—No competent authority under the present Government has recognised the
graot in such a manner that your title ean be founded on his recognition: what
is your answer to this objection, and by what evidence can you support it?

“ The answers to these three questions will be received when you are present, and,

278 when your replies are given, should occasion for other questions arise from them, you
will be expected to answer them also at the same time. Will you, therefore, be so kind
as to make arrangements for being present, and in the meanwhile let me know at once
by letter when you can appear.”

“ No, 2.

“ Substance of a Letter Jrom Konher Row Anajee to the Inam Commissioner, dated
15tk Jummad-ool-Akhir [ 19th May 1848), and received 22nd May 1348,

“[1.] After compliments. I have received your letter of the 7tk Aﬁ}ﬂ?&ls, and
understood its contents, viz. that having made a decision in thes Inw'Commission'
regarding the three villages, Mouza Kublapoor oorf Bhurmunhuttdé, Yaza Woteemuroo:

279 oorf Kumulapoor, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, you have reported thi$ tg- Government;
but that Government, without approving of your decisioy, has sent Y9 an endorsed
order : that with respect to this you wish to take my answers (yn' three points in your
presence ; and that, should any doubts arise from my answers, yau will requirc answers
in explanation of them also : that you have now sent the questions in order that I may
prepare replies; that though my answer to the first of. them cannot be taken till [ am
present, you send it that I may know what it is; and that there is nothing to hinder
me from preparing my answers to the other two. To this I beg to reply as follows : —

280 “[2] Inthe 1st question I am asked whether or not I have any addifional matter
to represent besides what is stated in my father’s kyfeeut, which is to be shown to me.
As to this, if I am required to- appear before you to make my statement, I shall be un-
able to do so for two and a half months, as I am at present staying with Apa Saheb
[Chintamun Row Putwurdhun), in Sanglee, and this period must elapse before I can go
to where you are.. I beg, therefore, that you will. be so kind as to allow me so much
delay. If it should be your wish to receive my replies on this subject within the above
period, if you will be so kind as to send to me my father’s original kyfeeut (1.) I will

281 look at it, and represent to you any additional matter I may have to submit.

“[3.] The purport of the 2nd question is, that as the persons who granted the three
villages had no proper authority to do so, as the Paishwa’s Government never approved
of their grant, and as they were never entered as inam in the Hoozoar accounts, how:
then can my claim on the ground of their [original] grant be supported? My reply to
this is as follows :—In the time of the Paishwa the Mamlut of Belgaum and Padshapoor
was with Shideshwur Muheeput Beenewala, the Sursoobhedars, and others. Confusion
having occurred in their maunagement, disturbaaces took place in the mahals, and insur-

282 rections began to be raised. When my grandfather was applied to for assistance to settle
this state of things, he, being desirous of acting for the good of the Sirkar, assisted with

(1.) It was of course impossible to send the original kyfeeut ; but the Inam Commissioner sent an attested

copy of it, and has received a reply from Konher Row, who, has nothing fo add to it.—See his letter of the 2nd
Rujub, a translation of which is the 4th document in this compilation.” :
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his person and property, sud, baving quelled the disturbances, caused the authority of
the Sirkar to Le re-established. Ou this the Sursoobhedars and the Beenewals gave
him the inam villages, (11.) his enjoyment of which continued uninterruptedly until the
introduction of the present Government. (ur.) When the rule of the Company’s Govern-
ment was established in the Padshapoor Talovka, my father afforded great assistance
when Sir Thomas Munro was taking the fort of Belgaum, and that gentleman being 283
pleased thereat, gave him a sunnud in his own bandwriting, ordering that the inams
granted by the Beenewala and Sursoobhedars should be continued without interruption,

as they had been countinued uatil the introduction of this Government, and should nat

on any account be disturbed. (1v.) Afterwards, in A. p. 1818-19, the Honorable Mr,
Elphinstone instituted Rules, (v.) and the above sunnuds being approved of, a decision 284
was made in 1825, in the Poona Commissioner’s duftur, (v1.) that the grants were to be
continued hereditarily ; and we obtained an attested copy of that decision. (vir.) Now in

the Rules more lately prescribed by Government for the Inam Commission, it is laid
down that any grant declared hereditary by the Bombay Government, or any of its offi-
cers with competent authority, previous to a. p. 1833, shall be so continued ; (vim.) and 285
after the establishment of the Company’s Government aud its Rules, the sunnuds of the
former Sursoobbedars and others granting inams to my grandfather and father were con-
firmed, and 2 decision wade, that they should be continued hereditarily. The sunnuds to
this effect which were in our possession have been already exhibited, and copies of them
given by wy, father to the Inam Commission. (1x.) In the following paragraphs I shall

agatn recite tha ty pnrt of these documents ia detail, by which you will Le convinced ;

and as there is sT® enpelusive proof of this [viz. the recognitjon of the present Govern- 286
" ment], there s¢fis :no meed to regard entries in the records of the Paishwa’s Govern-
*"ment. The Goirju‘timent orders issued since the introduction of the present Government,
about eur inams, were long ago given into the Hoozoor, and it is clear that the entries in

the Government accaunts were made from them. By all the above documents my claim

" is established. (x.)

(11.) **But their grants were unauthorised in the first place, and unrecognised by competent suthority after-
wards, as shown in the Inam Commissioner’s Report of the 3rd February 1847.”

(111.) “But the uninterrupted coutinuance was not authorised, and could not under any circumstances have
been of the duration required for the lowest degree of prescriptive title.”

{1v.) *8ir Thomas Muuro’s orders are the 8th and 9th documents described in paragraph 7 of the Inam
Commissioner’s Report of 3rd February 1847, the former of which relates exclusively to Anajee Nursew’s
wuttun heldings, and is in no manner applicable to his claim to the villages under report, and the latter was
obtained by the representation of a Mamlutdar, and is merely & provisional one, depending on the truth of that
representation, which, sccording to Anajee Puat’s own showing, must have been false.—See paragraph 10 of
the report above cited.”

(v.} “According to the Commissioner’s Rules here alluded to, Anajee Nursew’s title would be at once re-
jected. This is admitted by Konher Row in another place, where he grounds his claim on orders especially
sxerptiog him from the operation of these Rules,”

(vi) *““The decision which Konher Row alludes to was the Dufturdar’s report of the 16th November 1826
[not 1825], an extract from which is the 15th document produced by-Anajee Nursew, as recorded in paragraph
¥ of the Inemn Commissioner’s Report of the 3rd February 1847. Thisextract is referred toin paragraph 25 of
the report, and a history of the circumstances in which it originated is given from paragraph 16 to 24, and mare
fully in the Inam Commissioner’s letter to Government No. 251, dated I8th June 1846, where the force of the
whole document is determined.” '

(vr.) “The copy, which is recorded as the 15th in paragraph 7 of the Inam Commissioner’s Report of 3rd
February 1847, is not attested, though it is correct. The only attested copy produced was the 14th document
described in the same paragraph, but thia is not a copy of any decision by the Commissioner, but of certain
Collectors’ orders which had been disapproved of by him.—See paragraph 15 of the original Report.”

(vriy) *“The Bule alluded to by Konher Row is one of those of 1842, and ia correctly described by him,
bui, unfortunately, it does not apply to his claim. This point is considered in the 8th and following paragraphs
of the Juam Commissioner’s Report of the 3rd Febraary 1847.”

(1x.) *“The suunuds here alluded to aze recorded in paragraph 7, and analyzed in paragraph 9, &c. of the
original Beport.”

(x.) *In all of the above reply to the second question, contained in the Inam Commissioner’s letter of the
7th April, a trasslation of which forms document No. 1 of this compilation, the point of the question is set

e
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+ “[4.] The purport of the 3ri question is, that as'no competent officer of the present

Government has ever so recognised our title, that my claim can be supported by his
recognition, how then can it be established ? My reply to this is as follows :—The

_documents affording evidence on this point were formerly exhibited to the Inam Com-

289

200

201

‘mission by my father, and copics of them were taken by the Sirkar. Their purport is

sumnmed up as follows :—

“J,. When the late Sir Thomas Munro came into the Southern Mahratta Country,
and was about taking the fort of Belgaum, my father afforded him great
assistance ; and he, being pleased with my father, gave him, on the 25th of May

" A. D. 1818, a sunnnd, written with Lis own hand, (x1.) the purport of which was,
that my father had brought to him an urzee from Shreeneewas Row, the Mam-
lutdar, stating (x11.) that his inams, granted by the Beenewala and the Sur-
soobhedars, viz: the two villuiges Bhurmuunhuttee and ‘Kumulapoor, and his
cliowrat lands, had been uninterruptedly continued ; wherefore this sunnud was
issued to desire my father to enjoy the said wuttun, and inam villages, &c., and
to rémain happy. For that they should be continued according to their ancient
{mamool] continuance up to the introduction of the Government, without any
trouble from the Sirkar. This is distinctly written, and by the words < up to
the introduction of the Government’ is meant, that the inams had been con-
tinued without interruption up to the introduction of the Company’s Govern-
ment. (xiIL) :

“2. On the 17th July a. p. 1819, the late Mr, Chaplin issued an order (x1v.) to
Timapa, Mamlutdar of Padshapoor, that although a former order, (xv.) had
been issned for the imposition of an increased jooree tax om the new villages
and lands held by Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankule, and for the
resumption of the village Woteemuroo, still, as his [Anajee Nursew’s] brother
Nilkuntrow had come to the Hoozoor and exhibited a sunnud granted by the
General [Sir Thomas Munro], &c. the present order was issued, that althongh,
according to the standing rules, the imposition of increased jooree tax was
correct, yet, as the General had honoured Anajee Nursew with the grant of a sun-
nud, the villages, &c. should be continued according toit: wherefore the increased
jouree tax, which had been imposed on his new villages and new lands, distin-
guished from his established [mamool] possessions, was now remisted, and the
village resumed from him was to be released, and no interference exercised

sside, Konher Row does not anywhere pretend to reply to it by asserting original good title, but, virtually
adinitting the invalidity of his origial title, founds his claim solely on the alleged recognition of competent
authorities of the present Government, the non-existence of which is shown from paregraph 8 to paragraph 26
of the original Report of 3rd February 1847.—See below, at note {xx111.)”

(x1) “The document here referred to is the 9th described in paragraph 7, and considered in paragraph
10, &c.'of the original Report.,”

(x11.) ““Shreeneewas Row’s urzee was a misrepresentation [see note (1.)] on the 9th document described in
paragraph 7 of the original Report, and paragraph 10 of ditto. In his present letter, Konher Row has stated
the purport of Shreeneewas Row’s urzee in such an altered condition as to suppress the falsehood of it, by which
falsehood Sir T. Munro wvas deceived into thinking the villages had been lield as wuttuns from of old ; and he
tries to make it appear that it was known that they were recent grants by the Beencwals and Sursoobhedars,
but a reference Lo the translation of Sir T. Munro's order will show that he was not informed of this fact.”

(x11.) “ Konher Row here seems to use Sir Thomas Munro's order to prove the fact of continued enjoy-
ment from of old up to the introduction of the present Government. But it can only prove his belief in that
fact, and as the fact was not true, the order was founded on an erronecns belief, the result of Shreenecewas Row’s
false report. This is just what the Inam Commissioner has alrecady shown. What it would be useful for
Konher Row to show would be, that Sir Thomas Munro intended to guarantee the continuance of his villages,
knowing that they were not wuttun or mamool estates, not that he intended to guarantee them, believing them
to be such, and only provided they were such, which is the evident and only meaning of his order.”

(x1v.) “ Namely the 1ith document recorded in paragraph 7 of the original Report, and considered ia
the close of its 12th paragraph.”

(xv.) “ Namely the order of the 27th May 1819, described in paragraph 12 of the origival Report.”
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either with his new villages or new inam lands, which were to. contmued
unioterruptedly, (xvr.}

Oun the 3rd December o. p. 1819, the late Mr. Caphlin issued another order 292
(xvi.) to llmapa, Mamlutdar, the purport of which was that Anajee Nursew had
represented in the Hoozoor that the village of Kenchunhutiee had been given.
to him as inam by Goorudapg Naik Chikuldineekur, to whom it had been . -
grauted by the Beenewala, but that now the whole of the Chikuldineekur’s
holdings, including all his wuttuns and villages, had been resumed, according to
orders, (xvir)and that with them. Kenchunhutiee had been resumed, although
he [Anajee Nursew] had been in possessicn of it as inamn for ten or twelve years; 293
that an order having been given for sending a kyfeeut about this, both a kyfeeut
and a petition had been sent, on which - this order was now issued, that as the
said village was granted to the Chikuldineekur by the Beenewala, and as the
Chikuldineckur made it over to Anajee Nursew Deshpandey, along with the
sunnud given by the Beenewala to him, and also one executed by himself in his
own name; and as it had been accordingly held for ten or twelve years without
interruption, it was therefore now to be given-up, and the village which had been
placed under attachment was to be delivered over to the said Deshpandey, and 294
no further trouble given him on account of it.

“4. On the 18th December 4. 0. 1818 an order (x1x.) was issued by the late Mr.
Chaplin to Nilkantrow Mamlutdar, the purport of which was, that there was no
occasion to interfere with the said person’s [A'najee Nursew’s) inam villages,
lands, &c., and that they were to be continued without interrugtion. :

“3. On the 4th June 1820 an order (xx.) was issued by the late Mr. Thackeray 295
to Nursingrow, Mamlutdar, the purport of which was, that the jooree tax which
had been imposed was remitted, and that there was an order of Mr Chaplin’s,
No. 17, dated 9th July, (xx1.) in Fuslee 1229, for deducting it in the accounts,
which order was to be observed.

On the 16th November a. p. 1823, the late Mr. Chaplin made an arrangement
{xx11.) regarding the inam villages and lands in the Padshapoor Talooka. This
gentleman had full authority in every matter connected with the Deccan Pro-
vince, and no other officer has a right to infringe his arrangement. This princi- 296
ple has always been followed in practice. No one can annul the Commissioner’s
orders. This has been deécided in the Sudder Adawlut and other places. The

u3

“6

(xv1.) “This order, of the 17th July 1819, purports to be issued solely in consequence of Sir T. Mpuro's
orders above referred to, but how theé Principal Collector could apply to new villages and inams an order which
related explicitly to only ancient [mamool] wuttuns and inams, it is hard to conceive.”

{xvir.) “This order was dated 3rd September 1819, and is the 12th described in parauraph 7 of the Report
of 3rd February 1847, and in paragraph 13 of the same Report. It appears to have been an unauthorised
order, and was not approved of by the Commissioner.”

{xvuir.) * Goorudapa Naik of Chikuldinee became insane, and bhis villages were places of resort for robbers.
They were all taken possession of by Government in . p. 1819. It appears to have been ongmally granted
[though without authority] by the Beenewsala to Goorudapa Naik, in 4. p. 1800-01, ?5 a service bolding.—See
6th document recorded in paragraph 7 of the original Report,”

(xrx.) *“This is the 10th document recorded in paragraph 7 of the original Report, and considered in
peragraph 11 of ditto. This is. another of the unaccountable orders, founded on that of 8ir Thomas Munro,
which does not sapport it,”

(xx.) * This is the 13th document recorded in paragraph 7 of the original Reprot. It is founded on that
alluded to above in note {xv1.), which cannot be looked on as authorized and was not approved [any more
than this ove was], by the Commissioner.”

{xx1.) *This was really the Order No. 9, dated 17th J uly 1819, alluded to in note (xv1)”

(xx11.) *The arrangement here alluded to is that proposed in the Dufturdar’s Report of the 16th November
1826 [not 1825), which forms the subject of the Inam Commissioner’s letter to Government No. 251, dated
18th June 1846, and an extract from which is the 15th document recorded in paragraph 7 of the original
Report.—Sec above, at note (vi.) The Commissioner never passed any decision, as asserted by Konher Row.”
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Governor in Council himself has never issued orders subversive of those of the
Cominissioner. Such is the custom observed. Well, this officer of {ull anthority,
the Commissioner, made a decisicn, in which it is clearly ordered that the above
villages and lands are to be continued at their jooree tax according to ancient
usage [mamool], in the same manner as Anajee Nursew’s original wuttuns, ac-
cording to the terms of the Beenewala’s and Sursoobhedars’ sunouds ; and in the
same decision it is also declared, that the Rules of o. n. 1819, according to which,
an increased jooree tax being imposed, the villages, &c. should be continued as a
life-holding, paying half the full assessment, were not to be applied in this case,
because of the orders of Sir Thomas Munro, &c. Wherefore the grants were to
be continued according to the sunanuds of the Beenewala and Sursoobhedars.
The reason of this being written was, that we had afforded assistance to the Com-
pany’s Government. Thus, although the grants may have been obtained in the
Paishwa’s tirue from Mamlutdars who had ot competent authority, (xxru.) still,
as competent officers of the Company’s Government have agreed to their continu-
ance according to the Beenewala’s and Sursoobhedars’ sunnuds, and have given
clear and stringent orders to this effect, they should now be continued accordingly.
In the Beenewala’s and Surseobhedar’s sunnuds, there is a provision for the inams
granted being hereditary, and this agreement has been recognised by both of the
abovementioned officers (xx1v.) of competent authority under the Company’s
. Government.

“The documents here alluded to were formerly given in; I beg that you will be so
kind as to consider them attentively. It is evident, that as in them the chief competent
officers of Government have clearly admitted that our right is to be continued heredi-
tarily, my inam villages and lands ought to be so continued without objection.

“[(5.] Im Section XXXVII. of Regulation XVII. of 1827 it is laid down, that
even in the absence of a sunnud or established custom, or enjoyment for 60 years, still,
should the former or present Government, or any of their authorised officers, have recog-
nised the exemption [from tax] of land, it shall be continued for the future. This Section

300 is strongly applicable to my villages and lands in question, (xxv.) because authoerised

officers of the present Government, viz. Sir Thomas Munro, and the Commissiouer,
Mr. Chaplin, have recognised (xxv1.) the exemption of the villages and lands which we
obtained under the late Government. This Government ought, therefore, to continue
them accordingly; for if not, then the Section of the Regulation I have quoted has
been framed without meaning.

“[6.] 1 beg, therefore, that you will consider what I have now written, and also the
purport of my English petition of the 16th April, sent to you for transmission to

301 Government ; (xxvir.) aud that you will continue hereditarily to me the three villages,

lands, &c. in question. If it should appear necessary to ask me for any further
explanation of what I have now written, will you be so good as to write to me here, and,
if able, I shall send replies. You have asked me merely to prepare these answers; but

(xxim.) “See above, note (x.)"”
(xx1v,) *“The two competent officers here alluded to are Sir Thomas Munro and the Commissioner. As

. hag been shown, the former only recognised the continuance of wutfun villages, as they had continued from of

old, under the Paishwa's Government [which never recognised the slleged inams under consideration), and the
latter made no decision at all.”

(xxv.) “ The Rales for titles to rent-free lands of Regulation XVIL. of 1827 have never been applied, and are
generally inapplicable, to this province. But this particalar Rule is a just one, and its application is provided
for by the Code of 1842. As, however, no recognition by competent authority has taken place, it is of no use
in the present case.”

(xxvr.) *Compare note (xxi1v.).”

(xxvir) “Submitted to Government with the Inam Commissioner’s letter No. 549, dated 29th April 1848,
A copy of the same is now submitted, as Accompaniment No. 2 to the Inam Commissioner’s letter No. 589,
dated 23¢d June 1848, and is interleaved, with observations on the argumenta and statements which it contains.”
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if, after having prepared my answers, they are unot to be taken until after I appear
before you, delay will be caused, fur which resson 1 have now sent iny replies to your
questions, and if you will be so good as to look at them, and make your report to 302
Government, I shall prefer it. (xxvim.)

“[7]. I beg to add as a postscript, with reference to the three villages in question, a
representation, which, | trust, you will take into your consideration, and act ou as seems
most fit to you ; which is, that as the villages and lands are now under attachment, in
consequence of the decision of the Inam Commission to that effect, reported to Govern-
.nent on the 3rd November 1847, and as Government has not approved of the decision,
the villages and lands may be restored to me as they were before the Commissioner’s
decision took place. Before that decisivn was made, I was in possession of the villages 303
and lands, &e. Let them, therefore, be pow restored to my possession.  Aud I trust that
hereafter the Sirkar, at the time of its general decision, will issue an order for their con-
tinuance to me hereditarily. Let me often receive letters from you, and keep up friend-
ship, &c.”
' “ No. 3.

“ Substance of a Letter dated 24th May 1848, from the Inam Commissioner
1o Konker Row Anajee.

¢ After compliments. 1have received your letter dated 15th Jummad-ool-Akhir [19th
May 1848}, and, in reply to your request, that I should send to you your father’s origi-
nal kyfeeut about the three .villages Bhurmunhuttee, &c., in order that you may, after
an examination of it, be able to reply to my first question, and forward any addition you 304
may think it necessary to make to what was stated by your father, 1 beg to inform you,
that as I cannot send the original kyfeeut from this duftur, I herewith forward a copy
of it. Copies of the documents offered in evidence by your father are here, but as you
have the originals in your own possession, I have considered it unnecessary to send tran-
scripts of the copies, and have therefore sent only a descriptive list of them. I hope you
will be so good as to furnish an answer on this point with promptitude. As for the
answers you have sent to my other .two questions, I have understood them sufficiently.

I do not think it will be necessary to ask any further questions about the points to which 305
they refer. Should it hereafter seem to be so, there will be no help for it, but in this
case I shall let you know.

“2,  Asfor what you write in the conclusion of your letter, about removing the
attachment from the villages and lands pending the decision of Government, I assure
you that I have no wish to cause delay in this case, and if you will favour me with a
speedy reply, I shall lose no time in transmitting it to Government.”

“ No. 4.

“ Substance of a Letter dated 2nd Rujub [4th June 1848), from Konher Row Anajee to
the Inam Commissioner, received 12th June 1848,

“[1] After compliments. I have received your letter of the 24th May 1848. You 306
wrote that you have sent a copy of the kyfeeut given by my father about the three vil-
lages Bhurmunhuttee, &c., and alist of the documents offered by him as evidence;
and you request me to send a prompt answer. In reply, I beg to state, that on looking'
at the copy of the kyfeeut given by my father, I perceive that he gave answers to all
the questions put to him by thé Sirkar. Since then I have written everything in detail
in iny appeal petition.

“[2.] The late Sir Thomas Munro, Mr. Chaplin, and other gentlemen, decided that
our inams should be continued hereditarily to us, and gave documents bearing their

(xxvin.) *This Tequest is a reasonable one, and, in conformity with it, the Inam Commissicner’s corres-
pondence with Xonher Row is now submitted to Government.”
180
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307 signatures to this effect, which are all in the Government duftur, or presented by us.
There are thus documents issued by the chief authorities of the Company’s Govern-
ment, so that there can be no objection to continue to us hereditarily our inams. I trust
that when you have looked at these documents, you will release my inams, and write to
Government. So long as there are documents issued by the chief authorities of the Com-
pany’s Government, it seems needless to produce other proof.* I trust, therefore, that
an order may kindly be given for the continuance hereditarily of my villages Bhurmun-
huttee, &c., and my chowrat lands. Pray write often, and keep up friendship.”

308  43. The second of the accompauniments of the Inam Commissioner’s letter No. 589,
described in paragraph 41, was a copy of the 2nd document mentioned above in
paragraph 34, to which were now affixed notes, as promised in paragraph 7 of that
letter. This document and its accompaniments were as follows :—

“ Honorable G. R. CLzrk,
“ Governor and President in Council at Bombay.

“ HovorasLe Sir,—I have had the honour, under date the 26th December last, of
addressing your Excellency upon the subject of the illegal assumption by the Collector
of Belgaum, comsequent upon the report of the Inam Committee, of my immoveable
property, consisting of the inam villages of Mulapore, Edergood, and Punjunhatty,

309 Talooka Padshapoor, Zillah Belgaum. I have now respectlully to request the favour
of your Excellency’s attention to the following case, not dissimilar in purport and effect
to the one I have aiready represented in my letter of the above date, with the accompa-
niment.

“The village of Kublapore and Otemundow, and the land called Kenchunhatty,
appertaining to the latter, (1.) having [like the villages of Mulapore, Edergood, and Pun-
Junhatty,] been seized upon, and assumed possession of by the Collector of Belgaum,
consequent upon the decree of the Inam Committee, dated 3rd November last, on the

310 grounds that the grant of the property in question only confirmed life interest in it of
those who originally obtained the same, and that they are not hereditary grants, (11.) so
as to be continued from one succession to the other.

“ With all diffidence to the authorities, I am at a loss to know any of the rules, ordi-
nances, and regulations of the local Government, or the enactments of the supreme
legislative body, either in India or England, by which such Inam Commission has been

311 entrusted with the power it has assumed, or by which the Collector is authorised so to
seize upon and assume our long-enjoyed property in this summary manner.

“The Inam Commission said that the grants in question of our said property con-
firm only thelife interest of those who originally obtained the same. (1) Iam equally
at a lossto know the data upon which the Committee has arrived at such a conclusion,
such conclusion being erroneously at variance with the facts, which incontestibly prove
it to be otherwise. |

“If your Excellency in Council will but peruse with attention the accompanying
312 translation of eight documents, being sunnuds [patent of grants] and other documents con-
firming the same, relative to our said villages and lands, executed by the original

* «8ee note (x.) on Konher Row’s letter of the 15th of Jummad-ool-Akhir, a translation of which is the
2ud document in this compilation.” )

(1.) “Kenchunhuttee does not appertain to Mouza Woteemuroo, but is a hamlet of another village, called
Nundee. This is shown by the originals of the 5th and G6th translations attached to this petition.”

(11.) “The Inam Commissioner did not decide on the resumption of the villages ¢ ou the grounds that the
grant of the property in question only confirmed life interest in it of those who originally obtained the seme,”
but on the grounds that the grants were ab initio invalid, and not afterwards rendered valid by the recognition
of any competent authority ; wherefore they could not properly give even a life interest to the grantee.”

{rr1.) “This admission of the right of alife interest would. have been an unjustifiable one, and was not

made,—See note (11.)"”

oAk
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competent authorities (1v.) of the Paishwa’s Government, and subsequently of that of the
British, you will see that the grants in question are not only hereditary, and for ever,

but that as such confirmed, and enjoined to be respected, by the late honorable General

Sir Thomas Munro, and Mr. Chaplin, then successive Commissioners (v.) on behalf of

of the Honorable Company’s Government for the settlement of the newly acquired
territories of the Southern Mahratta.Country. Independently of this, such hereditary 313-
property was enjoyed uninterruptedly, from the time of " their respective grants, by my ’
grandfather, after his death by my father, and after him by myself, (v1.) up to the other
day, when they were so summarily usurped by the Collector.

* Should there be any doubt in your Excellency’s mind on the subject of our right
over the property, I pray you, as I know of no data npon which such doubts might be
entertained, the whole of the proceedings of the Inain Committee being carried behind my 314
back, (vir.) to afford me an opportunity in this case, as in the former I prayed, of appear-
ing before you in personm, or through my constituted attorney, to plead the hardship
of my case, to examine such evidences as may be mecessary, and to afford requisite
explanations to remove doubts, if any, and thus to establish the justice of my right over
the property in question, '

* In conclusion, I earnestly beg and entreat of your Excellency to take this represent-
ation, in conjunction with that I made on the 26th December last, (virt.) into your dis-
interested comsideration, and afford me just and impartial redress. 315

“I have the honour to be respectfully,
“ Honoured Sir,
 Your most obedient Servant,

“ €1 FTHT TA AT IAITE 571 STAA ATEN
YIATYT THT HOTST Sy Armare Far. wn<.

“ CoNerEe Row ANaJEE,
“ By his constituted Mooktiar,

“ AnaJee Crusuna,
“ Bombay, 3rd February 1848,

“P. S.—The above representation was sent in to Government by my Mooktiar,
Anajec Crushna, at Bombay, on the above date, and for which he had my authority ;
but it was returned back to him, accompanied by Mr. Secretary Goldsmid’s letter No.

(xv.) “See paragraphs 27 to 31 of the Inam Commissioner’s Repart of the 3rd February 1847, and note (x.)
on Konher Row's letter of the 15th Jummad-ool-Akhir, a trauslation of which is the 2nd document in the
compendium of correspondence which accompanies the Inam Commissioner’s letter No. 589, dated 23rd
June 1848,

(v.) *“Sec paragraphs 8 to 26 of the Report of 3rd February 1847, and notes (1v.), (vr.), (vir.), (xx11.), and
(xx1v.), on Kouher Row's letter of the 15th Jummad-cdol-Akhir, referred to in the last note.”

{v1.) “Konher Row was not permitted to succeed to the villages as Inamdar., After the reference by the
Collector of Belgaum, described in paragraph 1, and the reply, described in paragraph 4, of the Inam Com-
missioner’s Report of 3rd February 1847, the Collector adopted the course suggested by the Inam Commission,
and allowed Konher Row to hold the villages merely in deposit. This is mentioned in the Acting Collector’s yad
No. 16, dated 10th September 1847, to the address of the Inam Commissioner. See paragraph 3 of the Inam
Commissioner’s letter to the Deputy Secretary to Government, No 589, dated 23rd June 1848, and the previous
letter cited init.” '

(vr1.) *The proceedings of the Inam, Commission were founded on the statement of Konher Row's father,
who probably did not think it necessary to consult him. Konher Row has, however, now seen his father’s
kyfeeut, and has not added anything to it.—See paragraph 5 of the Inam Commissioner's letter to the Deputy
Secretary to Government, No. 539, dated 23rd June 1848.”

(vtni.) **The Inam Commissioner supposes that Konher Row refers to his petition to Government of the
24th December 1847, in the other case, of the villages exchanged for Jaleekuttee, &c., a copy of which was
forwarded, with other documents, for the instruction of the Inam Commissioner, with the Revenue Secretary’s

letter No. 586, dated 27th January 1848. The request contained therein, to be allowed to plead hefore the
Council of Bombay, was rejected.” .
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316 1620, dated 21st March 1848, stating that if I have anything to urge to your Honour
in Couucil on the subject of lands above alluded to, I should do so direct, and not
throngh a Mookiiar. I accordingly do myself the honour of sending this duly signed
and authenticated under my own hand, together with the other letter I have this. day
nddressed to your Excellency in Council, and to which 1 beg most respectfully o
invite your attentive consideration.

“ g FTXT UT yOTIE TAWiR
w9 TR TYT Y.
“ Koneree Row ANAJEE,

‘ Deshpandey Purgne Uucle.
“ Sanglee, 16th April 1848."

“ Summary of the Translation of the Makratta Sunnuds and other Documents (1x.)
which are subjoined herewith, referred to in the accompanying Represenlation,
Jor just and impartial consideration of the Honorable the Governor in Council.

317-

* No. |.—The sunnud from Sedeshwur Myheput Row, afias Beenewala, Sir Kelledar

of Belgaum, granting on payment annually of Rs. 40 the village of Kublapore
as ‘ Ivam Vouns Purum Purah’

“ No. 2.—The sunnud from Kessow Row Balkrisna, Sursoobha of the Catnatic, remit-

ting the annual payment of the Rs. 40 previously stipulated, and confirming

318 and rendering absolute the aforesaid grant of the village Kublapore as ¢ Vouns
Parum Purah.’

“ No. 3.—The sunnud from the said Sedeshwur Mhyeput Row, alias Beenewala,
granting, on payment of Rs. 15 annually, the village Otemundoo as ¢ Tnam
Vouns Purum. Purah’ The said payment of Rs. 15 subsequently remitted by
the Sursoobha, who confirmed the grant, and made it absolute inam ¢ Vouns
Purum Purah.’

‘¢ No. 4.—An order to the Deshmooks and Deshpandeys of the aforesaid village, from
the said Sursoobha, causing the transfer of both villages, Kublapore and
Otemundoo, to my gr-mdfather

319 *“.No.5.—The sunnud to Goodapa Naique from the said Sursoobha, granting him,
on payment of Rs. 5 anuually, the village laud called Kenchunhatty, as ¢ Inam
Vouns Purum Pursh.’

* No. 6.—The transfer from the said Goodapa Naique to my father, Anajee Punt, of
the aforesaid village land Kenchunhatty.

¢ No. 7.—The sunnud from the late Grgneral Sir Thomas Munro, confirming the
aforesaid inams.

“ No. 8.—Extract of the memorandum addressed by the Commissioner of Poona to
the Collector of Dharwar, relative to all my inam property ; setting forth the
reason why it should not in auy way be interfered with by Government, in its

320 continuance to us. This memorandum, authenticated by the Collector, which
fully enters into the merit of my title over the property in question, 1 entreat
of you to peruse with attention.’

(1x.) * The translations which accompany this letter are not at all correct. Translations of sll the docu-
ments now produced will be found recorded in paragraph 7 of the Inam Commissioner's Report of the 3rd
February 1847, already before Government. The errors of translation in ¢kese are so numerous that the Inam
Commissioner has not considered it necessary to rectify them: to do so would require new tranglations from
first to last, and such already exist in the original Report. These will be found referred to by notes on each
of Konher Row’s translations below.”
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“ No. 1. (x.}

(s)

#To Nursew Anajee, Despande of the Cusba Unkle, Purgunua Padshapoor, to
whom writes Sedeshver Mulieeput Row, in Soorsun Khumus Myatyen vu Alef[a. p.
1804-05), greeting. Whereas you solicited to have in imam the village of Kublapoor
alias Bhurmun Hatty, the large and the small, under the aforesaid cusba; and where-
as we have been pleased kindly to grant the said village, including its muzzra, as inam,
giving annually a nuzur {presenat] of Rs. 40 (forty), you and yuur heirs should enjoy 321
the same for ever [rom generation to geueration, and be happy. Save what is above
mentioned, there shall be no exaction or hinderance whatever regarding anything in the
premises; all aunual taxes and assessment thereon being remitted to you; the whole
of the said premises, together with all -manner qf its products, being given to you.
Let this be known. Dated 3rd of the lunar month Rubi-il-Avul. This is all.”

6[:'1011!15
Seal.

*No. 2. (x1.)

Seal

of the Sur-
-gpobah of
Carnatic,

“To Rajshree Nurso Anajee, Despande of the Cusba Ankle, Purgne Pashapoor, 322 -
to whose respected person writes Keso Row Balcrustna Sirscoba Prumt Carnatie. After
compliments. lu Soorsun ¥it Myatyen vu Alef [a. p. 1805-06). Whereas in the year
Sun Khumns Myatyen the Beenewala, having granted you in inam, on payment of the
jodee of Rs, 40 per year, the village of Kublapoor, alias Biurman Hatty, and also granted
in inam other new Jands appertaining to this and other villages, as per respective sunnuds,
But un army of the Sirsooba having disputed the same; whereupon you represented the
want of the Sirsvoba’s sunnuds. Consequently this sunnud is issued to your address,
to wit remitting the aforesaid payment of Rs. 40 per annum, and granting you ig
inam the whole of said village, with all mauner of its produce, including the grant of 323
new land appertaining to the said village, which vou and your heirs for ever from gene-
yation to generation should, and without interruption, ‘enjoy, 4nd continue happy. Let
this be known. Dated the 5th day of the lunar month Siwal. What need be said
more "

Seal of
Moortub.

(x.) *This-doeument, No. 1, is translated as the first sunnud recorded in parapraph 7 of the Inam Commis-
sioner’s Report of the 3rd Februsry 1847.”

{x1.) *This document, No. 2, is translated as the 4th of those recorded in paragraph 7 of the Report of 3rd
February 1847. )
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“No. 3. (x11.)

«To Nurso Anajee, Despande of the Cusba.Unkle, Purgunna Pashapoor, to whom
writes Sedeshvur Myheput Row, in Soorsun Khumus Myatyen vu Alef [A. p. 1804-05].

-Whereas you have proved yourself very useflul to the Government, and knowing this,

the village of Otemudoo, alias Kublapoor, having been given you in inam, on annual

-payment of Rs. 15, and this is the sunnud thereof granted to you now. Giving annually
‘Rs. 15, you and your heirs for ever, from generation to generation, enjoy the whole of the

said village, and be happy. Let this be known.”
“ No. 4., (xnr.)

Moortub
Seal.

“To the Desmooks and Despandes of the Curiat Ankla, Purgne Pashapoor,
writes Sedeshvur Myheput Row in the Soorsun Kbumus Myatyen vu Alef. To wit.
Whereas, knowing Rajshree Nurso Anajee, Despande of the said curiat, being of
great service to the Government, the village of Kubla, alizs Bhurmun Hatty, and
Otemudo, alias Kublapoor, both these villages, including lands appertaining to the
same, and other detached lands in other villages, being granted in inam to Lim, and
sunnuds, addressed to his name, having been duly separately granted to him, this is
to intimate to you that the said individual will enjoy both these villages, inciading lands
appertaining to the same, as per the said sunnuds, and you should allow him to do
so. Retaining copy of this order, let the original be given to the said individual, to

enable his enjoying the same [inam]. Let this be known. Dated 3rd of the lunar
month Rubi-il-Avul. Mortub seal.”’

@

«No. 5. (x1v.)

“The Rajshree Sedeshvur Myheput Row writes this to his subordinate Goudapa
vulud Fakeer Naik, of the Mujra Cheekuldinee, of the village of Shaw Bunder, Cusba

_Coondergee, Purgum Pashapoor, in the year Soorsun Yede Myatyen vu Alef [a. ».

1800-01]. Whereas you represented that you wonld remain obedient to the Govern-
ment, and with fidelity and zeal continue to serve it, the owner should be pleased to
grant you the Mezre Kenchunhatty, of the village of Nundee, Cusba Uncle, bLeing a
garden land, in inam. Counsidering you to be of service to the Government, and would
remain attached to it, the sail Mezra, having been granted to you, exclusive of the
right of the Inamdars and Hukdars thereof, in inam, on payment of Rs. 5 annually:

(x11.) “This document, No.. 3, ia translated as the 2nd of those recorded in paragraph 7 of the original
Report.”

(x11r.) “This document, No. 4, is translated as the 3rd of those recorded in paragraph 7 of the Inam

‘Commissioner’s original Report.”

(x1v.) “This document, No. 5, is translated as the 6th of those recorded in paragraph 7 of the original
Report of 3rd February 1847." A
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consequently paying from year to year Rs. 5, and performing faithfully the service of
the Government, you and your heirs should enjoy the same for ever, from generation to
generation, and be happy. Let this be known. Dated 9th of the lunar month Jilkad,
" Mortub Sood.”

) ¢ No, 6. (xv.)

“ To the Mucadum of the village Kenchunhatty, of the village Nundee, Cusbe Uncle, 328
Purgne Pashapore, to whom writes Goodapa Naik Chikuldeenee, Sir Naik of the said
Purgne, in the year Soorsun Myatyen vu Alef. The aforesaid muzzra village, having been
granted in inam to Rajshree Anajee Punt Ana Despande, who, having exerted much
about me before the Sirsoobas, and caused the grant of villages, &c. to wme, therefore the
said village is given in inam [by me to him], consequently present yourself before the
ssid Rajshree Apa Despande, account to him the receipt and disbursement thereof,
and act according to his order, while the sun and moon last. Let this be known. Dated
3rd of the lunar month Silkad.” '

“No. 7. (xvL) ‘ 329

-

“ General Thomas Munro Saheb writes this to the worthy of respect Anajee Row,
Despande Purgne Pashapoor. After compliments. Whereas you personally repre-
sented to us that the vulun out of the afuresaid purgunna appertaining to [rhe office of]

the Despande has been continued to you from previous time, and as, now the Com)-/

pany’s Government became paramount, it is requisite to cause an instruction to the
Mamlutdar of the Pashapoor to continue uninterruptedly the same : consequently, an 330\
in.consideration of the great assistance rendered at the time of the taking of the fort ©f
Belgaum, and also appearing from the report of Shreenwas Row, the Mamlutdar of
Pashapoor, that the village of Bhurmunhatty, and village of Kublapoor, being two
villages, out of the Cureat Unkulgee, including fields and garden, and appertaining, the
same being continued to you in inam, this sunnud is now granted to you, that you
centinue to enjoy the aforesaid vutan, and the ivam nllao'es, &e., and be happy.
That without any injury to the Comp-my s Government, up to the continuance of the
said Government, according to the previous custom, the seme shall be continued. Let
this be known. Dated 25th May a. p. 1818, '

. (Sigoed) * Tuomas Munro.” 331
“ Written by the hand of Rune Row Moonsee.”

At the foot of the above there is the following autograph in English :—

“ The Inamdar having been very useful during the siege of Belgaum, I have
directed his villages of Bhurmunhatty and Kublapore, with the separate lands,
to be continued by the Company’s Amuldar, in the same manner as under the
Peishwayee Government.

(Signed) * Tnomas Munro.”

(xv.} “This document, No. 6, is translated as the 7th of those recorded in paragraph 7 of the original
Report.”’ .

(xv1.) “This document, No, 7, is translated as the ch\of thosgaécorded in paragraph 7 of the Inam Com-
missioner’s original Report of the 3rd February 1847. \I onher Row's translation, the fulsehooed of
Shreeneewas Row’s Report is suppressed, and Sir Thog;d’ﬁ Munro ismade to guarantee the continuance of
Aunjee Punt’s wuttun and inam villages, instead thu\man}g:llages, a3 in the criginal.—See also para-
graph 10 of the orlglnnl Repore of 3td Febrllary
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#¢ No.'8. (xviL)

332 « Extract of a Memorandwm from the Commissioner of Poona to the Collector of
Dharwar, dated 16th November 1823, regarding the Village, &e. to be continued
to Anajee Nursew, Despande of the Purgna Pashapoor.

“ 1, There is a sunnud, bearing date the Fuslee 1214, from the Beenewala, in which
it is mentioned, that on payment of Rs. 40 annually as nuzur, the village of Kublapoor
alias Bhurmaunhutty, including the separate lands, has been given in inam, for ever,
from generation to generation; and that there is another sunnud, bearing date the Fus-

333 lee 1215, from Kessew Row Balcrustna, in which itis written that the aforesaid payment
of Rs. 40 being remitted, and the inam declared “Vouns Purum Purah.’

“2. The village of Otemundoo alias Kublapoor, in the year Fuslee 1214, granted
by the Beenewala, on payment of Rs. 15 annually, as inam for ever, from generation to
generation, as per sunnud written to that effect ; and in the year Fuslee 1221 Ram Row
iPandvorang Subedar remitted ‘the annual payment of the aforesaid Rs. 15. This is in
writing.

“3. Beside this, in the year Fuslee 1214, the whole of the inam, and farmed lands
granted by the Beenewalas, measured 234 and 3 ana chigur, aud in the year Fuslee

334 1218, Anund Row BSirsoobhedar granted inam land measuring 3 chigur and ] ana,
making in all 6 chigur. Copies of the respective sunnuds not been received.

*“ Regarding this, General Munro Saheb, under date the 25th May a. ». 1818,
executed a Mahrattee sunnud, and wrote also in English on it that the Inamdar
having been very useful during the siege of 'Belgaum, the aforesaid village and lands
should be continued by the Company’s Government, in the same manner as under the
Peishwayee Government’ ; and in the year Fuslee 1228, consequent upon the passing
of the Government Regulations, the said villages and lands were about to be subjected

335 to an increased taxation, and an assessment on the moiety of his [the Inamdar’s] life
interest therein. But on seeing the aforesuid sunnuds, Mr. Chaplin Sahel wrote an
order that the increased tax, and the assessment on the same, being remitted, that there
was no occasion to demand the same; and that the village of Kublapoor [then] under
attachment was caused to be restored to him [the Inamdar]; and enjoined that hence-
forth the said villages, and the lands, shall be continued uninterruptedly to the said
Despande. ‘The order to this effect is dated 17th July, Fuslee 1229. Taking this
into consideration, the provisions of the Regulations of &. . 1828 are not applicable to

336 this case, and therefore, that on receiving only the accustomed judee, the said village and
the lands to be uninterruptedly continued as Kudeem Vuttun [ancient grant] as per the
Beenewala and Sirsooba’s sunnuds. On the assumption of the power by the Com-
pany’s Government there have been sunnuds and uther documents passed as above men-
tioned : consequently, regarding the said inam, there is no necessity for sending copies
thereof.

“ With regard to the village of Kenchunhutty, it was, in the year Fuslee 1211, granted
by Beeuewala to Goordapa ‘\’alque Checkuldecnee, on payment of Rs. 5 per annum, as
inam, for ever, from gencration to generation, as per his sunnud ; and the said Goordapa

337 Naique, from his part, in the year Fuslee 1218, granted the same to the Despaude as
inam for ever, from generation to generation, as per bis deed, which, and the said graut

(xvir.) “This document, No. 8, is the 15th of those recorded in paragraph 7 of the original Report. It is
not an extraet from a memorandum by the Commissioner, but from a Repert drawn up by the Government
Dufturdar, and the circumstances which attended its preparation are described from paragraph 16 to paragraph
25 of the Report of 3rd Februsry 1847, and more fully [:. e. as not only eonnected with this ease, but with
others,] in the Innm Commission’s letter to Government, No. 251, dated 18th June 1846.—See also note (xx11.)
on Konher Row's letter of the 15th Jummad-sol-Akhir, marked Na. 2, in the compendinm of correspondence
which accompanics the Inam Commissioner’s letier to the Deputy Secretary to Government, No. 589, dated
23rd June 1848.”



paper from the Beenewala to him, he gave over to the said Despande. Subsequently,
the existing Government, displeased with the said Ndlque, the whole of his villages and
wuttun, &c. seized and attached, including the village ia question. But Mr. Chaplm,
on examining the aforesaid sunouds and documents, ordered it to be restored to the said
Despandc, together with the dues thereof collected whilst under attachment, without
any hinderance; and the said order ig dated 3rd September to the Mamlutdar, On
examiuning all this the said village according to the Regulations should be continued

to the said Despanda. 338
% (This is true copy.) “ (Signed in English)
(Signed) “ Sareenwas Row, “ NisBerT [Saheb],
“ Shreestedar.” “ Bhadoor.

44. On the 26th June 1848, in a Jetter No. 590, the Inam Commissioner replied to
the Government letter described in paragraphs 38 and 39, as follows :—

‘I have the honour to reply to Mr. Secretary Lumsden’s letter No. 3325, dated 7th
June 1848 ; and, in obedience to the instractions contained in it, that I should report my
opinion on the evidence and arguments adduced by Konher Row Anajee in bis petition,
a copy of which accompanied the letter in question, I beg to return the copy, interleaved
with such observations, in the shape of notes, as have appeared necessary.”

45. The accompaniment of this letter was a copy of the third document described 339
in paragraph 34, to which notes were now attached by the Inam Commissioner, as
follows : —

“ To the Honorable G. R. CLERK,
Governor and President in Couneil.

“ HonoraBLE Sir,— Permit me most respectfully again to address your Excellency, on
the subject of another act on the part of the Collector of Belgaum, consequent upon the
decision of the Inam Committee, dated 10th November, in usurping several of my inam
lands, situated at different places, in all measuring 6 chigur, previously granted to my
ancestors, upwards of forty years ago, by the then competent authorities under the
Paishwa’s Government. 340

“ The accompanying translations of 12 documents, (1.) being sunnud and other docu-
mentary authority, which I respectfully beg to hand up, for the perusal and satisfaction
of your Excellency in Council, will exhibit in their true light the nature and the extent
of the lands, and the object for which the same were granted tv my ancestors. That
ever since their respective grant to my ancestors, the lands in question have been unin-
terruptedly coutinued in their possession and enjoyment, and in mine till the other day,
when the same were seized upun, because the said Inam Committee considered the 341
grants in question not heveditary, thongh the documents that accompany this repre-
sentation will establish that they are not only hereditary grants, (1) but especially some
of them bLeing to maintain rights and privileges appertaining to the dignities and
honours of the office of Despandi, which is hereditary. (1.}

“ Having already, in my several representations to your Excellency, bearing dates the

(1.) ““The twelve documents in question were all, except the last, exhibited to the Inam Commissioner at the
time of the original iuvestigation, and will bLe found described in the Report of his decisions dated 10th
November 1847, in the memoranda of the seseral cases to which they refer. The Inam Commissioner will also
affix notes of reference, &e. to the translaions aunexed to Konher Row's letter, showing to what cases they
refer, and affording any other information which may seem necessary.”

(xr.) “But Konher Row has failed in showing that they were hereditary grants made by officers who hari/
authority to make such grants.”

(111.) “ Konher Row, in bringing forward his claim, expressly stated that none of the alleged inams to which
the Inam Commissioner’s decision of the 10th November 1347 refers were official holdinge: It.will, in fact, be
seen, that they were mere personal grauts, entirely unconnected with the office of Deshpandey.”.

20
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342 24th December -1847 and 3rd instant, protested (1v.) against the legality of the entire
proceeding held by the Inam Committee, and the acts of the Collector of Belgaum, in
beipg thus summarily deprived of our hereditary immoveable property, I will not enter
inte the .same here, by way of recapitulation, but, begging and entreating your
Excellency to apply the grounds and arguments therein addressed to this case also, and
afford me fair and impartial redress from grievances I have thus the honour of bring-
ing to your notice, in conjunction with what I have stated before,

* I have the honour to be, &ec.
(Signed) *“ Kaneree Row ANAJEE,
“ Despandi Purgne Uncle, Talook Pashapore,
“ By his constituted Mooktiar,
“ Anasee CrusTNa.”

343 “P. S.—The above representation was sent in to Government by my Mooktiar, Ana-
jee Crustna, at Bombay, on the above date, and for which he had my authority ; but it
was returned back to him, accompanied by Mr. Secretary Goldsmid’s letter No. 1623,
dated 2ist March 1848, stating that if I had anything to urge to your Honour in Coun-
cil on the subject of lands above alluded to, I should do so direct, and not through a
Mooktiar. [ accordingly do myself the honour of sending this, duly signed and au-
thenticated under my own hand, together with the other letter I have this day address-
ed to your Excellency in Council, and to which I beg most respectfully to invite your

attentive consideration.
(Signed) ¢ Kaneree Row ANaJeE,
** Despandi Purgne Uncle.
“ Sanglce, 16th April 1848.”
344 “ No. 1. (v.)

Killedar.

*To the respected Nurso Anajee, Despandi Cusba Uncle, Purgne Pashapore, to whom
writes Sedeshwur Myhe Punt Row, in the year Soorsun Khumus Myatyen vu Alif [a. p.
1804]. Whereas you represented to allow you the hononr of an Aftabgaree and Chowree
with inam land, for {tv maintain] the same; and whereupon the following lands apper-
taining to the said Cusba Uncle granted, namely :—

“ For A ftabgareeland chigur anaseleven ....................... 11
“ In the aforesaid cusba chiguranas............. fee e ven 7
345 That called Buboo Packaree.................. 4
Shetee Musurka ..... e r e . 3
“ In the village of Bhordale :—
That called Rhyana Kanapore................ 4
_ . 11
“For Chowree land in the village of Aktingurhal, called Ujun
Kuttee, Chum Mallapa, and Balapal ........ veeanee- 4
“In all anas...... 13

“The aforesaid land, measuring in all fifteen anas of rupees, having been granted to
you in inam respecting the Aftabguree and Chowree, and this is the sunnud thereof,

(1v.) “The protests here alluded to were made in other cases, and have beeu disposed of by Government
while considering them.”
«{v.) *This document, No.1, is the same as that described in paragraph 1 of Memorandum 11. of the Report
of the 10th November 1847.” ‘
{(vr.) “The seal on the original purports to be that of Veesajee Krishn, the grandfather of Shideshwur
Muheeput, who was Killedar of the fort of Belganm, and Comavisdar of Padshapoor, but not at the date of
" this document.”



now forwarded to you. Let you and your heirs and sutmessors, from geueratlon to
generation, enjoy the same, and be happy; the said land, with all manner of its pro-
ducts, being given to you. Let this be known. Dated.3rd of the lunar month Rubee- 346
1l-Awul, Mortub Sood. : B .

* Entered.”
Moortub
Seal.

“*No. 2. (vir)

(vin.)

‘“To the respected Nursoo Anajee, Despandi of the Cusba Unkle, Purgne Pashapore,
to whom writes Sedeshwur Myhe Punt Row Beenewala, in the Soorsun Isne Myateen
vu Aluf [a. p. —]. Whereas, knowing you to have been useful to the Sirkar, land
measuring one quarter chigur, called Seereenee, in the Nujra Edergood, Cusbe Uncle,
of the aforesaid Purgne, having been granted to you in inam, let you and your heirs,
from generation to generation, enjoy the same, and be happy. Let this be known. 347
Dated 15th of the lunar munth Juma-de-vul-Akhur, Moortub Sood.

+ Entered.”

4 Moortub
Seal.

“ No. 3. (1x.)

Seal of
the Sir Kil-
ledar.

* To the respected Nursoo Anajee, Deshpande of the Cusba Ankla, Purgna Pashapore,
to whom writes Sedeshwur Myhe Punt Row, in Seorsun Khnumus Myateen vu Aluf [a. p.
1804]. Whereas you represented to allow you the honour of ¢ Deotee,” with land in inam,
for [to maintain] the same; and consequently we have been pleased to grant you the
land called Ryana Jeem, in the village of Boodheal, in the said cusbe, measuring one g4q
quarter chigur of rupees in inam, respecting the ¢ Deotee,’ and this is the sunnud
thereof now forwarded to you. Let you and your heirs and successors, from generation
to generation, enjoy the said land, with all manuer of its products, and be happy. Let
this be known. Dated this 3rd day of the lunar month Rubi-il-Awul, Mootab Sood.

“ Entered.”

Moortub
Senl,

{vir) *This document, No. 2, is described in paragraph 1 of Memorandam Y. of the Report of 10ih
November 1847."

{vi11.) *The seal on the ongmal of No. 2 is the same as that on No. 1 .—See note {v1.)”

(1x.) *Tbis document, No. 3, is described in paragraph I of Memorandum XVIIL. of the Report of 10th
November 1817, :

(x.) “The seal on the original of No. 3 is the same as that on No. 1, described in note (vr)”
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“ No. 4. {x1.)

//.——-.\.
I

/ of
i’tlxesg?: Kil-jﬁ (xrn)
ledar.
\ Jeder
“To the respected Nursoo Annjee, Deshpande of the Cusba Unkle, Purgne Pasha-
349 pore, to whom writes Sedeshwur Myhe Punt Row, in the year Soorsun Khumus Mya-
tyeen vu Alif [a. . 1804]. Whereas you represented to have inam lease of the land
called Ryana Ruchuna, in the village of Sooldher, Talok Edergood, of the aforesaid
cusba, and on the south close by the said village; and whereupon we have been pleased
to grant you out of the aforesaid village the said land measuring fourteen anas, of Rs.
at the rate of Rs. 3 and 1 anna, being Rs. ; but the same being now settled at Ra.
27 : consequently, on payment of the aforesaid sum, you and your heirs, from genera-
tion to generation, enjoy the said land, with all manner of its products, thus granted to
you. Let this be known. Dated this 3rd day of Rabi-il-Avul, Moortub Sood.
“ Entered.”

Seal of
Moortub.

350 “ No. 5. (xm1.}

“ Rajshree Dhondo Ramchunder, Soobedar Purgne Pashapore, writes this to the
Muccudum of the village Sooldar, in the year Svorsun Suman Myatyeen vu Aluf [A. p.
1807]. Whereas land called Ruchuna Ryana, in the said village, was leased to Nursoo
Anajee Deshpande, on payment of Rs. 27. But, consequent upon a solicitation from
the said Nursoo Anajee Deshpande, the said sum of Rs. 27 is now remitted, and the
said land granted to him in absolute inam, which let him and Lis heirs, from genera-
tion to generation, enjoy. Retaining a copy of this suunud, cause the original to be

351 given to the said individual, to enable his enjoying the same. Let this be known.
Dated 29th of the lunar month Moortub Sood.
“ Entered.”

Muoortub
Seal.

“ No. 6. (x1v.)

“ To Rajshree Nursoo Anajee, Despande Cusba Uncle, Purgne Pashapoor, in whose
respected presence writes this Sedeshwur Myhe Punt Row with his compliments, in the
year Soorsun Isne Myatyen vu Alif [a. p. 1801]. To wit. Whereas, knowing you to
have been useful to the Government, out of the village Gooznah, of the aforesaid curiat,
the fullowing is given you in inam, viz :(—

“ The garden Jand previously leased to you, called Bhurum deo Putie, measuring }

352 chegur, on payment of Rs. 10. The said sum is now hereby remitted, and the
said land given to you in absolute inam. ‘The said § chegur fand was of the value
of .

(x1.) *This document, No. 4, is described in paragraph 1 of Memorandum VIIL. of the Report of the 10th
November 1847.”

(x11.) *The seal on the original of No. 4 is the same as that described in note {(v1.)”
(xtr.) *“This document, No. 5, is described in paragraph 3 of Memorandam VIIL of the Report of the
10th November 1847.”

(xtv.) “This document, No. 6, is deseribed in paragraph 1 of Memorandum XIII, of the Report of the 10th
November 1847.”
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“ The gardea land called Sesew Krishna, measuring } chegur, assessed at Rs. 15,
the said 3 chegur being hereby leased to you only on payment of Rs. 10 in inam.

“ The land called Kuralla, measuring } chegur, was given to you in inam, as per
separate sunnud. Adjoining the said grant there is 1 chegur of land called Rya-
dass, and Moodka Naree, of which 4 chegur wus previously given you in inam,
the other 3 chavur now given ip inam for Aftal Ghurree. 353

*“Thus making in all 1 chegur of land, of which # chegur in inam, and } chegar on

lease [as above mentioned]; und this is the sunnud thereof given to you. Let you and
your heirs, from generation to generation, enjoy the same, and be happy. Let this be
known. Dated 10th day of the lunar month Saban, Moortub Sood.

* Entered.”

Moortub
Seal.

“No. 7. (xv.)

Seal
of the Sir
Killedar.

(xv1.)

“To the respectable Nursoo Anajee, Deshpande, Cusba Unkle, Purgune Pashapore, to
whom writes Sedeshwur Muheepunt Row, in Soorsun Khumus Myatyeen vu Alef [a. b, 354
1804). Whereas you represented to have the honour of Deviee, with land in inam,
for [to maintain] the same, and consequently we have been pleased to grant you %
chigur (xvir.) of land called Sehpa Jyeen, and Sukhapa Khanaporee, in the village of
Uctingahall, of the aforesaid Cusba, in inam for the Devtee, and this is the sunnud thereof
forwarded to you. Let you and your heirs, from generation to generation, enjoy the
said land, with all manner of its products, and be happy. Let this be knuwn. Dated
3rd of the lunar month Rube-il-Avul, Moortub Socd.

¢ Entered.”

Moortub
Seal.

¢ No. 8. (xvu.)

“The Rajshree Dhoudoo Ramchunder Soobedar, Purgne Pashapore, writes this to 355
the Mokuddum of the Cusbe Uncle, in the year Soorsun Suman Myatyeen vu Alif [a. b.
1807). Whereas the Sursucbhad, having issued personal order to grant to the Rajshree
Nursoo Anajee new inam land of the value yielding Rs. 60 [annually), and to put him
in possession of the same by marking out its boundaries. Whereupon this sunnud is
issned to you, to mark out the boundaries, and report thera accordingly. The sunnuds
will hereafter Le forwarded to you. Let this be known. Dated this 16th day of the
lunar month Jilhez, Moortub Sood.”

Moortub
Seal,

(xv.) *This document, No. 7, is described in paragraph 1 of Memorandum V. of the Report of the lOth
November 1847. "

{(xvr.) “The seal on the original of No. 7 is the same as that of No. 1, described in note (v1.)"

{xvi1) “This should be } chigur.”

(xviir.) “This document, No. 8, is described in peragraph 1 of Memorandum IIL. in the Report of the
10th November 1847. "

n*
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“ No. 9. (xix.)

356 - « Rajshree Dhondoo Ramchunder Soobedar, Purgne Pashapore, writes this to the
Mucadum of the Ciriat Unkle, in Soorsun Suman Myateen vu Alif {a. ». 1807},
Whereas 3 anas of garden land called Savulge, in the said cusba, has been leased for
Rs. 74 to Rajshree Nursoo Anajee Deshpandi, he will enjoy the same from year to
year. On the receipt of this letter, taking its copy, give the original to the Deshpande,
to enable his.doing-so. _Let this be known, Dated 3rd of the lunar month Ramijau,
Moortub Sood.

- ¢ Entered.”

Moortub
Seal.

“ No. 10. (zx.)

Seal
" of the Sir
Killedar.

{xx1.)

357  “Rajshree Nursoo Anajee, Despande of the Curiat Ankle, Purgne Pashapore, in whose
respected presence writes Keshu Row Balcrustna, Sirsocbah Prant Carnatic. After
respects. In the year Soorsun Seet Myatyeen va Alif {a. p. 1805]. Whereas you
represented to the Sirsoobah to have some new land in inam on account of your being
useful to the Government ; and knowing you to have been of use to the Government,
we have been pleased to grant you lands out of the different villages in inam, in chugur,
as follows :—

~ % 10 anas chigar in the village of Mulapore.
6 anas chigar in the village of Boodechall, called Yah, including the garden, and
the water-well there built.

358 8 anag chigar in the village of Ackinghall, adjoining the % chigar granted to you

by Beeneewalla,
8 anas chigur in the village of Urbhang, of the value of Rs. 28.

2 chigar,

“ Making in all 2 chigar of land, has been granted to you in inam, and this is the
sunnud thereof forwarded to 'you. Let you and your heirs, from generation to genera-
tion, enjoy the same, and be happy. Let this be known. Dated this 5th day of the
lunar month Saval, What more to be written? Moortub Sood.

“* Entered.”
Moortub
Seal.

“No. 11. (xxm.)

359 «Aj Suvaree Rajshree Anund Row Ramchunder, Sirsoobedar Prant Carnatic,
writes this to the Naique and Patell of the village of Mudwal, of Cusba Unkle, Purgne

(x1x.) ““This document, No. 9, is described in parngraph ! of Memorandum IV. of the Report of 10th
November 1847.”

(xx) “This document, No. 10, is described in paragraph 1 of Memorandum VIL. of the Report of 10th
November 1847.”

(xx1.) ¢ The seal on the original of No. 10 is illegible, but it could not have been the seal of any Sir Kille-
dar, a8 Keshowrow Balkrishn never held such au office.”

(xx11.) “This document, No. 14, is described in paragraph 1 of Memorandum IX. of the Report of 10th
November 1847,
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Padshapore, in the Soorsun Suba Myatyeen vu Alif [a. b, 1806]. Whereas, out of the
land of ‘the aforesaid village § chigur, and which 4 chigur, amounting to Rs. 6-1} to

Rs. 3-1 per , making Rs 19 [per annum}], has been granted on lease to Rajshree
Nursoo Ansajee, Deshpande of the Cusba Uncle, aforesaid Purgue, let the said-indivi-
dual give the said sum, and enjoy the said land, from generation to generutmn, and
cause him to do so. Retaining copy of this sunnud, let its original be.given to the
suid individual, to enable his enjoying the same. Let there be no. dlfﬁculty as to further
suaoud annually, and no additional charge of any kind soever.  "Let this be known. 360
Dated 17th of the lunar moath Jama-de-la-Akhur, Mortub Sood.

“ Entered.”

Moortub
Seal,

“ No. 12. (xxm.)

“ Rajshree Dhondo Ramchunder, Soobedar Purgne Pashapore, writes this to the
Mocadums of the several villages of the Cusba Unkle, of the afuresaid Purgne, in the
year Soorsun Suman Myatyeen vu Alif (a. D, 1807]. Whereas the inams, &c. granted to
the Rajshree Nursoo Anajee Despande, by the Beenewalas, being continued, whilst
that granted by Rajshree Nursoo Guness being not so. The said individual [Nursoo 361
Anajee] having represented this to the presence of the Sirsooba. Whereupon | have
beenvommanded [by the Sircooba} to have the same continued to him, the said Des-
pande : and accordiugly this sunnud is forwarded, in erder to cause to be'continued to
the said Despande all the inams, &e. Retammtr copy of this sunnud; let the original
be given to the Despande.. Let this.be known. Dated 16th day of the lunar month
Jilhez, Moortub Sood.”

Moortub
Seal.

* MEMORANDUM.

“ The whole of the aforesaid land, beside another tract measuring 48 hones, in the
village of Kumbergee, [seized by the Collector of Belgaum, consequent upon the Inam 362
Comnittee’s report of the 10th November,] were duly confirmed to my ancestors by the
late General Munro, (xx1v.) and admitted as’ such by his snccessor Mr. Chaplin, then
Commissioner for the $ettlement of the Southern Mahratta Country (xxv.) Vide
exhibits No. 7 or 8 of my last representation to your Excellency in Council, dated 3rd
instant, (xxv1.) to which I beg respectfully to draw your Excellency’s attention. The 363

(xx1r.) “The original of this 12th document was not produced before the Inam Commissioner by Konher
Row, probably because it is evidently of no use as eyidence of title in any particular case, being merely a
general takeed from'a Comavisdar of Purgunne Padshapoor to the Mokuddums of the villages nnder him, for
the continuance of inama not specified.”

(xx1v.) “This assertion is not true. The only orders issued by Sir Thomas Munro with regard to the hold-
ings of the claimant’s family refer to his wguttuns. They are the 8th and 9th documents recorded in paragraph
7 of the Inam Commissicner’s Report of the 3rd February 1847, on Anajee Nursew’s title to Kublapoor, Wo-
teemuroo, and Kenchunhuttee.—Sed also paragfaph 10 of the same Report.”

{xxv.) ¢ This assertion is also untrue. Mr. Chaplin’s orders are sll recorded in paragraph 7 of the Report
on Kublapoor, &c. quoted in the last note, and considered in its 11th to 25th paragraphs.—See also the Inam
Commissioner's letter No. 589, dated 23rd June 1848, submitting to Government Konher Row’s appeal petmon
in the said case, and the notes on its two aecompaniments.”

(xxvr.) “The representation was originally dated 3rd February 1848, but with a postscript of the 16th
April following. A copy of this, with notes by the Inem Commissioner, forms one of the accompaniments to
the letter No. 589, of the 23rd June 1848, referved to in the preceding note ; snd the documenta referred to by
Konher Row will Le seen, on reference to it, to be of no use a3 evidence in favour of his claims to the land refer-
red to in this petition,” '
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last mentioned 48 hones of land in village I&umbergee was granted in mam to my
father by the Chinfaman Rao Saheb, and all inams granted by that Chief have been
stipulated,.by the Article 8 of the Treaty between the Company’s suthority and him, to

364 be duly respected by the former. (xxvit.} Nay, in the subsequent transfer on the part of
the Tulooka b\hapm’e to the Company’s authority, by Chintamun Row, the aforesaid
48 hones of dand in the said village Kumbergee, which is in the said Talooka Shapore,
along with othe?.grants he made to the other individual, &e. bemo' especially
excluded ; (xxvi11.) and my father, and after him myself continued en}uymu' the same
without interruption tll the other day.”

365  46. On the 27th October 1848 Konher Row Anajee addressed to the Right Honor-
able the Governor in Council a letter, reiterating the appeals already made by him
regarding the resumption of the three villages Kublapoor, Woteemuroo, and Kenchun-
hattee, as above described. It, and all the previously described proceedings in this case,
have how heen returned by Government to the Inam Commissioner, with a letter from
the Revenue Secretary, No. 2258, dated 31st March 1852, from which the following is
an extract:—

366 % Sin,—Government deemed it expedient to delay disposing of the case relative to
certain inams of Konher Row Anajee, until the passing of the propesed law for the
adjudication of claims td such estates.

“2. As the law referred to has now been passed as Act XI. of 1852, I have heen
directed to return to you the whole of the cases

Letter from you, No. 589, dated 23rd June o
1848, with accompaniments. as per margin, in order that they may be

lﬁltto ditto, No. 590, dated 26th June 1848, decided by you according to that law. Go-
with accompaniments.
Ditto ditto, No. 1205, dated 24th Novem- vernment have vow nothing to do in these

ber 1849. cases, except they come before them in appeal.”

47. Two of the cases enumerated in the margin of this letter were those to which
this Recapitulation relates.

W. HART,

Inam Commissioner.
Singhur, 5th April 1852.

{(xxvir.) *“If it were true that, as asserted by Konher Row, the Honorable Company’s Government had
guaranteed, by t.reaty or otherwise, the continuance;~in the districts lapsed or resumed from Chintamon Row’s
surinjam, of all fnams granted by that Chief while Sunn_}nmdar, the Inam Commissicner would have wronged
Konher Rowj;‘:lecldmg as he did, on the resumption 'of the land claimed by him it Kunburgee. Taking it for
granted that gn assertion so boldly made to Government by Konher Row must be true, the Inam Commissioner
felt much n{orhﬁed that he should have made a decision involving such injustice, [r.houu'h it was due to
Konhey Row's own neglect, in omitting at Brst to refer to the Treaty now cited by him,] and was prepared to
recommend to Government the reversal of his order. But on obtaining from the Political Agent a copy of the
Treaty ih question, he has been astonished by discovering that it does not, in any part of it, contain a syllable
to bear ont Konher Row's assertion to Government ; and of this he must have been well aware, as he is one of
Chintamun Row’s chief Karbarees, and acquainted with all his rights. The 8th Article of the Yad of Guarantee
[called by Konher Row & Trenty], issued by Government to Chintamun Row Putwurdhan, is ag follows :—

# %#8. Such of your surinjam villages and inam lands as may be situated in the Sirkar’s Illaqua shall
‘be continued according to past contiouance, witheut the occurrence of obstruction.’

The Inam Commissioner is of course rejniced ta find that he has not committed the injustice which would
have been the gase if the assertion about the Treaty mede in this petition had been true ; bat his satisfaction is
greatly qualified by the discovery that a person whom Government bas but lately distinguished, by advancing
him to the dignity of Sirdar, should have been guilty of what cannot possibly be regarded as anything but a
wilful, a deliberate, and en impudent falsehood.”

(xxvir) “ The accounts of Kuoburgee show that the land in question was held by Konher Row’s father
from the time the village was resumed until his death, but there was no special reservation of it made, ns
asserted by Konher Row. Mouza Kunburgee was nof resumed by Government st eny fized valuation, but
was part of a considerable district taken from Chintamun Row, in lieu of the contingent which he had objected
to fornish. Its nett revenue in the year of its resumptmn was Rg. 3,747-1-0, and in last year [A. . 184G-47]
Rs. 3,106-14-9.”
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RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS, o
§e. §e.

1. Tue Inam Commissioner in the Southern Mahratta Country passed decisions, R. p. 182
dated 3rd and 10th November 1847, declaring the villages and lands in question re- E;gf;g;d
sumable, and assessable as khalsat. These decisions were reported for the final orders R.p.237.
of Government, which were not, however, issued, but the cases were returned with R.p.365.
the above Government letter, for disposal under Act XI. of 18?2, which had mean- 2

while become law.

2. Asall the preliminary procedure preseribed by that Act for securing proper
notice of trial, &c. to the claimant, had already taken place, it seemed to the Inam
Commissioner that the only form still requisite for the purposes of equity, was to
give him notice that his title would be again considered, by his being allowed to
show cause for annulling or modifying the decrees already passed, and to produce
any fresh evidence he might have to offer. Meanwhile, on the 21st of June, Mr.
Dickenson addressed to the Inam Commissioner a note, inquiring if there was any
objection to his attending to plead for Konher Row, and was informed that there
was not; but that, when the papers relating to his long pending cases were obtained 3
from the various offices where they were scattered, Konher Row should receive
notice. On the 21st August 1852, the Inam Commissioner wrote to Konher Row,
informing him that he was, under orders from Government, prepared to reconsider
his former decrees of 1847, and inquired whether it would be most convenient to
him [Konher Row] that the correspondence relating to the contemplated proceedings
in review should be conducted in the Mahratta or English language. Konher Row
replied on the 7th September 1852, by a request for a delay of two months, which
was acceded to by the Inam Commissioner on the 23rd of the same month, but Kon-
her Row was, at the same time, pressed to reply to the question [which he had
ommitted to answer], as to whether or not hie wished any further correspondence 4
regarding his claims to be conducted in Mahratta or English. To this communica-
tion he did not reply until the 29th October 1852, when he stated that it would be
more convenient that such correspondence should be conducted in the English
lauguage.

3. On the 29th November 1852, the Inam Commissioner addressed to Konher
Row the following letter, No. 1325 :—

“ Sir,—With reference to your letter dated 15th Mohurrum [29th October 1852],
in reply to my Mahratta letter No. 661, dated 23rd September 1852, in which you
request me to correspond with you in the English language, and promise to send,
within two months, a statement in reply to the requisition which may be made by 5
me, I beg your attention to the following paragraphs :—

“2, It appears thatin a decree, No. 6, dated 3rd November 1847, a copy of
which was furnished to you, the Inam Commissioner in the Southern Mahratta
Country recorded his opipion that there was no reason fur continuing to the heirs of
your father, the late Anajee Nursew, the villages Kublapoor, Kenchuyhuttee, and

-
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Woteemuroo, which had been held by him, and were claimed by him as jooree inam,
A copy and translation of the decree in question are now annexed for easy reference.

6 “3. A reference to the Inam Commissioner’s proceedings held at the time shows
that his reasons for this opinion were, that Anajee Nursew’s title to the three villages
in question as hereditary inam was not recognised by competent authority under the
present Government; and further, that the circumstances under which they were origi-
nally obtained by, and subsequently continued to, the late holder’s family, were not
such as to justify their farther continuance; the original grants being such as must
be regarded as invalid, and there being neither sufficient recoguition by any compe-
tent officer to correct their invalidity, nor sufﬁclent enjoyment of a nature to create
any legal right by prescription.

7 «4, With regard to twenty pieces of land in pine villages of the Padshapoor
Talooka, held by the late Anajee Nursew, to which you, as his son, claimed to succeed
as Inamdar, the Inam Commissioner in the Southern Mahratta Country paesed a
decree, No. 8, on the 10th November 1847, [a copy or extract of which was given to
you,] in which he held that there were no just grounds for the continuance of the said

“lands as inam, but that the duftur accounts, on the contrary, showed that they should
be khalsat,

“5. A copy and translation of this decree are also attached.

“6. The proceedings of the Inam Commissioner in the Southern Mahratta
8 Country show that the grounds of this decree were the same as those described above
in the 3rd paragraph.

“7. Ibeg to inform you, that I shall be ready to receive from you, or your author-
ised agent, any statement which you may cause to be presented to me on or before
Tuesday the 25th Janunary 1853, showing reason for reversing or altering the decisions
recorded in the above decrees; and that I shall on that day, or as soon afterwards as
practicable, proceed to review those decrees, and to uphold, reverse, or modlfy their
terms, whether or not I receive the statement now requested.

“ 1 have the honour, &c.”

4. The English accompaniments to this letter were as follows :—

9  «1.—Translation of decree of the Inam Commission, §c., No. 6 of 1847, in the
Belgaum Collectorate.

“Mouza Kublapoor, Mouza Woteemuroo, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, in the
Padshapoor Talooka, being entered in the present Government's accounts as the

R. p. 2. jooree inam villages of Anajee Nursew, his kyfeeut [statement] and proofs in support
of his title to the said three villages were received by the Inam Commissioner ; but

during the investigation into that title Anajee Nursew died : on which the Collector

R.p. 88. of Belgaum wrote to the Inam Commissioner, wishing to know whether the villages
in question were to be continued or attached. In reply, the Collector was informed,

10 that pending the Inam Commissioner’s Report [on the tenure of the three villages]

to Government, and its final orders thereon, he was to continue the said Anajee
Nursew’s villages to his heir, who was, however, at the same time to be informed,

that this arrangement would neither increase nor diminish his title in the least; that
whatever orders Government might be pleased to issue would be carried into effect ;

and that the arrangement suggested would ensure the Government orders being

R. p. 89. carried into effect without any let or hinderance. From that day until the present
time the said three villages have been held in deposit [amanut] by the deceased

11 Anajee Nursew’s son Konher Row Anajee. The Inam Commissioner having subse-
quently completed the investigation into the tenure by which the said three villages

R. p- 90. were held, submitted to Government a report, duted 3rd February 1847, and which
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has now been returned, in order that the Inam Commissioner might pass a decision R.p.179.
on the claim. The following decision is therefore recorded :—

« Mouza Kublapoor, Mouza Woteemuroo, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, in Talooka
Padshapoor, of the Belgaum Collectorate, were enjoyed on jooree inam tenure by
Anpajee Nursew, who formerly, during the Inam Commissioner’s investigation, gave
in a kyfeeut or statement of the historp of the villages, together with documentary
evidence in support thereof, On a consideration of these, it appeared to the Joam Com- 12
missioner, that after the death of Anajee Nursew, the villages held by him ought not
to be continued in perpetuity to his heirs as hereditary inam ; and, as Anajee Nursew
is now dead, it is hereby decreed that the three villages, Mouza Kublapoor, Mouza

Woteemuroo, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee, shall be resumed, and treated as Govern-
ment khalsat villages.

(Signed) «“W. Harr,-
! * Commissioner.”

92, —Translation of the Decree of the Tnam Commission, §c., No.8 of 1847, in the
Belgaum Collectorate.

* Ta nine villages of the Padshapoor Talooka, in the Belgaum Collectorate, Anajee 13
Nursew, Deshpandey of Kuryat Ankule, held lands as personal inam, i. e. inams
exclusive of his wutiun. Anajee Nursew having died, his son Konher Row oorf Bajppoo
Saheb bin Anajee Punt, Deshpaudey, now claims the lands in question, as belonging
to him by right of inheritance. The lands thus claimed are detailed below : —

* 1.—In Cusba Aankulgee, Mahal Ankulgee: —

4 anas of a chigur of land, as eksalee inam, of which 3 anas are khooshkee [dry
crop), and 1 ana bagaeet [garden] land.

. 7 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop] land, as eksalee inam.

3 anas of a chigur of bagaeet [garden] land, as gootga inam. 14
3 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop] land, as eksalee inam.
In all one chigur, and one ana of a chigur.
« 9 —In Mouza Aktungeerhall, Mahal Ankulgee :—
4 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry erop] land, as eksalee inam.
4 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop] land, as eksalee inam,
8 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry erop] land, as eksalee inam.
In all one chigur of land.

«3.—In Mouza Sooludhall, Mahal Ankulgee, fourteen anas of a chigur of khoosh- 15

kee [dry crop] land, as gootga eksalee inam.

 4,—In Mouza Mudwall, Mahal Ankulgee, half a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop]

land, as gootga inam.

¢ 5.—In Mouza Arbhavee corf Dhawulhuttee, Mahal Ankulgee, half a chigar of

khooshkee [dry crop] land, as eksalee inam.
*“6.—In Mouza Kunburgee, Summut Dhamue, turree [irrigated] land, valued at
forty-eight hoons, as surv inam, the valueof each hoon in Company’s currency
being Rs. 1-12-0.

« 7.—In Mouza Mulhapoor, Mahal Ankulgee, ten anas of a chigur of khooshkee
[dry crop] land, as eksalee inam.

« 8.—In Mouza Goojunhall, Mahal Ankulgee :— 16

4 anas of a chigur of old gootga inam, now held as surv inam, of which two anas
are khooshkee [dry crop] land, and two anas bagaeet [garden} land.

4 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop] land, as gootga inam.
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8 anas of a chigur of khooshkee {dry crop] land, as eksalee inam.
8 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry erop] land, as eksalee inam.
In all one and a half chigur of land.
#9,—In Mouza Boodeehall, Talooka Gud, Illaka Koorundwar :—
4 anas of a chigur of khooshkee [dry crop] land, as eksalee inam.
17 4 anas of a chigur of khooshkee {dry crop] land, as eksalee inam.

6 anas of a chigur of land, as eksalee inam, of which three anas are khooshkee
{dry crop] land, and three anas bagaeet [garden] land.

1 ana of a chigur of khooshkee [dry erop] land, as eksalee inam.
In all fifteen anas of a chigur of land.

“In all twenty pieces of land, in nine villages, the inheritance of which, as inam,
is claimed.

*“ Regarding the abovementioned lands, Konher Row Anajee gave to the Inam
Commission a kyfeeut or statement, marked % and a tabular statement marked w,
18 which are recorded in the duftur; also, in support of the assertions therein made,
twelve documents, copies of which are recorded along with the kyfeeut or statement.

“ Besides the above twelve documents, which were given in as stated in the latter
part of the thirteenth clause [answer] of the kyfeeut referred to in the last paragraph,
fifteen other documents were given on a former occasion, and to seven of them Kon-

R.p.103. her Row Anajee now appeals as proof to strengthen his title. Copies of these fifteen

documents are recorded with the kvfeeut or statement, which was written by Konher

Row’s father, Anajee Punt, regarding the three villages Mouza Kublapoor, Mouza

19 Woteemuroo, and Muzzra Kenchunhuttee ; and as their purport is recorded in the

5‘1-5171-107 Inam Commissioner’s Report on those villages, it is not considered necessary to record
" them afresh in this case.

“ After an examination of the distriet and other accounts of the Paishwa’s Govern-
ment, and those of the present Government, aud after a full cousideration of the
assertions made, and documentary evidence produced by Konher Row Anajee, as well
as the evidence formerly adduced by Anajee Punt; bearing in mind, also, the facts set

R.p.3-85. forth in the Inam Commissioner’s letter to Government No. 251, dated 18th June
138"1’ 56- 1846, and the decision of Government, declared in its letter in reply, No. 3446, dated

20 26th September 1846, the Inam Commissioner places on record separate Iinglish
R.pp.193 memoranda of this day’s date, regarding the alleged inams enumerated above, and
=225, records the following decision :—

“In the nine villages above mentioned, twenty pieces of land were enjoyed by
Anajee Nursew, who is now dead. His heir gave in a kyfeeut, and adduced in proof
eertain . documents, which, however, do not afford any just grounds for the continu-
ance of the said landsas inam. Moreover, it appears to the Inam Commissioner, from
an examination of the Government accounts, and other papers in the dufiur, that the
said lands should be khalsat. And it is accordingly hereby decreed, that all the hold-

21 ings in'the nine villages, as enumerated above, shall be resumed, and henceforward
treated as Government khalsat.

(Signed) “ W. Hagr,

* Commissioner.”

5. Konher Row having appointed as Mooktiar S, S. Dickenson, Esquire, of the
Bombay Bar, that gentleman, on the 26th January 1853, forwarded to the Inum
Commissioner a remonstrance against his decisions of November 1847, of which the
following is a copy :—~
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:“The elaim of I_fo‘nerrow Anajee Deshponday to the Villuges of Kublapoor,
Kenchunhuttee, and Qoteemurroo, Juree Enam, and T wenty Pieces of
Land, in Nine Villages of the Padshapoor Talooka.

“[l.] The very general language used by the Enam Commissioner renders it 22
“ The grounds of the Enam Commissioner’s fhf‘ﬁcult to meet the ground on which his
decision. «« judgment may have proceeded, and it is sub-
_ “Anajee Nursew's title to the villages in  mijtred that as in these cases an appeal lies to

question as hereditary inam was not recognised .
by competent suthority under the present (Government, the Enam Commissioner should

Government ; and further, the circumstances ' Yol , WF p
under which they wore origically abeained. and nd distinctly what are the facts of the case,

subsequently continued to the late holder’s and then give his reasons, so that there Inay

family, were not such as to justify their further be distinct issues raised for submission to the
continuance, the original grants being such as . . . . _

must be regarded as invalid, and there being @ppellate tribunal, adopting, in this respect,
-either suflicient recognition by any compe- the practice of Courts administering Civil Law.
tent officer to correct their invahdity, nor suf- « cr s . . . )
ficient enjoyment of a nature to create any le- The title in this case may be divided into 23
gel right by prescription.” two branches—1s{, the original title derived
under the original sunnuds; 2ad, the title as established by Sir Thomas Munxo’s

sunnud, and Mr. Commissioner Chaplin’s decision.

“[2.] Before commenting on this case, I would respectfully submit that the new
Enam Act does not authorise the reinvestigation of titles already inquired into and dis-
posed of by Government [dnd I must consider the proccedings of Government and their
high officials as the same, lunless Government disapproved of them at the time]. That
were it otherwise, 2 party in\possession may be perpetually harrassed. If there has been
fraudulent concealment by § claimant, there might be some ground for a reinvestiga- 24
tion ; but otherwise, ] subm#t that the Enam Commissioner at the present day is not to
sit in appeal on Mr. Commissigner Chaplin’s proceedings in 1825 ; and my first defence
on the present case is the nature of what is called in law proceedings an estoppel :
that the matter was investigated in 1825, and a decision passed in my favour,

“[3.]1 1 would further urge, as a preliminary observation, that in deciding on the
validity of the acts of Government officers at a time when they were conquering or
settling newly acquired countries, it is nut competent for the Governinent to 25
confirm une part and repudiate another part of their proceedings. It is impossible
now to say what good effects were produced at the time by their proclamation ; their
ready recognition of rights; their reward of services then rendered; and it would
be a flagrant breach of faith to repudiate, after a country became settled, and the
Government became firmly seated in power, promises and concessions which may
have brought about that very settlement and consolidation of power.

“[4.] I will endeavour now to state what I believe to be undisputed facts ; and I
request, as regards each of them, that the Enam Cowmissioner will either admit their 26
correctness, or set out the evidence on which their correctness is impugned.

* 1.—The villages of Kublapoor and hamlet Uteemurroo were granted in reward
for services by the Beenewala to the present claimant’s grandfather, Narsing-
row, in perpetuity, as juree enam, the former paying Rs. 40, and the latter
Rs. 15 per annum, in Fuslee 1214 [a, p. 1804].

* 2.—Mouzay Kenchunhuttee was granted by a sunnud of the Beenewala in Fuslee
1211 [a. p. 1801), to Goerdappa, as juree enam, paying Rs. 5 annually ; and
this was transferred in Fuslee 1218 [a. p. 1808] to Nursingrow.

“3.—A suonud by Keshowrow Balcrustna in 1215 [a. p. 1805] remitted the 27
Rs. 40 anoual payment.

“ 4.,—A sunnud from Ramrow Pandoorung remitted the payment of Rs. 15.

¢ 5.—There has been uninterrupted possession held of these villuges as enam,
240 .
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“[5] Supposing the claimant’s title rested here, could it now be impeached by
Government? The Sirsoobhadar had, it is submitted, power to grant the two sunnuds.
He is one of the officers specially named as so authorised in Schedule C of Regula-
tion XVII of 1827. It is also submitted that the Soobhadars had the power to remit
the annual payments. ‘

28 «[6.] The Enam Commissioner says that the original grants were invalid; but
as he does not show why these were invalid, I am unable to meet his objections to
their validity, whatever they may be. The powers of a Sirsoobhadar and Soobhadar
were as well, probably better, known in 1827, than now; and a legislative declaration
made in 1827 is conclusive on this point; and it is wo imputation on the present
E jam Commissioner to say that Mr. Chaplin in 18256 was as conversant with the
powers of Sirsoobhadars as the Enam Commissioner in 1852.

“[7.] My second defence, then,is this—that my original title would have been
29 good, even if nothing had been done subsequently to the British Government succeed-
ing to the coustry.

“[8.] But this latter defence, though put forward in deference to the Enam Com-
missioner, is one into which I conceive I am not bound to enter, because the present
.claimant holds a sunnud from Sir Thomas. Munro, and a decision of Mr, Commis-
sioner Chaplin ; and this, therefore, is my third defence.

“[9.] Here,again, I am at a disadvantage inmeeling the Commissioner’s ohjections.

“[10.] I presume it is admitted that Sir Thomas Munro’s title, and Mr. Commis-
sioner Chaplin’s decision, if binding oo the Government, entitle the claimant to hold
30 the villages as claimed. This is implied in the Enam Commissioner’s finding, as his
objection is founded on the want of recognition of one having competeot authority.
This is the objection twice urged, and my aunswer to it is twofold :—

“ Ist.—That Sir Thomas Munro and Mr. Chaplin had competent authority to
recognise it,

¢ 2nd.—That even if they had not, as the Government took no measures to repu-
diate the acts of their officers at the time, they must at this distance of time
be held to have confirmed them,

“[11.] The first position is primé facie proved by Sir Thomas Munro’s acts.
His position was one requiring extensive and almost unlimited powers. It is not to
31 be presumed now that an officer of his standing and abilities exceeded those powers,
The grant of sunnuds was essentially within the general scope of his authority. The
Treaty between the Kolapoor Raja and the British Government of the 24th of Janu-
ary 1826, Article IV. [see Mr. Edwards’ Anglo-lndian Treaties, vol. i. page 488,]
shows that Sir Thomas Munro had the power of graoting sunnuds, as it refers to a
sunnnd of the districts of Chickoree and Munowlee by Sir Thomas Munro, and
acknowledges that the sunnud was effectual. But one of two positions must be con-
ceded,—1s¢, either Sir Thomas Munro had the power to grant a sunnud : if he had,
32 there is an end of the question; or, 224, he had not the power: in which case he
must have reported his proceedings to his superiors, and their acquiescence ratifies
his acts. On this part of the case 1 adopt the language of Mr. Chaplin, in his
decision of the 16th of November 1825:—*It is not necessary fur the Deshponduy
to produce any copies of sunnuds about the enam villages and lands, since he has
received sunnuds as above, after the country came under the British power.’
“[12.] Bateven ifthere could be any question respecting the power of Sir Thomas
Munro to grant the sunnud, surely the inquiry of Mr. Commissioner Chaplin, and
33 his proceedings, were not without authority. But, secondly, admitting for 2 moment
that neither Sir Thomas Munro ner Mr. Chaplin had the power contended for ; it is
not competent for the Government, after so long a lapse of time, to repudiate their
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acts. Government are bound by the laws regulating the relation of principal and
agent. Where an agent acts without authority, the principal cannot take the benefit,
and repudiate the disadvantage resulting from the acts. Moreover, it is the princi-
pal’s duty to repudiate the assumed authority. The Government knew the acts of
their officers, or, if they did not know them, they ought to have done so; and the
consequences of laches are just as applicable to Goveroment as to individuals—that, 34
irrespective of the effect of Sir Thomas Munro’s and Mr. Chaplin’s acts, and the conduct
of Government as determining the very technical question of authority, effect must be
given to them, as affecting the equity and justice of the case. They show that a
possession of upwards of forty years has, up to the present time, been considered as
legal; and it would require a very strong case on the part of Government to destroy
such a possession. The claim by Government is one that no court of law or equity
would for a moment recognise, and the Enam Act must be considered as one to legalize 35
confiscation if it annihilates rights so clearly established, so long enjoyed, and
secured by such guarantees.

“{13.] Mouzay Kenchunhuttee does uot appear to be included in Sir Thomas
Munro's sunnud, but the right to it was twice disposed of by Mr. Chaplin.

“[}4.] The above arguments and facts are equally applicable to twenty pieces of
land. .
“[15.] 1 beg that the Enam Commissioner will, in considering this case, also read
as part of the defence the letter submitted by the claimant to Government, dated 27th

October 1848,
) (Signed) “8S.S. DickEnson.
“ January 26th, 1853.”

6. The following is a copy of the letter of 27th October 1848, alluded to in the
last paragraph of the above remonstrance, with notes added by the Inam Commis- 36
sioner :—

“ To the Right Honorable Viscount FaLELAND,

Governor and President in Council.

“My Lorp,—I respectfully beg your Lordship’s cousideration of the following
statement regarding my claim to three villages, and some pieces of land, held in inam,
in the Padshapoor Talooka, of the Belgaum Collectorate, and enjoyed by my family
for three generations in a direct line of descent. _

“ 2. I have been dispossessed of my villages and land hy a decision of the Inam
Commission, against which I respectfully appeal to your Lordship in Council. That
decision will appear to have been unsatisfactory to your Lordship in Council, from the 37
fact that the proceedings of the Commission have not been as yet confirmed.

“3. I beg to give a brief history of my case, with a view to show how the above
three villages and lands came to my possession and enjoyment, and by what right and
title they have been so long continued, or allowed to remain in such possession.

‘“4. My grandfather, Nursoo Anajee, a Deshponday [district hereditary account-
ant] of the Purgunna Ankulgee, Talovka Padshapoor, of the Belgaum Collectorate,
was a person ol note and influence under the late Government of the Deccan, and, as
such, he, in addition to his ordinary duties, assisted the local authorities in the politi- 38
cal affairg of the State. It is well known that the Peshwas were in the habit of
leasing out their districts to individuals who they considered were able to manage
and keep the same in times of difficalty ; and so, (o) when they placed the districts

(a) *This assertion, which follows ‘and so,” wonld be & non sequifur, even if the facts asserted were
true, but the records show that the Beenewala was a Mamlatdar of Padshapoor [never a Sursoobhedar]
mauy years before the period of grant to which Konher Row alludes. It will be seen, on a reference to the
Inam Commissioner’s Report of 3rd February 1847, that some of the grants attributed to the Beenewala
were made when he was a Mamlutdar, and others when he had not even that suthority, but was holding
the Purgunna [if he held it st all] eontrary to the Paishwa’s orders.”
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in which my grandfither was an officer under the management of one Sideshwur,
Mahiput Row Beeneewallay, designated the ‘Sirsoobhadar of the Padshapoor Talooka,
there sprung up an insurrection, which my late grandfather, though not a military
officer, undertook to put down ; and he accordingly took the field at his own expense,
and with great personal risk and expenditure of money restored the country to
39 tranquillity, and thus conferred a great and acknowledged benefit on his Government
and country. In reward of those services, and according to the custom of the late
Government to reward services with inams and jahageers, &e. &ec. of lands and
villages, my graudfather was presented with three villages ; and some pieces of land in
inam grants, presents, and rewards, &c., made by the Mamlutdars, Scobhadars, and
Sirsoobhadars of the late Government, to individuals for having rendered services to
Government, were and are still recognised by the late and present Governments to
be legal () and valid. The above named Sirsocbhadar, in consideration of my
grandfather’s services, and fully empowered so to do by the late Government, granted
to my grandfather in A. p. 1804, three villages under the joodee inam tenare, viz. :—

40 “ Mowjay Kublapoor, subject to annual rent of Rs. 40
' ’ Oteemadavoo, . ” » » 18
" Kenchunhuttee, » » " .y D

¢ In addition to the .above, the same Sirsoobhadar, in the same year, granted in
inam a piece of land measuring 2§ chigurs and 3 anas, and his successor Anundrow
Sirsoobhadar granted in addition 3 chigurs and 1 ana. All these grants were
conferred upon my grandfather by several sunnuds, and were granted in perpetuity
from generation to generation. In the following year [1805] a Mamlutdar of the
Talooka, named Kessow Row Balkristna, (c) granted another sunnud, remitting the
payment of the first tax of Rs. 40. Ram Rao Pandoorung, a successor to the above,
remitted, in 1811, the payment of Rs. 15, of the second villaage.

41 «5. These sunnuds were acted upon, by giving under them uninterrupted enjoyment
to my grandfather of the above property during his life. On his demise, the same
came to the hands of my father, who rendered valuable assistance to the late General
Munro, in taking the fort of Belgaum. That officer was then the superior aathority
or representative of the British Goverament. In that capacity, General Munro, on
25th May 1318, on the spot, renewed and counfirmed the above inam under his own
haud, by a docament hereto subjoined and endorsed, on which is the following certi-
ficate in the English language, in the handwriting of General Munro ; that is tosay : —

42 ¢The lnamdar having been very useful during the siege of Belgaum, I have directed
his villages of Burrumhuttee and Kublapoor, with the separate lands, to be continued
by the Company’s Amildaree, in the same manner as under the Peshwa’s Govern-
ment.—THomas Munro.’ (p) Shortly afterwards, Mr. Commissioner Chaplin in-
vestigated the above matter, whilst he examined the claims of other individuals in
the same country, and recorded his recognition of our title in 1819. This was
communicated to my father by the late Mr. Nisbet, Principal Collector and Political

(8) “Such grants can only be regarded as valid when allowed for in the Government accounts; but, as
shown in the Report of 3rd February 1847, the grants disallowed by the Inam Commission were such as
were not so allowed for in the accounts of later date forthcoming. None of the officers here mentioned by
Konher Row had, of themselves, any authority to alienate Government revenue in perpetuity, and any
recognition of their acts in 8o doing must depend on the subsequent approval of competent sutherity, which
never existed in the cases regarding which Konher Row appeals. The Beenewala, who is named as a
Sursocbhedar, never was one ; and none of the grauts brought forward were made by any officer fully
empowered to graat in perpetnity.”

(¢) *“Kesowrow Balkrishn was Sarsoobhedar of the Carnatic, but had no authority to alienate
Government revenue.”

(p) *The force of Sir T. Munro’s order has been considered by the Inam Commissioner in his Report
of 3rd Febroary 1847. It is here misrepresented,”
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Agent at Dharwar, in a Mahratta document, in the year 1825, an English translation-
whereof is appended. This is confirmed by another document, lately discovered by

me, showing that the same decision bad been sent to be recorded in the Collector’s-

dufter at Dharwar in 1825. As it is the same in purport as that communicated by 43

Mr. Nishet [with the omission only of the last paragraph}, it is not herewith submitted

at length ; () but the omitted paragraph is translated and hereto appended. This
inam, so long peaceably enjoyed by my late father, and afterwards by myself, I was R.pp. 86-
lately dispossessed of by two decisions of the Inam Commission in the Southern 88.
Mahratta Country. The one relating to the villages is dated 3rd November 1847,

and the other, relating to the pieces of land, is dated the 10th November 1847.

*“6. The first decision, as I can infer [from the extract the Committee has given
me), is based upon no other grounds, except that ‘it did not appear to the Committee 44
from the statement [meaning the answers which my late father gave to certain queries
as to how the inam was obtained by him] the late incumbent gave that it should be coa-
tinued to his son, the present claimant.” The other decision states for its ground, ¢ that
the present incumbent, who is the heir of the late incumbent, showed no cause for con-
tinuing the ground to him.” Against these decisions I made an appeal to Govern-
ment. (F) ' _

“7. Itnow appears by a recent communication of Mr. Hart, one of the Inam R.p.277,
Commissioners, that the above decision regarding the villages was reversed by &P.p.7.
Goverument, (¢) who he states have ordered a reinvestigation to be made into the R.p.275.
matter, In the same communication he submitted three interrogatories to be answered 45
by me, and I did so accordingly. These interrogatories, which seem to be the basis of
his report to Government, and the grounds of his conclusions, are stated below :—

“ Query 1st.—Your father’s Ayfeeut [statement or deposition] is shown to you:

if you have to state anything more, you may please to do so.

“ 2nd.—The person that gave you the above three villages in inam was not legally
authorised to do so, and the villages he gave were never confirmed by the
Peshwa’s Government, and never recorded in the Hoozoor [ Peshwa’s] accounts:
how can, therefore, your right to them be established ?

* 3rd.—Now, nq competent authority of the East India Company has recognised 4g
your right, by which you can set up your claim to them. What have you to
say to this dispute, and how and by what proofs do you substantiate the same?

“8. The answer to these queries is simple enough : —

“ It must be remembered that the grantor wasa Sirscobhadar, and as such he [as

well as others of his rank who bestowed innumerable grants in inam in the same and
other purgunnas under the same Goverament] had full authority to do so, A Sir-
svobhadar in those days discharged the functions of Governor, Commissioner General,
and in fact all the duties of the civil, military, and political departments. There were 47

(e) *This document of 1826, not 1825, is the one whick was submitted with the Inam Commissioner’s
letter No. 251, of i8th June 1846, and the force of which was determined by Government, ss intimated in -
the Chief Secretary’s letter No. 3446, dated 26th September following, to be werely that of a Duftur-
dar’s Report.”

(¥) *“The Inam Commissioner’s rgasons were briefly explained to Konher Row to be—1af, want of origi-
nal valid title, under the grant of a competent authority ; 2nd, want of specific recognition by such authority,
of such a nature as to cure the original invalidity ; and 3rd, want of prescriptive enjoyment.—Ses, with regard
to the three villages, the Inam Commissioner's letter to Konher Row, dated 7th April 1848. The. mivor
inama having been obtained in a similar manner, no more specific intimation was given regarding the reason
for their discontinuance than is tecorded in the decree. The Iuam Commissioner's records do not show
whether a copy of the whole of this decree, or an extract only, was at the time furnished to Konber Row;
but & copy of the whole was sent to bim with the Inam Commissioner’s letter No. 1325, dated 29th Novem-
ber 1832, in which, aleo, the above reasons for rejecting his claim are recapitulated.”

(6}  Konher Row alludes to the Inam Commissioner’s letter of the 7th April 1848, in which he-
informs Konher Row that Government, ¢ without confirming’ his decision, had ordered a further reference to
be made. No communication from the Inam Commissioner stated that his decision had been reversed.”

g00
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no regulations enacted for his guidance ; his words and acts were laws. . A Sirsogbha-
dar was responsible to the Peshwa’s Government for the revenue of the districts
placed under him, and he was therefore responsible for the revenue of these villages
and lands also. Had he pot obtained the Government's sanction to dispose of
them in the manner he did, the Government would not have continued them to the

grantee. (1)
“9. Besides, this inam was given for hazardous and arduous services, which the
grantee rendered to his Government and country. The system or mode of keeping
the records of the Peshwa’s dufter, or of their local functionaries, was very inferior in
48 point of accuracy to the organization of the British Guvernment. It would appear.
by the 2nd query, that the late Government never recorded in their accounts these
and other villages given in inam by the Sirsoobhedar ; bat it would be hard to deprive
me of my villages upon the mere ground of such omission. If it he true that Govern-
ment left the disposal of rewards, &e. to their Sirseolbhadars, for services rendered to
Government, without requiring the same to be submitted to them to obtain their ¢ou-
firmation, (1) then the absence of such confirmation in the dufteris far from conclusive
against me. If the custom of recording the grant of Sirsvobhadars in the Govern-
ment dufter was general, there might be some foree (x) in the argument; but the ¢on-
49 trary is notoriouns. I cannot be expected to account for their absence at this distance
of time; but this fact is worth a thousand arguments, that not ounly in the time of
the Peshwas, but ever since the accession of the British power, down to the time of
the attachment by the Inam Commission, my family and myself enjoved an uninter-
rupted possession of the villages and lands for a period of upwards of forry-three
years: (L) my father was a Sirdar of the 2nd class, (&) and my name, also, is enrvlied
in the privilege list amongst the men of my father's class, since | had 1he honour of
assisting the British Government during the late disturbance of 1845, in the Kola-
poor territory.

“10. There are other facts which establish m¥ claim. In the year 1818 the late
50 Honorable Mr. Elphinstone enacted certain rules, by which the inams granted prior to
the year 1803 were to be continued according to their sunnuds, anil those that were
granted since that period should be continued for the lives of their holders; but
although my inams were granted in the year 1804, vet it has been decided by his
authority, as well as that of Mr. Commissioner Chaplin in 1825, that in (x) con-
sideration of my father’s services, and his gallunt conduct duving the siege of the fort
of Belgaum, this regulation should not be applied to his case, but that the inams shoald
be enjoyed by him and his family, in the same manuer as if they were grauted prior
to 1803. The object of this resolution will be found in Mr, Nisbet’s communica-
tion, herein above submitted.

(g) ‘Most of the alleged grants were made by the Beenewals, who was not a Sursoobhedar; but, at
all events, the powers of the latter officer are here overrated. A Sursoobbedar had 1o inbereat right to alten-
ate; and as for the fact appealed to at the close of Konher Row’s 5th paragraph, as a proof of the Sursoo-
bhedar’s powers, it is incorrect, as the Government accounts did nof affow for one of the arants which Ron-
her Row claims, aud, therefore, however they may have been continued, it was not by the Government.”

(1) * But this was not the case.”

(k) “Such grants, when epproved of, were ndmitted into the Government accounts, whether made by
Sursoobbedars or inferior officers. Some grants made by the Beenewala were admitted into the accounts of
Padshapoor ; but none of those disallowed by the Inam Commissioner were of that number.”

(L) “None of the villages, lands, &c. to which Konher Row's letter alludes, had heen held for twenty,
years before the introduction of the present Government, and none were continuable under any rules siuce
existing, at any rate longer than during the life-time of Aunjee Nursew.”

(M) *“The character of Konher Row’s father is searcely sueh as to help his claim. Iz is notorious as
having defrauded Government in matters unconnected with the present question,”’

{n) < No such decision was made by either Mr. Elphinstone or Mr Ciaplin as Commissioner. —See
Report by Inam Commissioner of 3rd February 1847.”
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“ 11, Yo explain the question more fully,.and to avoid the tronble of referring 51
tu the old records, I beg to state that the Mahratta part of General Munro’s sun-
nud issued ander his hand dnted 27th May 1813, contains an expression (v) that ¢
consideration of the report of Shree Neewas Rao, Mamlutdar, representing that the tzLa :
villages of Bhurmunhuttce and Kublapoor, and lands in Chahoor, granted in inam by R.p.115,
the Beeneewalluy, have been continued, this sunnud is issued, wher ehy you [meaning my $p- M.
Jather] are to enjoy the inam and wuttuh happily. They, as heretafore enjoyed, will
be continued as long as the Company’s Government will exist.

“12. The late Mr. Commissioner Chaplin gave an order in the name of Nilkant
Rao, Mamlutdar, dated the 18th December 1818, (r) the purport of which is, that 52
the enjoyment of the inam villages and Iands of my futher should not be interrupted,
and to continue them to him without objection,

“13. The same gentleman wrote an order, dated the 17th July 1819, to the address
of Timmapa, Mamlutdar of the Talooka Padshapoor, purporting that an order was
received to levy a higher * rate of assessment on the new villages and lands of Akly
Kuryat, enjoyed by Anajee Nursew Deshponday, and to sequestrate the village of
Oteemudvoo ; but his brother Nilkuntrow forwarded to the Hoozuor the sunnuds, &e.
issued by the General Saheb, and they, having been brought under perusal, you arc
ordered, that in pursuance to the regulation now in furce, the higher rate of asscss- 53
ment levied is to be valid ; but as the General Saheb has issued a suunud, they must
be continued accordingly. The new lands and villages assessed higher than before
are exempted from the increase. You should continue the village IKublapoor, which
was under sequestration, and raise no objection to the enjoyment of the new villages
and lands.  Continue them accordingly.’

“14.  The above gentleman again issued another order, dated the 3rd December
1819, to the address of Timmapa Maalutdar, purporting that ¢ Chikuldinee Goodnapa
Naik bhad granted to Anajec Nursew Deshponday the vitlage of Kenchunhuttee in
inam, which was granted to him [the former] by Beeneewallay. Now the village and 54
wullun are, according to order, resumed. And he brought to the notice of the Huozoor
thut they were enjoyed in inam for ten or eleven years, and sent a kyfeeut [depositiou],
as | required, with a petition. They are brought under perusal. The said village
was granted to Chikuldenewnllay by Beeneewallay, and the former granted to Anajee
Nursew Deshponduy. The sunuud of Beeneewallay granted to Chikuldenewallay
about the villuge of Kenchunhuttee, and that which the latter has granted to him, are
with him. v adr]n).n to this, it has been enjoyed for ten or eleven years. The
resumed villuge is no'w ordered to be coutinued to the Deshponday, and you should
do accordingly.’ ‘

“15.  In explanation of -the matter above represented, I beg to observe that the 55
Regulation XVIL of 1827, Section XXX VI, of the Bombay Code, applied to the
Southern Mahratta Country by the Regulation V1I. of 1830, enhances my claim ()
by its expression that * whenever the title to hold any land exempt, wholly or in parrt,
from the payment of public revenue, shall have been clearly recognised by the present

(o) *The translation here given by Konher Row is incorrect, Sir T. Munro’s order is translated as
the Oth document deseribed in paragraph 7, and its force considered in paragraph 10, of the Inam
Commissioner’s Report of 3rd February 1847."

(¢} “Mr. Chaplin was not Cummissioner at the date heve mentioned. The orders mentioned bere, and
in the next two paragraphs of Konher Kow's petition, were made by the Priucipal Collector of Dharwar.
Their puzport, as shown in the Inam Commissioner’s former Report, was never approved of by Mr. Chaplin
as Counnissioner.”’

(a) * Althnugh the chn‘lntlons quoted do not apply to the Southern Mahratta Country in the matter -
of inmus, the principle put forward by Konher Row is as fair as it they did, and sagrees with that of Rules
I and 2 of Sehedule B of Act X1. of 1852,  Bat, unfortanately, there has been no clear recoguition by auy
authorised officer in the case of the villages and lauds claimed by Konher Row.”
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or any former Government, or by any public officer possessed under a former
Government of full and sufficient authority to grant deeds exempting land from the
payment of public revenue, such recognition shall be understood to have cured all
defects to the extent of such recognition, and be in so far admitted as a sufficient title
56 to the exemption’; and I also beg to add, that this inam being one which was recog-
nised as having been actually bestowed upon my grandfather by a Sirscobhadar, who,
according to the Appendix C of the same Regulation referred to in Section XXXIX.
Clause Ist, was fully and sufficiently possessed of authority to make such grants; (r)
and as, by the Clause 3rd of Section XXXV, of the above Regulation, it is enjoined
that ‘enjoyment of such exemption for fwelve years antecedent to the date when the
territory in which the land is situated came into the possession of the British Govern-
ment shall be considered as equivalent to enjoyment for sizty years, as specified in
the preceding Clause.” I beg to recall to your Lordship’s memory that the sunnud
57 granted by General Munro, in which he states that my father assisted him in taking
the fort of Belgaum, is dated 25th May 1818. As the sunnud was written long after
the country was taken possession of by General Munro, it may be presumed that it
was at least one year before its date, & e. the year 1817. Twelve years prior to that
would be 1806 or 1805; but as the sunnud of the Beeneewallay was executed in 1804,
my claim to the above property cannot, I respectfully submit, be fairly objected to.

“16. It would appear that Regulation VI. of 1833, being a Supplement to the
Regulation XVIL. of 1827, was enacted upon the principles of Mr. Elphinstone's
58 Rules above cited. It is laid down in Section I. of the said Supplement, that ¢ In
modification of such parts of Clauses 2nd and 3rd Section XXXV., Clauses Ist aud 2nd
Section XXXVI. Regulation XVII, Chapter IX. a. p. 1827, as prescribed 60 years
as the term of possession of land wholly or partially exempt from the payment of
revenue required to confer a title, it is hereby declared, that possession such as is therein
contemplated for a period of 30 years shall constitute a title of the same nature as
possession for 60 years previous to the promulgation of this Regulation.” According
to the provisions of this Clause, my predecessors should have possessed the villages
and lands in or before the year 1803 ; but as the above Regulation was framed upon
59 the principles of those rules which were set aside in favour of my family, and to
which my case formed the exception by favour of the framers themselves of the above
rules, the rules which were so departed from in favour of my ancestor cannot now be
applied to my case, which was from the first withdrawn from their operation.

*“17. The Inam Committee does not seem to dispute my possession for the period
I have set forth as above, but rather to doubt the authority of the grantor to bestow
the inams on my grandfather. As I bave shown, I trust sufficiently, that the
grantor was a person recoguised by law as having possessed full anthority to do so,

60 it is unnecessary for me to repeat arguments on that head. Supposing, however, for
the sake of argument, that he was not a person lawfully” empowered to bestow the
grant in question, still my security is, that the British authorities or representatives
on the spot not only recognised the validity of such grants, but also themselves con-
sented to continue my inams, and renewed and confirmed them, because they were
bestowed by persons and for purposes acknowledged by the British authorities to be
legitimate.

“18. It may not be here ont of place to remark, that at the time the British
Government was introduced into the country, few Natives of the newly acquired terri-
tory could be supposed to know much about a Presideney or seat of Government,

61 from which high functionaries like General Munro and Mr. Chaplin were to obtain

(=) *Itis by a misprint that in the Appendix quoted, Sursoobhedars Zater than 1803 were entered as

competent suthorities. This is evident from a comparison of the corresponding A ppendix of Kegulation I.

of o. . 1823, from which it was transferred, and Mr. Elpiinstone’s Rulesof 4. n. 1819, en which both
were founded.”
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instructions to coiifirny the grants in question. All that T or my late father desived
was. the possession end enjoyment of the villages and lands for our own benefit, and,
as Jong they were so allowed to bé retained by us, we remained quite contented.

“19. 1 also beg, in conclusion, to draw your Lordship’s attention to the fact thag
my grandfuther, my father, and myself, have successively and successfully rendered
very important services to the late and preéent Governments, often at the risk of life,
and nalways at considerable expeuse: there is nothing unreasonable, therefore, in a
family which has been so useful to their Government and country veceiving from the g2
grace and Lounty of Giovernment such rewards as were conferred upon us for services
rendered by my family three generations ago,

“ 20, Under these circumstances, I beg most respectfully that Government will
be pleased to bestow its liberal consideration on the subject herein represented, and
humbly pray that your Lorclalup in Council will. do me the justice of ordering the
local authorities to restore to me my villages, together with whatever revenue may
have been realised iy the Collector [vom thetime of the attachment by the Commitiee ;
with instructions to continue to my family, in accordance with the several sunnuds,
the three villages of Kublapoor, Burmunhuttee, and Kenchunhutiee, as also lands 63
wmeasuring 6 chohoors and 1 ana. My rank entitles me to have all correspondence
regarding me and my villages carried on through the Political Agent and the
Political Secretary to Government, instead of through the Collector and lis Assistants
in the Revenue Department ; and 1 respectfully -beg, therefore, that my name being
included in the privileged list of Sirdar S Government may kindly issue instructions
to truusfer and conduct the same in the manner prescribed in such cases.

¢ ] have the lionour to remain,
“My Lord,
“Your Lordship’s most obedient and falthful Servant, 64
“ g FEETUT TS LNUCE 90
NEFWIN ATES VETIHYI faat Featia.
“KoNneuge Row ANAJEE,
“ Deshponday Purgunna Ankulgee, Talooka Padshapoor, Zilla Belgaum.
*“ Shakapoor, near Belgaum, 27th October 1848.”

7. [Iavmg tuken info consideration the whole of - the papers recorded throughout
the investigation of Anajee Nursew’s and his son Konher Row’s claims to the villages
and lands under question, the Inam Commissioner records, with especial reference to
the Remonstrance of 26th Januvary 1853, the fullowing Minute, containing his final
finding and judgment in the case :—

. MinuTE.

I. With regard to what is stated in the Ist parau-raph of the Remonstrance 65
forwarded by Mr. Dickenson on the 26th Jauuary 1853, I am of opinion, that as
Konher Row is aware of the nature of the assertions made by his father with regard
© to the villages Kublapoor, Woteemuroo, and Kenchunhuttee, and those made: by
himselfas regards the twenty picces of land claimed as hereditary inam in nine villages
of Padshapoor, the language of the original decree, which is taken as the basis of-
his Mooktiar’s remonstrance in the case of the former, seems sufficiently precise to
show on what grounds the Inam Commissioner thought it necessary to disallow Kon-
her Row’s title to succecd as Inamdar. The grounds, as shown in the decree, involve 66
the following puints, as found by the Inam Commissioner, viz. that—

1. None of the officers of the late Government asserted by the claimant fo

huve made the grants, or exteuded tliem,’lad, at the alleged date of grant,

authority toalienate Government revenue in perpetuity.
“l
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2. The invalidity of the grants alleged to have been made by those officers was
ot cured by the subsequent specific recognition of authority competent to so
alienate Government revenue ; which opinion of the Inam Commissioner
involves an alternative of two suppositions, viz :—

67 1st.—Either that the documents put forward by the claimant as proof of
recognition do not prove such specific recognition as to give hereditary
right to a person holding under invalid title deeds.

2nd.—Or that [if they do contain terms of sufficiently specific recognition for
this purpose] they did not emanate from a competent authority.

3. The alleged inams had not been held in the manner, and for the length of time,
sufficient to create any degree of prescriptive right, i. e. they had not been
undisputedly held through one direct descent, and forty years before the

68 introduction of the present Governmeat.

The terms of the Inam Commissioner’s original decision in the case of the twenty
minor inams was less precise, but Konher Row has since been distinetly informed
that its grounds were the same. The above remarks dispose generally of the two
heads of title here brought forward by the remonstrant. They will, however, be
noticed more particularly below.

II. The remonstrant commences his first plea, that of estoppel, by arguing that
*“the new Inam Act does not authorise the reinvestigation of titles already inquired
into and disposed of by Governmeut.” Now the Inam Act [XL of 1852] provides

69 for the investigation of all titles of persons holding or claiming inams, &e. One of

its rules is that any lands held under a specific and absolute decluration by competent
authority are to be continued according to the purport of such declaration; and it ig
apparently on this rule that the remonstrant seeks to base one of his divisions of title.
But without investigation, it would be evidently impossible to determine whether or
not the rule applies. Had the remonstrant argued that the Inam Act does not
authorise the disturbance of a title guaranteed by the specific and absolute declara-
tion of any competent authority under the present Government, it would have been an

70 unexceptionable argument ; and I shall therefore consider that it is urged on Konher

Row’s behalf. This is, however, an argumeant which cannot be received as stupping
investigation, since it requires an investigation of facts to test its validity.

ITI.  The remonstrant’s plea in estoppel is defective, in that it is based on question-
able assertions, viz :—

1. That the question of his title has been decided by Government, or competent

authority.

2. That the proceedings of Government and their high officials are the same.

The remonstrant particularly specifies Sit T. Munro and Mr. Commissioner
Chaplin.

71 3. That io investigating Anajee Nursew’s title the Inam Commissioner would be
sitting in appeal on Mr. Commissioner Chaplin's proceedings in 1825.

4. That the'matter now in question was finally decided in a. b, 1825.

The beauty of a good plea in estoppel seems to me that it should, by a statement
of patent facts, obviate the possibility of its assertions being questioned ; and such
statement the remonstrant has fuiled to submit.

1V.  As the above arrangement of assertions, which is that followed by the remon-
strant, commences with generalities, and goes on to particulars, I think it will be more
convenient, in explaining my reason for calling them * questionable,” to take them

72 up in reversed order.

V. With regard to the final decision of a. p. 1825, asserted to have leen passed

by the Commissioner,  and which, in another part of the remonstrance, is said to be
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one dated 16th November 1823, I find the supposed decision to have been contained

in “a yad sent to Dharwar from the duftur of the Commissioner’s cutcherry, on the

16th November 1826,” after the recall of the Dececan Commission ; an extract

from which yad was filed by Anajee Nursew in the Inam Commission office. This

yad referred to the holdings of all the Zumeendars of Padshapoor ; and, on the
original being submitted to Government, with an inquiry as to the force to be
attributed to it, Government declared that it was to be regarded only “ as a Report 73

of the Government [late Commissioner’s] Dufturdar,” and that nothing more was R.p. 87.
intended by forwrding it to Dharwar than to ¢ refer the questions it treats of

for the further consideration of the Principal Collector.”

VI. So far from the Commissioner in the Deccan having come to any decision
in Anajee Nursew's favour in A. p. 1825, 1 find the following facts proved by the
Government records. In a. p. 1821, the Principal Collector o[' Dharwar, in reply to R.p, 7.
inquiries instituted by the Commissioner, Mr. Chaplin, regarding certain villages
entered in his [the Principal Collector’s] returns, &e. as inum, and otherwise, submnitted
an explanatory statement, in which he gave, regarding the villages Kublapoor, 74
Woteemuroo, and Kenchunhuttee, much the same account as that given to the Inam
Commission by Anajee Nursew. On the 10th August 1824 Mr. Chaplin replied R. p. 13.
that the explanation submitted by the Principal Collector was at variance with the Poona
duftur, and that * the propriety of eontinuing those lands and villages to the holders
appears very questionable.” The villages to which the above remark of Mr, Chaplin
related included Kublapoor, Woteemuroo, and Kencliunhuttee, claimed by Anajee
Nursew, Deshpandey of Ankulgee; and the Principal Collector was ordered to send
further explansition, and copies of snnnuds, &e. to the Commissioner’s cutcherry. This 75
call was not obeyed until the 4th April 1826 ; so thatitis clear that the Commissiuner R. p. 29.
eould not have eome to any final decision in 1825. It was in acknowledgment
of, and in veply to, the Principal Collector's Report of 4th April 1826, giving cover
to the copies of sunnuds, &e. which had been required by the Commissioner’s letter
of the 10th August 1824, thit the yad of 16ih November 1826 was forwarded to the R. p. 63.
Principal Collector of Dharwar after Mr. Chaplin’s departure, by the Sub-Secretary
to Giovernment, who mentioned the yal as an “enclosed Mahratta paper drawn
up by the Government Dufturdar”; and, us stated above, it has been determined by 76
Government, that this paper is not to be regalded in the light of a decision.

VII. The consideration of this fourth assertion in the plea of estoppel has brought
me to that of the third, which is also disposed of abouve ; for as it is clear that Mr.
Chaplin not only gave no final decision as to Arlajee Nursew’s claims in 1825,
but that, when he left the Deccan Commission in s, p. 1826, they were still
undisposed of'; sv it is clear, that in continuing an investigation of these claims, the
Inam Comuission is not sitting in appeal on Mr. Chaplin’s proceedings, but continu-
ing them,

VIII. With regard to the second assertion set forth above, it has already, in
another case, been decided by ultimate authority that Mr, Chaplin, as Commissioner, 77
had **no anthority to perpetuate the improper alienation of Government lunds” ; and
the following extract of paragraphs 5.and 6 of a létter from the Supreme Govern-
ment of India to the Bombay Governmeot, dated 15th July 1820, shows that this
decision was by no means the promulgation of a novel idea regarding the authority
of thut gentleman :—-

“5. The office held by Mr. Chaplin is, in His Lordship’s estimation,
essentially different from that of the late (.omlmsswner, or that of the former
Residents at Pooua.

“6. The late Commissioner was the actual and ostensible Governor of the
country, acting under the general control of a distant and invisible supreme 78
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power, which exercised very little interference, and reposed due and implicit
confilence in Lis judgment and lucal experience. Mr. Chaplin is acting under
the immediate superintendence and minute control of a proximate Presidency,
and it must be universally nnderstood througloat the conutry, that the ruling
power accompanied Mr. Elplinstone to the seat of his Government.”

So that, were it evident that Mr. Chaplin, as Commissioner, kad continued lands
79 which ought not to have been continued, his aothority was not such as to bar the
reversal of bis order, much less an investigution as to what he intended by it.

IX. Sir Thomas Munro I 1ok upun to lave been a fully c-;‘mpetem authority,
for the reasoms urged by the remonstrant as a * preliminary oservation” in the 3rd
paragraph of his remsustrance, and for other reasons, which it is needless here to
notice. This view is, of course, subject to the ordars of Givernment contemplated
in the lst explanatory provision relating to Rule 1 of Schedule B of Act XI. of
1852, and my adoptivn of it will not justify the plea of estoppel, so as to preclude

Q0 investigation, since my opinisn on such a question is nut binding on Government, who
should have the opportunity of coasidering it; and at any rate it remiius to discover
what Sir T. Munro did reully gnarantee.

X. With regard to the first assertion recited above, in paragraph TIL of this Mi-
nute, it must be shown, in order to stop investigation by the lnam Cromission, that
a final authoritative decision has been passed regarding the claimant’s title, and that
that decision was of such a specific natare as to render unaecessary any further
inquiry ; but I find no evidence of this, while there are on record reusuns fur believing
the countrary.

81  XI. I therefore consider it necessary to overrule the plea of estoppel, and to go iato
the merits of the case.

XIL  In his 4th paragraph the remoenstrant states five facts, There is nothing to
show that the first four of these facts are not true; and 1 am, therefore, of opinion,
that they should, so far as the present case is affected, Le considered as proved. The
fith fact asserted, i. e. ““uninterrupted” possession since each grant, is disproved by
entries in the Government accounts, which show that such possession was disallowedl,
und must have been unauthorised by the Goverameut or paramount power. The
accounts to which I refer are azmases and talecband accounts of Purguana Padshapoor,

82 which show, that though some of the Beenewala’s grants were admitted and allowed
for as special cases, none of the grants to which the remonstrant refers were so allowed
for, the assessment of the villages said to have been granted tv Nursew Andjec and
Anajee Nursew being included ia the valuation of khalsat villages, and the Man-
lutdar held answerable for it.

XIIL  In kis Sth paragraph the remsnstrant asks — * Supposing the cliimant’s
title rested here, could it now be impeached by Government 7°—and, to show the
absurdity of a reply in the affirmative, goes on to assert that * the Sirsvobhadar had

§3 power to grant the two sunnuds” ; but he refers to the Becnewala’s sunnuds, and
the Beenewala was nof a Sursoobliedar: and further, at the date of his grant of
Keachunhuttee 10 Goorudapa Naik, he was not even a Soobhedar or Comavisdar,
having been suspended from the comavisce management of the purzunua some
months before, and not restored to it until the year following ; and the grants of
Kublapour and Woteemurvo were made a year after the Paishbwa had issued a
suanud for the final dismissal of the Beenewala from the management of Padshapoor,
and at a time when he had not even the authority of a Comavisdar init. It will be

84 seen that the facts just stated must make the admission of the first and seeond facts
stated in the 4ih paragraph of the remonstrance useless to prove ongiual good title.

X1V, With regard to the third fact, the removstrant omits to state in his
own favour a fact which, from the tenor of his argumeut regarding the powers of
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Sursoobhedars, he would doubtless consider important. This is thie fact that Keshow-
row Balkrislin [who is admitted to have issued the sunnud of Fuslee 1215 (a.p. 1805.06),
confirming and extending the Beenewala’s grant of Kublapoor] was, at the time,
Sursoubhedar of the Carnatic, and not merely a Soobhedar, as supposed by the remon-
strant ; still, the fact that the Goverument accounts of latter date prove that the grants 85
made by him and the Beenewala, to which the claimant’s remonstrance relates, were
not allowed for by the Paishwa, is fatal to any title founded on the Sursoobhedar’s
grant of Kublapoor. -

XV. Before l;aving the subject of this third fact, as connected with the authority
of Sursvobhedars, I may state, that whatever authority has of late years been ascribed
to Sursoobhedars, the State records show beyond the shadow of a doubt, that they-
had no inherent power to alienate Government revenue in perpetuity. 1 state this fact
here;, not because I consider it of importance in the present case, seeing that the 86
Paishwa’s accounts afford evidence of disallowance which would vitiate grants of
better original title than those of Sursoobhedars, but because the remonstrant appa-
rently w:shes to argue on the assumption that the grant of a Surscobhedar, even not
subsequeatly allowed for in the Government accourts, should. be regarded as valid ;
aad I think it right to warn him, that if he should argue the same point in appeal, he
must be prepared to meet evidence such as that to which I allude. TFor a similar
reason, I think it as well to note a fact connected with the remonstrant’s quotation of
Appeadix C of Regulation XVIL. of 1827, as declaring the authority of Surscobhedars, 87
. although that Regulation is not law in this case, but only affords evidence of what
was believed by its framers. The Appendix in guestion purports to be a, list of officers
who had power to-confer grants; and, as it stands in the printed Regulations, cer-
tainly contains the following amang others recorded as so anthorised : —

All Sursoobhedars in their districts.

- All superior local functionaries acting directly under the Paishwa, without the
intervention of any superior authority, if the deeds bear date prior to 1803.

Thus placed, and réad accordingly, the authority of making grauts binding on
Government would, no doubt, be ascribed to Sursoobhedars in their districts, at any 88
period; but I find that Appendix C to Regulatiopn XVIL. of 1827 was simply copied
from Appendix C of a former Regulation I. of 1823 ; and this was adopted, without
the intentivn of alteration, from the Honorable Mr, Elphinstone’s Rules of a. b. 1819,
for deciding on titles to inams in the Deccan, the 3rd and 4th of which were as fol-
lows :— ‘
' *“3. All enams granted by Sursvobhedars and other superior local func-
tionaries previous to 1803 shall be confirmed, provided the incumbents have
had uniuterrupted possession up to the breaking out of the war.

“4, All granted without the Paishwa’s authority since 1803 liable to re- 89
sumption ; but if held for the last 10 years, to be assessed at only half the full
rent, and at the full rent on the death of the present incumbent.”

I find also from the analogous Rules prescribed by Mr. Elphinstone for money al-
lowances, that he admitted the continuance of grants made by * Sirsocbeedars and great
Moamlatdars, provided the g:ant was made under sunnud previous to 1803, and held
since without interruption.” From a comparison of these Rules with the quotation I
heve made from Appeadix C of Regulation XVIL of 1827, and the similar Appendix
of Regulation I. of 1823, it is evident that there ought to be only a comma after the 90
- word Sursoobhedars, and that the eonditional clause “if the deeds bear date prior to
1803"” was intended to apply to the grants of those oﬂmels, as well as to those of
great Mamlutdars, or other superior local functionaries,

XVI. Now the only Sursoobhedar’s grant asserted [or rather admitted] in the pre«

sent case, is that of the one village of Kublapoor by Keshowrow Balkrishn, in a, p.
ﬂ.
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1805, and it must be regarded, if we uphold the intention of Schedule C of Regulation
XVII of 1827, as a grant invalid in itself even without reference to the Paishwa's
91 non-recognition of it, and its disallowance in his acconnts, which alone would, under
Act XI. of 1852, Schedule B, Rule 2 Provision 3, be fatal to a better original title.
XVII. With respect to Ramrow Pandoorung’s Takeed of a. p. 1811-12 regarding
Woteemuroo, it is as a title deed useless, owing to the want of authority of the giver.
XVIII. The result of my consideration of the assertions recited in the remon-
strant’s 4th paragraph, supported by the arguments stated in bis 5th, is that [ find
that all the original granfs were invalid; and that, had they not been so, the absence
of their rocognition by competent authority, and the positive proof of their non-re-
92 coguition afforded by the records of the late Government, would have made them in-
valid before, and at the introduction of the present Government.

XIX. With respect to Konher Row’s arguments in the 6th paragraph of his re-
monstrance, they are disposed of above. I have shown that it was not the intention
of the framer of Appendix C of Regulation XVIL. of 1827, to ascribe authority to
Sursoobhedars of so late a perivd as a. ». 1803 ; and I have stated that there is un-
questionable evidence that no Sursgobhedar under the Paishwa had, at any time, in-
herent authority to alienate Government revenue in perpetuity. As this latter ques-

93 tion is not pertinent to the present case, it is needless for me to set forth the evidence
on which itis based, and which was submitted to Government as a general question
in 1845, and satisfied them of the fact, Without presuming to compare myself with
Mr. Chaplin, I should feel it my duty to notice any errorsiuto which I might happen
to find he had fallen, with regard to questions which it is my province to discuss; but

" as I have shown that Mr. Chaplin came to no decision on Anajee Nursew’s case in
1825, and as there is nothing in this case as it now stands, to show that he overrated
the authority of Sursoobhedars, I am in hopes that we are not really at issue, as sup-

94 posed by the remonstrant. The wistake which I have noticed in the Regulation
Book of 1827 is evidently a mnere typographical error.

XX. I have thus disposed, according to my judgment, of the two defences of
estoppel, and good title under the late Government, put forward in paragraphs 1 to 7 of
the remonstrance. The third, put forward in paragraph 8, is that Konher Row holds
a sunnud from Sir Thomas Munro, and a decision from Mr. Coramissioner Chaplin.

XXI. I have already stated that the supposed Commissioner’s decision of 16th
November 1826 was nothing but a report drawn up by a Daufturdar, and sent for
consideration to the Principal Collector of Dharwar; and I find that the only paper

95 issued by Mr. Chaplin as Commissioner [produced by the late Anajee Nursew, regard-

ing the three villages in question,] is a memorandum, signed by Mr. Chuplin on the
2nd of June 1826, the purport of which is merely to recite the matter of a petition
made to him by Anajee Nursew, and to give him certified copies of two orders, issued
by the Dliarwar Principal Collector, as prayed for by Apajee Punt.

XXIL. In his Sth and 10th paragraphs, the remonstrant, in introducing his third
defence, takes up two positions, stated in the form of a dilemma ;: —

1. That Sir T. Munro and Mr. Chaplin had competent authority to recognise

Anajee Nursew’s title. .

96 2. That even if they had not, as the Government tock no measures to repudiate
the acts of their officers at the time, they must at this Mstance of time be held
to have confirined them.

XXIII. The first of these positions, so far as it relates to Mr. Chaplin, is unten-
able; but, with regard to Sir T.Munro, I see no reason for disputing it. The second
I am compelled to think both unsound in deduction, and also based on false premises :
unsound in deduction, because one of the first objects of the inam inquiry is to detect
and rectify abuses, omissions, and unauthorised acts on the part of Government
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servants—a purpose which could not exist were we to admit the principle laid down 97
by the remoanstrant, that abuse of authoerity long undetected is, therefore, no abuse, or a
sauctioned one, based on faulty premises, because Government did take all the mea-
sures that could have been deemed requisite, when on the 16th November 1826 they
sent for the further consideration of the Principal Collector of Dharwar the Duftur-
dar’s report of that date, which the remonstrant has put forward as Mr. Chaplin’s
decision of the preceding year. Government cannot be said to have abandoned its
rights because the Principal Collector omitted to proceed on its order, and report, as
he ought to have done, on the case referred for his consideration.

XXIV. In following the remonstrant through his 11th paragraph, I consider it 98
useless to notice what is said regarding Mr. Chaplin’s authority, as 1 have, for rea-
sons already explained, come to the conclusion, not only that it was insufficient to
warrant the perpetual alienation of Government revenue, but that he did not in this
case attempt to do so. I feel, as I have said, bound to submit Sir T. Munro’s full
authority, —subject to correction by Government.

XXV. But, admitting that Sir T. Muaro had full authority to cure by his recog-
nition the most faulty title, it remains to see what he did promise. The following is
a translation of the body of his letter or “sunoud” of the 25th May 1818, to Anajee 99
Nursew, Deshpandey of Purgunna Padshapoor :—

“ You came to the Hoozoor and represented that the wuttuns belonging
to the office of Deshpandey of Purgunna Padshapoor have continued with you
from the beginning, but-that now that the rule of the Company has commenc-
ed, it is necessary to issue an order to the Padshépoor Mamlutdar for {their]
uninterrupted centinuance. Wherefore, in consideration that when the Com-
pany took the fort of Belgaum, you afforded much assistance, and that you
have also brought a statement from the Padshapoor Mamlutdar to the effect 100
that the two inam villages Mouza Bhurmunhuttee [also called Kublapoor],
and Mouza Kumaulapoor [alse called Woteemuroo], of Kuryat Ankale, with
fields, gardens, &c., have been uninterruptedly held by you as wuttuns from of
old, [mamocol pasoon,] I therefore issue this sunnod, {by which] you are to
enjoy the abovenamed wuttun inam villages; &c., and to remain satisfied, In
the same manner as it has continued from of old up to the introduction of the
present Government, so will it continue without interruption, and without any
vexation being given to you by the Company Sirkar.”

XXVI. 1Itis here evident that Sir T. Munro’s recognition was obtained by means 101
of represeatations made by Anajes Nursew, and a statemeat brought by Aim from the
Mamlutdar of Padshapoor, to the effect that Kublapoor and Woteemuroo were * ma-
mool” or ancient * wuttun” villages belonging to the wuttun of the Padshapoor
Deshpandey ; and it was in consequence of this assertion, which the very sitle deeds
and present assertions of the claimant, as well as the old Government accounts, prove
to have been fulse, that Sir T. Munro issued bis gnarantee. * I therefore issued this
sunnud,” he says. But, though misinformed, Sir Thomas Munro’s sagacity prevented
him from being misled, so as to occasion permanent loss to the revenues of the coun- 102
try. In saying, after his recitation of the [false] assertion made to him, © you are to
enjoy the abovenamed wuttun,” he adds the saving clause *“as it has continued from
of old, so will it continue without interruption, 4nd without any vexation being given
to you” ; and in his English postscript he writes that he has directed the villages,

&c. to be continued “in the same manner as under the former Government.” As the
continuance of these villages was not authorised by the late Government; as they
had not been held at all from of old, or for so miuch as fourteen years; and as Sir
Thomas Munro nowhere alludes to the villages as hereditary property, unless as 103
wutlun, which they are not, 1 consider it would be going farther than Sir T. Muary
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himdelf intended were we to recognise the present claimant’s title, bow that the
mistepresentations made to Sir T. Munro, and recorded by him as the basis of his
order, have been detected. _

XXVIL. Sir T. Manro was not in a position himself to at once detect such
misrepresentations on the part of alleged Inamdars ; but ke seldom failed to record
the storv told him ia each case, and to issue, as in this one, an order, so couched as

104 to be conditional on the truth of the assertivns made to him in order to obtain it ;
and several of his letters written about this time show that he never intended to
finally dispose of Inamdars’ claims, but to merely make & temporary arrangement,

© .léaving the merits of all inam claims for future deliberate inquiry and final settle-
ment. This fact is a matter of history.

XXVIIL. The 12th paragraph of the claimant’s remonstrance is strongly worded ;

but, from the facts already stated, I feel obliged to lovk upon it as weak in argament.

As there is no specific decision of the Government servants named by the remonstrant

105 which declares that the villages, if not wuttun, nor held under the late Goverament,

nor continued from of vld, are to be continued hereditarily for the future, there is no

“repudiation of their acts in limiting their continuaunce to the life of Anajee Nursew.

Again, in arguing that Government is bound by the laws regulating the relation of

principal and agent, and, therefore, must continue alianations of public revenue wrong-

fully made or cootinued by its servants, the remonstrant puts forward a principle,

which, if admitted, wounld put an end to all rectification of long hidden abuses, and

to good government. In the present case, however, [ cannot see that this question

106 is material. The question of Anajee Nursew’s title was regarded as a conditional one

by Sir T. Munro, left undecided by Mr. Commissioner Chaplin, who has, however,

recorded his suspicion of its validity, and sent for the further consideration and report

of an inferior local officer by Government in A. p. 1826 ; from which time till 1843

no inquiry was made regarding it. An®enactment which sanctions the parsuit of

inquiry under the circumstances of abuse and deception apparent in this case does
not, therefore, seem to “ legalize confiscation.”

XXIX. With regard to the remonstrant’s 13th paragraph, no decision admitting

107 Anajee Nursew's title to Mouza Kenchunhuttee wag made by Mr. Chaplin when

Commissioner in the Deccan; on the contrary, when Commissivner in the Deccan,

he himself questioned the propriety of what had been done regarding that village,
whether by himself or Mr. Thackeray, as Principal Collector of Dbarwar.

XXX. This brings me to the 14th paragraph of the claimaut’s remonstrance, in
which he applies the arguments set forth with especial reference to the villages Kub-
lapour, Woteemuroo, aml Kenchunhuttee, to the twenty minor inams in nine villages,
The remonstrant, by simply stating tha1 his arguments with regard to the three villages

108 apply equally to these pieces of land, has thrown upon me the task, which he ought
to have fulfilled, of clussifying them. I have found, on reference to the Belgaum
Dufturdar, that all of them regarding which there are auy entries at all in accounts
of the present Government, are entered as *life holdings” of Anajee Nursew. Fur-
ther, this circumstance is common to fifieen of them, that they are proved or admitted
to have been obtained by titles which were originally invalid, either from the grants
being those of Sursoobliedars or Comavisdars later than A. . 1803, or of suspended
Comavisdars. Of the remaining five, the origin of one is unknown, further than that

109 it is asserted to have been in existence in 1801-02, and one is of an exceptional nature,
aud will be mentivned below ; the other three being grants of a Comavisdar, essen-
tially without authority to grant, but, if the deeds be genuiae, of earlier date than a. o.
1803. Another circumstance common to all but the exceptional case above alluded
to, and of a nature fatal to title, is, that there are forthcoming accounts of the Jate
Uovernment of later date than the alleged grants, which make no allowance for them.
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Auncther common to all is that there has been no specific recoguition of them as per-

-manent holdings by any competent authority under the present Government. This
being the case, Konher Row’s claim to succeed to them cannot fairly be admitted. * 110

XXXI The exceptional case just alluded to is the claim for forty-eight hoond’

» - 1

Government Circular No, 749, datea ‘O'th of land in Mouza Kunburgee. This land

29th Jatuary 1850, with sccompaniment. 1S s.nd to have been granted to Anijee Nursew

Goverament letter No. 6271, dated 27th  in’"a. D. 1818-19, by the Surinjamdar then in
Septeraber 1852.B:it:1 nccom‘émuim;nt;- ] possession of the village, which he gave up to
Government Resolution No. 88, date Government. as part : i
6th January 1653, ent, as part of an assignment of terri

tory, in A.». 1820-21. In my original consi- R.pp.210
deration of Konher Row’s claim ta this land, I was of opiuion that the land ought to & 211, &

have been made khalsat when the village was given up by the Surinjamdar; but after hos. 25
considering the correspondence, &c. here noticed, I now feel in some doubt as to 111
whether [ ought to advise Government to consider that this land was resumable from

the death of the late Avajee Nursew, or that of Chintamun Row, the alleged grantor,

As it is the evident intention of the remonstrant to appeal from my decision as to

his claims, if at all unfavourable, and as I must give an unfavourable decision ia. all

the other cases, I consider that it will be the best course for me to ophold my former
decision in the case also, the more especially as the remonstrant has not brought it
forward separately, as he ought to have done, in his present remonstrance, but has,

by the general nature of his 14th paragraph, {which I may notice is inapplicable to the 112
claim especially under considerdtion,] left me to act as his Vakeel. The opinion,
therefore, which I thus uphold, is, that as the grant in Kunbnrgee was made by a
Surinjamdar, without authority to alienate for a greater period than his possession of

the village, and as the grant was not specifically guaranteed when the village came
into the hands of Government, it should lapse at latest from the death of the assignee,
Anajee Nursew.

XXXIL Ino his 15th and last paragraph, the remonstrant requests that his prev:ous
appeal to Government, of the 27th October 1848, may be taken as part of his present
defence. -Oa carefully examining this, I find that it contains nothing of consequence [13
to Konher Row’s claim which has not been already disposed of in my eonsideration
of his present remonstrance, exceptmcra transiation of Sir T. Munro’s Mahratta
sunnud of A. p. 1818, which is given in the 11th paragraph, but which falsifies the
meaning of the original, so as to make it appear 1hat Sir T. Munro was nof misin-
formed that the villages claimed were part of an ancient wuttun, but that he knew
that they were grants by the Beenewala—a very grave misrepresentdtion of the mean-
ing of hisorder. This letter of appeal is placed on record, with such notes attached to 114
it as it seenied to require; and all further that seems needful to record regarding it,
in this Minute, is the fact that it contains nothing important to the claimant’s title
not already- disposed of above.

XXXIII. With regard to the order to be issued in consequence of the finding
now recorded, I am of opinion that the three villages Kublapoor, Woteemuroo, and
Kenchunhuttee, were fairly resumable, at latest, at the death of Anajee Row; and
that, as so many of the minor holdings as ‘were entered at all in the accounts of the
present Government, when the Inam Commission's inquiries were instituted, were 115
entered [with the exception of the land claimed in Kunburgee] as * life-holdings of
Anajee Nursew,” they also should be regarded as resurable from his death. The land
in Kunburgee has in some village accounts been entered in the name of Konher Row,
but no order is to be found authorising such entry, which is reported by the Padsha-
poor Mamlutdar as made in consequence of wverdal instructions from the 2nd Assist-
ant Collector. I cannot consider that an entry thus accounted for ought to give
Anajee Nursew's son the benefit of the Ist provision attached to Rule 6 of Schedule
B of Act XI. of 1852, but think it right to here notice the fact, in case Konher Row 116
should consider it a ground of appeal.
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himself intended were we to recognise the present cluifaani’s tide, now that the
misrepresentations made to Sir T. Munro, and reedrdy a8 the basis of his
order, have been detected.

XXVil. - Sir T. Muaro was not in-a pomucm Hrite h’gtfcme detect such
misrepresentations ‘on the part of alleged Toamdars ; !mt he'seldom failed to record
the story told bim in each case, and to issue, as in thm one, an order, so couched as

104 1o be conditlonal on the trath of the assertions made tb him in order to obtain it ;
and several of his letters written about this time show that he never intended to
finally dispose of Inamdars’ claims, but to merely make 2 tempbrary arraogements

 leéaving the mierits of all inam claims for future deliberate inquiry and final. settle-
mient. This fact is.a matter of history. :

"XXVIIL ‘The 12th paragraph of the claimant’s remonstrance is strongly worded
but, from the facts already stated, 1 feel obliged to lovk upon it as weak in argoment.
As‘there is no specific decision of the Government servants named by the remonstrant

10:3 which declares that the villages, if not wuttun, nor held under the late Government,
nor continued from of old, are to be continued hereditarily for the future, there is no
repudiation of their acts in’ limiting their continuance to the life of Anajee Nursew.
Again, in arguing that Government is bound by the lawa regulating tlie relation of
principal and agent, and, therefore, must continue alianations of public revenue wreng-
fully made or continued by its servants, the remonsirant puts forward a principle,
which, if admitted, would put an end to all rectification of long bidden abuases, and
to good government. In the present case, however, [ cannot see that this question

106 is mnterial. The question of Anajee Nursew’s title was regarded 4s a conditional one
by Sir T. Munre, left undecided by Mr. Commissioner Chaplm, who has, however,
recorded his suspicion of its validity, and sent for the further cousideration and report

~of an inferior local officer by Government in a. ». 1826 ; from which time till 1843
no mqulry was made regarding it. An®enactment which sanctions the pursuit of
inquiry under the circumstances of abuse and deception apparent in this case does
not, therefore, seem to * legalize confiscation.”

'XXIX. With regard to the remonstrant’s 13th paragraph, no decision admitting

107 Auajee Nursew’s title to Monza Kenchunhuttee wag made by Mr. Chaplin when

Commissioner in the Deccan; on the eontrary, when Cominissioner in the Deccan,

he himself questioned the propriety of what bad been done regarding that village,
whether by himself or Mr. Thackeray, as Principal Collector of Dharwar.

~ XXX. Thisbrings me to the 14th paragraph of the elaimaut’s remeonsirance, in
which lie applies the arguments set forth with especial reference to the villages Kub-
lapoor, Woteemuroo, and Kenchunhuttee, to the twenty minor inams in nine villages.
The remonstrant, by simply stating tha his arguments with regard to the three villages
108 apply equally to these pieces of land, has thrown upon me the task, which he onght
to have fulfilled, of clussifying them. I have found, ou reference to the Belgaum
Dufturdar, that all of themn regarding which there are any euntries at all in accounts

of the present Government, are entered as * life holdings” of Anajee Nursew. Far-
ther, this circumstance is comimon to fifieen of them, that they are proved or admitted

to have been obtuined by titles which were originally invulid, either from the grants
being those of Sursoobhedars or Comavisdars later than A. p. 1803, or of suspended
Comavisdars. Of the remaining five, the origin of one is unknown, further than that
109 it is asserted to have been in existence in 1801-02, and ope is of an exceptional nature,
aud will be mentioned below ; the other three being grants of a Comavisdar, essen-
tially without authority to grant, but, if the deeds be genuine, of earlier date than a. b,
1803. Another circumstance common to all but the exceptional case above alluded

to, and of a nature fatal to title, is, that there are forthcoming accounts of the late
Government of later date than the alleged grants, which make no allowance for them.



Another common to all is that there has been no specific recoguition of them as"i:er-
amanent holdings by any competent authority under the preseut Government. This
being the case, Konher Row’s claim to succeed to them cannot fairly be admitted, " 110
XXXIL. The exceptional case just alluded to is the claim for forty-eight hoons’
Government Circular No. 749, dated :Worth of land in Mouza Kunb urgee. This ]ana
29th January 1850, with accompaniment. 18 5aid lo have been granted to Anajee Nursew
Government letter No. 6271, dated 27¢th  in ‘A, D, 1818-19, by the Surinjamdar then in
September 1852, with accompaniments. possession of the village, which he gave up to
Government Resolution No. 83, dated  Government, as part of an assignment of terri-

St Junuary 1853. tory, in A. D 1820-21. In my original coosi~ R.pp.210
deration of Konher Row’s claim ta this land, I was of opivion that the land ought to & 2]';:;8%
have been made khalsat when the village was given up by the Surinjamdar; but aftex '5‘5’5
considering the correspondence, &c. here noticed, 1 now feel in some doubt as to 111
whether I ought to advise Government to consider that this land was resumable from

the death of the late Anajee Nursew, or that of Chintamun Row, the alleged grantor.

As it is the evident intention of the remoustrant to appeal from my decision as to

his claims, if at all- unfavourable, and as I must give an unfavourable decision in all

the other cases, 1 consider that it will be the best course for me to uphold my former
decision in the case also, the more especially as the remonstrant has not brought it
forward separately, as he ought to have done, in his present remonstrance, but has,

by the general nature of his 14th paragraph, {which I may notice is inapplicable to the 112
claim especially under consideration,] left me to act as his Vakeel. The opinion,
therefore, which 1 thus uphold, is, that as the grant in Kunburgee was made by a
Surinjamdar, without authority to alienate for a greater period than his possession of

the village, and as the grant was not specifically guaranteed when the village came

into the hands of Government, it should lapse at latest from the death of the assignee,

Anajee Nursew, - | - ‘

XXXII. Ta his 15th and last paragraph, the remonstrant requests that his previous
appeal to Government, of the 27th October 1848, may be taken as part of his present
defence. -On carefully examining this, I find that it contains nothing of consequence 113
to Konher Row’s cluim which has not been already disposed of in my consideration
of his present remonstrance, excepting a translation of Sir T. Munro's Mahratta
sunnud of . . 1818, which is given in the 11th paragraph, but which falsifies the
meaning of the original, so as to make it appear that Sir T. Munro was not misin-
formed that the villages claimed were part of an ancient wutfun, but that he knew
that they were grants by the Beenewala—a very grave misrepresentation of the mean-
ing of hisorder. This letter of appeal is placed on record, with such notes attached to 114
it as it seemed to require; and all further that seems needful to record regarding it,
in this Minute, is the fact that it contains nothing importaot to the claimant’s title
not already disposed of above.

XXXIIL. With regard to the order to be issued in consequence of the finding
now recorded, I am of opinion that the three villages Kablapoor, Woteemuroo, and
Kenchunhuttee, were fairly resumable, at latest, at the death of Anajee Row; and
that, as so many of the minor holdings as 'were entered at all in the accounts of the
present Government, when the Inam Commission’s inquiries were instituted, were 115
entered [with the exception of the land claimed in Kunburgee] as “life-holdings of
Anajee Nursew,” they also should be regarded as resumable from hisdeath. The land
in Kunburgee has in some village accounts been entered in the name of Konher Row,
but no order is to be found authorising such entry, which is reporied by the Padsha-
poor Mamlutdar as made in consequence of verbal instructions from the 20d Assist-
ant Collector. I cannot consider that an entry thus accounted for ought to give
Anpajee Nursew’s son the benefit of the 1st provision attached to Rule 6 of Schedule
B of Act XL. of 1852, but think it right to here notice the fact, in case Konher Row 116
should consider it a ground of appeal. :
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XXXIV. Iam of opinion that Konher Row should not be called on to repay
anything that he may possibly have realised from the villages and land, between the
date of his father’s decease and the decrees against which he remoostrates; not
‘because I consider that he has any just right to such realizations, but becanse it hns
‘hitherto been the general custom of Government to waive its right of recovering
such balances.

XXXV. On the whole of the above grounds, I decree, under the 6th Rule of

117 Schedule B of Act XI. of 1852, that the orders contained in the former decisions passed
by the Inam Commissioner in the Southern Mahratta Country on the 3rd and 10th
November 1847, shall be upheld ; and that the course indicated in his letters to the
Acting Collector of Belgaum, No. 434, of the 3rd November 1847, and No. 437, of
the 11th idem, shall be pursued, the villages and lands being made finally khalsat

from those dates respectively. _
W. Harr,

Inam Commissioner,
Khandalla, 4¢th February 1853.

8. A copy of the 7th paragraph of this Record, containing the above judgment,
118 has been sent to S. S. Dickenson, Esyuire, Mooktiar of Konher Row Anujee, with
a letter, No. 1720, dated 12th February 1853, as follows : —
“ Sir,—1 have the honour of forwarding an extract from the Record of my Proceed-
ings with regard to your Remonstrance, dated 26th ultimo, on the part of Konher
. Row Anajee Deshpandey, against the resumption of the villages Kublapoor, Wotee-
muroo, and Kenchunhuttee, and twenty mionor pieces of land claimed by him as {nam
in the Padshapoor Talooka, of the Belgaum Collectorate.
| ‘I have, &ec.”
9. Konher Row Anajee has also been apprised, by a Mahratta letter, that the Inam:
119 Commissioner has furnished a copy of his judgment in this case to his Mooktiar.

W. HART,

Inam Commissioner,
Khandalla, 14th February 1853.

The above decree having been appealed against by Konher Row Anajee,
the Inam Commissioner’s proceedings were reviewed by the Right Honora-
ble the Governor in Council, by whowm it was resolved, under date 13th
August 1855, that Government had no reason for interfering with the Inam
Commissioner’s decision in this case,
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1. O the 27th October 1846, the Inam Commissioner received Konher Row Anajee’s
“ Kyfeent” or written statement of the title by which he claimed the above villages.

2. Having subsequently obtained all the evidence which he could collect to test
the validity of his title, and throw light on the history of the transaction by which
Konher Row’s father had obtained the above villages, and on the history of the village
and bamlets for which he had received them in exchange, the Inam Commissioner drew
up on the 20th February 1847 a Report on the subject, as follows :—

“ Report of the Inam Commissioner Southern Mahratta Country, on the Title by which 2
Konher Row bin Anajee bin Nursew Deshpandey claims as Hereditary Tazed Inam
the three villages Mouza Mulapoor, Mouza Punjunhuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood,
in the Padshapoor Talooka, of the Belgaum Collectorate.

“]. The accounts of the Belgaum Collectorate show that the abovenamed three
villages were held as taxed inam by Aunajee Nursew, from a. p. 1842-43 until his death
in a. p. 1843-44, since which period they have been held in like manner by his son,
Konher Row, the claimant.

2. Previous to a. p. 1842-43 all of the three villages in question were kbalsat; and
on lovking at the circumstances under which they fell into the hands of Anajee Nursew,
the Inam Commissioner finds that they were made over to him by an order of Govern- 3
ment, conveyed in the Chief Secretary’s letter No, 819, dated 19th March 1842,

“3. The following is a sketch of the correspondence which led to this order, or at
least of so much of it as is to be found recorded in the office of the Collector of Belgaum,
It is, however, possible, that there may be something on the records of the Bombay
Secretariat which may help to explain Anajee Nursew’s strange success in obtaining the
villages under report, without being first obliged to prove his title to those he offered in
exchange for them; as, from a letter of Mr. Blane, then Acting Secretary, it appears,
that at the time when Governmeunt and the Collector of Belgaum were in correspond-
ence respecting Anajee Nursew’s proposed exchange, he [Anuajee Nursew] himself was 4
engaged in forwarding it by personal negotiations'at Bombay.

““4, The records here show that on the 28th October 1841 the Acting Collector of
Belgaum addressed a letter [No, 281] to Government, forwarding ‘a request from
Anpajee Punt, Deshpondy of Shapoor, to be permitted to exchange the villages of
Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor, situated in the Talook of Pursghur,” for several
villages, of supposed equal revenué, in the Padshapoor Talooka.

5. In reply to this proposal, Government, in the Acting Secretary’s letter No.
3538, dated 20th November 1841, expressed a disposition to ®accede to the exchange,
in consideration of the respectability of Anajee Punt; provided no sacrifice was5
occasioued, or any valid objection raised by the inhabitants.’

*“6. On the 3rd of December the Acting Collector forwarded, with a letter, No. 8 of
1841, a statement of the villages it was proposed to exchange.
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«7  On the 20th of the same month, the Acting Secretary to Government replied
in a letter, No. 3853 of 1841, that there was some ohjection to adopt the proposal of the
Acting Collector, Mr. Shaw, who was requirgd to report on the expediency of another
arrangement proposed by Amajee Nursew, then at Bombay, by which the latter
should be allowed to receive, in exchange for Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor,

6 the villages now under report, viz. Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood, subject
to a fixed annual payment of. Rs. 177-11-9.

«8. This reference was answered by Mr. Reeves, who had suecceeded Mr. Shaw as
Acting Collector of Belgaum. Mr. Reeves, in his letter No. 20, dated 11th January
1842, reported, that “ as far as mere figures go,” he saw no objection to the exchange;
which, however, he disapproved of on other grounds.

%9 In the meanwhile two individuals, named Hussein Khan Desaee and Dewuarow
Deshpandey, had, on the 3rd of January 1842, addressed to Government a petition, in
which they deprecated the exchange proposed by Apajee Nursew, for three reasons :
first, that enmity "existed between that person and one of the petitioners, who was

7 related to him ; secondly, that Anajee Punt, in wishing to exchange lands which had
been unauthorisedly assigned to him by a Jagheerdar, for property to be held directly
under Government, only wanted to evade the probability of their subsequent resumption ;
and thirdly, that the inhabitants of the villages it was proposed to assiga in exchange
to Anajee Punt would suffer by the transaction.

“10. This petition was, on the 13th January 1842, referred by Government for the
opinion and report of the Acting Collector of Belgaum, who, in a further endorsement,
dated 17th Janvary 1842, merely reiterated his opiuion, already submitted in the letter
quoted above in the 8th paragraph.

“11. On the 29th January 1842, the Acting Secretary to Government wrote to the

8 Acting Collector of Belgaum a letter, No. 241, in which he overrules the first of the
objections of the petition mentioned in paragraph 9, and makes a further reference
regarding the third of them, but without in any way noticing the second.

“12. 'To this letter the Acting Collector replied in a letter, No 125, dated 8th March
1842, that the inhabitants of the Government villages which Anajee Punt wished to
obtain had no objection to become his ryots.

“13. Government then, in the Chief Secretary’s letter No. 819 of 1842, alluded to
in the 2nd paragraph of this report, decided that the arrangement proposed by Anajee
Nursew [as described in paragraph 7] should be adopted, and the villages under report
were accordingly made over to Anajee Punt, in exchange for Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor,

9 and Rayapoor, and have since then been continued as inam.

14, It is remarkable, that throughout the correspondence above described, neither
Government nor the officers in charge of this Collectorate seem to have considered the
title by which Anajee Nursew was holding the villages which he finally succeeded in
persuading Government to accept in exchange for thuse now held by his son. The way
in which all consideration of this question has been avoided leads the Inam Cummis-
sioner to suppose, that Government intended to assign the villages it exchanged, so as to
be held on whatever title the assignee might have to the villages he gave up, leaving
the validity or otherwise of that title an open ciuestion; and it is this question which

10 the Commissioner will now discuss, describing in the first place the history of the

. villages given in exchauge, as far as it can be learned from forthcoming Govern-
ment records.

“135. The villages Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor consist of one mouza, or real
village, and two muzzras, or hamlets, dependent on it; and in almost all the old dis-
trict accounts the lands of all three are entered as those of Mouza Jaleekuttee, a village
of Purgunna Moorgod, in the Munolee Talooka,
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« 6. The earliest record furthcoming in the duftur regarding Purgunna Moorgod
is the remstry of the Treaty entered intdo~between the Paishwa and the Savanoor
Nuwaub, in a. p. 1755-56, by which that purguona was iocluded among the mahals
ceded by the Nuwaub to the Poona Government.. - 11

"« 17, In a. p. 1758-59 the Paishwa issued a sunnud, [Foot Note (1)] confirming
Soobrow Sindey Munoleekur in part of his ¢ former surinjam,” which, it is stated,
included seventeen villages of Purgunha Moorgod, but without mention being made of
what those villages were. After SBoobrow’s death, in 4. ». 1760-61, the same suranam :
was conferred on his son Nilkuntrow, by a fresh sunnud, [Foot Note (1)} in which
also is omitted any mention of the names of the seventeen villages in question ; so-that
it does not appear what may have been the condition of Jaleekuttee in either of those
years,

“ 18. In a.D. 1763-64 the Paishwa agreed with Shesho Narayen, an officer of the
Kolapoor Government, to allow the Ranee of that State to take the Munolee Taleoka, 12
which included Purgunna Moorgod, and certain other possessions in the Carnatic.
The only record for this year to be found in the Poona dufturis a cash account, [Foot Note
(u1.)] in which reference is made to the agreement ; but the Commissioner learns from
the accounts of subsequent years, and from orders issued by the Paishwa in a. p. 1767-68,
1768-69, and 1801-02, that on this occasion Nilkuntrow Sindey was deprived of the
whole of his surinjam, and that the entire Purgunna of Moorgod was included in the
agreement with Kolapoor,

“19. In A.p. 1768-69 the Paishwa issued a sunnud, [Foot Note (1v.)] orderiog the
resumption of the Munolee Talooka from the Kolapoor State, and appeinting as al3
Mamlutdar of his own one Ramchunder Mahadeo. The resumption thus ordered did
not, however, take place until 4. p. 1770-71, in which year Munolee was taken posses-
sion of, and a fresh suunud [Foot Note (v.)] was issued by the Paishwa, associating with
Ramchunder Mahadeo, as joint Mamlutdar of the Talooka, anotber individual, named
Keso Bullall.

“20. This year, a. p. 1770-71, is the first of which there are accounts forthcoming
in the duftur, sufficiently in detail to show the condition of the village under report.
In the ghurneea and tallebund accounts drawn up for it, Juleekuttee appears as a
khalsat village.

“21. That it was khalsat also in A. ». 1771-72 appears from the azmas, nemnook, 14
behra, and ghurneea, with the tallebund and other"accounts of that year,

“22. An azmas was prepared in the Poona duftur for.a. . 1772-73, which also
shows that Jaleekuttee was still a khalsat village. [Foot Note (v1.)] In this year the
Paishwa, having agreed to let the Kolapoor State again take possession of the Munolee
Talooka, on consideration of receiving a nuzzur of twelve lacs of rupees, issued an

() *Sunoud dated 4th Mohurrum, in Soorsun Teesa Khumsaeen Meia and Alif, recorded in the Poona
duftur.”

(1)  “ Sunnud dated 20th of Suwal, in Soorsun Ehude Seetacen Meia and Alif, recorded in the Paishwa's
rozkheerd, or diary.”

(111.) “ Account of payments made in liquidation of five lacs and two rupees, which sum the Kolapoor
State had, on obtaining permission to take possession of Munolee, &c. agreed to pay towards the expenses of
the Poona Army.” '

{rv.) **Sunnud dated 27th Jummad-ool-Awul, in Soorsun Teesa Seetacen Meia and Alif, recorded in the
ghurneea and behra accounts, and registered in the Paishwa’s rozkheerd of the above date.”

" (v.) *“Sunnud dated 2nd Suwasl, in Soorsun Ehude Subacen Meia and Alif, registered in the Paishwa’s
rozkheerd, and recorded in the behras, &c.”

{v1.) “This is corraborative of the memorandum mentioned in paragraph 32, in which are enemerated the
villages which were alienated in A, ». 1772-73, and in which Jaleckuttee does not appear as an alienated
village.”
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‘order [Foot Note {vn.)] for making over the district to Apajee Shamraj, the Karbharee
‘of the Raja. This order was not, however, at once carried into effect by the Paishwa's
15 Mamlutdar {Ramchurder Mahadeo], who was himself one of two persons who had become
responsible to the Paishwa for the payment of the Kolapoorkur's nuzzur; for the
Paishwa bad to issue another suunud [Foot Note (vim)]in the following year, A. v,
1773-74, of the same purport as that last quoted, before the district was given up to the

Kolapoor State.

#93. Ia a.p. 1776-77 the Paishwa took [Foot Note (1x.)] the district from the per-
gon to whom it liad been mortgaged by the Kolapoor Governmeant ; but in the following
year, a. p. 1777-78, ordered [Foot Note (x.)] Pureshram Bhow, who was holding it in
comavis, to restore it to the Kolapoor mortgagee. It will, however, be seen, from the

16 following extract from the Articles of Agreement entered into between the two Stutes
in the lust mentioned year, [Foot Note (x1.)] that the district could not huve been held

for any considerable time by the Raja [Foot Note (xi1.)] :—
“ Demand of the Paishwa. “ Raja's Reply.

“+The two talooks of Chikoreeand Muno-  * ¢ In consequence of Mahadajee Sindey
lee have been given on account of debt toa having come and requested that the two
Sahookar of the Rajmundul {Kolapoor Go- talooks of Munolee and Chikoree may be
vernment]. Let, therefore, a sunnud be given to you {the Paishwal, the entire
given for the entire possession of these two talovks have been so given. Agreeably
talooks ; and let it be to the effect, that to this a sunnud shall be issued.’

17 when the Sahookar's debt has been liqui-
dated, the two talooks are to be given to
the Paishwa, and tobe held by him, or
that on his [the Paishwa’s] paying off the
Bahookar’s debt, he may take possession
of them.’

“There are several of the Munolee district accounts forthcoming in the duftur for
both these years, a. p. 1766-77 and 1777-78, all of which show that Jaleekuttee was
still a khalsat village. :

“24. In a.p. 1778-79 Sutwajee Bhosla obtained, for the Ruja, possession of the
Munolee Talovka. In a letter, [Foot Note (xi11.)} written at the very commencement of
18 the following year, the Puishwa mentions the district as part of the country which had
been seized by Hyder Alee; but other records show, that supposing this to have been
the case, it was recovered in the course of the same year by Sutwajee Bhosla, and in
A, p. 1780-81 taken from him by Pureshram Bhow, who held it for a time for the

(vir) “Order dated 27th Zilkad, in Soorsun Sulas Subaeen Meia and Alif, recorded in the Paishwa’s
rozkheerd and behras."”

(virr.) *Sunnud dated 18th Rujjub, in Soorsun Arba Subseen Meia and Alif, recorded in the Paishwa'a
rotkheerd, and other dufturs,”

{1x.) **By an order dated 29th Suwal, in Soorsun Suba Subacen Meis and Alif, registered in the Paish-
wa’s rozkbeerd, &c.”

(x.) “By asuonud dated 2nd Saban, in Soorsun Suman Subseen Meia and Alif, recorded in the Paish
wa's duftur.” . '

(x1) “Treaty dated 24th Rubbee-ool-Awul, in Socorsun Suman Subacen Meia and Alif, recorded in the
Paishwa’s duftur.”

(x11.) “The Honorable My. Elphinstone, iv a letter addressed by him, on the 3rd of February a. . 1813,
to the Government ot-' India, explains the circumstances under which the treaty here quoted was made. He
says :(—* I.n the Arab.:c year 1178 [a. p. 1777-78] a war broke out, in consequence of the predatory incursions
of the Raja’s troops into Meritch. ‘In consequence, Mahdajee Sindia was sent against Kolapoor with an army.
He took possession of both districts [Chikoree and Munolec], and dictated a Treaty at the gates of Kolapoor,
by which Chikoree and Munolee were restored to the Paishwa.’ *

(x;u%) “ Letter dated 26th Jummad-ool-Awul, in Soorsun Sumaeen Meia and Alif, recorded in the Paish-
wa’s duftur.”
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Paishwa, and then [as is stated in a ghurneea account prepared in A. p. 1791-92] entered,
on the part of the Poona Government, into.an agreement with the Raja, for making
over the district to Kolapoor..

“25. Sunnuds [Foot Note (x1v.)] were accordingly issued in the same year, a. p.
1780-81, for muking over the tannas of Kuryat Satteegeeree and Purgunna Moorgod,
of Talooka Munolee, into the charge of Luchmon Row Sindey Senakhaskeel an officer 19
of the Kolapoor Government.

«“26. In a. p. 1786-87 the Poona Government issued another sunnud, [Foot l\ote
(xv.)] making vver the Munclee Talooka to Pureshram Ramchunder, taleebund ac-
counts of whose Mamlutdar for that and the two following years, a. ». 1787-88. and
1788-89, have been found in the Belgaum duftur; and in all of these Jaleekuttee is
entered among the khalsat villages of Purgunna Moorgod.

® 27, Pureshram Ramchunder held the Munolee Talooka until 1796-97, in which
year the Kolapoor Raja invaded the Putwurdhun’s possessions, and again took the dis-
trict in question, which is mentioned by the records as being in the Raja’s possession 20
in &. p. 1797-98 and a. . 1799 ; [Fuot Note (xv1.)] in the September of which last year
Paréshram Ramchunder was defeated and killed by the Kolapoor Raja,

“28. In a.p. 1800-01 Colonel Wellesley, in conformity with instructions from the
Governor General of India, [Foot Note (xvi.)] having defeated Dhondjee Wagh, took
possession of the whole of the Southern Mahratta Country on the part of the Paishwa,
and made it over to the charge of Appa Saheb Putwurdhun, the son of Pureshram
Ramchunder. In the same year, however, Shidojee Row Naik Nimbalkur, the Nipa-
neekur, with the aid of Scindia’s battalions, wrested the possession of Munolee from
Appa Saheb, and held it for himself, without the authority [Foot Note (xviw.)] of any
Goveroment, until a. n. 1803-04. 21

“ 29, The only account forthcoming in the duftur to show thé condition of Jalece-
kuttee during the period from a. ». 1789-90 until 1803-04, is a memorandum ‘of the
state of the villages of \Munolee in a. p. 1801-02, noted at head as ¢ a copy of the yad
given in by Suddasew Mankeshwur’ ; and in this record Jaleekuttee is entered as a
khalsat village,

“30. In a. p. 1803-04 the Nipaneekur, beiug taken into favour by the Paishwa,
received from him sunnuds, [Foot Note (x1x.)] making over to him as fouj surinjam,
for the expenses of truops to be kept up in the service of the Poona Government,
several mahals, including Purgunua Moorgod, with the exception of doomalla villages.
A yad of the revenues of Munolee for this year, apparently drawn up in the duftur
for the purpose of estimating the value of the Nipsneekur’s jagheer, enters the revenue of 22
Moorgod, without spécification of its items, at the same amount as it was in A, D.
1771-72, when, it will be seen by a reference to the accounts quoted in the 21st para-
graph, that Jaleekattee was a Government village.

(x1v.) * Suonuds to Sudasew Krisho Comavisdar and Veerapa Mullingowda Desace, dated 25th Zilhej, -
in Soorsun Ehude Sumlmeen Meia and Alif, registered in the Swarree rozkheerd of Hurreechur Row Pandoo-
rung, in the Poens duftur,”

(xv.) “Sunnud dated 6th Suwal, in Soorsun Suba Sumaneen Meia and Alif, registered in the Swarree
vozkheerd of Gunesh Wiswanath, in the Poona duftur.”

(xv1.) *Aeccording to Mr. Elphinstone's letter of 4. p. 1813, Pureshram Bhow recovered the district of
Muuolee from Kolapoor shortly before he was defeated and killed [September A. p. 1799], when the talocka
was aguin geized by the Raja of Kolapoor.”

(xvir) *These instructions are mentioned in a letter from the Marquis Wellesley to Lord Clive, dated 23rd
August 4. p. 1800.”

{(xvin.) ““Two sunnuda were issued by the Paishwa’s Government during this period, ordering the trans-
fer of portiona of the districts held by the Nipaneekur, which were disregarded by the latter.”

{(xix.) “Sunnuds dated 29th Zilkad, in Soorsun Arba Meiatain and Alif, recorded in the Paishwa's
rozkheerd, &c.”

ne
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“«31, Purgunna Moorgod remained in the hands of the Nipaneekur from a. p,
1803-04.until 4, ». 1817-18. [Foot Note (xx.)] During this period the Paishwa’s
sovereignty in it, as well as jn'the whole of the Chikoree and Munolee Talookas, was

23 disputed by the Kolapoor Raja, whose claim was the cause of a war between him and the
Paishwa. But there is nothing to show that the Munolee district was ever seized by
the former. [Foot Note (xx1.)] And in A. . 1812- 13, the Raja finally relinquished his
claim to it, under articles of agreement entered into with the Honorable Company,
[Foot Note (xxu.}] by which he resounced all right to the Munolee and Chikoree
Talookas, and agreed that they were ¢ henceforward to belong in absolute asoveremnty to

24 the Palehwa After this the Nipaneekur was still allowed 1o remaiu in possession of the
Munolee Talooka, according to the sunnuds already given to him by the Paishwa, as
above mentioned, and it continued with him until he was deprived of it by Sir Thowmas
Munro, in A. p. 1817-18. [Foot Note (xx111.}]

“32. After the agreement of A. ». 1812-13, mentioned in the last paragraph,
had been entered into between the British Government and Raja of Kolapoor, Mr. -
Elphinstone, in obedience to instructions from the Governor General, arbitrated upon a
dispute which had arisen between: the Poona and Kolapoor Governments, as to what
territories were and were not comprised in the two districts to which the Raja had renounc-

25 ed_lis claim. The Inam Commissioner has found in the Poona duftur an unattested
copy of the award, which contains a list of the villages in the two talookas, and in this
Jaleekuttee is still entered as one of the khalsat villages of Moorgod. There are, also,
on record two other memoranda of different matters referred in the same year, a, ».
1812-13, to the arbitrator, by the Kolapoor State. In one of these memoranda are
enumerated the villages which were alienated in aA. ». 1772-73, [Foot Note (xx1v.}]
when the Poona Government agreed to allow the Ruja to take possession of the district,
and in the other are mentioned those villages which had been subsequently alienated by

26 him and by the Paishwa : Jaleckuttee is not entered as an alienated village in either of
these memoranda. There are, moreover, two general lists prepared for this year, of the
villages which were comprised in the district, in both of which Jaleekuttee is shown to
be a Government village.

“33. It has been mentioned in the 31st paragraph, that the Paishwa allowed the
Nipaneekar to remain in possession of the Munolee district after the Kolapoor Raja had,
under date st October a. ». 1812, acknowledged that it belonged in absolute
sovereignty’ to the Poona Government. The Inam Commissioner has found in the
Poona records three lists, prepared for the next year, A. D. 1813-14, of the Inamee and
Government villages in the Munolee Talooka, one of which lists was, it is noted on the

(xx.) “But in A. p. 1816-17, the Paishwa resumed one-third of the Nipaneckur's jagheer, the other two-
thirds being continued. The Purgunna of Moorgod, as a mahal, remained part of the surinjam, though some
of its villages were resumed. - Mouza Jaleekuttee was one of the villages continued to the Nipaneekur, s men-
tioned below in the 34th paragraph,”

(xx1.) ‘“From the 3rd Article of Agreement of 1st October . p. 1812 it would appear, that the war had
commenced by September . n. 1808. Mr, Elphinstone writes in the 29th paragraph of his letter of February
A. D, 1813, already quoted in note (x11.) on paragraph 23, that *in the beginning of 1811 the Raja raised an
army and attacked the Nipaneekur. He was defeated after a short interval, and was obliged to grant some
Jands to the Nipaneekur on his own sccount. After which there was peace again till last February [a. .
1812]. Government is already acquainted with the events of this war, in which the Raja lost almost all the
plain parts of his country, and was on the point of being driven from Kolapoor, when the Right Honorable
the Governor General resolved to interfere, and offer the mediation of the British Government.” In paragraph
10 of the same letter, also, Mr. Elphinstone states, that ©at the time the Raja attacked the country {3, e. these
two districts], the Paishwa had beea for four or five years in quiet possession.’ ”

(xx11.) ““Treaty dated 1st October 4. ». 1812.”

{(xx111.) “*It has been stated in note (xx.) on this paragraph, that some of the villages of the Munolee
Talooka were among those occupied by the Paishwa in A. n. 1816-17, when he resumed from the Nipaneekur
one-third of his surinjam ; but this resumption did not affect Jaleekuttee.”

(xxxv.) * The state of Jaleekuttee in A. . 1772-73 has been explained in the 22nd paragraph.”
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face of it, ¢ written and given in by Appajee Luchmon. and Lingo Puunt, [Karbhareet] in 27
the service of the Nipaneekur’; and all these lists show that Jaleckuttee was a khalsat
village. ' .

“34. The only other account fuund in the dufiur, from which the condition of Jalee-
kuttee, during the Nipaneekur’s tenure of Munolee, can bhe learned, is a yad of valuation
of that Clnefs jagheers as they existed in . p. 1816-17, drawn up in the Poona duftur,
for the purpose of facilitating a-- ‘measure which was in contemplatmn by the Sirkar,
'viz. the resumption of a third.share of the Nipuneekur’s surinjam.. In this valuation,
also, Jaleckuttee is entered as a khalsat village of the surinjam, affording a .revenue of
Rs. 1,236-15-0. )

*35. This last quoted record brings down the history of Juleekuttee to the last year 28
of the late Paishwa's administration, until which period, if the Government records ‘are
to be depended vn, there can be no doubt of its being a khalsat village. ' '

“36. In a.p. 1817-18 Sir Thomas Munro proceeded to the Southern Mahratta
Country, to take possession of the territories ceded to the Honorable Company by the
Treaty of 13th June a. p. 1817 ; and, on the breaking out of hostilities with the Paish-
wa, effected the subjugation of the whole ‘province ; [Foot Note (xxv.)] Munolee and
Chikoree being given up to him, by the Nipaneekur, on the 31st May and Ist June
‘A. D. 1818,

“37. Oun the 24th of June . ». 1818, Sir.T. Munro issued an order to the Mam- 29
lutdar of Munolee, desiring him to make that talvoka over to the Raja of Kolapoor ; and,
on the 28th August following, reported this arrangement to the Honorable Mr. Elphin-
stone, by whom it was fully approved ; being also declared valid by the 4th Articlé of
the Treaty between ‘the Honorable Commany and Raja of Kolapoor, concluded on the
24th January a. p. 1826.

“33. The Munolee and Chikoree Talookas remained in possession of the Kolapoor
Government until 4. p. 1827, when they were, in consequence of the Raja’s bad conduct,
taken possession of by the Honorable Company, and it was agreed by Treaty, [Foot
Note (xxv1.)] that it was ‘necessary that His Highness should give back to the British 30
Government the said talooks in the same state in which he received them, and His
Highness agreed to do so.’

“39. When the Munolee Talooka was taken possession of by the Company’s Go-
vernment in A. p. 1827, the Shunkeshwur Swamee was in possession of Jaleekuttee. It
appears that he was aware that the terms of the Treaty quoted in the last paragraph
would nullify his title, had he referred it to a grant made by the Kolapoor Raja, during
his tenure of Munolee, &c. between A. . 1817-18 and 1827-28 ; for the records of the
Commissioner in the Deccan and Principal Collector of the Southern Mahratta Country
show, that in a statement given in by the Swamee about the time when the resumption 31
of Munolee, &c. from Kolapvor was made, he asserted that Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and
Rayapoor, had been granted to him by the Sovbrow Sindey mentioned in paragraph 17 ;
and even produced a sunnud for the villages, [beyond all doubt a forgery,] purporting to
have been given him by that person in the year a. p. 1749-50. [Foot Note (xxvir.)]

(xxv.) © Sir T. Munro’s operations are described in his official correspondence, quoted in his Memmrs by
Gleig.”

(xxvr.) “The Treaty here quoted is that ratified by the Governor General in Council on the lst August
A. . 1829, The Raja had already been deprived of possession of the districts by the Preliminary Treaty of
the 24th October A. ». 1827.”

(xxvrr.) *Itis the discovery of this previous statement, made in A. p. 1826-27 by the Shunkeshwur Swamee,
‘which has induced the Inam Commissioner to record the evidence afforded by the Government records from
the esrliest period from which they elucidate the history of Jaleekuttee. Had no such statement been made, it
might have been unnecessary to refer to ita condition earlier than A. p. 1796-27, in which year the Shunkeshwur
Swamee’s Karbharee and his assignee now assert the village was first made inam, as will be seen from Answers
VI. and VIIL in the claimant’s examination recorded below in paragraph 45, and Answer L, in that of Sewram-
bhut Latkur, recorded in paragraph 47.” ‘
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“40. The Poona recoids already quoted in this report show, that in every year for
which there are accounts forthcoming, to test the history of Jaleekuttee and its muzzras,
they were, even till the last year of the Paishwa’s Government, undoubtedly khalsat.

32 The Inam Commissioner will now proceed to record the evidence, documentary and
parol, coming from other quarters; aad first that afforded by the Coulkurnees of the
villuges in question.

“41. The following is the substance of a deposition made at Dharwar before the
Inam Commission, on the 10th October 1846, by Sumbhajee Sewajee, Coolkurnee of
Mouza Jaleekuttee, Jewapoor, Rayapoor, &c., aged 52 years:—

 Question I.— Are you the proprietor of the ancient wuttun of Couolkurnee of Jalee-
kuttee, or not?

“ Answer I.—1I am,

“ Question II.—For how long a period can you yourself remember the state and
circumstances of Jaleekuttee ?

33 % Answer II.—For thirty-two years.

“ Question 11I.—In the year 1842 Guvernment took your village Jaleekuttee, with
its Muzzras Jeewapoor and Rayapoor, from Anajee Nursew Deshpandey, and gave him
in exchange three villages in the Padshapoor Purgunna, making your village khalsat.
For how long previous to that event had Anajee Nursew been in possession of it ?

“ Answer IIl.—Anajee Nursew had ‘been in possession of Jaleekuttee, &c. for two
years before it was taken by Government.

“ Question IV,—How did he obtain possession of the village ?

34 “ Answer IV.—I have heard that Shuskurbharthee, Swamee of Shunkeshwur, had
borrowed money from Anajee Nursew, and that it was in payment of this that he
assigned the village to him. I am not, however, sure of this.

“ Question V.—How long had Shunkurbharthee Swamee held the village before he
assigned it to Anajee Nursew ?

“ Answer V.—The Swamee had held it from Faslee 1229 [a. p. 1819-20].

“ Question VI.—Have you in your possession any documents to show how your
village got into the hands of Shunkurbharthee Swamee?

35  “ Auswer VI.—1 produce the following three documents, to show how the village got
into Shunkurbharthee Swamee’s possession : — |

* First—The copy [Foot Note (xxvi11.)] of an order issued by the Raja of Kolapoor on
the 6ith Rujjub, in Soorsun Teesa Ashur Meiatain and Alif [s. p. 1818-19],
directing Venkutrow Nuluwuree Havaldar, and Dinkur Apajee, at the Soobha
36 of Munolee, to make over to the Swamee the village, which bad not been deli-
vered to him according to a sunnud formerly issued. The original order, of

which this is a copy, remained in the hands of Venkutrow and Diokur Apajee.

“ Second.—The copy [Foot Note (xx1x.)] of an order issued from the Soobha of

(xxvisr}  “The first document produced by this witness with Answer VL has been proved authentic by
; Di-ff‘erence, made through the Political Superintendent at Kolapoor, to the records there. Lis purport is a8
ows:—

“<To Venkutrow Nuluwuree Havaldar, and Dinkur Apnjee, Soobha of Munolee, the following
order is issued :-—Although it was formerly agreed that Mouza Jaleckuttee, in Purgunna Muorgod,
should be given to the Swamee of the Mutt in Suwusthan Kurveer, and although a sunnud was issued,
it has been brought to my notice that the village has not as yet been made over into the possession of
the Swamee. Wherefore this Adnyaputtr [order] is issued, that you may make over the village to any
one who may come to receive it on the part of the Swamee, and send his receipt to the Hoozoor. The
Swamee i3 about to visit Jaleeckuttee; make every endeavour to give over the village, and send the
receipt for it to the Hoozoor before bis arrival. Observe this. 6th of Rujjub, in Soorsun Teess
Ashur Meiatain and Alif [A. D. 1818-19]. 'What more can be written 1’ ”

(xx1x.) “This second copy is not authenticated; and the Inam Commissioner has no means of testing
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Manolee on the 4th of Saban, in Soorsin Teesa Ashur Meiatain and Alif [a. p.
1818-19), directing the Mokuddums of Mouza Jaleekuttee and Muzzra Jeewa-
poor to make over the said village to Krishnrow Mahadow Gurde, on the part of 37
the Swamee. The original, of which this is a copy, is with the Swamee.

* Third—An original letter [Foot Note (xxx. )] addressed by Apajee Dinkur, Svo-
bhedar of Manolee, on the 22nd of Saban, in Soorsun Ashureen Meiatain and
Alif [a. p. 1819- 20], to my eIder brother, Shunkrajee Seewajee, advising h:m of
the receipt of the Swamee’s acknowledgment of having received chnrge of
Jaleekuttee and Jeewapoor, which acknowledgment had been transmitted by 38
my brother.

“In all three documents.

“ Question VII.—~Was Jaleekuttee, with its muzzras, khalsat, or what was its condi-
tion, in 4. o. 1818, when Sir Thomas Munro, having taken possession of the country,
‘gave Moorgod and other mahals to the Raja of Kolapoor ?

s Answer VI, ——It was khalsat. -

“ Question VIII.—Have you any documents to show that the village was khalsat,
when Moorgod was given to the Kolapoor Raja ?

“ Answer VIIL—I produce the following documents [Foot N ote {xxx1.)] of Soorsun 39
Teesa Ashur [a. p. 1818-19]:—

* First.—An Aduoyaputtr from the Muanolee Soobha, of the purport of 2 Kowl Nama.
* Second.— A Jumeen Jhara.
“ Third.—A Jumma Khurch.
“ Fourth.— A Wusool Bakee.

“ In all four documents, which will show that the village was then khalsat.
“ Question IX.—Before Sir Thomas Munro took the country, Moorgod and other
mahals were in the possession of the Nipaneckur; was Juleekuttee then khalsat ?

“ Answer IX.—Jaleekuttee was a khalsat village in the Nipaneekur’s time.

“ Question X.—Produce any acconnts, &e. you may have, to show that Jaleekuttee
was a khalsat village in the Nipaneekur’s time. '

“ Answer X.—I produce the following documents [Foot Note (xxxi1.)] as proof that -
the village was khalsat in the Nipaneckur’s time : —

« First.— A Jumeen Jhara in two sheets, of Fuslee 1220 [a. p. 1810-11].

it. This is, however, immaterial, as it merely purports to be the copy of an order for carrying into effect that
translated in the last note, the authenticity of which has been fully proved. It is as follows : —
“ ¢ An order from the Soobha of Munolee to the Mokuddums of Mouza Jaleekuttee and Muzzra
Jeewapoor :—Your village was formerly given as inam to the Swamee of the Mutt of Suwusthan Kurveer.
An order has now been received from the Hoozoor to make over to the Suwusthan what belongs to it.
Wherefore you are to yield possession of the said [village] with its mnzzres to Krishn Row Madhow
Gurde Nisbut, the Suwusthan, and send his receipt here to the Soobha. Observe this. 4th of Saban,
in Soorsun Teesa Ashur Meiatain and Alif [. o, 1818-19]."

(xxx.) “The purport of this letter is as follows :—

‘ “ ¢ In the service of Shunkrajee Seewajee, of Turuf Mudloor, from Dinkur Apajee. After greeting. I
have received the receipt you have sent to me, which was given to you by Krishn Row Madhow Gurde
Nisbut, the Suwusthan of the Swamee of the Mutt of Kolapoor, on his taking possession of Mouza
Jaleekuttee with Muzzra Jeewapoor. 22nd Saban, Soorsun Ashureen Meiatain and Alif [a. p. 1819-20].° "

(xxx1.) “ The four documents produced by this witness with Answer VILIL. . have the appearance of being
genuine, and, if 50, go to prove the truth of the assertion that Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor were khal-
sat, as late as A. D. 1818-19. The first of these documents, in particular, which bears the seal'of the Munolee
Soobha, cootains directions for the management of the villages as khalsat under the Soobha, promising favour-
able terms to the ryots in the next year, and showing that at this time the Swamee had not obtained any
interest in them,”

(xxx11.) * The ten documents produced by this witness with Answer X. appesr genuine, and corroborate
his assertion that Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rajapoor were managed as khalsat villages in so much of the
hlpaneekur 8 time as they refer to, viz. from A. 0. 181Q-11 until 1815-16.”

&.
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41  * Second—Jumma Kharch accounts in nine sheets, of Fuslee 1220 {a. p. 1810-11).
“ Third.—A Jumeen Jhara in two sheets, of Fuslee 1221 [a. ». 1811-12]
« Fourth.—Jumma Khurch accounts, in ten sheets, of ditto.
“ Fifth.—A Wusool Bakee statement, in three sheets, of ditto.
« Sizth.—Jumma Khureh accounts, in eight sheets, of Fuslee 1222 [a. p. 1812-13}.
“ Serenth.—A Wusool Bakee statement, in three sheets, of ditto.
“ Eighth—A Jumeen Jhara in two sheets, of Fuslee 1225 [4. p. 1815-16}.
“ Ninth.—Jumma Khurch accounts, in ten sheets, of ditto.
“ Tenth.—A Wusool Bakee statement, in three sheets, of ditto.

42 “JIn all ten documents; besides which I have no accounts of the time of the
Nipaneekur. '
“ Question XI.—Was Jaleekuttee a khalsat or an inam village at the time when
Pureshram Punt Bhow Putwurdhun held Moorgod, {Foot Note (xxxir.)] &e. ?
“ Answer XI.—1 do not myself recollect the time of Pureshram Punt Bhow ; but
my father used to say that in Pureshram Bhow’s time Juleekuttee was a khalsat vil-
lage. My information is from this.

“ Question X II.—Have you any accounts, &c. of Jaleekuttee in the time of Puresh-
ram Punt Bhow ?

“ Answer XTI.—1 have no accounts of the village, excepting those which I have
already produced.

43 “Question XIJI.—The answers you have given to the questions to-day asked of
you are read over to you : are they correct, or is there anything to be altered in them ?

* Answer XIII.—Tley are all correct : no alteration is required.

“ Signed by Sumsuasee Seewasee, Coolkurnee.
“ Authenticated by the Inam Commission, 10th October 1846.”

“42. The following is the substance of a deposition made at Belgaum before the
Inam Commission, on the 2nd of January 1847, by the last witness’s elder brother,

Nurso Seewajee, Covlkurnee of Mouza Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, Rayapoor, &kec., aged
65 years: —

44 * Question I.-—Some time ago Sumbhajee Seewajee, Coolkurnee of Jaleekuttee, &e.
made a deposition before this Commission ; are you related to him ?
* dnswer I.—He is my full brother,

“ Question II.—You wrote a petition on the 12th December 1846, in which you have
stated that Jaleckuttee, Jeewapoor, &c. were not from the first continued to the Shun-
keshwur Swamee; and that you have receipts of the Mamlutdars, showing that at the
‘time when the Talookas of Munolee, &c. were given by the Company’s Government to

45 the Kolapoor Raja, your village was khalsat; you are required to produce the reccipts in
question.

“ Answer II.—1 now produce 26 documents, [Foot Note (xxxtv.)] numbered from
I to 26, by the hand of my brother.

* Question II].—In some of these papers the names of Shunkur Row and Shunkur
Row Dajee oceur: who are these persons?

“ Answer II1.—My younger brother Shunkur Row, who is since dead, was at that
time performing the duties of Coolkurnee: the papers in question bear his address.

(xxx111.)  “The period alluded to in Question XI. is that to which reference is made above in the 26th,
and part of the 27th, paragraphs.”

(xxx1v.) “The 26 documents produced by this witness with Answer I1. consist of receipts dated through-
out A. p. 1818-19 and 1819-20, purporting to be issued from the Soobha of Manolce by the Scobhedar and
his brother to the Coolkurnees of Juleekuttee, Jeewapoor, &ec. for instalments of the revenue of those villages
for A. ». 1818-19. They appear genuine, and, if so, afford satisfactory proof that in the last mentioned year
Jaleekuttee, &c. were still managed as khalsat villages.” ' :
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“ Question IV.—Some of the papers are written by Bhoojung Ramajee, and others 46
by Shreeneewas Ramajee: who are these persons?

“ Answer IV.—Bhoojung Ramajee was a person who at that period held the comavis
of - Juleckuttee, and the villages of Turuf Mudloor, under the Kolapoor Comavisdar,
Dinkur Punt Kaka. Some of the papers are written by him, and others by his younger
brother, Shreeneewas Ramajee. Both these persons are now dead. -

“ Question V.—When did the Swamee get possession of Jaleekuttee, with Jeewapoof
and Rayapoor; and what was their condition before they fell into his hands? State all
you know of your own knowledge un these points. 47

“ Answer V.—My own memory goes back for upwards of fifty years. As long ago
as I can recollect, the mamlut [of the talooka] was held [Foot Note (xxxv.)] by Sudasew
Krishn, uuder Pureshram Bhow Putwurdhun ; and this Sudasew Krishn had under him
a person named Balajee Krishn, who had the management of the mahal for five years,
until, in the mouth of Kartik, in Svorsun Suba Teesacen [a. p. 1796-97], the district was 438
.taken possession of by the Kolapoor Raja, and for three years the mamlut of the mahal was
held by the Raja’s officers, Abajee Ram and Khunderow Bhosley ; their manager in it
being Dinkar Apajee. At the expiration of these three years, Chundrapa, the Desace
of Tulloor, got up an insurrection, and held the mahal for two years, Then, in the year
Ehude Meiatain {a. n. 1800-01], the Nipaneekur’s rule commenced, and continued until
Soorsun Somaun Ashur [a. . 1817-18). The mamlut of the mahal was held under the
Nipaneekur by two persons, Nurhur Balajee and Mulhar Balajee. After this, in Fuslee
1227 [a. p. 1817-18], Munro Saheb came, and, having taken away Munolee, &e. fromn
the Nipaneekur, gave it to the Kolapoor Raja, whu held it {or ten years, till Fuslee 1237 49
[A. D 1827-28), when the Company took. possession of it. During the whole of the
above® perivds, until Munro Saheb took Munolee from the Nipaneekur, and gave it to
the Ruja, Jaleekutiee was managed as a khalsat village. After Munro Saheb gave the
district up to the Raja, the village was continued in like manner as khalsat for one
year. But from the second year, it was held by the Shunkeshwur Swamee until about
six years ago, when he gave it to Anajee Nursew Deshpandey, who, about four years
ago, made it over as khalsat to Government, in exchange for other villages, and since
then it has remained khalsat, . 50

“ Signed by Nursew Seewailcg, Coolkurnee.

“ Authenticated by the Inam Commission, 20d January 1847.”

*“43. In addition to the parol and documentary evidence afforded by the above
Coolkurnees, the Inam Commissioner has received from the Political Agent Southern
Mahratta Country some acconnts, obtained by him, with many others, from a Sahookar
named Nana Keerluskur, who held various small mamluts under the Paishwa, and these
accounts [Foot Note (xxxv1.)]show that in a. p. 1818-19 Juleckuttee was managed as
a khalsat village by the Comavisdar of Moorgod, under the Kolapoor Raja. This 51

{xxxv.) * This was at the period to which the 26th, and part of the 27th paragraph refer. The Govern-
ment accounts quoted in the former of them fully corroborate the assertion made by the witness, that under
Pureshram Bhow’s management, Jaleckuttee was a khalsat village. The Inam Commissioner's veason for
wishing to trace its history nt a period before the date now asserted to have been that of the original grant is
explained in note {xxvir.) on the 39th paragraph. The whole of Answer V. will be seen to be corroborated by
the Poonus records, the accounts produced Ly the Coolkurnees themselves, and [as far as they go] by those
described below in the 43cd paragraph ; as well as by the correspondence relating to Anajee Nursew’s exchange
of Jaleekuttee, &c., described in the opening paragraphs of this Report.”

(xxxv1.) *“The accounts in question are those of the Jummabuundee of Jaleekuttee, &e., in Soorsun Teesa
Aghur Meiatain and Alif [A. D, 1818-19] ; a list of thelands then held as charitable inams in the same village,
and the accounts of eollections made by the Comavisdar of Parguuna Moorgoed, and expended or paid to the
Sirkar between the 25th of Saban and 30th of Mohurrum, in the same year in which Jaleckuttes is entered as
& khelsat village, and the collections of revenue made from it eredited to the Sirkar.”
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evidence, thus accidentally procured, greatly corroborates that quoted in paragrapls 41
and 42, as furnished by the Coulkurnees of the village.

“ 44, Theonly other statements to be recorded in this case are those of the claim-
ant Konher Row himself, and of the Karbharee or agent of the Swamee, from whem
Koanher Row derives all the title he can urge tu any interest in Jaleekuttee,

« 45 ‘The following is the substance of the examination of Konher Row bin Anajee
Punt bin Nursingrow, Deshpaudey of Kuryat Ankule, made at Belgaum, befure the
Inam Comnmission, on the 27th October 1846 : —

“ Question I.—State your name, and those of your father and grandfather; mention

also your age.
52 % Answer I.—My name is Konher Row ; my father’s name was Anajee Punt, and my

grandfather’s Nursing Row. I am thirty-unine years old.

“ Question I1.—State the places of your birth, your original wuttan, aud your pre-
sent residence. :

“ Answer II.—I was born in Mouza Hembul, in the Chikoree Talooka ; the place of
my original wuttun is Kuryat Ankule, in Talooka Padshapoor; and 1 reside at the inam
village of Ashte, in the Shahapoor Talooka.

“ Question 111.—You hold the villages Mulapoor, Punjushuttee, and Yeduelgood, in
53 Talocka Padshapoor: on what tenure do you possess them—as surv inam, jagheer,
jooree inam, or how ; and are they to be continued hereditarily or not?

“ Answer III.—I hold the said three villages as hereditary jooree inam.

“ Question IV,—How and when did yon get possession of these villages: did you
inherit them en your father's death, or how ?

“ Answer I'V.—I inlerited all three villages on my father’s t_leath.

* Question V.—Your father got, these villages, Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedul-
good, in Talooka Padshapoor, in exchiauge for Mouza Jaleekutiee, with Jeewapoor, &ec.
o4 in Talovka Purusgur. The Commission is in possession of abundance of documeatary
evidence, showing that Government assented to this exchange. [Fuut Note (xxxvir. )]
But 1t does not appear from this that Government was aware of how the villages in
Purnsgur came. into your father’s possession. 1f, therefore, amongst the Government
orders and other documents which you may possess, relative to the exchange, there be
any document to show, that when Government assented to the transaction, it did so
with a clear knowledge of the manner in which your father obtained the villages in
Purusgur, produce such document. 7

“ Answer V.—The villages Juleekuttee, and its muzzras Jeewapoor and Rayapoor,

55 were sold as inam to my father, by the Swamee of the Mutt of Suwusthan Kurveer.

When this inam was taken by Government in exchange for Mulapoor, &e. Mr. Reeves,

the Collector and Politsical Agent Southern Muahratta Country, addressed to my father

an inam puttr dated 21st March a. p. 1842, which I vow present. From this it appears

that Government was aware that Jaleekuttee, &c. came into my futher's possession from
the Swamee. [Foot Note (xxxvir)]

(xxxvir) * Allusion is here made to the correspondence described from paragraph 4 to paragraph 13 of
this Report,”

- (xxxviinL) ““The following is the purport of Mr. Reeves' © inam puttr,” here appealed to by the claimant :—
» % ¢ To Anajee Punt Ann, Deshpandey of Turuf Ankulgee, in Talooka Padshapoor, froma Henry Wilson
Reeves, Esquire, Acting Collector and Political Agent in Zilla Belgaum. After compliments. ¥ou
have made a petition to Government, that the Sirkar would be plensed to take possession of the three
villages given to you by the Shree Swamee, viz. Mouza Jaleckuttee, Muzzra Jeewnpoor, and Rayapoor,
and would give you in exchange for them the three villages Mouza Mulapoor, Muzzra Yedulgood, and
Punjunhuttee, in the Padshapoor Talooka. Government has been kindly pleased to accede to your
request, and, having made an examination of the totals [of revenue), has issued an order No. 819, dated
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“ Question VI.—In what year, by whom, and to him, were Mouza Jaleckuttee, &c. 56
first granted as inam from the Government khalsa ? 57
‘* Answer VI.—The three villages of Jaleekuttee, &c. were first granted as inam in
the Raj Abishek Shuk 123, Null Sunwutsur [a. D, 1796- -97), about fifty years ago, to
the Swamee Juggut, Gooreo of the Suwusthan at Kolapoor, by Seewajee Mahara_] Chut-
terputtee, who then held the Munolee Talooka,

* Question VII.—Was the village granted to its firs{ holder, the said Swamee, for any
particular service or not : if so, for what service was it granted ¢

“ Answer VII.—1 cannat say for what service the three villages were obtained by
the Swamee : this may be known to Seewurambhut Latkur, the Karbharee of the Mutt, 58
[Foot Note (xxx1x.)] On looking at the sunnud given by the Maharaja for the grant
of the inam to the Swamee, it appears that the villages were not given to the latter
for any service.

“ Question VIII.—Produce any sunnuds or other documents yon may have of the
period when the inam was first granted to the Swamee.

“ Answer VIII1—1 produce the following sunnuds, issued by the Maharaja, for the
grant of the villages to the Swamee :—

“ First. [Foot Note (x1.)]—One dated 13th Poush Wudh, in Null Sunwutsur ‘Raj 59

19th March 1842, to effect the exchange offered by you. In consequence of the receipt of this order,
I now write to you as follows :—

“<i. It is necessary that you give up to the Mamlutdar of Talooka Purusgur, possession of your
three inam villages Jaleckuttee, Jewapoor, and Rayapoor.

2. A separate yad has been written to Mr. Mansfield, the Acting 2nd Assistant Cellector,
desiring him to give you as inam, in exchange for the said villages, and to make over into your posses-

_eion, the villages Mouza Mulapoor, Mussra Yedulgood, and Puanjunhuttee. You will accordingly
receive possession of them.

3. [This paragraph relates eolely to an adjustment of paymenton accouunt of the difference of

valne in the villages exchan ged ]

* 4. The villages you are now to receive were already given in farm from Fuslee 1248 until 1257
[A. D. 1838-39 until 1847-48]. Of thém you hold two, and one, vis. Mulapoor, is in farm with Seenapa
Naik, Sahookar of Dharwar, This last village you are to continue to him, ag agreed by Government,
until the expiration of the lease.

“¢5. You are to pay up with all speed the balance due to Government for the present year on
account of the said village, [Mulapoor,] and you are to colleci what revenue may be due to you on
account of the current year in the villages you yourself have been holding. A yad has been written to
the Assistaut Collector to examine and report on the outstanding balances, should any sach be due from
the villages.

“¢6, The villazes now given to you are subject to the regulations of Government, according to
which their management, both eivil and eriminal, is to continue.

“¢ What more can I write? Dated 31st March a. ». 1842, Fuslee 1251, Shuk 1763, Plava Sun-
wutsur, the 5th of Falgoon Wudh, Thursday, at Belgaum.

(Sigued) * ¢ Hunmunt Row, (Signed) «*Henry W. ReEves,

Native Agent.’ A, P. Agent.’

“The part of this docament which the claimant wishes to be taken as proof that Government was aware
that Jaleekuttee, &ec. had come into his father’s possession from the Swamee, is the expression in the introduc-
tory paragraph—* tAe sillages given fo you by the Shree Swamee. But it is to be observed that this expression
is nat in reality used as coming from Government, but from the claimant’s father, and is merely recited as part
of his petition. To regard this phrase in Mr. Reeves’ letter to Anajee Puntas proof that Government recog-
nised the transaction by which the latter became possessed of Jaleckuttee, &c. would be as unreasonable as to
look ou it {in its use of the phrase Skree] as an official recogoition of the divinity of the Shunkeshwar Swamee.
Moreover, it will be seen, by a reference to the correspondence quoted from paragraph 4 to paragraph 13 of
this Repart, that when Anajee Punt’s request wes laid before (fovermment, nothing was written by which
Government could have discovered how the villages which he wished to exchange had come into his possession.”

(x:xlx.) “ Seewurambhut’s answer on this subject is IL in his examination recorded below in the 47th
paragraph.”

(x1.) ** The purport of the first document produced by clmmnnt with Answer VIIIL. is as follows :—

‘ “ Raj Abishek Shuk 123, Null Sunwutsur [a. . 1796-97), the 13th of Poush Wudh. The Raja
Sew Chutterputtee orders Kunderow Bhosleyand Abajee Ram, at Tanna Munolee, as follows :—That

8
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Abishek Shuk 123 [a. p. 1796-97], addressed to Khunderow Bhosley and Abajee
Ram, at the Tanna of Munolee.

“ Second. [Foot Note (xr1.)]—Oune of the same date, addressed to the Mokuddums of
Mouza Jaleekuttee.

« Both of these sunnuds were given to us by the Swamee as title for our enjoyment.

60 * Question IX.—After the village was thus granted to the Swamee, did Government
continue to recognise his enjoyment, and did that enjoyment continue without interrup-
tion from the date of the grant until the close of the Paishwa's Government in Fuslee
1227 [a. ». 1817-18] ? Should any interruption have occurred during that period,
when, on what grounds, and by whom was it occasioned ; and when and by whom was
it removed ?

“ Answer IX.—1 know nothing of this subject. Seewurambhut Latkur, who is at
Shunkeshwur, will be able to tell. [Foot Note (xr1.)]

61 <« Question X.—Produce any takeeds, &c. you may have, to show that during the said
period, that is from the grant of the village until Fuslee 1227 [, p. 1817-18]}, the vil-
lage wds uninterruptedly enjoyed, or to show hiow any interruption which may have
occurred was removed. ‘

“ Answer X.—I cannot answer this question: Seewurambhut Latkar will be able
[Foot Note (xLf.)] to do so.

“ Question XI.—On the last day of the Paishwa’s rule, in Fuslee 1227 [a. . 1817-18},
who had possession of the village, and what relation was he of the original Inamdar ?

62 “ Answer XI,—I do not know: the Karbharee of the Mutt, Seewurambhut, will be
able [Foot Note (xr1v.)] to answer this.

“ Question X II.—Sir Thomas Munro, on the part of the Company’s Government,
having taken the country in Fuslee 1227 [a. p. 1817-18], from the Paishwa, made over
Moorgod and other mahals to the Kolapoor Raja. When the Raja thus got Moorgod

into his hands, did the same person continue to keep possession of Jaleekuttee, &c., and
did the Raja assent to his doing so ?

“ Answer XII—1 do not know : Seewurambhut the Karbharee will be able to answer
[Foot Note (xLv.}] this question.

63  * Question XIIT.—Produce any documentary evidence you may have to show the
condition of the village after Fuslee 1227 [a.-p. 1817-18], for so long as Moorgod re-
mained under the Kolapoor Government.

the Mahara) and his kingdom may be blessed by the gift of an inam village for the use of the Suwus-
than of the Swamee of the Mutt of Suwusthan Kurveer, I have granted to him the village Jaleekuttee, in
Kuryat Moorgod, with its two Warrees Jeewapoor and Rayapoor, in perfect free-hold, free of present
and futare tax, with all perquisites, and with its stones, trees, &c., excepting ouly the huks of
Hukdars, ‘Wherefore you are to continue to the Swamee and to his successors in perpetuity the said
village, with both its warrees, according to its ancient boundaries. You are not to require a fresh sunnnd
every year, but keep a copy of this, and give the original to the Swamee, as a title for his enjoyment,
Observe this. What more need be written 7’
“ The Inam Commissioner has referred to the Political Superintendent at Kolapoor to know if this orderis
registered in the Raja’s duftur, but has received a reply, stating that the records of the time when it purports
to have been written are not forthcoming, so that its authenticity cannot be tested by them.”

(xr1.) “ This document, addressed to the village officers of Jaleekuttee, &c. is entirely of the same purport

ag that addressed to Khunderow Bhosley and Abajee Ram, trauslated in note (x1.) on this paragraph. Ita
authenticity, also, is of the same degree.”

(xvrir) * Seewnrambhut's answer on this subject i# contained in reply IIL of his examination, recorded
below in the 47th paragraph.”’

© (zLm)  “Seewurambhut's answer to this question is recorded as IV, of his examination, in paragraph 47.”
(xt1v.) ¢ Seewurambhnt’s answer on this point is V. of his examination, recorded below.”

(xLv.) *“Seewurambhut's reply onthis point is contained in Answer VI, of his examination, recorded
below in paragraph 47.”
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“ Answer XIII.—I have not got any documents relating to this: Seewurambhut
may know of some. [Foot Note (xLv1.))

“ Question XIV.—In Fuslee 1237 [a. ». 1827-28] the Company’s Government
deprived the Kolapoor Raja of Moorgod, &e. : who was in possession of Jaleekuttee at
that period ?

“ Answer XIV.—I do not know : Seewurambhut Latkar must be aware of this. [Foot
Note (xLvir.)] s

“ Question XV.—For how long after the Company’s Government took Moorgod, 64
&c. from the Raja, did the person then in possession continue to hold the village?
While he did so, was his enjoyment ever interrupted ; and who succeeded him ?

*“ Answer XV.—I do not know. The Karbharee of the Mutt, Seewurambhut, will
be able to answer [Foot Note (zLvit.)] this question.

“ Question XVI—Produce any documents you may have to show the condition of
Jaleekuttee, &c. between Fuslees 1237 and 1252 [a. p. 1827-28 and 1842-43].

“ Answer XVI.—I know of no documents relating to the period from Fuslees 1237 65
until 1248 [a. p. 1827-28 till 1838-39), inclusive » Seewurambhut Latkur may know
of such. [Foot Note xvrix.] In Fuslee 1249 [a. p. 1839-40] my father received posses-
sion of the three villages from the Swamee. I produce the takeed addressed to the offi-
cers of the three villages by the Swamee [Foot Note (.)] in the year Arbaee Meiatain 66
and Alif, Shuk 1761, Vikaree Sunwutsur [a. p. 1839-40], on the occasion. After this
my father held the villages until the 31st of March in Fuslee 1251 [4. p. 1842], when
be gave them in exchange to the Company’s Government. The orders, &c. which may
have been issued by Government to the villages regarding this exchange will be on
the Government records. [Foot Notk (11.)] None of them are in my possession.

« Question XVII.—For what reason did the Shunkeshwur Swamee give Jaleekuttee,
&e. to your father in Fuslee 1249 [4. p. 1839-40]2

“ Answer XVII.—The Swamee received money from my father, and gave him the 67
villages in Fuslee 1249 [a. p. 1839-40], as an inam by sale.

“ Question XVIII.—Produce any documentary evidence you may have relative to
the Swamee’s grant of Jaleekuttee, &c. to your father.

(xLv1) Seewurambhut's answer on this point will be found in reply VII, of his examination, recorded in
the 47th paragraph.”

(xuvin) * Seewurambhut's answer on thls point is VIIL in his examipation, recorded below in para-
Jgraph 47.7

(xuvinL) * Seeworambhut’s answer on this point is contained in reply IX. in his examination, recorded
below in paragraph 47.”

(xr1x.) “Seewurambhut knows of mone. See Aunswer X. in bis examination, recorded below in para-
graph 47."

{r.) * The following is the purport of the takeed produced with this answer :—

‘ «Shree Shunkurbharthee Swamee orders the Mokuddums of Mouza Jaleekuttee as follows :—My
Suwusthan had fallen into the straits of debt ; wherefore I borrowed sixty thousand rupees from Ansjee
Nursew, Deshpandey of Ankule, in Padshiapoor, and Bapoojee Sudasew Soogtankur, of Khanapoor ; and
this sum, with interest at one per cent. {per mensem), and expenses of management at fifty rupees per
thousand, amounted, on examination of our acconnts, to & lac and twenty-two thonsand rupees, It was
then agreed that the capital sum of Rsy 60,000 should be paid off in six years, by an assignment
amounting to Ra. 10,000 per annum, and that as for the interest and menageraent expenses, amount-
ing to Rs. 62,000 more, some of this should be forgiven, and instead of the rest, a village of the
revenue of Rs. 1,000 should be given as an inam by sale. On it being thus ordered toboth the
creditors, they, out of regard for the Suwusthan, remitted Rs. 12,000, and begged that I would give
them a village as an inam by sale in lien of the balance of Ra. 50,000. Wherefore I have gwen them as
an inam by sale your said village, with its two muzzras, in perfect frechold, I have given them a
separate insm puttr, according to which you are to continue the village to them and to their descendants
in perpetuity, and act in subjection to them. You are to keep a copy of this letter, and give the original
to them, a3 title for enjoyment. Observe this. 3rd of Rujjub, 4th of Bbadurpud Wudh, in Shuk 1761,
Vikaree Sunwutsur [4. o. 1839-40]. ”

(v1.) * The orders are simply for the transfer of the villages, and need not here be quoted.”
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63 % Answer XVIII.—1 produce a sunnud, [Foot Note (t11.)] executed by the Swamee
on stamped paper, under date 12th beptember 1339, in favour of my father and Bapoo
Row Soogtankur, by which the villages in question were granted as an hereditary inam,

Ly sale, to my father.
69 < Question XIX.—When the Swamee thus granted the villages, did Government

consent to the transaction ? If so, produce any evidence you may have of this.

“ Answer X IX.—1 do not know whether or not my father made any application for
the consent of Government when the villages were granted to him by the Swamee. I
have not any documentary evidence on this point,

“ Question X X.—Although Government may not have given its consent at Lthe time
of the transaction, it may poss:bly have done so subsequently. Ifyou have any evidence

of this, produce it.
70 < Answer X X.—Some time after my father received the three villages as an inam

by purchase from the Swamee, he made an application to Mr, Townsend, who was
then employed as Collector of Belgaum, requesting that the three villages bestowed in
inam on him by the Swamee might be taken by Government in exchange for villages
to be held as inam in the Padshapoor Talooka. Mr. Townsend desired my futher to
write a yad on the subject, which he did. This yad was dated in Soorsun Arbaeen or
Ehude Arbaeen [a. ». 1839-40 or 1840-41), and, being approved of by the Sirkar,
was sent to Mr. Campbell, who wrote to the Purusgur Mamlutdar, and obtained
71 returns of the revenue, &c. of the villages. After this, Mr. Shaw came as Collector to
Belgaum, and my father addressed a yad to him in the year Esune Arbaeen [a. n.
1811-42], requesting that villages in the Padshapoor Talooka might be given to him in
exchange for Jaleekuttee, &c. Mr. Shaw, on seeing this yad, wrote to the- Bombay

(L1} “The document, produced by the claimant with Answer XVIIL, ig of the following purport :—

< By Shree Shunkurbharthee, &c. &c., on Mouday the 4th of Bhadurpud Shoodh, in the Shalivahan
Shak 1761, Vikaree Sunwutsur [4. p. 1839-40], to Anajee Nursew, Deshpandey of Ankule, in Purgunna
Padshapoor, and Bapoojee Sadasew Soogtankur, of Khanapoor, this inam puttr is written. When this
Suwusthan had come to great distress from debt, we borrowed from you Rs. 60,000, and on calenlating
the interest of thissum at 1 per cent. per mensem, and tynat, {commission or allowance for management,)
at Ra. 50 per thousand, it will amount in six years to a lac and twenty-two thousand rupees. But the
revenue of the iname of the Suwusthan are small. Wherefore it was intimated to you both, that as
besides you there is no ooe to help the Sawusthan, you should, in lieu of the principal of Ra. 60,000,
take an assignment for six years of [lands producing Rs. 10,000 yearly]; and that as for the Ra. 62,000
of interest, and tynat, you should forgive part of it, and, iustead of the rest, receive a village as an inam
by sale. On this, you considered that it wonld be & great blessing if the Suwusthan could be freed
from the difficulties of debt, and represented that you would remit Rs. 12,000 of the Rs. 62,000, beg-
ging that you might have & village, yielding a revenue of Re. 1,000, as sn inam by sale, in lieu of the
balance of Rs. 50,000. Being well pleased with this, I have executed a separate bond on stamped paper,
promising to pay the principal of Rs. 60,000 in six years ; and, instead of the Rs. 50,000, I bave agreed
to give you as an inam by sale the village Jaleekuttee, with its Muzzras Jeewapoor and Rayapoor, in
Kuryat Moorgod, of Talooka Munolee, in perfect freehold ; and I have of my own free will and pleasure
executed this sunnud on stamped paper, that you and your descendants for ever may comfortably enjoy
the village. The title deeds of the Suwusthan for the village have been transferred to you. None of my
" successors in the Mutt will interfere with this inara by sale, If any one should give you trouble about it,
may they be accursed in their owun religion. What nesd is there to write more? 3rd of Rujjub, in

Soorsun Arbaeen Meiatain and Alif [2nd September a. ». 1839].

¢ [Sealed and attested.]

“ Below this deed is the following memomndum, purporting to be addressed by Bapoo Soogtankur to
Anajee Nursew :—

‘ ¢You and I together lent the Jugudgooroo SBwamee of the Shunkeshwur Mutt Rs. 60,000, to be
repaid in six years, and we accepted, in lieu of interest, Mouza Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor,
as inam by sale. But inam villages at such a distance ere of no use to me, on which account I have
teceived from you my Rs. 30,000, with interest, end have now given my half share of the village to you
ng inam by sale [by writing], on the stamped sunnud given by the Swamee. You are to enjoy the whole
village hereditarily, according to the Swamee’s sunnud, and remain comfortable. I have no farther
demands, aud therefore have written this of my own free will.

(Bigned) * * Baroosex Syniexw SooGTANEUR. ™
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Government, and his explanation was .approved. Afterwards Mr. Reeves came as
Collector to Belgaum, and after examining all the correspondence and papers, &e.
wrote t6 Government, and obtained its answer. Proofs of all this must be on the
Government records, if you will be so kind as to examine them ; [Foot Note (L1m1.)] and,
besides them, I have already in my Answer V. mentioned the sunnud [Foot Note (rLiv.)] 72
addressed by Mr. Reeves to my father.

* Question XX I.—Until what year did your father keep possession of Jaleekuttee,
after it was given to him by the Swamee, and what was his reason for giving it to Go-
vernment in exchange for other villages ?

*“ Answer XX I.—Afier the Swamee gave Jaleekuttee, &c. to my father, the latter
held them uutil Fuslee 1251 [a. p. 1841-42]. The villages were, however, inconveni-
ently far from our residence, on which account my father applied to have them kindly
taken by Government in exchange for Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood, which 73
were close to his other inam villages; and the Sirkar was then so good as to give us in
exchange the last named three villages as iram,

“ Question XX II.—When the Sirkar thus gave in exchange the villages Mulapoor,
" Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood, at what value was it settled that Jaleekuttee, &ec. should
be received from your father, and what arrangemeat was made for the compensation of
any difference in the value of the villages exchanged"

* Answer XXII.—When the three villages Mulapoor, &c. were given in exchange,
an order was issued by the Sirkar to the Purusgur Mamlutdar, and the accounts of Jalee- 74
kuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor for ten years were procured through him. An average
of the income realised in each of the ten years was taken from these accounts; and,
the Sirkar being written to, the actual revenue was fixed as Rs. 769-12-0, though the
kumal revenue of the three villages Jaleekuttee, &c. was 3,000 Nilkuntee rupees, the
accounts of which are with Government. These villages being taken by the Sirkar, we
obtained as inam from Government, in exchange for them the three villages Mulapoor,
Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood, the actual revenue of which was Rs. 852-11-0, besides
waste land, which could not be made to afford revenue for a long while, but which was 75
valued at Rs. 94-12-0, making the total revenue Rs. 947-7-0. The difference between
this sum and Rs. 769-12- 0, the valuation of the villages received from us, being
Rs. 177-11-0, remained to be made good to Government, and this sum is paid by me,
every vear, into the Padshapoor treasury. The accounts relating to all this must be
with Government, [Foot Note (Lv.)] if you will Lindly ook for them.

“ Question XX III,~Besides the sum of Rs. 177-11-0 fixed as your yearly payment,
is anything else due to Government on account of the villages ?

“ Answer X XI1I1I.—There is nothing due but the fixed payment of Rs. 177-11-0. 76

“ Question XXIV.— If you share the villages of Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and
Yedulgood with any one else, explain this; mention the amount of your own and the
other shares ; and state the name and age of each of the holders, and the names of his
father and grandfather.

“ Answer X XIV.—Mulapoor is held by me; Punjunhuttee and Yedulgood have
gone to the share of my uncle Ramchunder Punt bin Nursingrow bin Anajee Punt,
who is 54 years old.

“ Question X XV.—You presented, with your answer to Question XVIIL above, the
sunnud given you by the Swamee for the assignment of Jaleekuttee, &e. On looking 77

- (urm) ¢ All this seems to agree with what has been stated from the 4th to the 13th paragraph, but there
ia nothing to show that Government ever approved of Anajee Nursew's transaction with the Swamee, or even
koew that it had occurred.”

(1ev.)  * This sunnud hus been already described in note (xxxvir1) on Answer V. in this paragraph.”

(Lv.} ““The calculations on which this payment was fised are explained in the leiter, &ec. quoted in
paragraphs 6 and 7.”

H*
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at it, the grant of the villages seems to have been made to your father and one Bapoo
Yoogtankur. Explain, therefore, how the three villages remained in the bands of only
one of these parties.

Answer XXV.—In the same year in which the Swamee gave the villages, Bapoo
Songtankur said that he did not wish for them, but that if my father would give him
what was due to him, with interest, he might keep the three villages for himself.
Bapoo Seogtankur was accordingly paid by us the principal sum and interest due to

78 him, and, having made over his share of the villages to my father, wrote below the
sunnud given by the Swamee an acknowledgment [Foot Note (Lvi.)] that my father
and his heirs for ever were to remain in sole possession of the three villages.

“Signed by Kovner Row Axasee.
“ Authentjcated by the Inam Commission, 27th October 1846.”

“46. Every question material to the history of Jaleekuttee being referred by the
claimant to the Karbharee of the Swamee, it was necessary to examine him regarding it.
He, of course, cannot be looked on in the light of a witness, so much as in that of a
person having a joint interest with the claimant in substantiating a claim against Go-

79 vernment. It will be seen that the history he gives of Jaleekuttee, &ec. is equally irre-
concileable with the evidence afforded by the Government records, the statements and
records of the witnesses examined in this case, and the statement formerly made [as
mentioned in paragraph 39] by the Swamee himself.

“47. The following is the substance of a deposition made at Belgaum before the
Inam Commission, on the 14th Jdnuary 1847, by Seewurambhut bin Anbhut Latkur,
aged 65 years, Karbharee of the Shunkeshwur Mutt :—

 Question I.—Mouza Jaleekuttee, with its mazzras, was given by the Shunkeshwur
Swamee to Konher Row Bapoo’s father, Anajee Nursew. By whom, and when was it
given to the Swamee ? ' ,

“ Answer I.-—Sewajee Maharaj Chutterputtee granted it in Null Sunwutsur

80 [a. p. 1796-97] to Nursewbharthee, a former Swamee in the Mutt. This appears from
the sunnud.

“ Question II.—For what service was the village granted to the Swamee ?

“ Answer II.—The village was not granted for any service. The Swamee was the
Raja’s Gooroo, which was the reason of the grant.

“ Question I1I,—After the Swamee obtained the grant, did the Sirkar permit the
continuance of the village to him, and was it continuously enjoyed from the date of its
grant until the introduction of the present Government in Fuslee 1227 [a. p, 1817-18]1

81 Should any interruption have occurred during that period, by whom, and when was it
occasioned ; and for what reason, and by whom, and when, was it removed ?

Answer II].—During the above period only one interruption oceurred: this was
towards the end of the Nipaneekur’s management, about Fuslee 1225 [a. p. 1815-186),
when the Nipaneekur committed great oppression over all the villages of the Suwusthan,
and levied khundnee from them. At this period Jaleekutiee was taken possession of
by the Nipaneekar. [Foot Note (Lvir.)] After this the Swamee went to Poona, and told
the Paishwa, who called the Nipaneekur’s Karbharee Lingo Puot Ana before him, and

82 gave him an injunction, 6n which Lingo Punt wrote a letter to his own brother Ram-
chunder Punt, who was managing the Munolee Soobha for the Nipaneekuor, snd Ram-
chunder Punt sent a takeed to the officers of Jaleekuttee, and released the village.

{(Lv1.) “This acknowledgment is translated along with the Swamee’s sunnud in note (rax.) on the
elaimant’'s Answer XVIIL. recorded above,”
(Lvir) A reference to the 33rd paragraph will show, that in A. 0. 1813-14 Jaleckuttee was entered as a

khalsat village in a list given in by the Nipaneekur’s Karbharees, one of whom was the Lingo Punt mentioned
in this answer.”
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% Question IV .—Produce any documents you may have as evidence of the way in
which the village was enjoyed during the above period ; that is to say, from the date of
its original grant until Fuslee 1227 [a. p. 1817-18].

“ Answer IV.—Here are copies {Foot Note (rvim.)] of the original sunnud for the 83
grant of the village, and of the documents written for its release when interfered with in
the Nipaneekur’s time. The original sunnud was given to Anajee Nursew. The origi- 84
nal letter, written by Lingo Punt & his brother, remained with the latter, and the
original takeed, addressed by Ramchunder Punt to the village officers, was given to
them.

“ Question V.—At the close of the Paishwa’s Government in Fuslee 1227 [a. p. 1817-
18], who had possession of the village, and what relation was he to the original grantee ?

“ Answer V.—At the close of the Paishwa’s Government the village was held by
Nursewbharthee, who was the adopted disciple of Shunkerbharthee, who was the adopted
disciple of the original Inatidar Nursewbharthee.

“ Question VI.—Sir Thomas Munro, on the part of the Company, having taken the 83
country in Fuslee 1227 [a. b, 1817-18] from the Paishwa, made over Moorgod and
other mahals to the Kolapoor Raja. When the Raja got Moorgod into his hands, did
Nursewbharthee continue to hold Jaleekuttee, &c., and did the Raja assent to his
doing s07? '

 Auswer VI.—At the period in question, Nursewbharthee remeined in possession of
the village with the Raja’s consent.

“ Question VII.—Have you any documentary evidence to show the condition of the
village after Fuslee 1227 [a. ». 1817-18], for so Iong as' Moorgod remained under 86
the Kolapoor Government? If so, produce it.

«“ Answer VII.—1 have not got any Government decuments of that per:od There
may be some of the village accounts in the Mutt of the Suwusthan.

Question VIII.—1In Fuslee 1237 [a. . 1827-28], the Companv s Government took

away Moorgod, &ec. from the Kolapoor Raja : who was in possession of Jaleekuttee, &c.
at that period ?

(vvinr.) “The documents produced by Seewurambhut with Answer IV. are four copies, none of them

authenticated, and all apparently recently prepared. They are as follows :—

“ First.—A copy of the sunnud of 4. p. 1796-97, translated in note (xL.) on the claimant’s Answer VIII,,
recorded in paragraph 45. -

“ Second.—A copy of the takeed of the same date, described in note (xLx.} or the same answer.

¢ Third.—A copy of a letter, purporting to be addressed, on the 15th Zilhej [the year is not mentioned], by
Lingo Mulhar, at Poona, to Ramchunder Punt [his brother], to the following effect: — ‘

“* The Swamee of the Suwusthan of the Shunkeshwur Mutt holds as inam from of old Mouza
Jaleekuttee, with Muzzra Jewapoor ; but he has informed the Paishwa that we have taken possession of
it, and collect ita revenues under the Munolee Soobha, and [the Paishwa] has called me, and given me
an injunction that the Swamee’s village shall not be interfered with, but that it shall be restored to him,
as well as any revenne which may have been collected from it. This is the Sirkar’s order. - Wherefore
I write this letter to you to desive, that asthe said Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, in Talooka Moorgod, of Soo-
bha Munolee, belongs to the Swamee, it may be given up to him. You are to give up the village to
whichever of the Swamee's Carkoons may bring you this letter, and you need not reguire any further
instructions, Give up the village as above written to the Carkoon, and take his receipt for it.’

* Fourth.—A copy of atakeed dated 5th of Zilhej, in Soorsun Suba Ashur Meiatain and Alif [A. p. 1816-17],
purporting to be addressed by Ramchunder Mulhar, Soobhedar of Munolee, to the Mokuddums of
Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, to the following effect :—

*“ ¢ Your village is the inam of the Swamee of the Suwusthan of the Shunkeshwur Mutt., In conse-
quence of its being taken possession of by us, the Swamee has made a complaint at Poone, and the
Prishwa has ordered the village to be restored. A letter to this effect has reached me from Lingo Punt
Apa; and I therefore write to you to make over the village to Sudasew Punt Bhow, the Carkoon of the
Suwustban, who has come to receive it, and pay him the collections without objection. .You are not to
Tequire any other order, but to yield the village to the Carkoon as above desired, and to act in subjectlon
to him.  You are not to look for new letters every year, but keep a copy of this one, and give the
original to the Swamee as a title for enjoyment. Observe this.” »
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“ Answer VIII~—The Swamee Nursewbharthee ¢ Kasseekur’ then held the village.

+ % Question IX.—For how long, after the Company’s Goverument took Moorgod,
87 &e. from the Raja, did Nursewbharthee Kasseekur continue to hold the village 7 While

he did so, was his enjoyment ever interrupted ; and, after him, into whose hands did
the village go ?

“ Answer IX.—Nursewbharthee held the village without interruption until his death,
about teu yearsago. He was succeeded by his adopted disciple Shunkurbharthee Swamee,
who gave the village to Anajee Nursew.

“ Question X.—Produce any takeeds, &c.you wmay have, to show the condition of
Jaleekuttee subsequent to Fuslee 1237 {a. ». 1827-28].

* Answer X.—1I have no documents relating to this period.
88 ¢ Question X1.—The above examination is read over to you : is it correct ?
“ Answer XI.—1t is all correct, and my answers are true.

“ Signed by SeewuramsruUr LATEUR.
* Authenticated by the Inam Commission, 14th January 1847.”

#“48, Itis from the Shunkeshwur Swamee, the statement of whose Karbharee has
been recorded in the last paragraph, that Anajee Punt derived whatever title he may be
supposed to have had to Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor, the villages in lieu of
which his sen now holds Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood. The statements,
therefore, made by Seewurambhut Latkur and Konher Row Anajee, must be looked on
as parts of the same claim. It appears that when the Swameg assigned Jaleekuttee, &ec.

89 to Konher Row’s father, he made over to him the sunnud and takeed of 4. p. 1796-97,
described ia notes (xL.) and (x11.) on Answer VIIL. in the claimant’s examination, which
sunnud and takeed are now put.forward as the original title deeds of the villages.

. Owing to the destruction of the Kolapoor registers, there are no means of testing the
autheuticity of these documents: as, however, they appear to be genuine, the Inam
Commissioner will assume that they are so. '

“49. But the sunnud was issued during a temporary invasion of the Paishwa’s dis-
tricts by the Kolapoor Raja, and the subsequent sunnud issued by him in a. . 1818-19,
which has been proved genuine, [though all mention of it has been suppressed by the

90 claimant and Seewurambhut,] expressly states that the former sunnud had never taken
effect—thus agreeing with the evidence furnished by the Poona duftur, and the accounts
given in by Nana Keerloskur, and adding further proof, if further proof were necessary,
of the truth of the assertion made by the Coolkurnees [in paragraphs 41 and 42], that
Jaleekuttee never was held as inam till after the cluse of the Paishwa's Government,
when the Kolapoor Raja made it over to the Swamee by a grant, which was necessarily
annulled by the Treaty alluded to in the 38th paragraph.

“50. From what has been stated above, it is evident, that at the time when Anajee
Nursew applied to Government to give him the villages under report in exchange for
Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor, these villages were in his possession in consequence

91 of a totally unauthorised transaction, and had been obtained by him from a person who
bimself had no valid title to them. Thronghout the correspondence quoted above from
paragraph 4 to paragraph 13, they are called Anajee Nursew’s villages; but all allusion
to the nature of his title to them seems to have been avoided, as well as any provision
binding Government to the continuance of the villages given him in exchange, either
in perpetuity, or for any definite period ; and, as stated in paragraph 14, the Inam Com-
missioner can only conjectare that this remarkable omission was made with the inten-
tion of giving Anajee Nursew just the same title to the new villages [those under report]
as he might have to Jaleekuttee, &c., withont going into the question of its validity.

92 *“51. The claimant states that his father’s object in proposing the exchange made in
A. D, 1842-43 was to obtain villages nearer his own residence than those in Parusgur;
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but the Inam Commissioner thinks it very doubtful that for this object Anajee Punt
would have submitted to suffer pecuniary loss, as he seems to have done, by the exchange,
and is rather of opinion that his main object was that imputed to him in the -petition
quoted in paragraph 9, viz. that he wanted to exchange villages which he knew to be
liable to resumption for a property held under Government. Hedid, in fact, succeed in
obtaining such a specious primd facie title, that it was unlikely any investigation of it
would have taken place, or that any gpe would have thought of looking further than the
the Government letter mentioned in paragraph 2, had not the Inam Commissioner, 93
while recording that letter, chanced to recollect that the villages given by Anajee Punt
in exchange for those under report were not entered as inam in the Paishwa’s accounts
of Moorgod which he had shortly before examined while investigating the history of
another village ia that district.

% 52. The Inam Commissioner is of opinion, that the three villages under report
should be at once resumed. Konher Row Anajee will not be debarred by this from
obtaining, from the Shunkeshwur Swamee, remuneration for any loss their resumption
may occasion to him.”

3. This Report was submitted on the above date, 20th February 1847, for the orders
of Government.

4. On the 26th May 1847, in a letter No. 1900, the Chief Secretary to Government

informed the Inam Commissioner, that he was bimseif to decide on inam claims, subject 94

to appeal to the Revenue Commissioner, and finally to Government; and the cases
already reported to Government, but not yet decided, were returned for adjudication
according to this system. One of the Reports returned for this purpose was that
described in paragraphs 2 and 3 above.

5. On the 14th July 1847, that Report was adopted. as the basis of a Mahratta
Decision, No. 4 of 1847, of which the following was the purport :—

Translation of Decree of the Inam Commissioner, &c. No. 4 of 1847, in the
Belgaum Collectorate.

“ Mouza Mulapoor, Mouza Puujunhuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood, in the Padshapoor
Talooka, are now held as inam by Konher Row Anajee; having been made over to his
father Anajee Nursew, under the directions of Government, contained in a letter No. 819, 95
dated 19th March 184%, in exchange for Mouza Jaleekuttee, Muzzra Jeewapoor, and Muz-
zra Rayapoor, in Talooka Purusgur., Nothing is said in the above letter of Government
as to the length of time during which the villages then made over are to be continued, the
order for their transfer being altogether indefinite. The Inam Commissioner has,
therefore, come to the conclusion, that the claimant’s title to the viliages received in
exchange from Government must be looked upon as exactly the same as the title he may
have had to the villages Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Hayapoor ; and having done so,
sees the following reasons for rejecting the claim of Kocher Row Anajee to the villages
in question, viz :—

“ 1st,~~Mouza Jaleekuttee, Muzzra Jeewapoor, and Muzzra Rayapoor, were assigned 96
by the Shunkeshwur Swamee, under a2 deed declaring them hereditary, to
Anujee Nursew and another Sowgar, Bapoojee Sudusew Soogtankur, the latter
of whom subsequently gave up his right to Anajee Nursew, who thus obtained
the sole possession of the village and its two muzzras from the Swamee. But
Government had not given its permission for this transaction.

“ 2nd.—Supposing, however, it were proper to recognise Anajee Nursew’s right over
the villages to -be the same as that previously belonging to the Swamee. The
Swamee’s Karbharee, Seewurambhut Latkur, who has been examined, has deposed
that the village Jaleekuttee and its two hamlets were granted to the Swamee in Raj
Abishek Shuk 123, Null Sunwutsur [4. . 1796-97), by the Raja of Kalapoor; 97

335
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and in asccordance with this, Konher Row Anajee has produced two original
letters of the Raja’s, which had come into his possession from the Swamee. But
entries in the dufturs of the Paishwa’s Government, and that of Kolapoor, show
that this grant did not take effect; and there is conclusive proof that up to the
close of the Paishwa’s rule no competent authority ever gave permission for
continuing the villages as inam.

«« 3pd.-—After the Paishwa’s fall, Sir Thomas Munro took the Munolee Talooka, and
made it over to the Raja of Kolapoor; from whom it was afterwards resumed
by the Honorable Company’s Government, in a. p. 1827. The fact that in the
meanwhile the villages [Jaleekuttee, &c.] were held by the Swamee, gives him no

98 title to them as Inamdar, for such title is precluded by the terms of the Treaty
concluded between the Honorable Company and the Raja of Kolapoor.

“4¢h.—From what has been stated in the three preceding paragraphs, it is seen, that at
the time when the Shunkeshwur Swamee assigned Jaleekuttee with its hamlets
to Anajee Nursew, he himself had no valid title to it as his inam. This being
the case, Anajee Nursew could not have obtained from him any such title, and
therefore he could not have any valid title as Inamdar to the villages and hamlet
he got in exchange for it.

“ For these reasons, it appears that Goverament was in no way bound to continue,
as it did, to Anajee Nursew, during his life, the villages Mouza Mulapeor, Mouza Pun-
junhuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood ; and as the Inam Commissioner is of opinion that

99 it would certainly be improper to continue them to his son, like an hereditary inam, he
decides that the said villages Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood be treated as
Government khalsat villages.

“ This decree will not prevent Konher Row Anajee, if he thinks proper to do so, from
calling upon the Shunkeshwur Swamee to make good any loss he may have suffered
from the sale to his father Anajee Narsew of the village Mouza Jaleekuttee, and its
Muzzras Jeewapoor and Rayapoor, as inam, thoough not truly so.

(Signed) * W. Harr,
“ Commissioner.”

6. In order to give effect to this decision, the Inam Commissioner addressed to the
Acting Collector of Belgaum the following letter, No. 401, dated 16th July 1847 :—
“ S1r,—I have the honour to inform you, that under authority of the general directions
100 contained in the Government letter No. 1900, dated 26th May 1847, I have decided
that Mouza Mulapoor, Mouza Punjunhuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood, in the Padsha-
poor Talooka, now held by Konher Row bin Anajee Row Deshpandey, are to be taken
possession of as khalsat villages.
“2, An appeal will lie from this decision ; but, whether such appeal be made or not,
I have the honour to suggest the propriety of your taking steps to prevent the revenues
of these villages for the current year being made away with, either by at once attaching
the villages, or causing Konher Row to furnish security for their rents.
“ 1 have, &c.”

7. In accordance with this requisition the villages were attached, and have since
continued under Government management.

8. On the 20th November 1847, the Secretary to Government addressed to the Inam

101 Commissioner the following letter, No. 4835 :—

“ S1n,—With reference to Mr. Chief Secretary Pringle’s letter to your address, No.
1900, dated the 26th May last, communicating instractions for your guidance in the
disposal of inam claims, I am |[directed to inform you, that as it has been ruled that the
Government alone can legally resume or confirm rent-free tenures, or declare on what
terms they are to be continued to the claimants, the Honorable the Governor in Council
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is pleased to modify the instructions conveyed in the 3rd paragraph of that letter, in so
far as to direct that all cases of inam claims coming before you for adjudication must
in future be submitted to Government, with your opinion and report thereon, through
the Revenue Commissioner Southern Division, when a distinet order will be passed on 102
each, and communicated to the Collector of the district to which the claim may belong.

*2. 1 am accordingly desired to request, that you will have the gouduess to forward
through the above channel all cases,of thia nature that you may have intermediately
disposed of in conformity with the orders of the 26th May last.

“I have, &ke.”

9. In the meanwhile the Inam Commissioner’s decision, deseribed in paragraph 5,
had been appealed against to the Revenue Commissioner, who had thereupon sent for
the Inam Commissioner’s Report described above in paragraph 2, and this he subse-
quently forwarded to Government, with the following letter No. 2311, dated 26th
November 1847 :—

“81r,~~With reference to the Government letter of 19th March 1842, No. 819, sanc-
tioning the traosfer to Anajee Nursingh, Deshpandey, of three 103
villages, as per margin, in the Padshapoor Talooka of the Bel-
gaum Collectorate, for a similar number of villages in the Purus-

gur Talooka, as below named, and to the orders of Government dated 26th May last,

Jaleekuttee, Jeewa. NO. 1901, which constitute this office one of appeal from the
P°‘l’{;pﬂ£ fff:?ﬂ%om decisions of the Inam Commissioner, I have the honour to lay
missioner, dated 20th Defore Government a report, quoted in the margin, which disposes
February 1847. of the claim of Kouher Row Deshpandey, son of Anajee Nur-
singh, to the three villages in Purusgur, on which rests his claim to the three villages
transferred to him by Government in 1842,

“2. The peculiarity of the present case has induced me thus to lay it before Govern-
ment, instead of deciding it in appeal, and leaving the appellant to make another appeal 104
to Government. The three villages now held nearly rent-free, by Konher Row, were
granted by Government five years and a half ago, but it is clear, as stated by Mr. Hart,
[paragraph 14], that that transaction was simply one of exchange, made to oblige
Anajee Nursingh. It added not one iota to the strength of his title, which was not at
that time a matter of inquiry, por did itin any way protect his villages in Purusgur
from inquiry as to the right by which he or the Shunkeshwur Swamee held them.

“3. The hinge on which the whole matter turos is, {as shown by Mr. Hart,] by what
right did the Shunkeshwur Swamee hold the villages of Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and
Rayapoor, in the Purusgur Talooka? For an answer to this question, I beg to refer 105
bis Hovour in Council to paragraph 41 of Mr. Hart's Report, which, taken in connection
with the chain of evidence that precedes, shows, I submit, clearly, that these villages
were granted to the Swamee by the Kolapoor Raja in a. p. 1819-20, a grant not binding
on this Government, under the Treaty quoted in paragraph 38 of the Report.

“4. As these villages did not rightfully belong to the Swamee, [for the Raja eould
not alienate them at the expense of the British Government,] so that person could not
sell them to Anajee Nursingh, and the title of the latter in them being void, he cannot,

I submit, be permitted to hold the viilages in Padshapoor, which were made over to him
in exchange for villages supposed to be his in Purusgur.

“5. Whether Anajee Nursingh ever lent to the Swamee the money stated in the 106
notes at the foot of pages 55 and 66 of the Report, would hardly admit of proof, nor does

it appear a question of importance. * * * * * » * * *107
“6. Along with the decision of Government, I solicit the return of Mr. Hart’s

Report herewith submitted, or that I may be supplied with a copy of it.
“] have, &c.”

" Punjuphuttee, Yedul-
good, and Mulapoor.
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«P. 8.-~Since this letter was drafted, the orders of Government No. 4836, dated ths
20th instant, have been received, directing all the reports of the Inam Commissioner to

be forwarded to Government.”
10. On the 24th December 1847, Konher Row Arajee addressed the following

letter

“To the Honorable G. R. Cirerk, |
Governor and President in Council.

“ HonoraBLe Sir,—I have the bonour to enclose, and beg most respectfully to invite
108 your Excellency’s attention, to a copy of a letter I, on the first October last, addressed
to the Revenue Commissioner, Mr. Townsend, complaining of a most grievous act on
the part of the Collector of Belgaum, in summarily taking possession of my immoveable
property, consisting of the villages of Mulapore and Punjunhutlee,and its appertaining
land Edergood, and praying for redress, and to have the same restored to me.
“2, I have taken this liberty, consequent upon hearing from the Revenue Commis-
sioner, through my Vakeel, who has been in waiting on him, that all proceedings
_ connected with my aforesaid letter, having been handed up to your Excellency in Coun-
cil; and that 2ll his, the Revenue Commissioner’s, interference in the matter ceased,
109 consequent upon a recent order from Government. If so, I may now look upon your
Excellency to be the just and proper tribunal to adjudicate the question of my right to
my said property, and I venture accordingly to claim the privilege accorded to all
parties in a trial in a court of justice, to allow me an opportunity, either personally, or
through my constituted Attorney, to appear before your Excellency in Council, and
plead the bardship of my case, examine the evidence adduced, and to afford any expla-
nation requisite to prove the justice of my right to my personal property, which has
been usurped by the Collector of Belgaum, consequent upon a report of the Inam
Committee.
“3, The investigation carried on by the latter was conducted behind my back. I
have never been called upon to defend my right before that Committee; nor had I any
110 opportunity allowed me of explaining facts, or disproving datas upon which the said
Commiittee may have assumed my waint of title to my said property. It is, therefore,
for mere common justice that I appeal to your Excellency, to afford me the said oppor-
tunities, and a fair and just hearing, as I have now earnestly requested, before you
should come to any decision oun mattels affecting our life and property, both which
the Providence and the law of the land have placed under your hand to protect.

“I have, &e.”

11. The enclosure of the above petition was a copy of the writer’s former letter to the
Revenue Commissioner Southern Division, dated 1st October 1847, as follows :—

“Sir,—I had the honour, on the 14th July last, to receive a letter from Mr. Hart,
111 on behalf of the ¢ Inam Committee,’ enclosing a copy of a decree bearing the same date,
and intimating to mie that if I felt dissatisfied with that decree, to appeal to you within
three monthe.  On reading the said decree, I need not assure you, Sir, I was much
surprised to find that the villuges of Mullapore, and Punjunhuttee, with its appertaining
land called Edergood, being my immoveable property, were declared to be illegally
held by me, and recummendmo- the same to be taken by the ‘Government, which the
Collector of Belgaum did subsequemly, that is on the 18th August, by seizing the
same, and annexing to the Company’s territories.

“2. The property so assumed by the Collector was given to my late father by the
Compauy’s Government, in exchange for the village of Jaleekuttee, and its appertaining
land called Jeewapore, and Raydpore, which my late father gave to the said Govern-

112 ment. The last’ mentioned village and land were purchased by my late father, in
consideration: of Rs, -60,000 (sixty thousand), from the Sunkra Charee Swamce, who
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had ihe same in gift from the then reigning sovereign of Kolapoor, in a. p. 1796, and
ever since which period to that when he sold to my late father, the said Swamee had
uninterruptedly held and enjoyed the said property, and so did my late father, from
the period he purchased up to that he gave the same to the Company’s Government, in
exchange for the villages and land in question, now so summarily seized upon by
the Collector.

« 3. This decision, if I may so call it, of the Inam Committee, and the consequent
act of the Collector of Belgaum, is uot only contrary to the obvious facts establishing .
incontestably my right to the said property ; but that the same is altogether opposed to
the established laws and usages of the Government, there being no regulation or enact- 113
ment by which such Commiltee is vested with the power it has assumed, or by which
the Collector is authorised so to seize and assume our long enjoyed property.

“4. Under these circumstances, I respectfully beg to urge, as a preliminary objec-
tion to the total illegality of the present proceedings:—The Inam Committee has passed
a decision against me, by which I bave been dispossessed of my immoveable proporty,
situated within the Zilla of Dharwar, of which Zilla I am a resident; and to determine
right to such property, Sect. XXI. Regulation 1L of 1827 declares shall be by an adju-
dication in the established Civil Courts. This Section of the Regulation in this respect
remains in force unrepealed.

“5. I am aware that it has been said that such matters as these are excluded from
the jurisdiction of the Civil Courts, by Sect. V. of Regulation XXIX. of 1827, in the 114
Deccan, and the Provisions of which Regulation are extended to the Zilla of Dharwar by
Regulation Y1I. of 1830. But I deny that the question at issue comes within the nature
of the case contemplated by the said Sect. V. Regulation XXIX. of 1827,

“6. That enactment only excludes claims against Gouvernment on account of the
inam. Here is no claim acainst GoviernMENT. 1f is a claim of Government AGAINST
AN INDIVIDUAL. Where, then, is there the right of Government to try such question
in any other but the established Courts of Adawlut?

“7. The claim, lesides, is purely one of title to an immoveable property, and
Government, as claimant to such title, has hitherto been accustomed to establish it, like
any other claimant, in the Zilla Courts.—Vide the Rolez case in the Zilla of Ahmed- 115
abad, and the Passaita land case in the Zilla of Broach.

“ 8. There is nothing, I contend, in Regulation XXIX. of 1827, and VII. of
1830, which provides other rules for Government than those laid down in Sect. XXI.
of Regulation II. of 1827,

“9. 1 respectfully, therefore, beg to request you will be pleased to take this
preliminary objection into your serivus consideration, and to direct, as the head of the
revenue authority, to the Collector of Belgaum, to release my said property from illegal
attachment, by which he has had the same, and reimburse me for all the loss I have
been subjected to by his said illegal act.

*“ 10. Should you not consider this preliminary objection to Le valid, I beg' to reserve
my right to putting in a supplementary petition of appeal against the justice of Inam 116
Committee’s decision, for which I have substantial grounds, if I fiud that the illegality
of the proceedings I have argued on above is not sufficient for my relief, or to adopt
such other course as may be advisable to obtain the restoration of my just right and
title to the property in question.
“I have, &e.”

12. On the 27th January 1848 a letter, No. 585, was addressed by the Revenue
Secretary to the Revenune Commissioner Southern Division, as follows ;—

“Sin,—I have been directed by the Honorable the Governor in Council to acknow-
ledge the receipt of your letter of 26th November last, No. 2311, and its accompanying
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compilation, containing the proceedings of the Inam Commissioner relative to the claim

117 of Konher Row, son of Anajee Nursew Deshpandey, to hold as hereditary taxed inam
the two villages of Mulapoor and Punjunhuttee, and Muzzra of Yedulgood, in the
Padshapoor Talooka.

“2. His Honour in Council has instructed me to inform you, that itis but lately that
he disposed of a case in which Mr. Inverarity, the Acting Collector of Belgaum, showed
that this Anajee Nursew had obtained possession of some inam lands by practising a
most scandalous fraud on Government, with reference to the amount of compensation
due to the Koorundwarkur Chief for the loss of revenue derived from the manufacture
and sale of spirituous liquors in the neighbourhood of the Belgaum Cantonments,

#3. In the case now under notice, the Inam Commissioner, Mr. Hart, shows by

118 evidence the most conclusive, that in a. p. 1827, when the Honorable Company took

possession of the Munolee Talooka, the village of Jaleekuttee and Muzzras of Jeewapoor
and Rayapoor should have been brought to Government account, and managed as
khalsat, and that it was by pretending a fact which had no existence that the Shun-
keshwur Swamee was enabled to held the village and muzzras as inam. It follows, as a
matter of course, that Anajee Nursew’s title by purchase, from the Shunkeshwur
Swamee, is faulty, and, consequently, that Government has sufficient grounds for
rescinding the agreement by which the two villages of Mulapoor and Punjunhuttee,
and Muzzra of Yedulgood, were given as jooree inam in exchange,

“4. It is to his Honour in Council a mystery how the then Government and Acting

119 Collector allowed the exchange to be effected, without making any inquiry as to the

validity of the title by which Anajee Nursew held the village and muzzras in Munolee,
which he was to make over to Government: the most ordinary caution was neglected,
notwithstanding the warning conveyed in the petition from Hoossein Khan Desaee, and
Dewa Rao Deshpandey.

“5. As the agreement has been vitiated, his Honour in Council would have directed
the immediate resumption of the village and muzzra conveyed by it, but that he has had
before him two letters® in which Kooher Row, the son of the late Anajee Nursew, urges—

“ 1st.—The illegality of cases similar to the one now under review being adjudicated
by any tribunals save the ordinary Civil Courts.

120 % 2nd.—-* That the investigation was carried on by the Committee behind his back ;
that he has never been called on to defend his right, nor had any opportunity of
explaining facts, or disproving data upon which the Committee may have
assumed his want of title.’

“3rd.—That if the former of the abovementioned objections be rejected as invalid,
he may be pernitted, ‘either personally, or through his constituted attorney, to
appear before the Members of Government assemtbled in Council, and plead the
hard-sl'nip of his case, examine the evidence adduced, and afford any explanation
requisite to prove the justice of his elaim.’

“6. His Honour in Council has desired me to remark, that there can be no doubt but

that the former of the objections must be at omce overruled. The question as to

121 whether or no the Civil Courts in the Southern Mahratta Country, Deccan, and

Khandesh, can take cognizance of such cases, has been fully considered by Government,
and finally answered in the negative,

““7. The latter objection might also be set aside without hesitation, for paragraphs
44 to 47 of the Inam Commissioner’s Report show that Konher Row Anajee and the
Kharbaree of the Shunkeshwur Mutt themselves appeared before the [nam Commissioner,
who gave them sufficient opportunity to controvert the facts evinced by the records in

* «To Govemmen‘t, .dated 24th December 1847, and its accompanying copy of one to the Revenue Com-
missioner Southern Division, dated 1st October 1847.”
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his possession, although, in doing so, Mr. Iart of necessity adopted the questionary form
of words.* '

«8. The request made by Konher Row Anajee, that he may be allowed to plead before
the Council, must, of course, be negatived; but his Honour in Council is of opinion,
that before passing a final decision on this case, copy of Konher Row Anajee’s letters 122
should be sent to Mr. Hart, with instructions to inform the claimant that he will receive
and communicate to Government whpfever additional information and evidence he may
wish to adduce in support of his claim. '

“9. It would appear from Konher Row’s letters, that the villages and muzzra are
at present under attachment, and his Honour in Council has ordered me to direct that
they should remain so, and the proceeds be placed in deposit until the present case is
disposed of.

“ 10. Should the decision of Government be unfavourable to the claimant, he can, of
course, adopt whatever legal measures he may deem proper for recovering from the Swa-
mee and Bapoo Soogtankur the loss he may have incurred consequent on the faultiness 123
of the title by which the former held the village and muzzras in Munolee. The craftitess
displaved by Anajee Nuarsew in the case alluded to paragraph 2 of this letter * * * *
leads his Honour to think that Anajee Nursew must have been fully aware of the value
of the bargain he was making : at any rate the case now before Government is not one
in which his heir will be entitled either to the commisseration or assistance of Govern-

ment, should his claim to the villages and muzzra be negatived.
= 11. * * * * L * * »* +* * ] * 124

“12. Transcript of the Inam Commissioner’s proceedings are herewith forwarded
for your records,

“13. Copy of your letter of 26th November last, and of this reply, will be sent direct
to the Inam Commissioner, with directions to report through you the result of the fur-
ther communication he is to make to the claimant. [See above, paragraph 8.]

“ I have, &c.”

13. On the same day [27th January 1848] the following letter, No. 587, was
addressed to Konher Row Anajee by the Secretary to Government :—

“ S1r,—I have laid before the Honorable the Governor in Council your letter of 24th 125
December last, and its accompaniment, and been directed to refer you for a reply to the
Inam Commissioner, Mr. Hart, to whom the instructions of Government on the subject
bave this day heen issued.

“I have, &c.”

14.  Copies of the whole of the correspondence described above in paragraphs 9 to 13
were at the same time sent “to the Inam Commissivner, for his information and guid-
ance,” with the Secretary’s endorsement, No. 586 of 1848.

15. After some correspondence between Konher Row and the Inam Commissioner,
the latter submitted to Government a Report No. 549, dated 29th April 1848, The
accompaniments of this letter do not refer to the case of Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and 126
Yedulgood, further than it may be affected by the general objection urged by Konher
Row against the legality of the Inam Commissioner’s operations, or of any summary
interruption by Government of the alleged Inamdar’s enjoyment of his estates.

18. The following is a copy of so much of the Inam Commtissioner’s letter No. 549
to the Deputy Secretary to Government, mentioned in the preceding paragraph, as
relates to the villages to which this Recapitulation refers :—

* « See instractions on this point conveyed in the correspondence regarding Murdoor case, paragraph 3
of Government letter of 24th October 1843, No. 3457 ; paragraphs 7 to 9 of Commissioner’s letter of Gth
November 1843, No. 13 ; paragraphs 6 and 7 of Government letter dated 23rd October 1843, No, 4196.”
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. “8ir,—1 have the honour to inform you, that on receipt of Mr. Secretary Goldsmid’s
endorsement No. 586, dated 27th January 1848, forwarding to me copies of a corres-
pondence regarding Konher Row Andjee’s claim to Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and
Yedulgood, I addressed to Konher Row on the 31st January 1848, a letter, intimating
127 that Government had felt it necessary to overrule his objection to his claim being dis-
posed of, except by the ordinary Civil Court, and to refuse his request to be allowed
to argue it in presence of the Hounorable the Governor in Council ; but thet his Honour
in Council had instructed me to receive and communicate to Government whatever
additional information and evidence he might wish to adduce in support of his title.

“2. In reply to this letter I received from Konher Row a yad, dated 7th February
1848, mentioning some evidence he wished me to obtain for him, and promising to
produce anything else he might have to offer in two months.

“3. I am not sure that I was right in assenting to such a long delay, seeing that
Konher Row bad already been allowed ample time to produce any evidence he might
have to offer : however, I took upon myself to do so.

128 <« 4. But as the two months elapsed without any further communication from
Konher Row, I wrote to him on the 7th April 1848 a letter, reminding him of his
promise in this case, and on the sameiday I communicated to him in another letter the
purport of the instructions contained in the Government letter No. 1624 of 1848, [re-
garding his claim to Kublapoor, Woteemuroo, and Kenchunhuttee,*] a copy of which
was sent me with Mr. Goldsmid’s endorsement No. 1625, dated 21st March 1848.

“5. Both of my letters of the 7th April were forwarded, through the Acting Political
Agent Southern Mahratta Country, to Konher Row, at Sanglee, and on the 23rd of this
month I received a letter from him, not acknowledging the receipt of either of them, nor

129 in any way alluding to their purport, but enclosing to me three papers, witha simple
request that I would forward them to Government. This letter from Konher Row to me
is dated 16th, but bears the Belgaum post mark of the 22nd instant.

“6. The unusual course thus pursued of making me the medium of his communica-
tions with Government, and the discrepancy of dates, &c. noticed above, make me
suspect that Konher Row may be intriguing in some manner to embarrass me in
fulfilling the orders of Government with respect to his appeals against my decisions in
his case ; and 1 have therefore come to the couclusion, that the most straightforward and
safest course for me to pursue, is to transmit the papers sent to me by him to you, and

130 to refrain from offering any remarks upon them, unless I may be directed to do so.

“7. 1have this day again written to Konher Row, informing him of the course I
have pursued, and requestiog him to lose no more time in bringing forward the evidence,
&c. which Government has permitted him to offer, and I now request the instructions of
Government as to what course I am to follow if he still neglects to do s».”

17.  Oun the 6th June 1848, the Secretary to Government addressed to the Acting Poli-
tical Agent Southern Mahratta Country and Collector of Belgaum a letter, No. 3267, from
which the following is an extract of so much as relates to the three villagesin question :—

“2. You will be pleased to intimate to him, [Konher Row Anajee,] that the particu-

lars recorded by the Inam Commissioner in the course of his inquiry as to the validity
13] of the title by which the villages of Mulapoor and Punjunhuttee, and Muzzra of Ye-
~dulgood, are held in inam, afford, in the opinion of His Lordship in Council, ample
evidence that a fraud was practised upon Government, and that Government only has
any just claim to those villages and muzzra. That a copy of claimant’s letter of 24th
December last, and its accompaniments, was forwarded to the Inam Commissioner, with
directions to inform him that he [the Commissioner] would receive and communicate to
Government whatever additional information and evidence he [the claimant] might wish

* The case here alluded to is distinct from that to which this Recapitulation relates.””
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to adduce in support of his claim. That he was so informed on the 27th January lust.
That on the 7th of the followiug mounth he mentioned to the Commissioner some evi-
dence he wished to be obtained for him, and promised to prodyce anything else he might

have to offer in two months; but that up to she present time he has not laid any addi- 132
tional evidence or information before the Commissioner,

“3. The claimant should be told, also, that e further period of one [1} month from
the date of the receipt of this letter at Belzaum will be allowed him, and it before the
expiration of that period he has not placed befnre the Inam Commissioner any additional
evidence or information, Mr. Hart will forward to Government translations of the addi-
tional evidence obtained consequent on claimant’s request of 7th February, and unless
that evidence, in the opinion of Government, weakens the proofs already before them,
the villages and muzzra will be at once brought to aceconnt, and treated as ¢ khalsat.’ ”

18, A copy of this letter was, with Government endorsement No. 3268, of the
same date, “ forwarded to the Inam Commissioner, for information and guidance with 133
reference to his letter No. 549, dated 29th April 1848 ' mentioned above in the 16th
paragraph.

19. In the meanwhile the Inam Commissioner had received some further communi-
cations from Konher Row, and on the same day [6th June 1848] on which the last
quoted Government letter and endorsement were written, the Inam Commissioner
submitted to Government the following Report, No. 579 :—

. “ Sir,~With reference to the four first paragraphs of my letter to your addvess, No.
549, dated 20th April 1848, and the correspondence cited in its 1st paragraph, I have

the honour to inform you, that on the 22nd ultimo I received a letter from Konher Row
Anajee, requesting a further delay of two and a half months, before I complete my
additional report on his claim to Mulapoor, Pupjunhuttee, and Yedu]good which has 134
already been due since Januvary. :

“2. It would be unreasvnable to admit of further delay in a case where, strictly
speaking, there ought not to have been any delay at all asked for, though one of four
months has o6ccurred. Konher Row has had plenty of leisure, since the receipt of my
decision of the 1st October 1847, to bring forward the proofs, &c. which he pretends to
fancy may be in his possession ; and as he has not done so.in that period, it is not likely
he ever will. 1 have, therefore, written to inform him, that I must [us far as 1 am
concerned)] decline complying with his request.

“3. I@have obtained all that is forthcoming and pertinent of the additional evidence
for procuring which Konher Row desired my assistance, and it seems to me that every- 135
thing which can be said or done towards completing this investigation is now com-
pleted, and that all that is wanted is the final order of Governmeat.

“ 4, | therefore do myself the honour of forwarding, for the consideration of Govern-
ment, translations of my correspondence with Konher Row, and beg for early instrue-
tions as to what further proceedings I am to adopt, if, indeed, it should seem fo Goyern-
ment, which it does not to me, that any further proceedings are requisite.

“ 8. I especislly solicit the attention of Government to Konher Row’s letter of the
3rd Rubbee~vol-Awul [9th February 1848), which seems to contain al] he has to urge
on his behalf, and to which I have, therefore, appended, in the shape of notes, such 136
remarks as have seemed necessary. .

“6. Kouher Row has not hitherto taken any notice of my last letter to him, dated
24th May 1848.

¢ I have, &e.”

20. The accompaniments to this letter, mentioned in its 4th and 5th paragraphs,
were as follows :—
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Agent; in the 2nd Article of which it is stated that the Talookas of Chikodee and Munolee
were resumed, because oppression bad been exercised on the Zumeendars and Inamdars,
and their rights interfered with. A consideration of this Article will convince Govern-
ment that the Company should continue without interruption villages grauted as inam

by the Raja. If, therefore, the above Treaty is with the Sirkar, will you kindly procure
it, and send it to Government ?

“4, Ina.p. 1827 the Company’s Government resumed the Munolee Talooka from the

Raja. On this occasion the Political Agent wrote a letter, dated 3 Ist October 1827, (x.)
145 stating that the talooka was resumed as of the same extent as when made overto
the Raja by Sir Thomas Mugro, and that no villages granted as inam during the mean-
146 while were to be continued ; wherefore he should send a sor chittee [note of renuuciation]
for all the villages. Such a general sor chittee was prepared by the Raja’s Government

on the 10th Rubbee-ool-Akhir, in Soorsun Suman Ashreen [a. ». 1827-28), in which all
the villages were mentioned, and, those being deducted which were foriner inams, a list

of the rest was sent. (xr.) This will be on the records of the Sirkar: I request that you
will examine it, and forward it to Government.

“5. After the resumption by Government in a. p, 1827 of the Munolee Talooka,
the Deshpandey and Desaee of that mahal, and the Coolkurnee of Juleekuttee, &e. were
examined as to when the Swamee obtained the villages as inam, and how they were

147 continued. The statements made by them must be in the Government duftur, (x11.)

(x.) “The circamstances connected with Mr, Nisbet’s letter of the 31st Qctober 1827 are not correctly
stated by Konher Row. A reference to the Kolapoor duftur, and that of the Political Agent Southern Mabratte
Country, shows them to have been as follows. When Mr, Nisbet went to Kolapoor with the military force
sent to bring the Raja to terms, the latter attempted to evade the provisions of the 20d Article 8 the Treaty
of October 1827, quoted in the last note, by making over the Talookas of Munolee, &e. exclusive of the inams,
§c. ke himself had granted. His order to his Mamlutdars of Munolee for doing so has been found registered
in the Kolapoor duftur of the 10th Rubbee-ool-Akhir [1s¢ November 1827], as follows :—

“ ¢ To Venkutrow Nuluwurey Havaldar and Autajee BRughoonath, Soobha Munolee =—Having
excepted the inams granted from the Hoozoor to the holders of Dewusthans, Dhurmadows, and-to Inom-
dars and Surinjamdars, all the rest of the villages in the said soobha which are under your manage-
ment are assigned to the English. A separate list is herewith sent, according to which you are to make
over the villages and Munolee.’

= It is true that in the list which accompanied this order Mouza Jaleekuttee, &c, wes not entered ; but this
fact by no means supports Konher Row’s assertions that it must therefore be looked upon as original inam,
for from this list all grants made by the Raja up to its date were excluded. Be this as it may, however, the
Political Agent refused to receive the talooka on these terms, and it was to intimate this refasal that he wrote
the letter to the Rajs, said to be of the 31st October 1827, alluded to by Konher Row, the registry of which
has been found in the Agent’s outward letter book, under date lst November 1827, as follows :—

“ < In the yad of agreement [Treaty] endered into by us on the 23rd of October, it was agreed that the
Talookas of Chikodee and Munolee should be given back to the Company’s Government of the same
extent as when they were given by the latter to the Maharaja. But the gor chittees [notes of relin-
quishment] which have been received exclade some villages, granted to various persons, and apply
only to the rest. Such sor chittees cannot be received by the Company’s Government ; wherefore those
now sent are returned to the Maharaja’s Vakeel. It is necessary that sor chittees should be sent for
all the villages which were made over by the Company’s Government.’

“ The above letter seems to have been written on the night of the 31st October, and is registered in the
tegistry of the next day, an which day, also, a second letter was written by the Political Agent, addressed to the
Raja’s Vakeel, pressing for the requisite sor chittees. The consequence of this was, that on the next day, viz.
the 11th of Rubbee-ool-Akhir [2nd November 1827], the Raja issued fresh orders, the registries of which
have been found in the Kolapoar duftur, ordering the delivery of the talookas without any reservation to the
Company’s officers.

“ A list of the villages to be made over accompanied this order also, and two copies of this list, which have
been found in the Political Agent’s duftur, show that iz included Mousa Jaleckuttee.”

(x1.) “This list was the one which was rejected by the Political Agent : the one he aceepted was dated the
following day, snd included Jaleekuttee as ane of the villages to be made over to the Company.—=See last
note (x.)."”

(x11.) * The only former statement found in the Government duftur is that mentioned in paragraph 39 of
the Inam Commisioner's Report ; the present statements of the Coolkurnees are quoted in_ paragraphs 41 and 42,
and are as wholly opposed to Kouher Row’s assertions as the more satisfactory evidence afforded by the
Government duftar.”
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and I request that they be examined and sent to Government, as they contain proof of
the Swamee’s uninterrupted enjoyment from the first.

«@. Even when the Nipaneekur was bolding the Munolee Talooka by force, he
continued the villages to the Swamee, (x1r.) as Government will be persuaded if the
evidence of the Nipaneekur's Karbharee, Lingo Punt Apa, (xiv.) be taken. I request, 148
therefore, that you will be so good as to write to him, and obtain his answer.

“7. Ina.p. 1842, Government took from my father these three villages, which
had been given to him as inam by the Swamee, and in exchange for them gave him
another ivam. At that period all the accounts, &c. were scrutinized, and these are all
with Government. (xv.) If they be ezamined, Government will be convinced, that when
my father gave up to the Sirkar the villages which he had bought from the Swamee,
and obtained from the Company these villages [Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedul-
good,] in exchange for them, all this was well understood by Government, (xvr.) which
was so kind as to give the villages as inam to my father. 149

=[3.] The evidence above alluded to will be in the Government dufturs. I request
that you will be so good as to obtain and send it to Governwent. It is necessary for
_ me to search if there be (xvi) any other documents useful as proof in my possession,
and for this parpose I request two months’ leisure, during which period I will institate
a search, and send to you any evidence I may find, which I request you will, when you
have looked at it, forward to Government.”

« No. 3.

“ Purport of & Letier from the Inam Commissioner to Konher Row Anajee,
dated 7th April 1848.

‘ After Compliments. In consequence of your appeal against my decision on your 150
elaim to Mouza Mulapoor, Mouza Punjunhuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood, I received an
order from Government to receive evidence, &c. from you. The purport of thia order
I communicated to you in my letter of the 3]st January 1848. To this letter you re-
plied on the 3rd of Rabbee-ool-Awul, that as it was necessary to make a search whether

(xm1.) “If he had done 90, which from paragraphs 30 to 34 of the Inam Commissioner’s Report could not
have been the case, he had no right to do 20 longer than while he held the surinjam, and his unauthorised
act conld not bind the Sirkar.—See also the Coolkurnee’s statement in the Report, paragraph 41, Answers
V. to X,, and paragraph 42, Answers IL. to V., also parmgraph 43, and the statement of the Shunkeshwur
Swamee's Karbharee in paragraph 46, Answers II1. to VI, and notes.” ,

(x1v.) “Lingo Punt Apa lives at a great distance from Belgaom. The Insm Commissioner is informed that
he has become panalytie, and almost blind, and i not in a condition to attend to give evidence. I would be
uselesa to send  questions to him, as it would be imposstble to ensare the answers being Aiz own ; and even if it
were 5o, be is not of such a truth-loving disposition as to permit of his statementa being depended on withous
the text of crosr-exumination. This will appesr from the facts mentioned in paragraph § of the Inam Commis-
ston’s letter in the Budlee and Nurvinhollee ease, No. 131, dated 10th April 1843, and from the nnsatisfactory
style of his answers in that ease deseribed in other parts of the same letter. But, above all, even if none of these
objections existed, # wounld be useless to examine bim now in this case, as he was one of the Earbharees who
gure im to Mr. Elphiastone in 1813-14 the Iast document mentioned in paragraph 33 of the Inam Commis-
sioner’s Report of the 20th Februsry 1847, and in that document Jaleekuttee is described asa khalsat village.—
See also paragraph 2 of the Inam Commissioner's letter to Konher Row, dated 24th May 1848, the last
tecorded in this ecompilation.™

(xv.) “These bave all been deseribed in paragraphs 1 to 14 of the Inam Commissioner’s Report of the
20ch February 1847.7

(xvr) “Thisit wasnot. See paragraph 4 of the Government letter No. 583, dated 27th January 1848.”

(xv11.) “Konher Row here states that it is necessary to make a search for two months to discover if he
has sy more evidence. His sppeals to the Reveoue Commissioner and Government, dated respectively Ist
()dobumd%lhl)mmberl&d?,indnuulhthehuﬂtbenqnisimuidmeemdy,butthatithadnotheen
receaved.  If he eould not eollect all the evidence in his possession between the I4th July 1847 [the date of
the Inam Commissioner's decision appesled againat] and the 7th February 1848 [the date of this letter], he is
not likely to do so in the additional two months reqaested by him. But, that he may have no cause to.
complain of want of courtesy, the sought for delay has heen allowed to him.” '
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you had any documentary evidence in your possession, and to send it, you required two
months’ delay, and at the same time you promised to send within that period whatever
evidence you obtained. But the above period has now elapsed, ard [ have uot yet
received any further communication from you: I request, therefore, that you will be so
kind as to send a reply speedily, and, with it, forward any documentary evidence you
may have to produce. ”’ .

151 “ No. 4.

“ Purport of a Letter from Konker Row Anajee, Deshpandey of Ankule, to the
Inam Commissioner, dated 12th Jummad-ool-Awul [17th April 1848).— Received
22nd May 1848.

“ After compliments, &e. I reply to your letter dated 7th April 1848, reminding me
that although I had {in answer to your letter of the 31st January last, informing me,
that in consequence of my appeal against your decision on my claim to Mouza Mula-
poor, Mouza Punjunhuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood, you had been ordered to receive my
additional evidence,] written to you a letter dated 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, requesting
leisure for two months in order to search whether or not I might have any more docu-
mentary evidence by me to offer, and promising to send to you within that period any

152 evidence I might find ; and that although the above peried has elapsed, I have not yet
sent any answer, and requesting that I would speedily do so: I have now to request, that
as in my letter of the 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, I begged you to obtain certain documentary
evidence regarding my inams, you will be so good as to let me know how much of it
you have procured, and whether or not there is any remaining to be obtained. Should
you have obtained all the documents, it is best so ; should there be any documents still
to abtain, will you let me know of this, so that I may either explain to you how to obtain
them, or request assistance in doing so, should I require it. Will you be so good as to
send me a reply on this subject ? As for stating what I have to say regarding my addi-
tional proof, &ec. I cannot do so satisfactorily without seeing you in person: I must, there-

153 fore, request, that you will be so good as to give me additional leisure for two and a half
months. What more can I write 7

** No. 5.

“ Purport of a Letter from the Inam Commissioner to Konker Row Anajee,
dated 24th May 1848.

“1. After compliments. In reply to your letter dated 12th Jummad-ool-Awul [17th
April 1848), I beg to inform you, that in conformity with the request made in your
letter of the 3rd of Rubbee-ool-Awul, that I would procure certain treaties and other
documents from the Government records, I have obtained from the Poona and Kolapoor
records, and those of the Company’s Government, all of the required documents* which
existed therein. _

“2, You requested that I would also take the evidence of Lingo Punt Apa, butI

154 have considered it unnecessary to do so in this case,T because in A. p. 1813-14 this Lingo
Punt Apa and Apajee Luchmon, gavein to Mr. Elphinstone, then Resident at Poona,
a yad of the Munolee Talooka, which contained a statement regarding Jaleekuttee, Jee-
wapoor, &e. If Lingo Punt were now to make a statement agreeing with that in this
yad, it would be merely a useless repetition, and if he made a statement at variance with
it, it could not be depended on. For this reason I have not sent for his evidence.

“3. You now write that you cannot state satisfactorily what you have to say regard-
ing your additional proof, &e. without seeing me in person, and therefore require an

¥ ¢ These are all described in the notes on Konher Row’s letter of 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, No. 2 of this
compilation.”
+ “ Sece note (x1v.) on Konher Row’s letter of 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul.”
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additional delay of two and a half months. But you should recollect, that even at first,
when, in your letter of the 3rd Rubbee-col-Awul, you asked for a delay of two months, 155
there was no reasonable necessity for granting it, because you should have produced
the whole of your evidence at any rate when you made your appeal to the Revenue
Commissioner, and that is & very long while ago; and you did not show any reasonable
excuse for further delay ; butit was solely for your convenience, that you might look over
and arrange your evidence, that si¢h delay was granted to you. I cannot, therefore,
take upon myself the responsibility of promising to allow any further delay. 1 have
written to Government,* and whether I receive from it directions to grant further delay,

or to at once report what has been done until now in this case, I shall obey them.

“4, My advice to you, however, is this, that you should at once present whatever
statement and evidence you may have to present; for it is already nearly four months 156
since the orders of Government reached me, and it is unlikely that Government will
admit of further delay.”

21. Having shortly after received Konher Row’s reply to the last letter [No. 5]
described in paragraph 20, the Inam Commissioner submitted it, with the following
. letter, to the Deputy Secretary, No. 585, dated 20th June 1848 :—

*“ Sir,—In continuation of my letter to Mr. Secretary Goldsmid, No. 579 dated 6th
current, and with reference to Mr. Secretary Lumsden’s letter to the Acting Political
Agent, No. 3267 of 1848, of the same date, I have the honour to report, for the infor-
mation of Government, that I have received from Konher Row Anajee, his reply te my
last letter to him regarding his claim to the villages of Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, aud 157
Yedulgood, in the Padshapoor Talooka, a translation of which was recorded as No. 5 in
the compilation, submitted with my letter No. 579, above cited.

*2. I have the honour of annexing a translation of Konher Row’s reply, with such
observations [attached in the form of notes] as I have deemed necessary.

¢“] have, &e.”

22. The folllowing is a copy of the accompaniment of the Inam Commissioner’s last
quoted letter, No. 585, of the 20th June 1848 :—

“ Substance of a Letter, dated 2nd Rujjub [4th June 1848], from Konker Row Anajee
Deshpandey to the Inam Commissioner.— Received 12th June 1848.

¢ After compliments. I have received your letter of the 24th of May 1848, (1.) and
understood its contents. My reply is as follows :—

“[1.] You bave informed me that you have procured all the evidence regarding 158
Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, &e. on the records of Government, and in ‘the Poona and Kola-
poor dufturs. () When my father, who had purchased these villages as inam from the
Shree [Shunkeshwur Swamee], gave them up to Government, and the Sirkar gave him
as inam in exchange for them the three villages of Mulapoor, Punjuchuttee, and
Yedulgood, this inam was granted to us in exchange by the Sirkar after a complete in-
quiry. (1.) But now, in addition to this, a fresh investigation has been instituted by the
Inam Commission, and Government requires from me proof about the Swamee's inam vil- 159
lages. In this [ am helpless: but knowing that as much proof as I was acquainted with I
must set forth when I made an appeal petition to the Revenue Commissioner, I besought

* ¢ Namely the letter No. 549, dated 29th April 1848.”

(r.) “Namely the 5th letter translated in the compilation which accompanied the Inam Commissioner’s
letter No. 579, dated 6th June 1848.”

(11.) **These are all recorded in the Inam Commissioner’s notes to Konher Row’s letter of the 3rd Rubbee-
ool-Awul, a translation of which is marked No, 2 in the compilation forwarded to Government on the 6th
June 1848.”

(s11.) ““The inquiry was only regarding the value of the villages to be exchanged, and was not allowed to
extend to the title by whicb Konher Row's father was holding Jaleekuttee.—See paragraph 14 of Inam
Commissioner’s Report of the 20th February 1847, and paragraph 4 of the Government letter No. 585 of 1848.”
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him in it to procure the evidence in the hands of Government and of the Kolapoor Sirkar.
This, however, was not procured. Afterwards, on my appealing to the Gavernor in
Council, you received from him directions, which you communicated ia writing to
me, (1v.) and on my making arepresentation to you, (v.) you have procured the evidence,
so you write to me. Wherefore I state my proof regarding the said Swamee’s inam
villages bought as inam by my father as follows : —

160  «[2.] When, according to the Treaty entered into in a. b, 1827, between the Com-
pany’s Government and that of Kolapoor, the Chikedee and Munolee Talookas were
taken possession of by the former, the late Mr. Nisbet wrote on the 31st October 1827
to the Raja’s Government a letter, of which the purport was, that as the said talookas
were resumed at the same extent as when they were made over to the Raja by Sir
Thomas Munro, no inams granted in the meanwhile by the Raja were to be continued
by the Company’s Government; that for this reasom, the sor chittee [note of renuncia-
tion] sent by the Raja was returned, and a general sor chittee was required, On this,
the Raja’s Government sent a sor chittee, in which the inams lately granted were not
reserved, and a separate yad of the villages, in which Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, &c. were

161 deducted, (v1.) as having been formerly granted to the Swamee, snd the rest of the
villages specified. This yad was agreed to by the late Mr. Nisbet, and according to it
the talookas were received by him for the Government. (vir.) Thus it was admitted
by the Raja, in the last yad sent by him, that the Swanee’s inam villages had been
granted before Sir Thomas Munro gave the talookas to his Government, (vii.) and this
yad was agreed to by a competent authority, (1x.) the Principal Collector and Political

162 Agent of Belgaum and Dharwar; and when the Munolee Talooka came into the posses-
sion of Government, 2 Mamlutdar went there, and after his authority was established,
he took the statements of the Desaee and Deshpandey of the mahal, and the Coolkurnee
of the village, in which they distinctly admitted that the village had truly been granted
of old by the Raja to the Swamee, and that it had been enjoyed according to the
grant ; (x.)and so the inam villages were confirmed from the Company’s Sirkar to the

(rv.) “In the Inam Commissioner's letter of the 3ist January 1848, a translation of which is marked:
No. 1 of the Compilation which accompanied his letter to Government, No. 579, dated 6th June 1848.”

(v.) *In the letter of the 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, translation of which is marked No. 2 in the compilation
forwarded to Government on the 6th Jung last.”

(vi.) *“In the yad accepted by the Political Agent Jaleekuttee is not deducted. [See the Inam Commis-
sioner's note (x.) on paragraph 4 of Konher Row”s letter of the 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, recorded No. 2 in the
compilation submitted to Government on the 6th June 1848). Sg that, even if all the rest of Konher Row’s
premises in thip part of his argument were admitted, [which, however, could not justly be done,] still the con-
clusion deduced by bim must be rejected as unsound and void of truth.”

(vir.} “See note (xr.) on Konher Row’s letter of the 3rd of Rubbee-ool-Awul, slluded to in the
Iast note.™

(virr) ¢ If this had been admitted by the Raja, which it was not, he would have admitted a fact which, so
far as delivery of the village under the invalid grant of A. D. 1796-97 is concerned, is contradicted by his own
sunnud of the 6th Rujjub, recorded in note (xxvirn.) to the Inam Cammissiomer’s Report of the 20th
February.1847.%

(rx.) “Owing to the fact stated in note (v1.), that the Politicel Agent did not agree to the yad in which
Jaleekuttee was deducted, of course the whole of the above argument, which appears to be that on which
Konher Row chiefly. depends, must be rejected. But it may be as well to here record the fact, that if Mr,
Nisbet. Aad agmitted a yad in which Jaleekuttee was deducted, he could not thereby have invalidated the right
of Government to take possession of it as a khalsat village of the Munolee Talooka, for such it undoubtedly was
according to the Treaties of 1827 and 1829, a3 well a8 under the Paishwa’s Government ; and Mr. Nisbet had
no authority from Government. to give up. any one of its rights, whether those hased on the Tresty of the 23rd
Oectober 1827, or those existing independent of it : if he had tried to do so, his act would have been the mere
error of & Government servant, which ought fo be rectified as soon as discovered. As, however, it clearly
appears that Konher Row's assemption, that such erron was committed, ia whally without foundation, it is
needless to enlarge on this point.’’

(x.) “The Inam Commissioner believes that such statements were made, as he has found the registry of
a report from the Mamlutdar ef Munolee, purporting to forward such ; but, as stated in note (x11.) on Kon-
her Row's letter of the 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, submitted on the Gth June 1848, no statements of the kind sre
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Swamee. These are now two great argaments. (xr.) If you will be sokind as to 163
consider them, you will be conviuced that my claim to the villages given in exchange is
perfect, and that there can be no reason for not continuing to me the exchanged
villages in perpetuity.

“[3.]1 You objeet (x11.) against sending for Lingo Punt Apa’s testimony, that on a
former occasion, in 4. p. 1813-14, this Lingo Punt Apa and Apajee Luchwmon gave in
to the Resident at Poona, Mr. Elphinsione, a yad relating to the Munolee Talooka, which
contained a statement about Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, &e. ; and that if Lingo Punt were
now to make a statement agreeing with the yad, it would be a mere repetition, and of
no use, while if he were to send a reply at variance with it, no reliance conld be placed
thereon ; so that it seems useless to obtain his statement.  With respect to this, I offer the
following observations, which I beg you will consider. In the time of the last Paishwa, 164
Bajee Row, the Nipaneekur, and Trimbukjee Denglia, exercised the authority of force
in the Carnatic Prant, and when the district came into the possession of the Company its
officers were mindful of this fact, and considering that the injury sustained during the
time of the above two persons by Inamdars in the usurpation and resumption of their
villages and lands was contrary to justice, published a printed book, (xu1.) stating that
such resumptions should not be observed, and in dispensing justice did not allow such,
resumptions to influence their decisions, but reversed them, and gave back the inam
villages to their owners. These two proofs (xiv.) are in the hands of Governmeut: if 165
you will examine and consider them, you will be convinced that my argument is
correct. Be so kind as to consider this.

“[4.] You write that in the year above mentioned, A. p. 1813-14, Lingo Punt Apa
and Apajee Luchmon gave a yad about the Munolee Talovka ; but in my appeal petition
I explained, that when the Nipaneekur interfered with the villages [ Jaleckuttee, &e.] the
Swamee went to Pouna, and represented the matter to the Paishwa, who theun gave an
order to the Nipaneekur's Karbharee, in consequence of which the said Apa [Lingo Punt]
wrote distinctly to the Mam!lutdar of Munolee to continue the village without interrap-
tion, and not to trouble the Swamee’s villages; and accordingly the villages remained with
the Swamee. And after that*Ramajee Punt, the Mamlutdar of the Munolee Talooka,
held those same villages in farm, paying their revenue to the Swamee, and taking his 166
receipts. Documents to prove this are in the hands of the Swamee's Karbharee Seewn-
rambhut Latkur; (xv.) and I long ago begged you to receive his testimony along with
the abuve documents.  You have probably done so; but if not, kindly receive his evidence.

“{5.] In reply to the request contained in my letter, that you would give me addi-
tional leisure for two and a half months, in order to come in person and represent my

now to be found. They have probably been made away with, to enable the persons who made them to
escape the punishmeut they must have deserved if the statements were what they are asserted by Konher Row
to have been ; for if they stated what he asserts, they must have been false.”

(x1.) “ The two arguments appear to be—1ls¢, the recognition of Mr. Nisbet ; and 2nd, the alleged asser-
tions of the district and village officers, both of which are treated of above, in notes (v1.) to (x.)”

(x11.} *See note (x1v.) on Konher Row’s letter of the 3rd of Rubbee-col-Awul, No. 2 of the compilation
submitted on the 6th June 1848, and paragraph 2 of the Inam Comanissioner's letter to Konher Row, No. 5 of
the same compilaticn.”’

(x1r1.) ¢ Konher Row here evidently alludes to the Inam Rules circulated for the guidance of Collectors
in 1819 [though these were mot printed]. These Rules provide that ancient and authentic inams resumed
since a. ». 1803, without the authority of the Paishwa or Lis chief ministers, are to be restored ; but this is of
course wholly inapplicable to a village which the Paishwa always treated as khalsat, and which remained se
under the Treaties of A, 1. 1827 and 1829.”

(x1v.) “ The “two proofs’ appear to be—lat, the ¢printed book’; and 2nd, the procedure of giving back
* inam villages, according to its Rules. These are in fact only one proof, and, as shown in note (x11r.), it is one
not applicable to the case under cousideration.”

(xv.) * Alleged copies [nuauthentic] of the documents alluded to, were produced by Seewurambhut Latkur,
during the originel investigation.—See Seewurambhut's Auswers III. and IV, in his examination of the 14th
January 1847, recorded in paragraph 47 of the Inam Commissioner’s B.eport of the 20th February 1847, and
the third and fourth copies described in note {Lv111.) thereon.”

ape
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case, you have replied that you cannot grant me such delay on your own responsibility ;
that you have already admitted of one delay, and that a long time has elapsed; that
you have written about this delay to Governmenf, but that you do not think Govern-

167 ment will agree to graut it, wherefore I should quickly state all that I may have to say.
I therefore beg to make the following representation : —

«(6.] The Raja gave the villages [Jaleekuttee, &e.] as inam to the Swamee, and had
full authority to do so. (xv1.) But by the last Treaty it was determined that Govern-
ment should not continue any villages granted as inam by the Raja subsequent to Sir
Thomas Munro making over the Munolee Talooka to him, (xvir.) and should it possibly
be thought that this arvangement is pertinent to the decision made by the Inam Commis-
sion, I reply that in the above paragraphs I have stated my proof that these villages

168 [Jaleekuttee, &c.] were inam before Sir Thomas Munro made over the talooka; (xvit.)
and on consideration of this any doubt which may have occurred to you will be
removed. Should you still have doubts, I beg that you will be so good as to write and
tell me, and I shall send you a reply, (x1x.)after consideration of which I beg you will
make your report to Government.

“[7.] In order that no one should suffer oppression, and that justice should be
observed, the Chiefs of the Sahebs sitting in Council drew vp Regulations, which were
printed and circulated throughout the country, and things have been carried on in con-

169 formity with them, 1f I be so unfortunate that Government disregard these Regula-
lations, I have uo remedy; but I yet once more represent to Government, that in
Section XXXVIL of Regulation XVIIL. of a. p. 1827 it is laid down, that even should
there be no title by sunnud, or established custom, or enjoyment for 60 years, still, if the
former or present Government, or any competent authority under them, has recognised
the exemption of land, it shall be continued for the future. This Section is decidedly
pertinent to the case of our purchased inam villages, because they were granted by the
Raja of Kolapoor, and when the Company’s Government restored the Munolee Talooka
to him, the Raja’s Government agreed to continue them as formerly granted, and the
yad which was sent by it [on restoring the talovka in 1827] was agreed to by a compe-

170 tent aunthority (xx.) of the Company’s Goverument, andthe inam villages confirmed to
the Swamee. Some time aflter this my father bought these inam villages, and then, at
his request that Government would take them from him, and give him in exchange for
them other villages, the Governor in Council and the Collector of Belganm, after an
inquiry, (xx1.) took those villages in exchunge for others thereupon granted as inam by
Government, which issued a sunnud for the latter; and according to this, enjoyment
has continued. Every inquiry having been completed, both Sirkars (xxi1.) assented

(xv1) **The Raja had no proper authority at the date of his alleged grant in . p. 1796-97, which [if
made at all] was made during his temporary invasion of the Paishwa’s districts; and at all events it did not
take effect, a circumstance which would invalidate the most valid original grant.—See Report of 20th February
1847, paragraphs 48 and 49, and note (v1.) on Konher Row's letter of the 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, recorded as
No. 2 of the compilation submitted to Government with the Inam Commissioner’s letter No. 579, dated 6th
June 1848.”

(xvii.) “ The fact which Konher Row here finds himself obliged to admit is explained in potes (vir.),
(1x.), and (x.) on his letter of the 3rd Rubbee-ool-Awul, alluded to in the preceding note.”

(xviii.) “ Konher Row's arguments on this point are those mentioned above in note (x1.). It is unneces-
sary to again recite the conclusive proof of their fallacy afforded by the evidence recorded in the Report of the
20th February 1847, as this has been duly appreciated by Government in the Revenue Secretary’s letter to
the Revenue Commissiener, No. 585, dated 27th January 1848.”

(x1x.) The Inam Commissioner considers it wholly unnecessary to take any notice of this request, as
Konher Row has not, in any of his appeals or letters, put forward sinee the decision of bis ease in July 1847,
produced one single proof or argument, tending to render questionable the justice of that decision.”

(xx.)} ¢ This argument is merely a repetition of that dispesed of above in notes (v1.) te (1x.).”

(xx1.) * This argument is a repetition of that noticed ahove in note (111.).”’

(xx11.) * By ‘ both Sirkars’ Konher Row means either the Bombay Government and Raja of Kolapeor,
or the Bombey Goverament and Collector of Belgaum. In either case, his assertion that the Bombay Govern-
mext assented after a proper inquiry is ineorrect.”
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and approved, and therefore this arrangement cannot Le annulled for any reason.

Wherefore I beg that you will be so good as to consider this with elose attention, and 171

I request that my inam villages which have been attached may be restored to me.

“[8.] I formerly wrote to ask you to forward my English petition of the 16th April
1848 to Government, and you have replied that you have forwarded it. (xxim.)
I beg that you will tuke into consideration the ,matter of the petition in question when
you report to Government about my“inam villages ; (xxi1v.) and when an answer comes
to the petition in question, be so kind as to inform me of it. Formerly, on the 24th
September 1847, 1 sent an appeal petition to the Revenue Commissioner, which has
probably been referred to you. (xxv.) In it an explanation of my proofs and argu-
ments is given. Be pleased to consider it, and write to Government to approve of my
appeal in conformity with it.

- “[9.] The duty now performed by the Inam Commission is properly the duty of the
Collector, and it was on the Collector’s report of his proceedings that the Governor in
Council issued orders for receiving the Swamee’s villages from us, and giving us in
exchange for them the villages Mulapoor, &ec. in the Padshapoor Talooka, which we
accordingly received. 1t was then, after a complete investigation as to the Swamee’s
villages, that the exchange was made ; and the documents, &c. recorded regaiding it are
in the Collector’s office. (xxv1) If you will kindly procure and examine them, you will
see that competent authorities of the Company’s Government, namely the Governor in
Council and the Collector, agreed to continue to us in perpetuity the inam villages
Mulapoor, &e. There can, therefore, be no just grounds for making a new investiga-
tion. Government has instituted ldws for the cherishing of its subjects. Consider this,
aud the custom of the country, and keeping in mind that what has once been agreed to
by competent officers should not be subjeet to change, be so good as to write it in your
report to Government,

“[10.] When my father gave up to the Company’s Government the inam he had
obtained from the Swamee, viz. the villages of Jaleekuttee, &ec., and received in exchange
for them the-villages Mulapoor, &e., this was as if a mercantile burgain between
Government and us. In this bargain one article was bartered for another article, and it
1s-right that both the giver and the receiver of each should put up with whatever profic
or whatever loss may have accrued to himn by the transaction. If it be objected to this
argument that the present bargain has been an nuequal one, still it is a bargain, and
how can it be annulled ? When once a bargain is completed, it can never be altered :
this is an acknowledged principle in all countries. (xxvi.) We and the Company have
completed a bargain : if the Company now, by the forcible exercise of its authority and

(xxur.) “The petition was one of those forwarded with the Inam Commissioner’s letter No. 519, dated
29th April 1848, viz. that in which Konher Row sagserts the illegality of the Inam Commission.”

(xx1v.) “As Government has already replied to Konher Row’s petition of the 16th April by the message
conveyed in Mr, Secretary Lumsden’s letter No. 3267, dated Geh Juoe 1348, it js nseless for the Inam
Commissioner to enlarge on its arguroents as to the illegality of the Inam Commission ; but he cannot help
regretting that an Act of the Supreme. Government has not hitherto been passed to facilitate its duties, and to
render such imputations as Konher Row's impossible.”

(xxv.) ¢ The petition here alluded to was referred to the Inam Commissioner by the Revenue Commissioner,
but as it did not countain any matter of real impartance, it was returned to the Revenue Commissioner with a
note to that effect. Its purpoit was precisely the same as that of the petitions since made by Konher Row
direct to Government.”

(xxv1.) ¢ These papers were of course examined by the Inam Commissioner previous to his Report of the
20th February 1847. They afford no proof of what is asserted by Konher Row, but, on the contrary, show
that neither his father's title nor that of the Swamee was investigated ; and as for the Governor in Council ‘dnd
Collector agreeing to continue in perpetuity the villages given up, Mr. Reeves’ inam puttr,’ translated in note
(xxxvin.) on that report, shows that nothing was said to Anajee Punt of the permanency of his future
tenure, perhapa for the reason surmised in paragraph 14 of the Report.”

(xxvir) ‘“Konher Row finds it couvenient to forget that it is an equally acknowledged principle that
bargains, to be binding, must be free from fraud.”

172

173

174
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mastership, should proceed to annul this bargain, we shall be left without remedy, because
we are under the authority of Government. But let Government beware of admitting

175 into its intentions the plan of departing from its bargain. If Government takes to
aunulling its bargain and agreement once made, I have no remedy. In the ease of
subjects of Government, and others who have dealings with each other, and who may
depart from their bargains in such dealings, should disputes occur regarding this and be
brought before the place of justice, the authorities constituted by Government enforce the
observance of the bargain and agreement once completed. Such being the established
custom, if Government should in the abovementioned manner begin to act in subversion
of it to my detriment, where can I find justice ? Let Goverument, therefore, consider
all thut I have written above, and respecting its bargain once made, continue to me as

176 hereditary inam (xxviL) my inam villages, Mulapoor, &e.

“[11.] I have thus stated the proofs and arguments of my case: it is your part to
consider them, and, having made your report to Government, to obtain the relcase to
my villages now under attachment. Let me frequently hear from you, and keep up
friendship. What more can I write? &e.”

23. In reply to the Inam Commissioner’s Reports, &c. described in paragraphs 19
to 22, the Chief Secretary to Government addressed to him the following letter, No.
5572, dated 13th September 1849 :—

* Sir,~—1I have been directed by the Right Honorable the Governor in Council to
acknowledge the receipt of your two letters, Nos. 579 and 585, dated respectively the
6th and 20th June 1848, with their enclosures, relative to the claim of Konher Row,

177 son of Auajee Nursew Deshpandey, to hold as heredifary taxed inam the three villages
of Panjunluttee, Yedulguod, and Mulapoor, in the Padshapoor Talooka of the Belgaum
Collectorate,

“2. Inreply, I have been desired to transmit the accompanying copies of corres-

From the Political Agent at Dharwar, No. ponden_ce, as n.oted in the margin, from .wlnch
42, dated I18th April 1828, with enclosures in  you will perceive that Jaleekuttee and its two
tha‘clj'c:il;':igalylﬁp‘;;;meg:ltt;d 23rd May 1828, dependent hamlets, Jeewapoor and Rayapoor,

ToPolitical Agent Southern Mahratta Conn-  which were sold by Shunkurbhartee, Swamee
gz:j:ge ‘g;;)%rf"‘:te‘:“‘t.‘“h Avgust 18349, inthe  of Shunkeshwar, in 1839, to Auajee Nursew, and
" From ditto, No. 306, dated 13th -August exchanged in 1842 for the abuve three villages
1849, with enclosures. belonging to the British Government, were
included in the alienated villages respected by Mr. Nisbet, the Political Agent at
Dharwar, in his letter of 18th April 1821,

178 3. Under these circumstauces, as the case is of considerable importance, I am
instructed to request that you will be good enough to favour Government with any
observations you may desire to offer on the new facts brought to your notice in the
correspondence now transmitted to you.

: “] have, &c.”

24. The accompaniments of this letter were as follows :—

“ No.-42 of 1823,
“ PoriticaL DEPARTMENT.
“To W. Newwnam, Esquire,

Chief Fecretary 1o Government, Bombay.

“ Sir,—The claims to inams in the Chickoree Talooka referred to me in your des-
patches of the 16th and 21st of February [ Nvs, 182, 211, and 213], being involved in a

regarding the fact that this bargain was effected by virtual fraud on his father’s part. He forgeta that there is

l (xxvirr) * Konher Row is much inclined to insist on Government blindly adhering to its bargain, without
nothing in the terms of this bargain declaring the villages given to bis father by Government to be Aereditary ;



1 151

general question, as to whether Government shall retain the whole benefit of the 2nd
Article of the late Treaty with the Raja of Kolapore, which provides for his giving back 179
the Talovkas of Chickoree and Manolee in the same state in which they were formerly
ceded to him, or whether any subsequent grants are to be considered valid, I do myself

the honour to submit a general statement, showmg the total number of villages ceded

by the Honorable Cumpauy ; the pumber of inams in the enjoyment of the proprietors .
at the date of that cession ; the number which, according to the strict letter of the Treaty,
might have been resumed, but which’I have allowed to remain in the possession of the
proprietors, in consequence of their baving been either restored at the suggestion

Vide 18 villages, Statement of the British Government or granted with its coacurrency ;

No. L. and lastly, those which, being from their nature fuirly
resumable by the Raja, ought not, in my opinion, to be relmqulshed

2. These last I have divided into two classes, viz, Is¢, lands conferred by Aba Sahib 180
Maharaj, the brother of the present Raja; and 2ad, grants by the latter, which have
been again subdivided into wbat are said to have been ‘auncient grants restored, * and
what are ‘admitted to be new.

“3. The former of these lust seem at first sight to deserve some attention; but as
they are, without exception, held by subjects of the Kolapore State, and most of them
by the Raja’s immediate dependents, there appears to be no good ground for their being
admitted. My answer to all has been, that as the Kolapore State conferred, it had a
right to resume; that if the Raja wishes the grants to be continued, he may either
transfer them to some other part of his territories, or make over an equivalent to the
Government ; and further, that as none of the claimants took any steps to prevent the 181
irregularities which led to the Treaty, it is perfectly just that they should share the
fate of their master.

“4. Of this last description are Baullajee Bajee Row Chitnuvees,* and Hunmunt
Row Abajee, alias Anajee Narain Furnuvees,{ the two persons alluded te in your letters
of the 21st of February last.

“5. The claim of the Nipaneekur’s relation, referred to in your letter dated the 16th
of February, though not exactly similar to the above, i3 evidently not such as the
Government are bound to admit. The claimants are the widow and son of Morarrow
Ghorepurre, who was an officer in the service of the present Raja, and who was killed
[some say accidentally, some designedly,] by the Raja, while on a shooting party. The
Nipauveekur has suggested, in the memorandum received with your letter, that in the 182
event of the village in question not being relinquished, ¢ another of the same value may
be caused to be given in lieu of it’; but this, I have explained to him, the Government
would not be justified in doing, and that his application must, therefore, be made direct
to the Raja.

«§. As the claims under reply relate entirely to the Chickoree Talooka, and as the
decision of Government in the one case would of course guide me in the other, it might,
perhaps, have been sufficient only to have furnished a statement of the inams of that
province ; but in order to show, at one view, the whole value of the cessions, I further
beg leave to request that you will lay before the Honorable the Governor in Council
the accompanying Statement No. 2, giving the particulars of the Manolee Talooka. 183
The situation of the few claimants in this are, however, evidently not the same as those
in Chickoree ; and as they profess to have documents in. their possession which they
intend to briog forward, it is possible that I may hereafter have occasion to make a
different report of them.

go that he might just as well have forborne to abandon the grouunds of equity and good faith for those of
special pleading on the  letter of his bond,” which he has adopted as the foundation of his claim in this section
of his letter, seeing that, whether he bases it on one or the other, hia title must fall to the ground.”
* «Vide Statement No. 3, of new graots by Aba Sahib Maharaj.”
+ “Vide Statement No. 3, of new grants by present Raja.”.
w
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«7. From the particulars afforded by the above statements, it will be seen, that if

Loeal Currency. GO¥Ernment were to act on any other principle

Aggregate vevenue, a8 per ~ Rs. 4. ¢hap hag here been submitted, the value of the
accompanying statements....... 2,90,047 9 . k

Estimated in letter to Chief cessions would fall short of the amount estimated

Secretary,dated 10th Nov.1827. 2,85,614 15 jp my letter of the 10th of November last, while

e —————

Excess .. ..-- 4,432 10  at present there is a slight excess.

“ ] have the honour to be, &e.
(Signed) “J. Nisper,
“ Political Agent.

¢ Belgaon, 18th April 1828.”
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CaicEoRER.
: | Revenue of Cur- |2 .
g,, rel:: Fus‘le‘?,lﬁ:gc:n- z E}. Total _vl'lmna, exelaaive of
. = ve of Vi 2= il
= z Charges, & ge Charges.
e Local Carrency. Local Curreacy, Bombay
Ra. a p. Ra. a pl Re ¢ T
Number of villages ceded by the Honorable
Company, as specified in the late Sir
Thomas Munro’s memorandum....... wes)e cenaes 193
Deduct service entered..|..| .,.... 1
Remains- SHM R S B b tessa ], RN NNYY 192325261 15 3249821 2 81
Deduct Inams.
HOId inams in the enjoyment of the proprie-
tors at the time the district was ceded by
the Honorable Company .............. 35 60808 15 ¢
2|Granted at the same time by the Honorable
Company to Bhow Maharaj, then Prime|
MinistﬂOftheRﬂja (AR R EN N LNEEN NN NNEY NN 3 16]02 6 0
38| 76911 5 0} 59922 0 31
Remainder belonging to the Honorable Com-
any, according to the literal terms of the .
TeALY vevevnveciranes feeenenesans P 1Y O, 1541248350 10 3{189899 2 50
Deduct Old  Grants restored at the suggestion
of the late Sir Thomas Munro.
liAntajee Punt Nerleekur................ ..|] 6| 885314 0
2/Sedasheo Ramchunder Berkeehall ........ 1} 6639 3 ¢
3{Goondé Row, Deshpandy Mullickwar,.....| 1| 937 1 ¢
Nursing Ram Venktesh Arjoonwar ........] 1] 749 6 0
917179 8 ¢
New Grants by Aba Sakib Maharaj.
1iGiven up to Bhow Maharaj and Bawa Maha-|
raj, a8 being included in the schedule of]
their possessions guaranteed by the Honor-
able Company.....ccivi icinnionnaren. 7, 15964 4 6
2|Given up to Ballajee Punt Nathoo, on condi-
tion of his abiding by the ultimate decision
of Goverament, it being said that the grant
was made with the knowledge and approval
of the Honorahle the late Governor, while
Commissioner of the Deccan............ 2| 454015 9
9 20505 4 3
. 18} 37684 12 3{ 29013 1 6
Remainder now in the possession of Govern-
1T Y 1 T 136210665 14 0]160886 1 44
Claims on account of Additional Grants con-
Jerred by Aba Maharaj (said to have been
Ancient Granis restored ).
1|Raz Oopadeh, the Priest of the Raja’s palace| 2| 2918 13 9
2/Regonant Josee Row, the Josee of the Raja’s|
palace ... .. ... wereicaaeceraiananan 1| 1267 11 3
3 Kedar Sing, Dewustan near Kolapore, and
still under the jurisdiction of the Raja ....| J| 727 10 3
4 Kolapore Dewee, also under the Raja’s juris-
i dicﬁonII..IC.I..IIIII.Il..llll.llll. 1 719 7 6

184

185
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No.

o o

G AD

1 2 | Revenus of Cur-
& trent Fuales, excin-
= | sive of Village
B Charges.
Local Carrency.
Rs. a. p.
Hunmunt Row Nimbalkur, a nephew of His
Highness the Raja.oerseoronsasens seeof 81 0020 O 3
Casseekur Bhawa, a subject of Kolapore,
where he has a Mutt .. .oveivoacaaaces. 1l 838 2 6
( Acknowledged to be New Granis.)
The Sunkeswere Swamy «c:secascass veea| 2] 704 8 0
Sadasewa Row Josee, a Surinjamedar of 10 .
horse in the service of the Raja..........I 5 4138 8 0
Balajee Row Cheetnuvees, the Raja’s Chief
SeCretaryessessasaracasscsansssecaesa.| 1} 1474 11 3
Grants conferred by the present Maharaj ((said)
to have been Ancient Grants restored ).
Hybut Row Gaikwar, a Surinjamedar of the
Kolapore State .. vouuruuesvreecvae oo 1| 8671 0 9
Ramdasee Sirgaonkur, a subject of Kola-
pore, where he has a Mutt...... aeesacnas Il 648 8 0
Tooljapoor Dewee .....ews . canasen 1] 46212 0O
Jejooree Dewustan....eeesssescesaconanef bi 471 10 9
Sree Sekher Singnapoor, a Dewustan belong-
ing to the Kolapore State .......... ceai} 2 8 0
Ambabaee Deoghur, the Raja’s household
goddess ......ciiseeisieiirersaraaas 1] 4137 156 &
Antajee Eshwunt, alizs Rowjee Waknuvees,
late Vakeel on the part of the Raja ......| 1] 592 10 O
( Acknowledged to be New Grants.)
The Sunkeswere Swamy, including Goorgun-
hatty Warree ........ Chseanreaaranns if 78112 0
Cunde Row Bhosle, a distant relation of the
Raja, and an officer in his service........[ ]} 3864 15 9
Anajee Narain, Amildar of Punnala........ 2 1883 0 O
Heeroo Pindaree and his associates ........ 5 785 I 3
Dadajee Salonke, a Sillidar in the service of] :
the Raja oovvnecevcaraonas eeneaeaeas 1] 50113 0
Buchacharre Pundit Row, one of the late
ill-advisers of the Raja --.....ccveunns, 21 14656 1 3
Khissen Row Gurde, the celebrated promoter
of all the Raja’s late excesses .......... 1 833 0 0O
Jeejojee Row Khanwelkur, a_distant relation|
of the Raja, and an officer in his service ..} 1| 1231 8 6
Appajee Row Zadow, alins Bawa Suhib Sur-
nowbut, an officer in the serviceof the Raja.| 3| 2504 3 6
Chundnjee Row Ghorepurre, an officer in the
service of the Raja ...... resseennsnnenet 2 94912 0
Ramsing Hazaree, one of the Moolmundlee,
or youthful associates of the Raja........[ 1 362 0 9
Appajee Row Zadow, an officer in the service
ofthe Raja covevevraonciansnananana, 1 706 9 0
Bucheram éhorepurre, another of the Mool-
mundlee v..eecesennanees Prsteseranaes H 885 2 0
Babajee Row Jegdalle, another of the Mool-
mundlee c.ivevcernieaaan cesarererenen 1 307 4 0
Rhada Baee Ghorepurre, whose husband was ,
accidentally killed by the Raja, a relation
of the Nipaneekur, and the person in whose
behalf bis Vakeel lately petitioned the Ho-
cesenaesd 1] 1516 3 9

notable the Governor.sesssvas

E Ea;: Total Rovenne, exclusive of
£ Vilage Charges.
g
Local Corrancy. B::mbny
Rs, a p! Re ¢ r
14{ 15511 13 6} 12096 O 56
8 6317 11 & 4869 3 75
7111987 1 0 9158 1 50
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9

; | Revenue of Cur= ;:- .
§> m:;vl;l:;‘l?il?:clu- 3 g, Total Revenus, exclusive of
E- = Chm-gu.ge 2= Village Charges.
Local Cunrrency. Local Currency. Bombay
ERe. a. p. Re. a. p| Re. g 7.
16/Yeshwunt Row Sinde Havaldar, an officer
in the service of the Raja .........0%. .} 1} 2570 3 3
17/Kolapore Deweesoseussresacesnssasanasrs If 1656 10 9
18|Bal Khisten Baboo Row, Vakeel on the part
. OftheRaja.... ------ YRR R ] 462 0 0
19{Anund Row Trimbuck, Vakeel on the part of , -
theRaja.............--..-..-.-...... l 753 4 0
20/Ram Row Pullooskur, another of the Mool-
' mundlee [deceased], now held by hisson ..| 1 60 0 O
Wittee Kusbeen, a Dancer in Kolapore ....[ 2 1031 4 0
22|Mooneah Naiknee, a Dancer in Kolapore ..| 1] 365 12 0
23|Venkut Nursee, ditto ditto ..[1] 51812 O _
33| 25665 2 9] 19764 2 62
Total value of grants subsequent to the Ho-
norable Company’s cession c.evevnveeaddas]  eavens 62| 59481 12 6| 45880 0 44
“(E. E)

(Signed) ¢ J. NISBET, Political Agent.

“ Camp at Belgaon, 18th April 1828.”

“ MANOLEE.
Revenue of Cur-
reat Fusles, exclu-
8}‘1]‘!3 of Villggaf E, _
w yorges,anc o @ Total Revenne, exclosive of -
2 [mouis e povai | E Viligo Charge
. E to the Govt. weral o
: disnak
Lacal Currency. Local Currency. Bombay
. Rs. @ p. Re. @ p| Re. g 1
Total number of villages ceded to the Raja in
Fuslee 1227 ,......... R N N 82! 86519 . 7 .6) 67593 1 25
Deduct— 1
Inams in the enjoyment of the proprietors at|
the date of the Honorable Company’s graat.|.. eriean 16, 7137 12 6| 5576 1 44
Remainder now in the possession of Govt....l..| ... 66 79381 11 0j 62016 3 81
Claims on account of Additional Grants eon-
Jerred by Aba Sahib Maharaj (said to have
been Ancient Grants restored),
1|/Bhogapah Naik, Dessai of Sutteegeree [a sub-
division of Manolee]....oovievevvannnna. 3 444 4 3
2|Verabudrapah, Dessai of Moorgoor [a sub-f .
- division of Manolee] ...ivoviciiiiaanns 1 1320 1 ©
3|Verabudrapah Dessui, a relative of the above.| 2| 1857 13 ©
& -—| 6 8622 2 3 2820 318
("Acknowledged to be New Grants.)
}Luckmin Row Sinde Torgulkur «v.e.veenedf 2f 1800 0 O
2 1800 0 O 1406 1 O
Total value of grants subsequent to the date| .| AR e
of the Honorable Company’s cession .. ....[.. rereae 8| 5422 2 3| 4236 018
“(E. E)

“ Camp at Belgaon, 18th April 1828,

41*

(Signedy *J.

NISBET, Political Agent.

188

189
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“No. 593 or 1828.

« To the PoLiTrcar AGENT,
Dharwar.

« Str,—I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch, dated the 18th
ultimo, No. 42, together with statements showing the total revenue, and the number of
190 inams in the enjoyment of the proprietors of the Talookas of Chickoree and Manolee,
ceded by the Raja of Kolapore to the British Government, and to acquaint you that the
prmclples by which you propose the British Government should be guided relative to
the inams in the resumed districts appear to the Honorable the Governor in Council
just and expedient. You are accordingly authorised to carry into effect the plan recom-

mended in your letter.
¢ ] have the honour to be, &e.

(Signed) “W. Newwnuam,
“Chief Secretary to Government.
“ Bombay Castle, 23rd May 1828.”

“No. 4799 or 1849.

“ TernrITORIAL DEPARTMENT,
: Revenve.
“To J. D. Inveramrty, Esquire,

Acting Political Agent Southern Mahratta Country,
- and Acting Collector of Belgaum,

191  “ Sir,—Adverting to the lettpr from Mr. Nisbet, Political Agent at Dharwar, No.
42, dated the.18th April 1828, to the address of Mr. Chief Secretary Newnham, ia the
Political Department, I have been directed by the Right Honorable the Governor in
Council to request that you will have the goodness to ascertain, after consulting the lists
on which the statements therewith submitted were framed, whether the three villages sold
by Shurkurbhartee, Swamee . of Shunkeshwur, in 1839, to Anajee Nursew, and
exchanged in. 1842* for others belonging to. the British Government;. were among the
alienations Tespected by : Mr Nisbet.

“ I have the honour fo be, &e.-

_ (Slgned) ¢ A, MavrET,
L Chlef Sectetary to Government.

“ Bombay Castle, 4th August 1849.”

192 " No. 396 o ‘1849.

~ % From J. D. INVERARITY, Es‘quire,'

“ To the CHIEP SECRETARY TO -GOVERNMENT,

Bombay :
. .Dated 13& August 1849,

“ Sm,——I haVe the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your lettter No: 4799 of the
4th instant, i w?uch[ am directed to ascertain ‘whether the three VJIIages “sold by
Shunkurbhartee, S.wamee of Shunkeshwur, in 1839 to 'Anajee Nursew, and’ excha‘aaed_

% o Vide Mr. Chref Swécretary\Reld’s letter to the Acting Collector of Belgaum, in the Revenne Department,
No, 819; dated 19th March 1842.”
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in 1842 for others belonging to the British Government, were among the alienations
respected by Mr. Nisbet in his letter No. 42, dated the 18th April 1828,

«2, In reply, I beg to anuex a translation of those portions of the detailed state-
ments, of which an English abstract accompanied Mr. Nisbet's letter above quoted,
which have reference to the alienations respected by that officer. 193

%3, Mr. Shaw’s letter, without number, of the 3rd December 1841 to the address
of Mr. Acting Secretary Blane, mdkes mention of the three villdges of Jaleekuttee,
Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor, [being those purchased from the Swamee of Shunkeshwur,]
which Anajee Nursew wished to exchange for British villages. The statement which
accompanies this letter gives the revenue of the village of Jaleekuttee, with ifs muzzras
or hamlets of Jeewapoor and Rayapoor. 'The entry in the statement is correct, there
being in fact one village, with two dependent hamlets, instead of three distinet villages,
as expressed in Mr. Shaw’s letter, already quoted.

“4. In Mr. Nisbet’s detailed list, the village of Jaleekuttee is entered among ‘the
respected alienations, which form the sixteen inam villages of Manolee [Statement
No. 2] in the enjoyment of the proprietors at the date of the Honorable Company’s 194
‘grant of the talooka to the Raja of Kolapoor in Fuslee 1227, a. ». 1817-18.

“] have the hohoﬁr to be, &c.
 (Signed) “J. D, InvERARITY,
“ Acting Political Agent, Southern Mahratta Country. -

« Political Agent’s Office, Belgaum, 13th August 1849.”

“ MEMORANDUM, .

t« Statement No. I'.-_-—‘-Z’al&oﬁq _C'izi}cﬁpdee,

Amonnt in
Villages. Local Currency.
“A. Old inams in the enjoyment of the .proprietors . at ' Rs a p.
the time the district was ceded ..c.cevasnesanslorasieessaes 35 .0 60808 16 O
: . -Villages.. Rs. -av . :
Dessace of Wuntmooree «sseesvvansmnrgeivaesine 5 . 9793- 0 9
Nadgowde of Modehully " S:.. 5. sevsmnssssanenss .1 618.0 0
DessaeeofNaﬁadée-.'.'._'.'...}.-.‘.“..;..'_...,.......... 4. 2?}6 3 -0
Do. of Neppanees «.oeeses.. O LTI P LT B 6626005 0
Inamdar of Bhookte Alloor SITERITEVETREE avinaas -1 29_8 10 o
Swamee of Sunkeshwur<— . - oot L .
3 Share in the v1llan'e of Kumutnoor e iaeansY
1 Shapoor- ......... A R TORM .
1 Gownall ..... . .ivisieloiireiioresn o b 4) 13152 8 9
"1 Sunkeswer ....iuiheidoees eranseas |
1 Unklay ...icocavaeaiivnddgaainngn] ™
§ Share Kumutroor Deshpandey . ..........._..."..‘.. . '§ 1047 8 ©
InamdarofPotwaon AP e 3 1651 6 0
Do. BabaMaharaJ '"""‘"""'""-‘"'»"“'."."' 3 2998 6 0 -
Do. of BOSIWUL v yihevransrisnoaarsmnnronss 3 200715 9
Swamee™of Sgwanoor 1 1329 8 0
[namdar of Pangeray' “iv eeiseaeisseioiersesesss - 1 510 8 O
Do. -of Munkapobr' 'v.eseBonsecssosdisosaiin 1- : 1876 2 3
Do. - of Kullolee: vvvualesivarsronennanansanss 1. 3141 &5 3
Do. ofBognee Muntree....;.......... cenasae 1 7000 0 O
Veerbhudri®Deo- Erroor.................._...._..... 1 3750 .0 0
[namdarofheq....;.;............ ...... vedaene 1 213t 8 0.
—_— ———

_ 35. 60808.15. 0%
 Should be Bupees 60808-14-9,
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Amount in
. . Villages, Loeal C .
195« B. Old grants restored at the suggestion of the late Sir e;h m:?cyp.-
ThomasMunl‘o.........-..-..-..-.....n.--o.-...... 9 ]7]79 8 0
Antajee Punt Neerleekur :—
l Awurgolee sassssmssser Nssse s tens Favasas ] Villngag. R“, e p.
1 Bombutwad CasssemacpsaanBEstusEve s
1 Nedsosee cvavess tessasssseessurisasanas
l Neerlee...--oo--o-u-c-o.--.--aooo.---to 6 8853 14 0
1 Girgaon .ecieecrieccacisnsrnriinnnen.
1 Amungee ccveceevcrassscncsnsonaanns ves
Inamdar of Bedkehal, Ramchender RoW.ceevennaone 1 6639 3 0
Do. of Mulleekwar Gonderow .....covaaunae ‘e 1 937 1 0
Do. of Arjoonwar, Nursingrow Venkutesh ...... 1 749 6 0
9 17179 8 0
“ Statement No. 2.—Talooka Munolee.
“C. Inams in the enjoyment of the proprietors at the date of Villages,
the Honorable Company’s grant «..ocvveuinoieniaciissavanensas 16 7137 12 6
Sree Dixit :—
1 Badlee ....... cerruasabecsstasaantnns .e Villages, Re. a. ».
1 Nudvinhully.veeeerarenonocnarannnanas, .} 3 702 13 3
1 Boodguttee +ocvuvivianenan. Cenreserienn
Shree SBunkeshwur Swamy Jaleekutty «...ccvanen. . 1 682 14 9
Neelkant Row Sinday Kopekur :—
1 Herekope......ss eesavussaccetannes seue
1 Chickope..asscsnsn ssrasnanes teseaenuns
1 Bhogojeekope.vcoesoeanenras trervseniaen
1 Dasmall ...... beseaaans tuesosenseraaas 7 4080 10 0
Y
1 Melekerry .....coavvaeen. aiesacrearsns J '
1 Moogleebul covunvensnnniainrerencennns,
Hunmapa Naek Goorvunkole............ tesnairans 1 32 6 6
Buswuntapa Dessaee of Mootwar ....conee- ciannaae 1 63¢ 1 3
Peetambar Naik of Ingulgee - ..... coneseoensinsoas 1 19 1 6
Sewlingapa Nadgowda of Roodrapoor ..... crrrennee 1 676 16 9
Goornath Lingo Kotoor.vuveevviannasns ePriesasaa 1 104 10 0
Inam lands of Deshpandey of Purgunna Manolee. .... - 206 3 6
16 713712 6

“[True translation]
(Signed) - “J.-D.  InyERARITY,
“ Acting Political Agent Southern Mahratta Country.

“[True copies]
(Signed) “A. Mawer,
“ Chief Secretary to Government »

196 25 After consideration of the letter and correspondence descnbed in paragraphs 23

and 24, the Inam Commissoner submitted to the Secretdry to Government the following
Report, No. 1295, dated 24th November ‘1849 :—

- 8ir,—1I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of the Chief Secretary’s letter, No.

5572, dated 13th September 1849, and, as therein directed, to offer the following obser-
vations on the circumstances under which the village of Jaleeknttee and its hamlets were
allowed by Mr. Nisbet to remain in the possession of the Shunkeshwur Swamee, after the
resumption of the Chikoree and Munolee Talookas from: the Kolapoor Raja, in a. p. 1827,
“2. From the Chief Secretary’s letter, it would appear thit the Right Honorable the

197 Governor in Council is disposed to atiribute some importance to the fact that Mr. Nis-
bet allowed Jaleckuttee, &e. to remain in the Swamee’s possession, and that it i8 included
[though not by name] among the sixteen villages which he reported to have been inams
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in the enjoyment of the proprietors ai the date of the Honorable Company’s  grant’ of
the Munolee Talooka to the Kolapoor Raja, which occurred in a. . 1817-18.

«3, Even if Mr. Nisbet’s supposition that this was the fact had been the result of
any investigation made by him, it would be clear that he had been gi‘ossly deceived ; for
the evidence of the Coolkurnee, and the accounts produced by him, as described in para-
graphs 41 and 42 [and notes] of the Inam Commissioner’s Report of the 20th February
1847, as well as the evidence mentioned in paragraphs 43, &e. of the same Report, show
that Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor, and Rayepoor were not only properly khalsat, but actually 198
managed as such up to and for some time after Sir Thomas Munro’s transfer of Munolee
to the Raja.

“ 4, But ia the letter No. 42, dated 18th April 1828, from Mr. Nisbet to the Chief
Secretary, which was approved of in general terms by Government, it is said by Mr.
Nisbet, in the close of his 6th paragraph, that—

¢ ¢ The situation of the few claimants in this [Munolee Talooka] are evidently
not the same as those in Chickoree ; and as they profess to have documents in their
possession which they intend to bring forward, it is possible that I may hereafter
have occasion to make a different report of them.’

“ This shows that Mr. Nisbet considered that his investigation into the tenure of the 199
alleged inams in Munolee was still fo be completed ; and the Mahratta records of his
office prove that at a subsequent date, an inquiry into the tenure of the villages, included
in the 2nd accompaniment of his letter to Government above mentioned, was still
pending, though its completion was neglected at the time,* and appears to have been
forgotten afterwards.

“5. In approving of Mr. Nisbet’s arrangements, Government did so only in general
terms, and on the assumption that his report was correct ; but there is nothing on record
which can be construed as a guarantee for the continuance of ary of the villages alluded
to by Mr. Nisbet; much less one held in such a fraudulent manner as Jaleekuttee.

“6. I have, therefore, the honour to submit, as my opinion, that there is nothing 200
io the correspondence sent for my inspection with the Chief Secretary’s letter under
reply, which can reasonably affect the merits of Konher Row's claim to the exchanged
villages, [Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood,] already treated of at length in my
Report [ without number] of the 20th February 1847, and my letters Nos, 549, 579, 585,

and accompaniments.
“J have, &e.”

26. On the 31st March 1852, the Secretary to Governmént addressed to the Inam
Commissioner a letter, No. 2258, from which the following is an extract :—

“ Government deemed it expedient to delay disposing of the case relative to certain
inams of Konher Row Anajee uutil the passing of the proposed law for the adjudica-

tion of claims to such estates.
“9  As the law referred to has now been passed as Act XI. of 1852, I have been 201

Letter from you, No. 589, dated 23rd June directed to return to yon the whole of the cases,

1848, with accompaniments. as per margin, in order that they may be decided

Ditto ditto, No. 590, dated 26th June 1848, by yoy according to that law. Government have
with accompaniments, . .
Ditto ditto, No. 1295, dated 24th Novem- now mothing to do in these cases, except they
ber 1849. come before them in appeal.”
27. One of the cases returned with this letter was that of Konher Row’s claim to

Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood, to which this Recapitulation relates.
W. HART,

Inam Commissioner.
Singhur, 5th April 1852.

¥ * N, B.—Some of the villages have since been resumed, as they were found to have been fradulently
alienated.”
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RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS_, 1
;Q:c. &e.

- 1. Taee Inam Commissioner in the Southern Mahratta Country passed a decision, ng'P- 94
No. 4, dated 14th July 1847, declaring the above villages resumable as khalsat. This ;{_P;,_w.z
* decision was reported for the final orders of Government, which, however, were not -107.
issued, but the case was returned with the above Government letter, for disposal under 2

Act XI. of 1852, which had meanwhile become law. ‘ }}d};piﬁo
2. The circumstances under which the Iram Commissioner determined on the

mode in which this case should now be taken up by him are deseribed in paragraph
2 of his Record of Proceedings closed on the 4th February 1853, in the case of
Konher Row’s claim to the villages Kublapoor, &c. and twenty separate pieces of
land. ‘

3. On the 27th November 1852 the Inam Commissioner addressed to Konher Row
the following letter, No. 1321 :—

*“Sir,~—I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter dated 15th
Mohurrum [29th October 1852], in reply to my Mahratta letter No. 661, dated 23rd 3
September 1852, in which you request me to correspond with yon in the English
language, and promise to send within two months a statement in reply to the requisi-
tion which may be made by me.

«¢2. It appears that in a decree, No. 4, dated I4th July 1847, a copy of which
was duly delivered to you, the Inam Commissioner in the Soathern Mahratta Coun-
try recorded his opinion, that it would be improper to continue to you as hereditary
inam the villages Mouza Mulapoor, Mouza Punjunhuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood,
in the Padshapoor Talooka. |

“3. A copy and translation of the decree in question are annexed.

“4, I beg toinform you that I shall be ready to receive from you, or your autho- 4
rised agent, any statement which you may cause to be presented to me on or before
Tuesday the 25th January 1853, showing reason for reversing or altering the deci-
sion recorded in the above decree, and that I shall on that day, or as soon afterwards’
as practicable, proceed to review the decree, and to uphold, reverse, or modify its
terms, whether or not I receive the statement now requested.

I have the honour, &e.”

4. The English accompaniment to this letter was as {ollows:—

« Translation of Decree of the Inam Commissioner, &c. No. 4 of 1847, in the 5
Belgaum Collectorate.

“ Mouza Mulapoor, Mouza Punjuahuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood, in the Padshapoor
‘Talooka, are now held as inam by Konher Row Anajee, having been made over to
his father, Anajee Nursew, under the directions of Government, contained in a letter
No. 819, dated 19th March 1842, in éxchange for Mouza Jaleekuttee, Muzzra Jewa-
poor, and Muzzra Rayapoor, in Talocka Purusgur. Nothing is said in the above
letter of Goverpment as to the length of time during which the villages then made

w .
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over are to be continued, the order for their transfer Leing altogether indefinite. The

6 Inam Commissioner has, therefore, come to the conclusion, that the claimant's title
to the villages received in exchange from Government must be looked upon as ezactly
the same as the title he may have had to the villages Jaleehutiee, Jeewapoor, and
Rayapoor ; and, having done so, sees the following reasons for rejecting the claim
of Konher Row Anajee to the villages in question, viz:—

“ 1st,—Mouza Jaleekuttee, Muzzra Jeewapoor, and Muzzra Rayapoor, were assign-

ed by the Shunkeshwur Swamee, under a deed declaring them hereditary, to

Anajee Nursew, and another Sowkar, Bapoojee Sudasew Sooktankur, the

latter of whom subsequently gave up his right to Anajee Nursew, who thus

7 obtained the sole possession of the village and its two muzzras from the Swa-
mee. But Government had not given its permission for this transaction.

“ 9nd.—Supposing, however, it were proper to recognise Anajee Nursew’s right
over the villages to be the same as that previously belonging to the Swamee,
the Swamee’s Karbharee, Seewurambhut Latkur, who has been examined,
has deposed that the village Jaleekuttee and its two bamlets were granted to
the Swamee in Raj Abishek Shuk 123, Null Sunwutsur [a. p, 1796-97], by
the Raja of Kolapoor; and in accordance with this Konher Row Anajee has
produced two original letters of the Raja’s, which had come into his possession

8 from the Swamee. But entries in the defturs of the Paishwa's Government,
and that of Kolapoor, show that this grant did not take effect ; and there is
conclusive proof, that up to the close of the Paishwa’s rule, no competent au-
thority ever gave permission for continuing the villages as inam.

 3rd.— After the Paishwa’s fall, Sir Thomas Munro took the Munolee Talooka,
and made it over to the Raja of Kolapoor ; from whom it was afterwards
resumed by the Honorable Company’s Government, in a. p. 1827. The.fact
that in the meanwhile the villages {Jaleekuttee, &c.] were held by the Swamee,
gives him no title to them as Inamdar ; for such title is precluded by the terms

9 of the Treaty concluded between the Honorable Company and the Raja
of Kolapoor.

“ 4th.—From what has been stated in the three preceding paragraphs, it isseen that
at the time when the Shunkeshwur Swamee assigned Jaleekuttee with its
hamlets to Arajee Nursew, he himself had no valid title to it as his inam. This
being the case, Anajee Nursew could not have obtained from him any such
title ; and, therefore, he could not have any valid title as Inamdar to the villages
and hamlet he got in exchange for it.

“ For these reasons, it appears that Government was in no way bound to continue,

as it did, to Anajee Nursew, during his life, the villages Mouza Mulapoor, Mouza

10 Punjunhuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood; and as the Inam Commissioner is of opinion
that it would certainly be improper to continue them to his son, like an hereditary
inam, he decides that the said villages Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood, be
treated as Government khalsat villages.

“This decree will not prevent Konlier Row Anajee, if he thinks proper to do o,
from calling upon the Shunkeshwur Swamee to make good any loss he may have
suffered from the sale to his father, Anajee Nursew, of the villages Mouza Jalee-
kuttee, and its Muzzras Jeewapoor and Rayapoor, as inam, though not truly so.

(Signed)  W. Harr,
* Commissioner.”

11 5. Mr. Dickenson, as Mooktiar appointed by Konher Row to conduct his claims,

has forwarded the following Remonstrance, dated 24th Jan. 1853, agaiost the decision
of the Inam Commlssmner in the Southern Mahratta Country, above set forth :—
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“ The case of Konher Row Anajee Deshponday, respecting his Claim to the Villages.
Mouzas Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Muzzra Yedulgood, in the Padshapoor Talooka.

“ The premises will not justify the conclusion.

“The Commissioner admits in this argument, that if
The Enam Commissioner's ¢y, vernment had in their letter made over the villages i
decree proceeds on the follow- €s 1
ing grounds :— . express terms in per petmty to Konher Row’s father. no |2
The Commissioner consi-
ders, that as these three villages Q0€StiOD could” have arisen respecting the claimant’s right
were received from Govern- to retain hisvillages. It would not be proper now in 1852
ot ",':“:;:: “:f:deﬁ’;v:r e to reinvestigate the title which in 1842.was accepted by
Government by the claimant’s Government as sufficient to warrant their giving an estate
ii':l;"en:‘;iygl:;t}:ﬁ;' m‘fpg‘: in perpetuity in exchange f:or that given up. If they did.
ing the time during which the not in 1842 object to Annajee’s claim to be the owner of
l‘;‘:i“f::t:g::d’mﬁir:?z:e“ﬁ: an heritable estate, they ought not in 1852 [in the absence
title to the villages received ofall fraud in the transaction] to retrace their steps, and
in exchange from Govern- o,p,] (he arrangement. If, instead of land, Government.
ment must be the same as the
title which he may have had had given money as a substitute for the village, they could
:;owt::.:m‘:ll,l:gﬁ given up to p4p ack for a refund of a part of the purchase money be-
cause they paid for an estate in perpetuity, and the vendor 13
had a less estate. But the letter of Government of 31st March 1842 cannot be said.
to be indefinite, in the sense used by the Enam Commissioner. The commencement
of the order distinctly recites that these enam villages, formerly the Swamee’s, were
given by him to Annajee. The first clause calls the three villages given up ‘your
three enam villages’ ; the second most distinctly says that the Government, giving in
enam three mllages in exchange, have directed the Assistant Collector to put you in
possession. There cannot be stronger language used: the three Swamee’s villages
are admitted to have been Aunajee’s enmam villages—not that Annajee had some
limited interest in them. The three new villages are given in enam to Annajee— 14
not for a litnited periud, but as his own, to do with what he likes, without limitation.
It is not a grant by Government as a favour or a benefit, but an exchange—one pro-
perty tuken, another given up. Itis a question of intention what was then under-
stood to be given on the one side and on the other. Annajee was not claiming a
limited interest in the villages, but to be the Enamdar—the absolute owner; and that
title is accepted, and another property is given. Suvppose Annajee hud mortgaged or
sold the villages : would any mortgagee have dreamt, that after Government had once
admitted the villages were his, they would turn round ten years after and say that they 15
were not—that they made a mistake? The case is in no degree altered because the
villageshave not been sold. It is, therefore, confidently submitted, that if Government
had any claim of resumpnon like that now set up by the Enam Commissioner, they
should ‘have made it then : but they then admitted that the Swamee’s villages were
enam ; that they belonged to Annajee. They dealt with him on that footing : they
accepted his title, which was that of a purchaser of an estate in perpetuity from the
Swamee; and to alter now the character of his property would be to do a grievous
injustice. Any person reading the paper of 1342 would have told Annajee: You at 16
all eveuts are safe, whatever other Enamdars may be, for your enam has been recog-
nised, not by a subordinate officer of Government, but by the Government itself.
It must be remembered that the Enam Commissioner is bound to protect the pro-
perty of claimants. Government have obtained an Act quite contrary to the spirit
of all regulativns and statutes for quieting long possessions. They are the judges in
appeal in their own cases; they are the framers of their own law: and instead of ap-
pearing as plaintiffs in a court of law, to oust rights of long standing, and possessions
which all the usual limitations of time would cover, they force the actual possessors 17
of land into the unfavourable pusition of plaintifis. The law is quite unilateral: it is
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véry arbitrary as regards the owners of la.md, who have been in undisturbed posses-
sion for years ; and, therefore, it is, aceordfng to the well known principles of interpret-
ing statutes, to be expounded most strictly, and in no degree to be enlarged and
extended ; and it becomes the duty of the Enam Commissioner to be very careful of the
rights which the Government, after long acq niescence, are seeking to disturh. More-
over, in questions of this nature it is almost essential, in order to prevent gross injustice,

18 to take into consideration the relative positions of the two parties. Government came

jnto their rights, whatever they are, in 1827. Twelve years afterwards, Annajee
purchases the villages from a person who was in possession as recognised Enamdar.
Annajee had no means of seeing the Paiswa’s or Kolapoor dufturs, but was satisfied
by a genuine sunud of the Swamee’s origiunal title ; and it is now eaid, ten years
later, that the Swamee was in possession without any title at all—a mere trespasser,
No court of law would hesitate in declaring, that between parties so situated the
claimant was entitled to most consideration. Moreover, the consequences of an ad-

19 verse decision are so serious to the holder, who has been brought up on the faith of

20

21

22it were proper to recognise

a certain isheritance being his, and has been confirmed in that faith by the conduct
of Government ; and of such little consequence to the Government, who have never
been influenced by the idea that the property now claimed belonged to them, that
the judgment should incline to the former. There can be no doubt how a court of
law would decide if this were a case between individusls; and Government is cer-
tainly not entitled to greater consideration than private individuals, The principles
of law and justice are universal.

“ This objection apears quite untenable. If the villages belong to the Shunkesh-
wur Swamee, he had a full right to sell them. The Go-
vernment, as such, could not interfere, and the permission of
the Government is not necessary for a purchase and sale of
landed property. Without knowing the grounds on which
the Government, ‘or the Enam Commissioner on behalf of
Government, claim a right to have a voice in dealings by
the owner of the property, it is difficult to meet this argument, If the Government
consent were necessary, that would only invalidate the conveyance, and entitle the
seller to get back the property sold; but he conld not do so without repaying the
money he had received for the sale. The Goverament can have no authority to
interfere and seize the property. Moreover, in 1842, it was brought to the notice of
Government that Annajee was the owner by puarchase of the Shunkeshwur Swamee’s
enam villages. They are called the enam villages obtained from the Swamee; and if
they did not then ohject, their right to object, supposing it to have ever existed, has
passed away, and they cannot now avail themselves of it. It is, however, denied that
Government have any power to object to a sale of property by one owner to another.

The Euvam Commissioner
then objects to Annajee’s title
as a purchaser in perpetaity
from the Shookeshwor Swa-
mee, on the ground that Go-
vernment did not give its per-
mission to the sale.

“I feel it difficult to meet this paragraph, as I have not by me the deposition of
the Karbharee Sewram, nor copies of the entries of the
Paishwa’s and Kolapoor dufturs, referred to. These latter

* 2nd.—Supposing, however,

Angjee Nursew's right over

the villages to be the same as
that previously belonging to
the Swamee. The Swamee's
Karbharee, Sewurambhut I.at-
kur, who has been examined,
has deposed that the village
Jaleekuttee and its two hamlets
were granted to the Swamee
in Raj Abishek Shuk 123,
Nuil Sunwatsur [a. . 1796-
97], by the Raja of Kolapoor;
and in accordance Kounher
Row Anajee has produced two

23 original letters of the Raja’s,

entries, if relied on, should, it is submitied, have been set
out in the judgment. The following facts, however, ap-
pear clear : — .

“A sunnud was granted by the Kolapoor Raja ta the
Swamee in A, 0. 1796-97. It is presumed that this sunnud
is admitted to be genuine. The sunnud iiself, the letter to
the village officers, the depositions of Bhavoo Nagojee Desh-
ponday, and of the Dessaye of the Purgunna, of Yadowrow
Nisbut Dessaee, of Jitto Nagojee Deshponday, of Soudra
Tya Roodrapa, of Ramapore Coolkuruece, of Bajee Row
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which had come into his pos-  Ballall, Rugho- Jughnath, and Sukharam Abajee, and of
session from the Swamee. But . . . . P
entrics in the dofturs of the Govind Buallajee, all establish this. Movreover, it is not
Laishwa's Governmeat, and  suggested how the Swamee came into possession, if not
teat of Kolapoor, show that . c ..
this grant did not take effect ; noder a sunnud.  If the sunnud be geauine, it is quite im-
and there is couclusive proof materiul whether in fact possession was had uainterroptedly
that ap to the close of the . v Pr )
Prishwn's rule no competent under it or not. The districts of Chickoree and Munowlee
suthority ever gave permission * {in the latter of which these villages are situate] seem
f::;r:‘_’,?“““mg the villages 23 ¢, have becn the subject of much dispute and fighting.
These were, I believe, part of the territory of Kolapoor,
and by Treaty, Ist Qctober 1812, between the British Goverament, the Paishwa,
and the Raju of Kolapoer, they were made over to the Peishwa. By the Treaty
between the British Government sud the Raja of Kolapoor, of 24th January 1826, 24
Article 4, they are said to have been transferred by a sunaud from Sir Thomas
Muaro to the Raja of Kolapoor, and are confirmed to the Raja, who isto observe the
rights of all Enamders; and by the Treatics of 5th November 1827, Artiele*2, and
15tk November 1829, Article 2, they are resumed by the British Government. The
question to determine is, whether in 1796 the Kolapoor Raja was the sovereign of
these districts, and whether his sunnud is a genuine one. It would be a gross act of
injustice in the British Government, succeeding to the Reja of Kolapoor’s territory, to
annul rights created by the Ruja during hissovereignty, and recognised by him. The 25
present argument is addressed to the 3rd paragraph of the Enam Commissioner’s
judgment; but I do not waive my right as against the British Government of con-
tending, that even if the title derived from the’ Kolapoor Raja were questionable, it is
competent for the British Government, after what has passed, to oust a person who
has had undisturbed possession for so long. Suppose the question were now between
the Kolapoor Raja and the Swumee, could the Kolapoor Raja, in the face of his sun-
vud, resume the enam ? If he could uot in justice do so, it must be shown that
the British Government have a larger claim than the Raja, to whom they succeeded. 26
By the Treaty of Jannary 1826, the Kolapoor Raja was bound to respect the Swamee’s
rights as an Enamdar, It must be shown by the British Government why the
obligation does not pass to them with the resumption of the districts. The
British Goverament did not surely dictate a rule of equity to the Kolapoor
Raja which they will not carry out themselves? It appears that the Nepaun-
kur, a dependent of the Paishwa’s, had seized the district of Munowlee, and
documents are produced, one frorn Linge Mulbar, the Mamlutdar of the Nepauu-
kur, one from Ramchunder Mulbar, Mamlutdar of Munowlee, to the village 27
vificers, and two from the sawe person to the Swamee. The Enam Commis-
sioner does not state his opinion as to the genuineness of these documents. I
may, therefore, assume that their genuineness is admitted. These prove, that when
the Nepaunkur got possession of Munowlee, and harrassed the Swamee, he appeuled
to the Peishwa, and obruined redress. It is eontended, that whether redress was
obtasined or uot is immaterial.  The fact that the Swamee claimed to be an Enamdar,
under a sunnud from the Kolapoor Raja, is the only question of importance. The
district of Muuowlee passed under various suceessive sovereignties—the Raja of
Kolapoor; the Paishwa; the Raja of Kolapoor; and the British Government. Each 28
suvereign in succession was competent to grant enams in perpetuity : the Peishwa, or
Liis servant the Nepauukur, might disregard one grauted by the Kulapoor Raja. The
Nepauvkur, iv fact, took forcible possession of Munowlee. But, be: this as it may :
though a Native despotic Government might disregard all grants of this nature found
existing at the time it succeeded by conquest tu a_territory, this principle cannot be
recoguised as just.  But the Paishwa's Government suceeeded under treaty, to which
the British Government was a party, aud could not so disregard a vested right ;
but even if the Peishwa's Government distegarded a sunnud from the Raja of
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29 Kolapoor, which it iz contended on the evidence it did not, when in 182§ the territory
reverted to the Kolapoor Raja, he could not repadiate his own sunnud of 1796,
and it is immaterial whether in 1796 the Kolapoor Raja had or had not the right to
grant the sunund, In 1826 he had the districts in full sovereiguty [Article 4 of
Treaty of 24th Junuary 1826], and this would alone give validity to a grant made
Dy bim or his ancestor in 1796. It is, therefore, contended, that if the sunnud of
of 1796 is genuine, the title of the Enamdar is clear and indisputable, The expres-
sion used by the Enam Cominissiouer at the end of parageaph 2, that no competent

30 authority gave permission for continuing the villages as enamn, scems to admit that
they were originally competently granted, but the possession iuterrupted, Thatthere
was some interruption was most likely, from the state of the conntry; that 1t was
short, is proved by the witnesses; and that the possession existed at the time when
the British Government ohtained possession of the territory, and has continued siuce
that period uninterruptedly, are circumstances which ought not to be set aside, unless
a strog case is made against the claimant,

*  This seems to admit, that during the period of the Kolapoor Rajua’s possession,
¢ 3y After the Paishwa's between 1825 and 1827, the Swamee had possession as

31 fall, Sir Thomas Munro took Lnamdar,
the Munolee Talooka, andmade N . . ¢ 1
it over to the Raja of Kolapoor; . . The language of the "Preaty o_f 1827 here referred to is,
from whom it was afterwards it 18 presumed, that of Article 2, viz:—* It therefore becomes
resumed by the Honorable pecessary that His Highness should give back to the Bri-
Company's Governmentina.n. . °. g ;

1827, The fact that in the tiSh Government the said talookas [those of Chickoree and
meauwhile the villages [Ja- Munowlee] in the same state in which he received them,
leekuttee, &ec.] were held by . . s
the Swamee, gives him no tiie a0d His Highness hereby agrees to do so’; and the same
to them as Inamdar, for such language is used in the Treaty of 15th January 1829. It
title is precluded by the terms . ‘missi
of the Treaty concluded be- 1S Supposed that the Enam Commissioner contends that
tween the Honorable Company  this language would preclude an Enamdar, to whom the
and the Raja of Kolapoor.” . . . .
Kolapoor Ruja bad granted a sunnud during his short
sovereignty, between 1825 and 1827, from maiataining his grant against the Bri-

32 tish Government. The present case does not fall within the category; for the
Enamdar’s sunnud dates from a preceding sovereignty, that of 1796. But admitting,
for the sake of argument, that a sunnnd was granted by the Kolapoor Raja in 1826 :
such a grant was an exercise of his full sovereignty under the Treaty of 1826, and
could not be affected by a unew arrangement between the Kolapoor Ruja and the
British Governmneut in 1827. The Evamdar has certain rights, and, being no party
to that arrangement, is unaffected by it. But the object of the Treaty of 1827 is just
the reverse of the use to which the Enam Commissioner applies it. It recites, that

33 althnugh the Kolapoor Raja had enguged to respect the rights of the Zumeendars,
Enamdars, and Wuttundars, he had not done so; and the object of the language is
to ensure to the Zumeendars, Euamdars, and Wuttundars their previousvrights,
The British Government were actuated with a wish, not to repudiate rights legiti-
mately conferred, but to re-establish rights which had been interfered with arbitrarily
aud illegally, except that in a despotic Goverument thefe is no illegality in any arbi-
trary act of the prince. It is surely unjust to the Government, aund the principles on
which they have acted, to wrest the couservative language of the Treaty into a'des-
truetion of riehts legitimately created,

34 “Butin tlie circumstauces attending the transfer in 1827 to the British Govern-
ment of the districts of Cliickoree and Munowlee, there is the strongest evidence to
show not ouly the pmpl_'if_-ty of the claim made by Konlier Row, but the injustice of
the Government in seeking tow to resume the Swamee's enams.  Mr. Nisbet, on the
occasion of resuming the districts, demaunded a list of the villages, and a list was
accordingly framed, which showed that several of the villages of the Munowlee

districts, which previously to the trausfer to Kolapoor in 1825 had not been granted.
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in enam, had been so granted. This list showed eighteen viIIageé belonging to the
Government, and seventeen belonging to Enamdars, including the village of Jalee- 33
kuttee, belonging to the Swamee. To this list Mr. Nisbet objected by his letter
dated 31st of October 1827, and he demanded a list with the same number of villages
as were delivered to the Kolapoor Raja, and a new list was accordingly framed, con-
taining thirty-nine villages, as those to be given over to Government; but this list
does not contain the village of Jaleeku.t;tee, thus proving incontestably that that
village wus not considered to be made over to the British Government.

* It would not be necessary to notice this paragraph, were it not that the doctrine
thercin laid down is not sound.

*“4¢h.-—From what has been “It by no means follows, that becanse A has not a good 36

stated in the three preceding

parngraphs, it is seen,that at the
time whea the Shuakeshwur
Swamee assigned Jaleckuttee
with its hamlets to Anajee
Nursew, he himself had no valid
title to it as his inam. This
being the case, Anajee Nursew
could not have obtained from
him any such title, and there-
tore he conid not have any valid

title to land belonging to C, he cannot transfer a good title
to B. There is a very large class of cases where titles to
property had in the hand of one person lecome good in
the hands of a transferer for a valuable consideration who
has not notice of the defect; and there is another class of
cases, where persons, having rights to property, allow other

-persons to appear before the world as owners, and transfer

title as Inamdar to the villages
and hamlet he got in exchange
for it.”

the ownership, they are not at liberty afterwards to assert
those rights. The last doctrine is peculiarly applicable to
“the present case. The Government find the Swamee in pos-
session as Enamdar in 1827, and leave him in nndisturbed possession till 1839. In 1839 37
Annajee purchases the title, and still the Government make no objection. Further,
in 1842, Annajee’s title as a purchaser from the Swamee, and as the owner in enam of
the villages, is formally brought to the notice of Government, and not only not objected
to, but Government deal with him as the owner, and effect an exchange of villages.
There is nothing concealed in this. I understand that the proposed purchase was
mentioned to the Political Agent, Mr. Dunlop, and a letter.was written, asking for a
stamp for this avowed purpose, and this letter will probably be on the dufturs of the
Political Agent. [I would suggest inquiry being made on this point.] Yet now, in 38
1852, a person who can show an undisturbed possession for at least a quarter ofa
century ; who, with the tacit sanction of Governmeunt authority, has purchased the
property for a large sum of money ; who has actually submitted his title to Govern-
ment, and Government have accepted it, and taken the property so purchased in
exchange for Government villages —is to be ousted out of his possession at the suit of
Government, who now for the first time discover their long unknowan rights.  Yet no
new facts are now elicited that were not better known in 1827. And if Govern-
ment in 1827 accept from the Kolapoor -Raja the Munowlee district, without the
village“of Jaleekuttee, what right have they now to seek to aggrandize themselves at 39
Konher Row’s espense? This is no case of fraud, of concealment of facts, noviler
perventa.  The village of Jaleekuttee was a matter of inquiry with Mr. Nislet in
1327., There were enams then improperly claimed and disallowed : those which
were not then disallowed must now in all reasou and fairness be deemed to have been
then cunsidered unassailable. Tt was again the subject of inquiry in 1842, and the
Eunamdar’s title admitted aud acted on.

“ This paragraph, again, searcely calls for comment, but for the assamption it con-
taing, that Government have exercised something of dowi- 40
nion aver the property. If it could be shown that the claim-
ants had asked a favour of Government, or that Govern-
ment had granted permission for a certain limited occupa-
tion, much of the ground of my argument would be taken

“ For these reasons, it ap-
pears that Government was in
uo way bound to continue, as
it did, to Annjee Nuvsew, dur-
inzr his life, the villames Mouza
Mulapoor, Mouza Punjunhut-
tes, and Muzra Yedulgood;



4

—

43

and as the Inam Commissioner
is of opinion that it would
certpinly be impreper to con-
tinue them to his son, like an
hereditary inam, he decides
that the said villages Mulapoor,
Punjuubuttee, and Yedulgood,
be ~treated as Government
khalsat villoges.”
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away. ~ But it is denied that Government have continued
the property to Annajee Punt during his life. This was
no act of Government. Itis a misupplication of terms to
apply this language to a possession which has been
adverse to Government, and founded, not on any favour of
Government, but on a certain title. The pussession assert-
ed throughout has been that of an independent proprietor

of hereditary property, and the relative position of Government is one admitting the

validity of that claim.

“The reservation of this clause proves that the Enam Commissioner fecls that in-

“This decree will not pre-
vent Konker Row Anajee, if he
thinks proper to do so, from
calling upon the Shunkeshwur
Swamee to make good any loes
he may hayve suffered from the
sale to his father Avajee Nur-
sew of the villages Mouza Ja-
Jeekuttee, and its Muozzras Jee-
wapoor and Rayapoor, asinam,

justice will, under the circumstances, be perpetrated to the
claimant. Were the doctrine correct that Konher Row
could recover his purchase money from the Swamee, it
would not assist much in forming a correct conclusion in
this case; for the question of injustice in calling upon the
Swamee to refund the payment would still arvise. Itisa
very important element in discussing the rights of the
Government, and will be found to illustrate my argumeunts

though not really so0.” . :
° on the 4th paragraph., The Commissioner, however, is wrong

in saying that Konher Row can get back his purchase money. It canunot be contended
that any deceit was practised on him. The Swamee was in possession recognised undis-
puted. He produced his title deeds, which showed, so faras a purchaser could judge,
an unimpeachuble title. Could a purchaser demand more? I apprehend not. A for-
mal deed is drawn out; the transfer of possession is made; Government make no
objection ; and it is impossible now to show any flaw in the title, except that during
distorbed political times the possession was interrupted, and the Paishwa and Kolapoor
Raja’s dufturs, it is said, contain entries antagonistic to the title, These dulturs
were not accessible to either the Swamee or the purcliaser: the Governmeat have
hag the custody, and might, with moderate diligence, have found out their rights loug
ere this. The principle of caveat emptor applies, and Kouher Row, if he lvses his
enam, can have little prospect of getting his money. Besides, the Swamee is dead,
the purchase money spent, and the Swamee of the present day would scareely
acknowledge the right of Annajee’s heir upon the Suwusthan for the purchase
money. This is surely a grievous injustice; and were the rights of Government
clear, they could not with any propriety be enforced at soch a private sacrifice. But

44 it is confidently hoped that the Enam Commissioner will not now confiscate rights

consecrated by long and undisturbed possession, and acknowledged by Government,
and which cannot be disregarded withont subverting those principles of jostice ou
which the laws of property are founded.

“Itis also respectfully suggested, thatin deciding on this case, the Commissioner
will distinetly dispose of the different puints of defence raised, with the reasous for lis
decision at large, in order that, in the event of an appeal to Governinent becoming
necessary, the questions at issue may be distincily raised,

“ 8, 8. Dickensox,

¢ Mooktiar of Konher Row.

(Signed)

“ Bombay, January 24th, 1853,”

45 6. The Inam. Commissioner, ohserving that in this Remonstrance allusion was
- made to a2 “ Goverpment lester” not among his records, addressed to Mr. Dickenson

the following letter, No. 1633, dated 25th Junuary 1853 : —
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' Sir,~-With reference to the words quoted in the margin, from the paper dated
24th current, drawn up by you, regarding Konher Row

“ But the letter of Govern-  Anpajee’s cluim to Mouza Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, &e., [
:;n;eo:a‘; lﬂt&]\:_a:: 1842 can- 1 .ve the honour to request that you will kindly inform me
to what letter you allude, the only one of the date in ques-

tion recorded in the case being one addressed by Mr. Reeves to the late Anajee Nursew.
o “J have, &c.”
7. The following is Mr. Dickenson’s reply, dated 28th January 1853 :— 46

“* Sir,—I have the honour to acknowledge your letter No. 1633, of the 25th Janu-
ary 1853, and to state in reply, that the letter alluded toin my observations as
‘the letter of Government of 31st March 1842’ is the letter from Mr. Reeves, the
Acting Collector and Political Agent, of that date,

“2. Yourinquiry would seem to imply that the letter above alluded to is wrongly
- designated as a Government letter. 1am labouring under a most serious disadvan-
tage in conducting Konher Row’s case, because not only is the court instituted for
the trial of the case interested in deciding it against one party, the Enamdar, {for the 47
first tribunal is an officer subject to Government, and the ultimate tribunal on appeal
is Government, itself the other party in the cause,] but no distinct and acknowledged
grounds are put forward on the part of the Government which the Enamdar, whose
possession is to be disturbed, has to meet. lo all judicial inquiries, it is of the very
essence of justice, that certain distinct issues should be raised between the litigant
parties, so that evidence and argument may be applied to those and those alone. The
very reverse of this occurs in this species of inquiry. No defence or pleas are set up
by Government fur seeking to dispossess an Enamdar of his long enjoyed possessions, 48
and thus the Enam Cummissioner, instead of being in the position of an impartial
Judge, is almost necessarily forced into the position of an advocate attacking the weak
parts of the opposite party’s case, and yet putting forward no distinct case of his
own. Thus, ifitis implied that Mr. Reeves’ letter is not binding on Government,
if Government were on the record, as they are iu reality, and interested parties to the
suit, they could not put forward such a defence without subjecting themselves to all
the odium which attaches to a repudiation of authority exercised with their know-
ledge, and acquiesced in for years without observation, aud only repudiuted to advance 49
their own interests. And if a dependent should eseape observation from the judge
for urging such a plea, he would still feel the restruint of public comment. 1 am
obliged to give some significance to your inquiry respecting my designation of the
Jetter, and I contend that I have designated it according to its legal effect: I consider
a letter from a Collector acting under Government, within the scope of his official
duties, as a letter of Government: acts of agents are properly designated those of their
principals, when discussious arise between third parties affected Ly thuse acts and the
principal. The agency is the medium of proof. 1f 1 produce a letter from the Col-
lector, it proves my case primd facie, and it throws on Guverament the necessity of 50
showing that the letter was written without authority ; that it was never placed on the
(zovernment records ; that it was at once repudiated by Government when it came
to their notice ; that they never allowed their officer to hold himself unt to the world as
having the authority which lie assumed, &e. Now none of these things can be assumed
Tespecting the act of Mr. Reeves. But Mr. Reeves' letter shows that Annajee
petitioned Government on the subjeet, and that Government had issued certain orders
.to Mr. Reeves, dated 19th March 1842. Now Annajee could not demand jnspection
of the letter from Government to Mr. Reeves. The formal answer made by Govern- 51
meunt to Angajee on bhis petition would be to refer him to Mr. Reeves for his answer,
and that alone would render Mr. Reeves’ act binding on Governmeunt. The position
relied on by me, and one which I would submit with confidence to any judicial
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_tribunal, is this—that if, in 1842, Govérnment through its agents inquired into and
accepted Annajee’s title to the three villages ; or if, with the means of inquiry at their
disposal, they thought proper to accept it without ingniring, [in the abseace of fraudu-
lent and false representations by Annajee, which would of course vitiate that as it

92 would any other transaction,] the Government are not competent in 1852 to object
to that title, and repudiate the transaction. That if they had paid money they could
not now recover it back as paid without consideration; and if they give any other
property instead of money they are equally bound.

“3. I request that this may be considered as supplementary to my former
observations.

“I have, &e.”

8. Having taken into consideration the whole of the papers recorded throughout
the investigation of Konher Row’s claim to the villages Mulapoor, Punjunhattee, and
Yedulgood, the Inam Commissioner records, with especial reference ty the Remon-
strance of 24th January 1853, and its continuation of the 28th idem, the following

53 Minute, containing his final finding and judgment in the case :—

Minvure.

I. In this case the remonstrant fonnds the first and principal branch of his -
remonstrance on the argument that as Government, in a. p. 1842, gave the villages
Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood, in exchange for a village [Juleekattee] and
muzzras, held as inam by Anajee Nursew, it is now bound to cousider these villages
as irrevocably the hereditary and absolute inam property of the heirs and representa-
tives of Anajee Punt; and that to disturb their pussession of them, on the grounds of

.54 previous want of good title to the village given to Goverament in exchange, would
at this distance of time be iniguitous.

. 41. Tam of opinion, that as Anajee Nursew in the first place bought Jaleekuttee
'.wnhoul: any guarantee from Government; asthe transaction of exchan ging it after-
REN .-wards for, those assigned to him in lieu of it was one which was made on r.he express

¥ '.,grounds of convenience of situation, and on these grounds only; and as the question

of title was never mooted by Government; all that Government is bound to do [in

the absence of some special guarantee of better tenure), is to regard the villages given

53 by it in exchange as assigned on the tenure which might rightly belong to that laken

in.exchange, and subject to the resnlt of iuquiry regardmo' tenure to the same extent

as the villages given in exchange would have been subject had the exchange not
taken place.

1II. The remonstrant asserts that there is a positive gnarantee of tenure in what he
designates the * letter of Governwment of 31st March 1842, but which Mr. Dicken-
gon, in his letter of the 23th January 1853, explains to be a letter addressed by
Mr. Reeves, the Acting Collector of Belgaum, to Anajee Nursew. The remonstrant

argues, that . dccurdmtr to the general maxims relating to principal and agent, this

56 lettc-r ought to be luoked upon as a letter of Government; but, as it appears to me

that. to adlmt that Guverament is debarred from rectifying mistakes or abuse of

authority on the part of its servants would be unreasonable, I could not agree to the

remonstraut’s argument on this puint, even were it to appear, as 1 do not think it does,

that the Acting Collector’s letter to Anujee Punt could be interpreted so as to gua-
rantee absolute title.

IV. None of the correspondence between Government and the Collector of Bel-
gaum, which is on record in the office of the latter, contains anything to show that

97 Government was aware of the eircumstances under which Anajee Punt became pos-
sessed of the village Jaleekuttee. The following are the 5th question and answer
in the claimant’s kyfeeut ;:—
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« Question ¥V.—Your father got these villages, Mulapoor, Pu-junhuttee,
and Yedulgood, in Talooka Padshapoor, in exchange for Mouza Jaleekuttee,
with Jeewapoor, &c. in Talooka Purusgur. The Commxsswn is in possession
of abundance of documentary evidence, showing that Government assented to
this exchange. Bat it doues not appear from this that Government was aware of
how the villages in Purusgur [Jaleekuttee, &c.] came into your father’s pos- 58
session. If, therefore, amongsethe Government orders and other documents
which you may possess, relutive to the exchange, there be any document to
show, that when Government assented to the transaction it did so with a clear
knowledge of the maoner in which your father obtained the villages in
Purusgur, produce such document ?

“ Answer V.-—The villages Jaleckuttee, and its Muzzras Jeewapoor and
Rayapoor, were sold 'as inam to my father by the Swamee of the.Mutt of
Suwusthan Kurveer. When thisinam was taken by Government in exchange
for Mulapoor, &c., Mr. Reeves, the Collector and Political Agent Southern 59
Mabhratta Country, adlressed to my father an inam puttr, dated 21st March
A. p. 1842, which I now present. From this it appears that Government was
aware that Jaleckurtee, &c. came into my father’s possession from the Swamee.”

V. The following is the purport of Mr. Reeves’ * inam puttr,” here appealed to
by the claimant :—

*“To Anajee Punt Ana, Desh pandey of Turuf Ankulgee, ic Talooka Padsha-
poor, from Henry Wilson Reeves, Esquire, Acting Collector and Political
Agent in Zilla Belgaum. [After compliments.] You have made a petition
to Government, that the Sirkar would be pleased to take possession of the 63
three -villages given to you by the Shree Swamee, viz. Mouza Jaleckurtee,
Muzzra Jeewapoor, and Rayapoor, and would give you in exchange for them
the three villages Mouza Mulapoor, Muzzra Yedulgood, and Panjunhuttee, in
the Padshapour Talooka. Government has been kiudly pleased to accede.to.
your request, and, having made an exawmination of the totals [of revenue], has‘
issued an order, No. 819, dated 19th Marech 1842, to effect the exclmnge
offered by you. In consequence of the receipt of this order, [ now write to’
yau as follows ;v

“1. Itis necessary that you give up to the Mamlutdar of Talooka 61
Purusgur, posssession of your three inam villages Jaleckuttee, Jeewapoor,
and Rayapoor.

“2. A separate yad has been written to Mr. Mansfield, the Acting
2nd Assistant Collector, desiring him to give you as inam, in exchange.
for the said villages, and to muke over into your possession, the villages
Mdtza Mulapoor, Muzzra Yedulgood, and Punjunhustee. You will
accordingly receive posscssion ot them.

“3. The villages to be given in exchange appear, from the ac-
counts, to produce a revenue in- excess of what you have  a right to of
Rs. 177-11-9, to which sum, therefore, Government has a rizht, and to
this you have agreed. You are, therefore, tv pay each year into the 62

Government tressury the above snm of Rs. 177-11-9.

“4. The villages you are now to receive were already given in farm
from Fuslee 1248 uotil 1257 [a. p. 1838-39 until 1847-48]. Of them
you hold two, and one, viz. Muldpoor, is in farm with Seenapa Naik,
Sahookar of Dharwar. This last village youn are to continue to him, as
agreed by Government, until the expirativn of the lease.

“5. You are to pay up with all speed the balance dne to Government.
for the present year on account of the said village [Mulapoor], and yoa
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are to collect what revenue may be due to you on accouat of the current

year in the villages yoa yourself have been holding [names not mentioned).
63 A yad has been written to the Assistant Collector, to examine and report

on the outstanding balances, should any such be due from the villages.

“G. The villiges now given to you are subject to the Regulations of
Government, according to which their management, both ecivil and
criminal, is to continue. What more can I write? Dated 31st March
A. p. 1842, Fuslee 1231, Shuk 1763, Plava Sunwutsur, the 5th of

Falgoon Wudh, Thursday, at Belgaum.

(Signed) “ Huwmunt Row, (Signed) “H. W. Reeves,
* Native Agent,” “A.P. Agent.”

VI. The part of this document which the claimant wishes to be tuken as proof
that Government was aware that Jaleekuttee, &c. had come into his father's possession
64 from the Swamee, is the expression in the introductory paragraph * the villages given
to you by the Shree Swamee.” But it is to be observed that this expression is not in
reality used as coming from Government, but from the claimant’s father, and is merely
recited as part of his petition. To regard this phrase in Mr. Reeves’ letter to Anajee
Punt as proof that Government recognised the transaction by which the latter became
possessed of Jaleekuttee, &e. would be as unreasonable as to look on another sentence
63 in the letter [in ils use of the phrase Shree] as an official recognition of the divinity
of the Shuukeshwur Swamee. Moreover, it appears from a reference to the corres-
pondence which took place between Government and the Collector of Belgaum, that
when Anajee Punt’s request was laid before (Government, nothing was written by
which Government could have discovered how the villages which he wished to
exchange had come intu his possession. ‘

VII. The use of the word “inam” by Mr. Reeves in his Mahratta letter proves
nothing, as all rent-free lands, whatever their real tenure, have for years past been
commonly designated as inam. Even before the framing of Schedule C of Regula-

66 tiou L. of 1823, this word had become of such loose siguification, that it was considered
unfit to be used in that Schedule as a definition of tenure.

VIIL. So far from my being able to agree with the remonstrant that his title to
the villagesin Purusgur [Jaleekuttee, Jeewapoor,] was submitted to Government in
1842, the correspondence on record leads me to a contrary belief, viz. that the
exchange was made without knowledge of, and without reference to Anajee Nursew’s
title to Jaleekuttee, &c., and without prejudice to the right of Government to here-
after inquire into it. And that Anajee Nursew or his son, if in possession of Jalee-

67 kuttee [or what was assigned in lieu of Jaleekuttee), a village which ought properly
to be a khalsat villuge, is not ousted until 1847, instead of, as he might have been, in
1839, does not seem a hardship, but the reverse, as he has got eight years’ revenue by
the delay.

1X. This is, of course, supposing the village Jaleekuttee to have been properly a
khalsat oune, a fact which is denied by the remonstrant, and which it will be necessary
to dispuse of in noticiug a further division of his defenc .

X. But before leaving the first ground of defence, I wish to notice very briefly
the remonstrant’s observations on. the constitution of the Inam Cummission, and the

68 law by which it is guided: The grievanee put forward, that Governmeant is the tribu-
nal to decide cases in which itself is interested, is, 1 thiuk, a mere fallacy. Neither
Government nor any of its officers can have any persoual gain or interest in declaring
an alleged inam khalsat ; whereas every member of Guvernment, and every one of its
servants, has a strong personal interest in avoiding any decision by which his cha-
racter for fairness and liberality could be damaged. To apply, tueiefore, to the Inam
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Commission thie objection that Government, as an interested party, ought not to be
a judge in its own causé, however plausible as an outery, is, in point of fact, a mis- gy
application of terms.

XI. So, with regard to the remonstrant’s alleged hardship of being forced into
the unfavourable position of a plaintiff, the provisions of Act XL of 1852, which
uphold the principle that the assertions of an apparent Inamdar in possession are to be
believed until disproved, in reality place *all Inamdars, though called « claimants,””
in the most favourable position they could occupy.

XIL' There are two other facts, also, which, without enlarging on, I may as well
briefly notice here, lest, in any further review of this case by superior authomy, they
should come under discussion :— 70

Ist.—The Bombay Government has been, since the enactment of Section LIX.

‘of the Charter Act of 1833, expressly disqualified from making grants of
even temporary charges on the revenues of the country, much. more from
alienating them in perpetuity, which it would have done had it intentionally
given away in perpetuity, in exchange for others really the property of the
State, the villages now claimed by Kooher Row as grants in perpetuity.

2nd.— Government is bound to rectify any errors of its owa, or abuses on the p'art

of its servants, whenever detected, without respect to persons. The Govera- 71
ment of the country has always proceeded on this principle; and it would be
dangerous to depart from it, except where we can find any written law to
justify Government in so doing.

XI1II. The remoastrant’s observations on that part of the Inam Commissioner’s
decision which holds, that as Governmeat did not give its permission to the sale by
the Shunkeshwur Swamee, it is not therefore bound by it, are inconsequent; as it is
not pretended in that decision that Government has any desire to interfere with pri-
vate dealings; only that, not bhaving been a party to them, it is not bound to waive 72
its right, should it find that a village really the property of the State has been the
subject of such dealings.

XIV. With regard to the st of the facts set forth by the remonstrant in his
observations on the 2nd clause of the decision of 1847, I have assumed that the docu-
ments produced as the Kolapoor Raja’s sunnud and takeed of 1796-97 are genuine ;
but, if sv, they must have been issued during a temporary invasion of the Munolee
Talooka ; and a subsequent sunnud, proved to have been issued by the same Raja in
A. D. 1818-19, shows that the previous grant had not taken effect up to that year. A
copy of this sunnud was obtained from one Sumbhajee Seewajee, Coolkurnee of Jalee- 73
kuttee, and its authenticity has been proved by a reference to the State records at
Kolapoor. Its purport is as follows :—

“ To Venkutrow Nuluwaree, Havaldar, and Dinkur Apajee, Soobha of Muno-
lee, the following order is issued:—Although it was formerly agreed that Mouza
Jaleekuttee, in Purgunna Moorgod, should be given to the Swamee of the
Mautt in Suwusthan Kurveer, and although a sunuud was issued, it bas been
brought to my notice that the village has not as yet been made over into the
possession of the Swamee. Wherefore this adnya puttr [order] is issned, that
you may make over the village to any one who may come to receive it on the 74
part of the Swamee, and send his receipt to the Hoozoor. The Swamee is
about to visit Juleekuttee: make every endeavour to give aver the village,
and send the receipt for it to the Hoozoor before hisarrival. Observe this, 6th
of Rujjub, in Soorsun Teesa Ashur Meiatain and Alif [a. p. 1818-19]). What

. more can be writtea 7”

It was, I am of opinion, under this sunnud, and not under that of a. », 1796-97,
however genuine it may be, that the Shunkeshwur Swamee got possession of Jalee-
kuttee.



75

76

77

78

79

80

81

1 178 ]

XV. I cannot agree with the remonstrant, that “if the sunnud be genuine, it is
quite immaterial whether, in fact, podsession was kad unitftefi'up_tedl y under it.” [
judge that it is necessary that the sunnud, to be now recognisable as a valid title deed,
should have been issued or recognised by competent authority, and that it should
not have been subsequently annulled. The Paishwa’s accounts show that any
sunnud which may have been issued by the Kolapoor Raja in a. p. 1796-97, for the
alienation as inam of Jaleekuttee, was annulled, by the village being recognised only
as khalsat by the Paishwa, when he was both de facto and de jure undisputed
Sovereign of Munolee. It was so entered in all accounts relating to it up to theclose
of his administration in A. 0. 1817-18.

XVI. The remonstrant argues that as the Kolapoor Raja held Munolee between
A. p. 1817-18 and 1827, in full sovereigaty, his grants and recognitions of--grants
during that period must e respected ; and he is of opinion that the decision agsinst
which he remonstrates is erroneous, in holding that the clatse in the Treaty by which
Munolee was resumed in the same condition as when made over to the Raja, in itself
annuls all grants [as well as all resumptions] made in the mean time by the Raja.
But this argument is the result of a want of acquaintance with the transactions of the
period, and with the Government interpretation No. 1390, dated 15th February 1851.
There never was any other meaning assigned to the clause in question than that
assigned to it in the disputed decree. The records of 1827 show, that when Mr.
Nisbet went to Kolapoor with the military force sent to bring the Raja to terms, the
latter attempted to evade the provisions of the 2nd Article of the Treaty of Octo-
ber 1827, by making over the Talookas of Munolee, &c. exclusive of the inams, &,
he himself had granted. His order to his Mamlutdars of Munolee for doing so, has
been found registered in the Kolapoor duftur of the 10th Rubbee-ool-Akhir [1st No-
vember 1827], as follows, the Raja having previously sent to the Political Agent notes
of relinquishment for the villages to which this order applies :—

“ To Venkutrow Nuluwaree, Havaldar, and Antajee Rughoonath, Soobha
Munolee.

“ Having excepted the inams granted from the Hoozoor to the holders of
Dewusthans, Dhurmadows, and to Inamdars and Surinjamdars, all the rest of
the villages in the said soobha which are under your management are assign-
ed to the English. A separate list is herewith sent, according towhich you are
to make over the villages and Munolee.” .

It is true that in the list which accompanied ¢kis order, Mouza Jaleekuttee was nof
entered; but this fact by no means supports Konher Row’s assertions that it must
therefore be looked upon as original inam; for from this list all grants made by the
Raja, up to its date, were excluded. Be this as it may, however, the Political Agent
refused to receive the talovka on these terms, and it was to intimate this refusal that
he wrote the letter to the Raja said to be of the 31st October 1827, alluded to by the
remounstrant, the registry of which has been found in the Agent’s outward letter book,
also under date 1st November 1827, as follows :—

“In the yad of agreement [Treaty] entered into by us on the 23rd of
October, it was agreed that the Talookas of Chikodee and Munolee should be
given back to the Company’s Government, of the same extent as when they
were given by the latter to the Maharaja. Bat the sor chittees [notes of relin-
quishment] which have been received exclude some villages granted to various
persons, and apply only to the rest. Such sor chittees cagnot be received by
the Company’s Government ; wherefore those now sent are returned to the
Maharaja’s Vakeel. It is necessary that sor chittees should be sent for all the
villages which were made over by the Company’s Government.”

The above letter seems to have been written on the night of the 31st October, and
is, as I have noted, registered in the registry of the next day, on which day also a
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sccond letter svas written by the Pohncal Agéut, addressed to the Rajas Vakeel,

pressnw for the re(Lulsrie sor chittees. The consequence of this was, that on the next
day, viz. the 11th of Rubbee-ool-Akhir [20d November 1827], the Raja issued fresh
orders, the registries of which have been found in the Kolapoor duftur, ordering the
delivery of the talookas, without any reservation, to the Company’s officers. A list of
the villages to be made over accompanied this order also, and two copies of this list, 82
which have been found in the Political Awent’s duoftur, show that it included Mouza
Jaleekuttee. The remonstrant’s information on this point is evidently defective, as he
asserts the contrary.

XVII. The above paragraphs apply to the.remonstrant’s observations on the
first three divisions of the decree against which he remonstrates. With regard to his
strictureg on the fourth division, I am of opinion, that considering thaf the alleged
knowledge of, or consent to the Swamee’s transfer, did not exist on the part of
Government, [and I can find no reason for believing that it did, but the contrary,] the 83
principle that Anajee Nursew could not buy = better title than the Swamee had to
sell to him is the only one which can be recognised as just. ‘

XVIIL. There are several statements in this part of Konher Row’s remonstrance,
[that relating to the fourth clause of decision,] which are evidently the consequence
of his not having correctly instructed his Mooktiar. Some of these I have noticed
above, some I have not. I shall briefly correct those which strike me as of any
importance :~-

Government did not receive the Munolee Talooka from the Raja of Kolapoor in

1827, exclusive of Jaleekuttee. '

Mr. Nisbet did not finally admit the Swamee’s title in A. p. 1827, por did 84

Government.
Government did not sanction the Swamee’s sale of the villages in 1839.
Government did not admit Anajee Punt’s title as a purchaser from the Swamee
in 1842, nor has it ever *“ accepted” it as more than that of holder.
~ His title “ as owner,” if by owner we understand Inamdar, was not investigated
in 1842,
XIX. With regard to the notice of Anajee Nursew’s purchase from the Swamee,
said to have been made to Mr. Dunlop, as Political Agent, in the form of an applica-
tion for a stamped paper, 1 could not but look upon such an application as a very

suspicious circumstance. If the object of the applicant were to obfain a stamped 85

paper, the Political Agent is not the person to whom he ought to apply. If the
object were o give notice of intended purchase, it should have been made openly, and
not smuggled into an impertinent application, to which the only probable answer
would be—“If you want astamp, apply to the stamp vendor.” o apply to the
wrong authority for a stamped paper, and afterwards to refer to such application as
proof of notice made to Government regarding a questionable transaction, would be
a proceeding of which I would much rather not believe the remonstrant capable..

XX. The remonstrant finds fault with the decision of 1847, for holding, that for 86
the reasons sét forth, “Government is not bound to * continue” to Konher Row the
villages it did * continue” to his father. This seems a matter of words; and the
decision would be equally equitable, and perhaps more to the purpose, if it had held,
that as it was proved that Government had a right to resame the villages as khalsat,
and as the claimant had failed to show any obligation on its part to waive that right,
it ought now to be enforced. But the effect of the words objected to is nothing else
than this.

XXI[. The last clause of the decree of 1847 objected to by the remonstrant is, I 87

admit, redundant, and, as such, should be cancelled. The maxim of caveat empior
may cause hardships to Konher Row, and make, him repent of his bargain with the
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Swamee ; but this is not a sufficient reasbn why wovernment, or its servants, should
admit the continuance of a misappropriation of:-the public revenue, which they are
bound to protect, without respect to persons or private interests.. :

XXII. The arguments in the remonstrance and its supplement, which I bave now
considered, are not arranged altogether so clearly and so methodically ‘as those dvawn

88 up by Mr. Dickenson in another remonstrance which 1 have just been considering,
regarding the resumption of some other villages, &ec. claimed by Konher Row ; and
I fear that I have, therefore, failed in satisfaciorily classifying them ; but I do not
think that I have omitted to notice all of any real importance, though, perhaps, not
in the order to which they most properly belong.

XXIII. On consideration of the remonstrance and supplement, and of all papers
previously recorded regarding Konher Row’s claim to the exchanged villages, I am
of opinion, that the last paragraph or clause of the decision No. 4, of 14th July_1837,

89 which relates to the future rights and obligations of Konher Row and the Shunkesh-
wur Swamee, should be annulled ; but that, in accordance with the remainder of
that decision, and Act XL.of 1852, Schedule B, Rule 6, Provision 2, the villages
Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood, should be made finally khalsat, .from the
date of the letter No. 401, addressed by the Inam Commissioner Southern Mahratta
Country to the Acting Collector of Belgaum, on the 16th July 1847 ; and I decree
accordingly. : i : f

‘W. Hanr,

: Inam Commisioner.
Khandalla, 11th February 1853.

9,. A-copy of the 8th paragraph of the Record containing the above judgment
90 has been sent to S. 8. Dickenson, Esquire, Meoktiar of Konher Row Anajee, with a
letter, No. 1724, dated 14th February 1853, as follows :—

“ Sir,—I have the honour of forwarding an extract from the Record of my Pro-
ceedings with regard to your Remonstrance, dated 24th January 1853, and its Sup-
plement of the 28th idem, on the-part of Konher Row Anajee Deshpandey, against
the resumption of the villages Mulapoor, Punjunhuttee, and Yedulgood, claimed by
him as Inam, in the Padshapoor Talooka of the Belgaum Collectorate.

“] have, &ec.”

10. Konher Row Anajee has also been apprised by a Mahratta letter, that the
91 Inami Commissioner has furnished a copy of his judgment in this case to his Moktiar.

W. HART,
, Inam Commissioner.
Khandalla, 14th February 1853.

The above decree having been appealed against by Kouher Row Anajee,
the Inam Commissioner’s proceedings were reviewed by the Right Honora-
ble the Governor in Council, by whowm it was resolved, under date 13th
August 1855, that Government had no reason for interfering with the Inam
Commissioner’s decision in this case.



